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2021 2020 2019 2021 2020
5,576 3,013 2,629 85 15
@ 644 721 1,134 11) (36)
6,220 3,734 3,763 67 @
2,373 1,542 1,630 54 5)
2,169 1,322 1,148 64 15
4,542 2,864 2,778 59 3
1,678 870 985 93 (12)
356 171 193 108 (11)
1,322 699 792 89 12)
(25) 84 73 (130) 15
1,347 615 719 119 (14)
@
2021
2021
AUM 85
5,576
2021
11 644
2021
2021 59 4,542
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(
AUM
2020 12 31 242 98 153 493 288 781
100 67 95 262 1,940 2,202
(85) (55) (78) (218) (1,852) (2,070)
34 — 51 85 6 91
@ 119 103 251 473 116 589
(15) ® ® @n @ (28)
2021 12 31 395 207 466 1,068 497 1,565
(
AUM
2019 12 31 138 79 139 356 196 552
87 37 26 150 1,584 1,734
(1) (29) 4) (104) (1,493) (1,597)
69 4 5 78 1 79
) 7 7 13 — 13
2020 12 31 242 98 153 493 288 781
(
AUM
2018 12 31 103 68 128 299 164 463
39 25 22 86 1,315 1,401
(31) (20) an (68) (1,283) (1,351)
28 5 10 43 2 45
(€)) 1 (O] () 2 ()
2019 12 31 138 79 139 356 196 552
€))
AUM
( 2021 2020 2019
362 174 124
181 86 71
380 145 134
AUM 923 405 329
430 252 171
AUM 1,353 657 500
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( bps) 2021 2020 2019
74 76 76
38 29 32
36 58 64
AU 51 60 61
5 15 17
AU 37 42 46
¢! ( )
ETB ETSB —
10 15

(€))
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2021 12 31 2020 12 31

81.6 90.3

61.7 52.6

143.3 142.9

442 35.2

() 85.0 62.9

( 129.2 98.1

6.5 7.9

33.1 27.4

10.4 10.1

6.3 5.4

( 56.3 50.8

386.1 346.5

?) 346.2 309.7
(€))
@)

(©) — — —
( )
2021 12 31
2021 2020 2019

810 1,263 1,233

526 856 645

1,336 2,119 1,878

2021 2020 2019
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372 851 916
798 1,000 760
166 268 202
1,336 2,119 1,878
(€Y)
( )
2021 12 31 @0B) 6,095
2022 O (1,124)
2021 12 31 €)) 1,128
2022 2021 3) 451
®) 6,550
(1) 2021
® 2021 12 31
©)
O]
) 20 70
10
(
)
(€Y)
( )
2022 600
2023 310
2024 669
1,579
(1) 2021
2021
( )
20
( FASB )
GAAP
( )
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( ) ( )

22
( FRC )
( BRC )
) 2021 12 31
IS WM I

91,251 36,003 an 127,725

288,405 1,921 4,543 294,869

41,407 141,591 — 182,998

112,267 7,732 — 119,999

128,154 1,559 — 129,713

57,009 37,643 1,366 96,018
771413
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OooooOodd
@ 58,822 129,307 5 188,134
[©) 14,820 22,682 11,182 48,684
792,135 378,438 17,567 1,188,140
2020 12 31
IS Wit I
74,281 31,275 98 105,654
308,413 280 4,045 312,738
41,630 140,524 — 182,154
84,998 31,236 — 116,234
110,480 1,911 — 112,391
67,085 29,781 871 97,737
@ 52,449 98,130 18 150,597
[©) 13,986 22,458 1,913 38,357
753,322 355,595 6,945 1,115,862
IS —
W —
M —
@ ( )
( )
@
( )
2020 12 31 1,160 2021 12
31 1,880
( )
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2021 12 31 2020 12 31

) ( HOLA )

HQLA HQLA HQLA  LCR
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( ) 2021 12 31 2020 12 31
70,147 49,669
HQLA [6h)
154,879 136,555
110,435 99,659
@ 11,959 39,745
607 2,053
HQLA (1) 348,027 327,681
( HQLA) 7,976 10,942
356,003 338,623
(1) HQLA HQLA
@)
( )
2021 2020 2021 12 31
12 31 12 31
171,642 178,033 164,760
8,582 7,670 9,266
180,224 185,703 174,026
60,391 59,468 56,002
52,932 33,368 56,648
113,323 92,836 112,650
62,456 60,084 58,373
175,779 152,920 171,023
356,003 338,623 345,049
MSBNA  MSPBNA ETB 100 LCR NSFR
LCR 30
HQLA
LCR HQLA (
) HQLA HQLA NSFR
2021 12 31 MSBNA  MSPBNA ETB LCR NSFR (100 )
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2021 12 31 2021 30
HQLA(L)
54,606 66,288
(@) 183,105 174,068
HOLA (1) 237,711 240,356
LCR 134 134
(1) LCR HQLA HQLA
@
LCR HQLA
( ) 2021 12 31 2020 12 31
249,712 228,625
74,487 58,318
() 10,504 4,277
( )
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2021 12 31 2020 12 31
236,327 195,376
69,565 54,528
(€Y
(
)
( )
(
14 )
) 2021 12 31 2020 12 31

Q 298,352 232,071

34,395 47,150

332,747 279,221

14,827 31,561

(@) 347,574 310,782
€Y

() 2021 12 31 2020 12 31
90 250
2021

E*TRADE 200 2021
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2021 12 31 (€))

( )

1,300 4,464 5,764
2022 7,236 6,961 14,197
2023 17,201 6,585 23,786
2024 20,506 8,660 29,166
2025 19,070 6,491 25,561
2026 18,096 5,930 24,026
2027 86,640 23,987 110,627

168,749 58,614 227,363
170,049 63,078 233,127
(€H)]
2021 12 31 2,330 2020 12 31 2,170
14
2022 18 MSBNA MSPBNA

DBRS R-1C ) AC)

F1 A

P-1 AL

a-1 A

S&P A-2 BBB+
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MSBNA
Fl1 At
P-1 Aa3
S&P A-1 A+
MSPBNA
P-1 Aa3
S&P A-1 A+
2021 11 18 MSBNA
2021 24 S&P
2021 2020 2019
) 126 29 121
) 91.13 46.01 44.23
) 11,464 1,347 5,360

18
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2022 19
0.70

2022 15

2022 31

( SPE )

CFTC

18

17

TLAC

15

SPE
16
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RWA
( )
2021 12 31 2020 12 31
— 2.5
( SCB () 5.7 N/A
G-SIB (&) 3.0 3.0
( CCyB )(3) 0 0
8.7 5.5
(1) ScB
(2) G-SIB G-SIB
() CCyB 2.5 FRB
( )
SCB  G-SIB CCyB
2.5 G-
SIB CCyB
2021 12 31 2020 12 31
(€D
4.5 13.2 10.0
6.0 14.7 11.5
8.0 16.7 13.5
(€Y
( RWA )
RWA
— (
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©O) RWA RWA (
) (i) RWA RWA RWA (
) RWA
RWA
SLR
SLR
2021 12 31 2020 12 31
RWA
( CECL ) 2020
2022 25 2025
( ) 2021 2020
D 12 31 12 31
75,742 78,650
83,348 88,079
93,166 97,213
RWA (2 471,921 453,106
13.2 16.0 17.4
14.7 17.7 19.4
16.7 19.7 21.5
( ) 2021 2020
@ 12 31 12 31
75,742 78,650
83,348 88,079
92,927 96,994
RWA 435,749 445,151
10.0 17.4 17.7
11.5 19.1 19.8
13.5 21.3 21.8
( ) 2021 2020
D 12 31 12 31
©) 1,169,939 1,053,510
4.0 7.1 8.4
@Q®
®) 1,476,962 1,192,506
SLR(5) 5.0 5.6 7.4
€Y
[®) 2021 12 ( SA-CCR )

SA-CCR

RWA
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2021 12 31 250
90
(©)
(
)
*
(M
( ) (i)
(iii)
(5) 2021 31 FRB 2020 12 31 SLR
2020 12 31
SLR 80bps
( ) 2021 2020
12 31 12 31
11,361 15,799 (4,438)
89,679 78,978 10,701
(3,102) (1,962) (1,140)
(16,641) (11,527) 5,114)
(6,704) (4,165) (2,539)
(€)) 1,149 1,527 (378)
75,742 78,650 (2,908)
7,750 9,250 (1,500)
562 619 (G
8,312 9,869 (1,557)
(706) (440) (266)
83,348 88,079 (4,731)
8,609 7,737 872
1,155 1,265 (110)
54 132 (78)
9,818 9,134 684
93,166 97,213 (4,047)
8,609 7,737 872
916 1,046 (130)
54 132 (78)
9,579 8,915 664
92,927 96,994 (4,067)
@ ( DVA )
RWA
( )
RWA
2020 12 31 387,066 284,930
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25,467 (17,523)

(4,863) (1,543)

(3,134) 6,512

310 4,493

4,129 4,321

7,527 4,057

RWA 29,436 317

2021 12 31 416,502 285,247
RWA

2020 12 31 66,040 66,040

VaR (7,842) (7,842)

VaR (1,206) (1,206)

2,335 2,335

269 269

@4,177) (4,177)

RWA (10,621) (10,621)

2021 12 31 55,419 55,419

RWA

2020 12 31 N/A 94,181

RWA N/A 902

2021 12 31 N/A 95,083

RWA 471,921 435,749

VaR — ( VaR )
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2021 RWA
2021 12 SA-CCR
E*TRADE
2021 RWA 2020
VaR VaR
G-SIB
G-SIB G-SIB
G-SIB
G-SIB G-SIB
( )
( )
FRB G-SIB ( ) TLAC
( LTD )
SPOE LTD LTD
TLAC
( S I —
)
TLAC LTD LTD
LTD 2016 12 31
(1)RWA 18 (i) (SLR
) 7.5 TLAC
(i)RWA
G-SIB (i)
4.5 LTD
TLAC
TLAC TLAC 2.5
G-SIB CCyB( ) (RWA )
TLAC

TLAC (
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)
TLAC LTD
2021 12 31 2020 12 31
( ) @
TLAC(2) 235,681 216,129
RWA TLAC 18.0 21.5 49.9 47.7
TLAC 7.5 9.5 16.0 18.1
LTD(3) 144,659 120,561
RWA LTD 9.0 9.0 30.7 26.6
LTD 4.5 4.5 9.8 10.1
@
) TLAC ( ) LTD
(3) TLAC LTD( 50
)
LTD
TLAC 2021
G-SIB (TLAC LTD
) 2021 12
31 2020 12 31 TLAC
FRB
FRB ( CCAR )
FRB
FRB FRB
2,500
( ) FRB
FRB
FRB
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0000000
SCB
.5 ) SCB (i)
RWA (ii)2.5
RWA SCB
FRB
SCB 10 FRB
FRB 10 SCB
2021 10 2022 30 5.7 SCB
SCB
13.2
FRB FRB 2020
2020
2020 12 18 FRB
2021
2020
FRB FRB
2021 30
2021
2021 30 2021 SCB
FRB
(IR) 2021 15
0.35 0.70
2021 2022 30 120
2022 2022
FRB FRB 2022 30

CCAR
FRB 15
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( )
(
)
(€8]
) 2021 2020 2019
43.5 42.8 40.4
@ 28.6 20.8 18.2
®) 8.8 2.6 2.5
16.2 14.0 11.6
97.1 80.2 72.7
@ GAAP GAAP
(2) 2021 2020 10
E*TRADE
(3) 2021 2021

2021
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FRB FDIC
2021 2021 30
SPOE
SPOE
( )
( )
SPOE TLAC
TLAC
( )
( )
(
) J—
LIBOR
FRB LIBOR (
IBOR )
IBOR
LIBOR ( FCA ) LIBOR ICE
LIBOR 2021 12
LIBOR LIBOR
2022 « ) (
LIBOR ) FCA
LIBOR 2023 30
FCA 2021 12 31
LIBOR
2021 12 31 LIBOR

LIBOR
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IBOR

( ISDA )

LIBOR FRB

LIBOR

2023 30

2021 12 31

LIBOR

ISDA  1BOR

1BOR

LIBOR

LIBOR

LIBOR

IBOR

2021 12 31

IBOR
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LIBOR
2020 1BOR
( SOFR ) IBOR
LIBOR
SOFR(
LIBOR
LIBOR
LIBOR
LIBOR
2021 12 31
2020 1BOR
LIBOR
( LIBOR
)
2022
2022 LIBOR
LIBOR
1BOR
)
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2021 10-K

1585
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(2021 12 31 )
0.01 ) 3,500,000,000 2,038,893,979 1,461,106,021
0.01 ) 30,000,000 1,187,382 28,812,618
(2021 12 31 )
0.01 2,038,893,979 —
0.01 ( 44,000 ( _
0.01 ( 519,882 (6
0.01 ( 34,500 ( —
0.01 ( 34,000 ( —
0.01 ( — 2
0.01 ( 40,000 ( —
0.01 ( — ( 3)
0.01 ( 40,000 ( —
0.01 ( 20,000 ( —
0.01 M 400,000 —
0.01 ( 3,000 —
0.01 ( 52,000 ( )
— 2,040,081,361 — —
@ MUFG
@ 2021 11 19
2022 18 13
€] 2021 15
2021 15 15
“ 2021 10 25
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®
[O16) ( ) (O
44,000 1,000 25,000
©) 1,160,791 N/A 1,100
34,500 1,000 25,000 2023 10 15
34,000 1,000 25,000 2024 15
40,000 1,000 25,000 2024 10 15
40,000 1,000 25,000 2027 15
(6) 20,000 1,000 25,000 2025 15
@) 400,000 N/A 1,000 2026 15
@ 3,000 100 100,000 2025 10
52,000 1,000 25,000 2027 15
@ 0.01
@
©)) ( ) (
)
( )
©)
M
(1) ( ) 20 (
)
®)
1,000 10
(6) 2019 11 25
(MM E*TRADE 2020 10
( (
) ) 2021 2020 2019
@ @ @
1,022 44 1,017 44 1,014 44
100 52 100 52 100 52
1,781 60 1,781 60 1,781 60
1,719 60 1,719 60 1,719 60
) — — — — 1,242 24
©) 719 38 1,143 60 1,418 74
1,594 64 1,594 64 1,594 64
0)) 253 15 1,213 74 1,388 84
1,463 59 1,463 59 1,463 59
1,219 24 1,219 23 169 3
5) 59 24 — — — —
6) 5,300 16 — — — —
@) 236 12 — — — —
468 496 524
2.10 3,818 1.40 2,295 1.30 2,161
@
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G)M
®
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2020
2019

2021
2021
2020
2026
2023
2027

11 19

15
15
15
15
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2017 2021
( ) ( ) I ( )|« ) ( )
2016 12 31 7,520 804,382 20 | 2,038,893,979 23,271
( 971,659 ) ( 2,584 ) ( 3,006,846 )
2017 45
306
1,000 40,000 () ( )
(G))
2017 12 31 8,520 844,382 20 | 2,038,893,979 23,545
( 1,100,869 ) ( 2,584 ) ( 3,042,249 )
2018 249
2018 12 31 8,520 844,382 20 | 2,038,893,979 23,794
( 1,100,869 ) ( 2,584 ) ( 3,074,423 )
2019 500 20,000 ?) « )
(500) (20,000) « )
131
13
2019 12 31 8,520 844,382 20 | 2,038,893,979 23,935
( 1,100,869 ) ( 2,584 ) ( 3,092,641 )
2020 730 403,000 (
)
518
1,093 | EXTRADE
2020 12 31 9,250 1,247,382 20 | 2,038,893,979 25,546
( 1,195,193 ) ( 2,584 ) ( 3,300,799 )
2021 1,300 52,000 (25) « )
(2,800) (112,000) (
)
1,117
2,185
— | E*TRADE
18
2021 12 31 7,750 1,187,382 20 | 2,038,893,979 28,841
( 1,001,378 ) ( 2,584 ) ( 3,726,546 )
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SEC 2022 2022
( 2022 )
(€))
MUFG(2) 21.6
( ) 7.4
(©)
(
6.7
)IO)
(
6.1
()
58.2
100.00
@ 2022 28 ) ) SEC
(2) MUFG 2021 13 2021 13 13D/A 13D/A
MUFG 378,479,529
13D/A 378,479,529 1,394,362 2021
MUFG
MUFG
(€)
2022 11 2021 12 31 136
136 (i) 130,515,256
122,903,273 (i)
101,059,413 101,051,832 96,801,799
@) 2022 2021 12 31 136 136
112,164,990
2,221,879 5,772,816
) 2022 2021 12 31 136
136 94,296,604 106,860, 261
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2022 28
2022
( ) ( )@
MUFG(3) 378,479,529 21.6
O] 130,705,102 7.4
) 117,937,806 6.7
(6) 106,860,261 6.1
¢y
® 2022 28 @ ) SEC
(3) MUFG 2021 13 2021 13 13D/A 13D/A
MUFG 378,479,529
13D/A 378,479,529 1,394,362 2021
MUFG
MUFG
O]
2022 11 2021 12 31 136
136 O) 130,515,256
122,903,273 (i)
101,059,413 101,051,832 96,801,799
) 2022 2021 12 31 136 136
112,164,990 2,221,879
5,772,816
6) 2022 2021 12 31 136 136
94,296,604 106,860,261
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(@)

2022

( NYSE )

) www.morganstanley.com/about-us-governance

)

Giii) (@)
(b)

@iv)

)
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(H

(i)

(i) @
®

(iv) 12 @

Q) ( )
120,000

)

)
( ) (i)
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(
) (
)
NYSE
2021 (
)
2021 14 2021
75
(
)
2021
(www.morganstanley.com/about-us-governance)
(NYSE )
1934 ( ) 16
NYSE
SEC

NYSE

@
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2021

13

10-K

O]

2021

®
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(
2021
( ESG )
4
(
)
2021 )
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( ) ( ERM )

2021

(1) 2021

(2) 2021 20

(3) 2021 2022
2022 27

(4) 2021
2021 20

®
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2022 28 2021
( )
2022 28
) 60
(€Y 3)
1,154,823 218,009 49,564(4) 1,422,396
4,895 41,424 46,319
163,910 175,823 — 339,733
509,112 240,192 — 749,304
5) 47,387 178,479 — 225,866
155,077 195,729 — 350,806
— 28,706 — 28,706
10,705 22,272 — 32,977
7,389 87,480 — 94,869
23,274 59,461 — 82,735
(6) — — — —
— 806 — 806
(6) — — — —
) 32,516 4,332 — 36,848
204,449 7,886 — 212,335
21,429 28,281 — 49,710
13,669 17,414 — 31,083
3,152 20,480 — 23,632
— 62,750 — 62,750
27,381 33,369 — 60,750
2022 28
23 ) 2,772,139 1,693,799 49,564 4,515,502
(€))
@) ( ) ( )
( )
®3) 2021
28
O]
) 100
100
©) MUFG
MUFG
O]
) 31 90 57
37 67 4.875 20
2022
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( ) 750,000 (
)
( Fw
Fw 2020
Fw
2021
2021 (
)
@ @ 3™
95,000 250,000 — — 345,000
110,000 250,000 — — 360,000
160,000 250,000 — — 410,000
135,000 250,000 — — 385,000
110,000 250,000 — — 360,000
110,000 250,000 — — 360,000
120,000 250,000 — — 370,000
120,000 250,000 — — 370,000
* 31,667 — — 14,011(5) 45,678
31,667 — — 18,647(6) 50,314
95,000 250,000 — — 345,000
135,000 250,000 — — 385,000
120,000 250,000 — — 370,000
* 2021 2021 20
(1) 2021 2021 20
(2) 2021
2021 (2021 20 ) 2022 (2022 26 )
( 2021 )
2020 (2021 2021 20 )
2021 (2021 21 2021 12 31 )
60

139/413



EDINETOOOO
O0O000oo0gOooOoo(eoessr1)
oOoOooodn

80,000
50,000

40,000
25,000
15,000

( DECAP )

DECAP 2021
2020
2021 2021
20 2021
2021 12
(VWAP) (2021 20 86.3259 2021 92.4916 2021 12
96.9171 )
(3) 2021 2021
VIIAP 92.4916
20
DECAP ( 60

50 (
250,000

250,000

O) 2021 12 31 DECAP

( )

28,513
22,122
86,893
59,062

4,303

7,833
28,092
17,297

20,342
62,329
33,145

®) 1,500,000
2021 0.0091

(6) 15,000
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SEC
2021
SEC
)
(0] (BIO) (DIO)] ®) )
2021 1,500,000 8,375,000 24,553,943 2,487 510,205 34,941,635
2020 1,500,000 7,875,000 20,048,178 13,833 121,513 29,558,524
) 2019 1,500,000 6,375,000 23,708,083 17,925 41,387 31,642,395
*1) 2021 834,521 3,645,418 787,500 — 11,600 5,279,039
)
2021 1,000,000 6,737,500 9,168,932 — 143,562 17,049,994
*
)
2020 1,000,000 6,037,500 4,955,756 55,582 47,563 12,096,401
) 2019 1,000,000 7,232,500 4,980,250 60,586 28,067 13,301,403
2021 1,000,000 9,887,500 16,584,344 — 167,782 27,639,626
*
(@)
2020 1,000,000 9,887,500 8,760,132 60,686 — 19,708,318
)
2021 1,000,000 7,787,500 10,170,472 — 259,951 19,217,923
*(1
@ 2020 1,000,000 6,562,500 5,625,839 14,787 54,900 13,258,026
)
2021 1,000,000 7,437,500 10,170,472 — 157,974 18,765,946
2020 1,000,000 6,562,500 5,849,199 70,197 116,028 13,597,924
) 2019 1,000,000 8,382,500 4,980,250 80,002 14,729 14,457,481
* 2021
@ 2021 2020 2019
2020 2019
@
(3) 2021 2022 2021 2021
(4) 2021 2020 2021 21 ( 2020
) «( )
2021 21 ( 2021
) 2020 2021
2021
®)
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2021
2020
(VWAP) 2021
VIVAP
2021
23,625,001 5,250,000 12,000,001
5,925,000 5,925,000
C ) 2021
2020 2021
7,875,000 16,678,943 24,553,943
787,500 — 787,500
5,462,500 3,706,432 9,168,932
8,112,500 8,471,844 16,584,344
5,987,500 4,182,972 10,170,472
5,987,500 4,182,972 10,170,472
20
(6) 2021 ( 2021 ) 2021
2021
2020 12 31 2021 12 31
2021
2021 12 31
2012 ( ) 91 MP-2021
2012
( ERP ) 3.02 2020 12 31
2012 ( ) MP-2020 2012
ERP 2.71
(7) 2021 @) (b)
(
)
@) 2021 401(k) 11,600
()]
( )
2021
2022
422,754 122,560 152,260
223,534 137,964
2021 '6))
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2020 2021 ( 2020
) 2021
( 2021 )
@
(
( )( )( ) ( )IE) (O)
2021 21 2021 0 210,376 315,564 — 16,678,943
2021 21 2021 — — — 105,188 7,875,000
200121 — — — — 10,518 787,500
2021 21 2021 0 46,750 70,124 — 3,706,432
2021 21 2021 — — — 72,963 5,462,500
2021 21 2021 0 106,858 160,286 — 8,471,844
2021 21 2021 — — — 108,360 8,112,500
2021 21 2021 0 52,761 79,140 — 4,182,972
2021 21 2021 — — — 79,976 5,987,500
2021 21 2021 0 52,761 79,140 — 4,182,972
2021 21 2021 — — — 79,976 5,987,500
(€Y) 2021 2021
2021 2020
2021 2021 2021
2021 2020
2020 2021
(2) 2021 2021 2022 2023
2024 2021
(
ROTCE ) 2021
S&P500 ( TSR )
TSR( TSR )
(
)
ROTCE* TSR**
15 1.50 25 1.50
13 1.00 1.00
0.50 50 0.50
0.00 50 0.00
* ROTCE (a)DVA () (c)2011
@
*x TSR TSR TSR
1.0
2021
(3) 2020 2024 27 2020
50 2023 27
2021 29
(4) 2020 2021 2020
(VWAP)
74.8657 2021
VWAP
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20
2021
2021 12 31
2021 12 31
( ) ( )
( ) ( ) (€D) (&)
— — 650,804 63,883,190
— — 138,486 13,594,039
— — 298,326 29,283,848
— — 159,334 15,640,498
— — 163,278 16,027,642
€))
SEC 2020 17
( 2020 ) 2021
2021 12 31
2020
2021 (2021
2021 0)) ) 2023
2024
(2) 2021 12 31 98.16
2021
2021
2021
( )€Y ( )
105,188 7,875,000(2)
476,386 46,723,359(3)
29,203(4) 2,385,249(4)
72,963 5,462,500(2)
100,474 9,854,379(3)
108,360 8,112,500(2)
220,870 21,662,647(3)
79,976 5,987,500(2)
90,080 8,834,962(3)
79,976 5,987,500(2)
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100,474 9,854,379(3)
€)) [0 2020 2019 18
( 2019 )
2020
2019
2021 12 31 ( ) 2020
2021 (©)]
(2) 2020
(VWAP) 74.8657
(3 2019 2019
2021 12 31 VAP 98.0785
2019 2022 24
[0 2021 21 4,791
2021 29
24,412 2021 21
74.8657 2021 29
83.0097
2021
2021 12 31
( :
(€)) @ (©) (D
4 65 130,684 —
10 65 128,502 —
15 65 340,378 —
17 65 367,319 —
4 65 95,313 —
19 65 485,485 —
(1) 2010 12 31 ERP ERP
@
) 2021 12 31 2012 ( ) 91
MP-2021 2012
ERP 3.02
2007
401 (@)
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ERP 2010 12 31
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) 2004 ERP 10 55
55 60 60
ERP
0.5 170,000
2004
65 ERP ERP 2004
2004
1.15 0.35
35 ( ERP
120 60
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2021
)
(€)) @ (©) (O)
(5) 7,875,000 — 9,702,971 7,971,280 30,549,218
— — 40 326,386 337,307
(5) 2,026,529 — 296,156 — 2,322,685
— — 469,876 5,339,460 5,562,699
(5) 5,462,500 — 4,446,254 2,566,030 14,763,142
— — 922 7,554,094 8,012,943
(5) 8,112,500 — 6,721,736 13,005,446 19,905,156
— — (20,849) 4,105,545 5,294,766
(5) 5,987,500 — 4,662,067 2,166,564 15,683,612
— — 633 4,435,390 5,639,608
— — 126,965 — 1,706,810
(5) 5,987,500 — 4,814,687 3,107,525 15,919,659
@ 2020
2021 29 ( )
2020 (2021 2021 2021
2021 )
(VWAP) 74.8657 2021 29
VIVAP 83.0097
©)) (i)2021 12 31
( )  (ii)2020 12 31
(i)2021 12 31 ( )
2020 12 31 ( ) (i)
2021 (
)
(©))
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O 2021 12 31
2021 12 31
2021 12 31
(5) 2021 12 31
vsciP)
2020 MSCIP MSCIP

MSCIP
MSCIP
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(PTIP)
PTIP
2003 PTIP
( 10 15 20 )
55
(RSU)
2021 12 31
( )
(
)

2021
2021
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(
)
(
) ( )
180
( ) 180
2.
2021 12 31
)
(
MSCIP (1) &) 3) )(4)
(
— 64,808,032 248,199 200,000
)
— — 1,525,772 200,000
— 13,778,087 1,021,202 200,000
— 29,640,767 1,065,952 200,000
— 15,858,858 1,021,446 200,000
— 16,259,806 788,779 200,000
@ MSCIP
MSCIP
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i) (ii)
Gii) 75
18
)
2021 12 31 (
)
2021 12 31
2020
2021 30 (
) 2021
(
55,173,037 11,636,977 24,746,801 13,442,463
13,843,411 ) 2021 12 31
( 98.16 )
(©)]
2021 12 31
2012 2017 MP-2021 91
2017 MP-2021 2012 (
) 2.85 2022 2023 6.10 65 ) 6.45
65 ) 2031 4.48 65 ) 4.46 65 ) )
3.0 3.0
“4)
SEC
SEC
2021 ( )
137,069 2021
34,941,635 2021
255
1.
( ) 2021
2020
2020 12 31
2020 12 31
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(— ) (— ) (— ) (— )
58.3 8.3 60.6 10.3
( 7,533 Yy | ¢ 1,072 ) | ( 7,830 )y | € 1,331 )
€Y} (@
( )
()
€Y @
)
€Y @
)
(2021 10 15 )
( )
10 A(i)()(B)
( PCAOB
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@ ( ) (
) 1934 ( SEC )
10-K SEC
S X
( 38 59 ) 131

@) 2021 12 31 2020 12 31 2021 2020

2019 12 31

( ( 23 103 )
) LLP(Deloitte & Touche
LLP) ( 23 25 ) 193
2021 12 31
24
A3 ( ) SEC
) SEC
)

4)

134 2022 31

UFJ 129.21

) 132 133

SEC @
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2021 2020 2019

$10,994 14205 $ 7,674 9,916 $ 6,163 7,963
12,810 16,552 13,983 18,067 11,274 14,567
1,376 1,778 986 1,274 1,540 1,990
5,521 7,134 4,851 6,268 3,919 5,064
19,967 25,799 14,272 18,441 13,083 16,905
1,042 1,346 678 876 865 1,118
51,710 66,814 42,444 54,842 36,844 47,606
9,411 12,160 10,162 13,130 17,098 22,092
1,366 1,765 3,849 4,973 12,404 16,027
8,045 10,395 6,313 8,157 4,694 6,065
59,755 77,209 48,757 62,999 41,538 53,671
4 5 761 983 161 208

24,628 31,822 20,854 26,945 18,837 24,339
3,341 4,317 2,929 3,785 2,493 3,221
3,119 4,030 2,465 3,185 2,194 2,835
2,933 3,790 2,205 2,849 2,137 2,761
1,725 2,229 1,559 2,014 1,428 1,845
643 831 434 561 660 853
3,694 4,773 3,132 4,047 2,327 3,007
40,083 51,791 33578 43,386 30,076 38,861
19,668 25,413 14,418 18,629 11,301 14,602
4,548 5,876 3,239 4,185 2,064 2,667
$15,120 19,537 $11,179 14444  $ 9237 11,935
86 111 183 236 195 252

$15034 19425 $10996 14,208 $ 9042 11,683
468 605 496 641 530 685

$14566 18,821  $10500 13567 $ 8512 10,998

$ 816 1,054 $ 655 846 $ 526 680
8.03 1,038 6.46 835 5.19 671
1,785 1,603 1,617

1,814 1,624 1,640

156/413



EDINETOOOO
O0O000oo0gOooOoo(eoessr1)
oOoOooodn

( )
2021 2020 2019

$15120 19537 $11,179 14,444  $ 9,237 11,935

(331) (428) 170 220 3 4
(1542) (1,992) 1580 2042 1137 1,469
(53) (68) 146 189 (66) (85)
696 899 (1,028) (1,328) (1639) (2118)

$(1,230) (1,589) $ 868 1122 $ (565) (730)
$13890 17,947 $12,047 15566 $ 8,672 11,205
86 111 183 236 195 252

(90) (116) 42 54 (69) (89)

$13894 17,952 $11,822 15275 $ 8546 11,042
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(104,186
132,578

(102,830
)

110,383

( 15
)

(654 835

(3,819 3,265
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2020 12 31

$ 127,725 165,033

) 294,869
182,998

119,999
129,713
96,018

174,302
13,832
16,833

8,360
23,491

381,000
236,452

155,051
167,602
124,065

225,216
17,872
21,750

10,802
30,353

$ 105,654 136,516

312,738
182,154

116,234
112,391
97,737

137,784
12,813
11,635

4,980
21,742

404,089
235,361

150,186
145,220
126,286

178,031
16,556
15,034

6,435
28,093

$1,188,140 1,535,196 $1,115,862 1,441,805
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(1,940 3,521

(791

1,115

(5,133 11,701

(76,340
)

73,701

0.01

3,500,000,000
2,038,893,979
1,772,226,530
1,809,624,144

«c )

— 0.01

(266,667,449 229,269,835 )
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2021 12 31 2020 12 31
$ 347,574 449,100 $ 310,782 401,561
158,328 204,576 157,631 203,675
62,188 80,353 50587 65,363
12299 15892 7,731 9,989
10041 12974 15863 20,497
228685 205484 227,437 293,871
29300 37,859 25603 33,082
233,127 301,223 217,079 280,488
1,081,542 1,397,460 1,012,713 1,308,526
7,750 10,014 9,250 11,952
20 26 20 26
28841 37,265 25546 33,008
89432 115555 78,694 101,681
3,955 5,110 3,043 3,932
(3102)  (4,008)  (1,962)  (2,535)
(17,5000 (22,612) (9,767) (12,620
(3955  (5110)  (3,043) (3932
105441 136,240 101,781 131511
1,157 1,495 1,368 1,768
106598 137,735 103,149 133,279

$1,188,140 1,535,196

$1,115,862 1,441,805
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2021 2020 2019

$ 9250 11,952 $ 8520 11,009 $ 8520 11,009
1,300 1,680 730 943 500 646

(2,800) (3618) — — (500)  (646)
7750 10,014 9250 11,952 8520 11,009

20 26 20 26 20 26

25,546 33,008 23,935 30,926 23,794 30,744

1117 1443 518 669 131 169
(25) (32) — — 3 (4)
2185 2823 — — — —
— — 1,093 1412 — —
18 23 — — 13 17

28,841 37,265 25,546 33,008 23935 30,926

78694 101,681 70589 91,208 64,175 82,921
— — (100) (129) — —
— — — — 63 81

15034 19425 10,996 14208 9,042 11,683
(468) (605)  (496) 641)  (524)  (677)
(3818) (4933) (2295 (2965 (2,161) (2,792)
(10) (13) — — (6) 8
89432 115555 78,694 101,681 70,589 91,208

3,043 3,932 2,918 3,770 2,836 3,664
912 1,178 125 162 82 106
3,955 5,110 3,043 3,932 2,918 3,770

(1,962) (2535 (2,788) (3,602) (2292) (2,961)

(1,140)  (1,473) 826 1,067  (496)  (641)
(3102)  (4,008) (1962) (2535 (2788) (3,602
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2021 2020 2019
(9,767) (12,620) (18727) (24,197) (13,971) (18,052)
1210 1563 932 1,204 1198 1,548
(12,075) (15602) (1,890) (2442) (5954) (7,693)
3132 4047 @ — — — —
— — 9918 12815 — —
(17,500) (22,612) (9,767) (12,620) (18,727) (24,197)
(3043) (3932) (2918) (3770) (2836) (3,664)
(912)  (1,178) (125 (162)  (82) (106)
(3955) (5110) (3,043) (3932 (2918) (3,770)
1,368 1,768 1148 1483 1160 1,499
86 111 183 236 195 252
(90) (116) 42 54 (69) (89)
(207)  (267) (5 (6) (138)  (178)
1,157 1,495 1368 1768 11148 1,483
$ $
106,598 137,735 103,149 133,279 $ 82,697 106,853

18
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$ 15120 19537 $ 11,179 14444 $ 9237 11,935
4 5 (250) (323 165 213

2085 2694 1312 1,695 1,153 1,490
4216 5447 3769 4,870 2643 3415
4 5 761 983 161 208

(147)  (190) 274 354 (195) (252

9075 11,726 15551 20,003  (13,667) (17,659)
(17,322) (22,382) (5076) (6559) 9,764 12,616
4568 5902  (1,541) (1,991)  (3,402)  (4,396)
774 1,000  (29774) (38471) 233 301

7758 10,024 10,187 13163 19,942 25767
(3,765)  (4,865) (28,010) (36,192) 10,298 13,306
11,601 14,990 (3613) (4,668) 4441 5738
33971 43,804 (25231) (32,601) 40,773 52,683
(2,308) (2,982) (1444) (1866) (1,826) (2,359
(36,106) (46,653) (17,949) (23,192) (17,359) (22,430)
(69,571) (89,893) (59,777) (77,238) (42,586) (55,025)
20,652 26,684 13750 17,766 17,151 22,161
40,916 52,868 24517 31678 12,012 15521
(2,648) (3421 — — — —

— — 3807 4919  — —

(832)  (L075) (802) (1,036  (953) (1,231
(49,897) (64,472) (37,898) (48,968) (33,561) (43,364)
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(625)  (808) 2,794 3610 3695 4,774
36,807 47,675 75417 97,446 2513 3,247
1275 1,647 — — 497 642
90,273 116642 60,726 78464 30,605 39,545
(70,124) (90,607) (50,484) (65,230) (40,548) (52,392)
(12,075) (15,602) (1,890) (2,442) (5954) (7,693)
4171) (5389) (2,739) (3539) (25627) (3,394)
97 125 (40) (52) (147)  (190)
41547 53683 83,784 108257 (11,966) (15461)
(3550) (4,587) 2,828 3654  (271) (350
22071 28518 23483 30,342 (5025 (6,493
105,654 136516 82,171 106,173 87,196 112,666
$127,725 165033 $105654 136,516 $ 82,171 106,173
$ 1,303 1684 $ 4120 5323  $ 12511 16,165
4231 5467 2591 3348 1908 2,465
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39
25
15

15 29
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) )
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(@)
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2020
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2020
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2021 Eaton Vance
Corp. 100
87
69 53 34
( )
2021

$ 691
445
299
52
331
5,270
3,956
836
$ 11,880
$ 399
2,147
678
$ 3,224
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2020 10

Corporation

233

1,818

110
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ooooooo
( )
2021
$ 2,120
16 1,455
23 221
16 160
$ 3,956
413 2021 2021 12 31
( )
2021 2020
$60,051 $50,371
15,220 10,779

2020

100

1.0432

E*TRADE Financial

119

2020
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$ 3,807

1,124
44
48,855
975
12,267

462
4,270
3,282
1,351

$ 76,437

$ 44,890
766
15,488
1,688
1,665

$ 64,497

28 17

2020 10 2020 12 31
600

2020 2019
$ 50,203 $ 44,192
11,459 9,839
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2019
( )
2021 12 31 2020 12 31
$ 83% $ 9,792
119,331 95,862
$127,725 $ 105,654
$ 40,887 $ 38,202
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( )
2021 12 31
1
$ 45,970 $ 29,749 $ 2 $ - $ 75,721
28,041 4,533 211 - 32,785
- 1,905 13 - 1,918
MABS - 1,237 344 - 1,581
, - 8,821 3,806 _ 12,627
- 27,309 1,973 _ 29,282
3 91,630 832 115 _ 92,577
1,364 153,048 1,153 - 155,565
_ 8,441 509 - 8,950
28 74,571 132 _ 74,731
1,562 68,519 251 _ 70,332
4,462 20,194 3,057 _ 27,713
1 (5,696) (241,814) (794) (50,833) (299,137)
1,720 82,959 4,308 (50,833) 38,154
4 735 846 1,125 _ 2,706
_ 2,771 - - 2,771
4 168,096 160,962 11,897 (50,833) 290,122
59,021 43,809 _ _ 102,830
_ 7 _ _ 7
$ 227,117 $ 204,778 $ 11,897 $ (50,833) $ 392,959

187/413



EDINETOOOO

OOOo0oooonOn(eossr1)
OooooOodd
( )
2021 12 31
1

$ - $ 1,873 $ 67 $ - $ 1,940
16,433 319 - - 16,752
20,771 2,062 - - 22,833
- 8,707 16 - 8,723
75,181 226 45 - 75,452
1,087 145,670 445 - 147,202
_ 9,090 411 - 9,501
19 73,096 80 - 73,195
2,119 77,363 1,196 - 80,678
4,563 16,837 1,528 - 22,928

(5,696) (241,814) (794) (50,632) (298,936)
2,092 80,242 2,866 (50,632) 34,568
114,477 91,556 2,927 (50,632) 158,328
_ 140 651 — 791
- 4,730 403 - 5,133
- 74,183 2,157 - 76,340
$ 114,477 $ 172,482 $ 6,205 $ (50,632) $ 242,532
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( )
2020 12 31
1
$ 43,084 $ 31,524 $ 9 $ - $ 74,617
26,174 5,048 268 - 31,490
_ 1,135 - - 1,135
MABS - 1,070 322 - 1,392
2 - 5,389 5,759 - 11,148
- 30,093 3,435 - 33,528
3 111,575 1,142 86 - 112,803
4,458 227,818 1,210 - 233,486
- 6,840 701 - 7,541
29 93,770 260 - 94,059
1,132 65,943 1,369 - 68,444
1,818 10,108 2,723 - 14,649
1 (5.488) (310,534) (1,351) (62,956) (380, 329)
1,949 93,945 4,912 (62,956) 37,850
4 624 234 828 - 1,686
- 3,260 - - 3,260
4 183,406 172,840 15,619 (62,956) 308,909
46,354 61,225 2,804 - 110,383
_ 12 3 - 15
$ 229,760 $ 234,077 $ 18,426 $ (62,956) $ 419,307
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1
$ - $ 3,395 $ 126 $ - $ 3,521
10,204 1 - - 10,205
24,209 1,738 16 - 25,963
_ 8,468 - - 8,468
3 67,822 172 63 - 68,057
4,789 213,321 528 - 218,638
- 7,500 652 - 8,152
11 94,698 199 - 94,908
1,245 81,683 3,600 - 86,528
1,758 9,418 1,014 - 12,190
1 (5,488) (310,534) (1,351) (58,105) (375,478)
2,315 96,086 4,642 (58,105) 44,938
104,550 106,465 4,721 (58,105) 157,631
_ 671 444 - 1,115
- 11,185 516 - 11,701
- 69,327 4,374 - 73,701
$ 104,550 $ 191,043 $ 10,181 $ (58,105) $ 247,669
MABS
1.
2.
3.
4. NAV
( )
2021 12 31 2020 12 31
$ 8 $ 13
- 648
863 916
3,011 2,145
7,845 7,426
$ 12,627 $ 11,148
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( )

2021 2020 2019

$ 9 $ 22 $ 54
- 1 4
2 - 17
©) 22) (54)
_ 8 1
$ 2 $ 9 $ 22
$ - $ - $ 4
$ 268 $ 5 $ 17
o - ©)
146 265 7
(192) @) ®)
(10) - 10)
$ 21 $ 268 $ 5
$ - $ - $ 3
$ - $ 1 $ 148
4 _ _
O] - (147)
13 [€h) —
$ 13 $ - $ 1
$ - $ - $ -
$ 32 $ 438 $ 354
51 (66) (16)
254 175 132
(215) (244) (175)
- - (44)
(68) 19 187
$ 344 $ 322 $ 438
$ (10 $ (49 $ (5D
$ 5,759 $ 5,073 $ 6,870
51 (65) 38
2,446 3,479 2,337
(2,609) (957) (1,268)
(1,268) (2,196) (2,291)
(573) 425 (613)
$ 3,806 $ 5,759 $ 5,073
$ () $ 58 $ ©
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OooooOodd
( )

2021 2020 2019

$ 3,435 $ 1,396 $ 1,076
(140) 318 418
1,355 2,623 650
(785) (617) (729)
- (311) )
(1,892) 26 (12)
$ 1,973 $ 3,435 $ 1,39
$ (25 $ 311 $ 361
$ 86 $ 97 $ 95
® (55) ®
121 36 32
(50) an (271)
(3 25 249
$ 115 $ 86 $ 97
$ ®3) $  (39) $ 1
$ 828 $ 858 $ 757
382 32 78
226 61 40
(115) (106) (41)
(196) an 24
$ 1,125 $ 828 $ 858
$ 359 $  (45) $ 67
$ 2,804 $ _ $ _
) 5 _
- 2,799 -
(203) _ _
(2,597) _ _
$ - $ 2,804 $ -
$ — $ 5 $ -
$ 3 $ - $ _
®3) _
$ — $ $ -
$ - $ - $ -
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2021 2020 2019

$ 682 $ 777 $ 618
284 (150) 17

67 174 98
(52) (44) (16)

14 40 1

(287) (115) 59

$ 708 $ 682 $ 777
$ 292 $ (3D $ 87
$ 49 $ 124 $ 40
95 (91) (24)

18 98 144
(46) (112) (190)

58 94 111

(76) (64) 43

$ 98 $ 49 $ 124
$ 12 $ (111) $ @0
$ 61 $ (3D $ 75
(89) 156 (295)

2 4 2

(15) _ _

16 an 7

77 (51) 180
$ 52 $ 61 $ (3D
$ (62) $ 94 $ (187
$ (2,231) $ (1,684) $ (1,485)
344 72 (260)

70 179 155
(443) (713) (643)

160 (354) 242
1,155 269 307
$  (945) $ (2,231) $ (1,684)
$  (103) $  (210) $ (199
$ 1,709 $ 1,612 $ 2,052
529 251 73

44 89 152
(86) 1)) 92)
(599) (183) (611)
(68) ?) 38

$ 1,529 $ 1,709 $ 1,612
$ 141 $  (309) $  (113)
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2021 2020 2019
$ 126 $ 179 $ 27
« ) - 15 20
- 21 101
10 an (15)
(49) 72) 46
$ 67 $ 126 $ 179
C D $ - $ 15 $ 20
$ 79 $ 37 $ 16
« ) 21 (18) (€Y
(30) (3% (65)
43 27 38
_ 3 _
(10) 65 69
$ 61 $ 79 $ 37
« ) $ $ (18) $ (1
$ 444 $ - $ -
« ) 1 @n _
- 470 -
206 1 -
$ 651 $ 444 $ _
(G $ 1 $ @) $ -
$ 516 $ 109 $ 208
« ) an 21 5
449 208 -
(518) 17 ®
@n 395 (96)
$ 403 $ 516 $ 109
« ) $  (16) $ 21 $ 5
$ 4,374 $ 4,088 $ 3,806
« ) (99) 204 728
717 980 1,181
(448) (461) (950)
2 (2,387) (437) (677)
$ 2,157 $ 4,374 $ 4,088
« ) $  (114) $ 201 $ 600
DVA( ) oct 1 63 182
1. 2021
895 2020
857 707
2. 2021
20 ( )10 22
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OOOo0oooonOn(eossr1)
OooooOodd
( )
1
2021 12 31 2020 12 31
$ 211 $ 268
100 140 (120 ) 106
MABS $ 344 $ 322
0 86 (59 ) 0 80 (50 )
$ 3,806 $ 5,759
1 4 3) 1 5 B)
89 101 97 ) 75 102 (93 )
$ 1,973 $ 3,435
50 163 (99 ) 10 133 (101 )
54 84 (62 /54 ) 40 62 (46 /40 )
N/M 18 21 (19 )
$ 115 $ 86
100 100
$ 1,125 $ 828
10 16 (15 ) 8 18 (15 )
8 17 (12 ) 717 (12 )
EBITDA 8 25 (10 ) 8 32 (11 )
43 100 (99 ) 45 100 (99 )
$ - $ 2,804
N/A 97 107 (101 )
$ 708 $ 682

39 79 (64 /63 )
62 98 (83 /84 )
5 32 (12 /9 )
24 65 (44 /40 )

0 349 (62 /59 )

54 99 (87 /89 )

6 24 (13 /13 )

25 66 (45 /43 )
1
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oooooog
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1
2021 12 31 2020 12 31
$ 98 $ 49
7 7
83 (46 ) 0 85 47 )
14 477bps(68bps) 20 435bps(74bps)
15 433bps(55bps) 65 118bps(86bps)
N/A 27 44 (32 )
$ 52 $ 61
53 5 (55 /54 ) 55 59 (56 /56 )
39 79 (64 /63 ) 0 349 (62 /59 )
-1 7 (2 /0 ) 6 8 (7 /8 )
-4 -2 (-3 /-3 ) -22 28 3 /1 )
90 95 (94 /95 ) 50 95 (83 /93 )
$ (945) $(2,231)
5 9 (24 ) 16 97 (43 )
-4 0 (1) -3 0 (1)
5 99 (73 ) 24 9% (74 )
-85 37 (42 ) -79 60 (-16 )
13 30 (@15 ) -13 47 (21 /20 )
$ 1,529 $ 1,709
$4  $263($39)/MWh $-1 $157($28)/MWh
8 385 (22 ) 8 183 (19 )
43 100 (94 ) 43 9 (92 )
$ 67 $ 126
7 7 22 (8 )
$ 45 $ 63
100 100
$ 651 $ 444
112 127bps(120bps) 107 127bps(115bps)
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1
2021 12 31 2020 12 31
$ 403 $ 516
N/A 111bps(111bps)
30 100 (83 ) 30 101 (56 )
$ 2,157 $ 4,374
7 85 (20 ) 6 66 (23 )
-1 0 () -2 0 ()
41 95 (81 ) 37 95 (78 )
-55 25 (-30 ) -72 13 (24 )
-26 8 (-5 /-5 ) -28 6 (-6 /-6 )
54 84 (62 /54 ) N/M
$ 1,576 $ 3,134
108 565bps(284bps) 36 636bps(336bps)
40 80 (61 ) N/M
182 446bps(376bps) 200 413bps(368bps)
N/M 88 99bps(94hps)

IR
FX

2021

205/413
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EBITDA EBITDA
EBITDA EBITDA
EBITDA

01S

( wacc ) WACC
WACC
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2021 12 31 2020 12 31
$ 2,492 $ 615 $ 2,367 $ 644
2,064 248 1,403 136
191 2 59 -
$ 4,747 $ 865 $ 3,829 $ 780
NAV
23
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( )
2021 12 31
$ 982 $ 403
1,163 1,283
347 378
$ 2,492 $ 2,064
)
2021 12 31
1
$ 4,035 $ 1,576 $ 5,611
- 8 8
16 - 16
$ 4,051 $ 1,584 $ 5,635
$ 173 $ 70 $ 243
$ 173 $ 70 $ 243
)
2020 12 31
1
$ 2,566 $ 3,134 $ 5,700
- 16 16
21 - 21
$ 2,587 $ 3,150 $ 5,737
$ 193 72 $ 265
$ 193 72 $ 265

209/413
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) 1
( )
2021 2020 2019
$ (89) $ (354 $ 18
® - -
(6)) @ -
(D) (56) (56)
(14 (45) (22)
(25) (23) —
$  (196) $ (480) $ (60)
2 $ 37 $ ) $ 87
$ 37 $ @) $ 87
CDS

210/413
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oOoOooodn
( )

2021 12 31

$ 127,725 $ 127,725 $ — $ — $ 127,725
80,168 29,454 49,352 1,076 79,882
119,992 - 117,922 2,075 119,997
129,713 - 129,713 - 129,713
91,664 - 88,091 3,442 91,533
188,134 - 25,706 163,784 189,490
528 - 528 - 528
$ 345,634 $ - $ 345,911 $ - $ 345,911
61,397 - 61,419 - 61,419
12,299 - 12,296 - 12,296
4,908 - 4,910 - 4,910
228,631 - 228,631 - 228,631
156,787 - 162,154 4 162,158
$ 133,519 $ - $ 890 $ 470 $ 1,360

211/413
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OooooOodd
( )

2020 12 31

$ 105,654 $ 105,654 $ - % - $ 105,654
71,771 31,239 42,281 900 74,420
116,219 - 114,046 2,173 116,219
112,391 - 112,392 - 112,392
92,907 - 89,832 3,041 92,873
150,597 - 16,635 135,277 151,912
485 _ 485 - 485
$ 307,261 $ - $ 307,807 $ - $ 307,807
49,472 - 49,315 195 49,510
7,731 - 7,731 - 7,731
4,162 _ 4,162 - 4,162
224,951 - 224,951 - 224,951
143,378 - 150,824 5 150,829
$ 125,498 $ - $ 709 $ 395 $ 1,104

212/413



2021

2020

2019

EDINETOOOO
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( )
2021 12 31 2020 12 31
$ 37,046 $ 33,952
28,638 31,222
7,837 5,078
1,347 1,344
1,472 2,105
$ 76,340 $ 73,701
( )
2021 2020 2019
$ 899 $ (5,135) $ (6,932)
305 341 375
$ 594 $ (5,476) $ (7,307)
( )
ocl
$ 278 $ _
2 _
_ 17
(36) 901
$  (116) $ -
®3) -
- (19
(26) (1,340)
$ 223 $ _
@ -
- (30)
(11) (2,140)

213/413
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2021 12 31 2020 12 31

AOCI DVA $ (2,439) $ (3,357)

1.
1
( )
2021 12 31 2020 12 31

2 $ 12,633 $ 14,042

2 9,999 11,551

3 (2,106) 3,773)
1.
2.
3.

VIE
( )
2021 12 31 2020 12 31
989 $ 1,407
90 363 $ 239
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2021 12 31
$ 594 $ 1 $ - $ 595
191 6 — 197
785 7 — 792
— 15 — 15
147,585 7,002 383 154,970
5,749 3,186 - 8,935
73,276 1,219 39 74,534
28,877 — 41,455 70,332
22,175 — 5,538 27,713
277,662 11,422 47,415 336,499
$ 278,447 $ 11,429 $ 47,415 $ 337,291
(201,729) (9,818) (42,883) (254,430)
(43,495) (1,212) _ (44,707)
$ 33,223 $ 399 $ 4,532 $ 38,154
(10,457) _ _ (10,457)
$ 22,766 $ 399 $ 4,532 $ 27,697
( ) $ 6,725
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2021 12 31
$ 86 $ 1 $ - $ 87
57 50 — 107
143 51 — 194
17 412 — 429
140,770 6,112 233 147,115
5,609 3,463 — 9,072
71,851 1,196 41 73,088
39,597 - 41,081 80,678
17,188 — 5,740 22,928
275,032 11,183 47,095 333,310
$ 275,175 $ 11,234 $ 47,095 $ 333,504
(201,729) (9,818) (42,883) (254,430)
(43,305) (1,201) _ (44,506)
$ 30,141 $ 215 $ 4,212 $ 34,568
(5,866) () (39) (5,913)
$ 24,275 $ 207 $ 4,173 $ 28,655
( ) $ 6,194

216/413
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( )
2020 12 31
$ 946 $ 2 $ - $ 948
5 — 7
951 4 - 955
2 51 — 53
221,895 10,343 300 232,538
5,341 2,147 — 7,488
92,334 1,639 79 94,052
34,278 - 34,166 68,444
11,095 — 3,554 14,649
364,945 14,180 38,099 417,224
$ 365,896 $ 14,184 $ 38,099 $418,179
(276,682) (11,601) (35,260) (323,543)
(54,921) (1,865) _ (56,786)
$ 34,293 $ 718 $ 2,839 $ 37,850
(13,319) _ _ (13,319)
(391) _ _ (391)
$ 20,583 $ 718 $ 2,839 $ 24,140
( ) $ 3,743

217/413
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OooooOodd
( )
2020 12 31
$ — $ 19 $ - $ 19
291 99 — 390
291 118 — 409
18 177 — 195
210,015 7,965 639 218,619
5,275 2,682 — 7,957
92,975 1,500 43 94,518
49,943 — 36,585 86,528
8,831 — 3,359 12,190
367,057 12,324 40,626 420,007
$ 367,348 $ 12,442 $ 40,626 $ 420,416
(276,682) (11,601) (35,260) (323,543)
(51,112) (823) — (51,935)
$ 39,554 $ 18 $ 5,366 $ 44,938
(10,598) — (1,520) (12,118)
(62) 3) - (65)
$ 28,894 $ 15 $ 3,846 $ 32,755
( ) $ 6,746

218/413
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( )
2021 12 31
$ 104 $ - $ 108
1 - 9
12 105 - 117
3,488 7,082 570 11,140
216 105 - 321
3,386 95 10 3,491
495 - 407 902
139 - 73 212
7,724 7,282 1,060 16,066
7,736 $ 7,387 $ 1,060 $ 16,183
)
2021 12 31
- $ 99 $ - $ 99
3 - 8
102 - 107
1 12 - 13
3,827 6,965 445 11,237
225 106 - 331
3,360 88 12 3,460
552 - 735 1,287
110 - 81 191
8,075 7,171 1,273 16,519
8,080 $ 7,273 $ 1,273 $ 16,626

219/413
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( )
2020 12 31
$ $ 123 $ - $ 129
_ _ 2
8 123 - 131
_ 1 - 1
3,847 6,946 409 11,202
140 87 - 227
3,046 103 10 3,159
444 - 367 811
107 - 68 175
7,584 7,137 854 15,575
$ 7,592 $ 7,260 $ 854 $ 15,706
)
2020 12 31
$ - $ 80 $ - $ 80
11 3 _ 14
11 83 _ 94
1 5 - 6
4,000 6,915 511 11,426
142 93 - 235
3,180 102 11 3,293
474 - 591 1,065
93 - 68 161
7,890 7,115 1,181 16,186
$ 7,901 $ 7,198 $ 1,181 $ 16,280

220/413
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( )
2021 2020 2019
$ 742 $ 75 $ (10)
(629) (33) 10
$ (4,306) $ 4,678 $ 4,212
88 (100) 7
4,214 (4,692) (4,288)
$ 664 $  (366) $ 14
(53) 16 136
( )
2021 12 31 2020 12 31
$ 17,902 $ 16,288
$  (591) $ (39)
$ 6,279 $ 15,059
$ 5 $ 93
$ 122,919 $ 114,349
$ 2,324 $ 6,575
$  (743) $  (756)
( )
2021 2020 2019
$  (285) $ 9 $ (179
( )
2021 12 31 2020 12 31
$ 20,548 $ 30,421
14,789 23,842
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2021 12 31
$ 234
357
$ 477
1.
S&P
1
( )
2021 12 31
CDS
$ 10 26 29 $ 74
5 13 17 37
$ 15 39 46 11 $ 111
CDS
$ 11 106 15 $ 134
14 37 12 72
$ 11 25 143 27 $ 206
CDS $ 26 64 189 38 317
$ 26 64 189 38 $ 317
CDS
$ 278



CDS
CDS

CDS

CDS

CDS

CDS
CDS
1.

EDINETOOOO

OOOo0oooonOn(eossr1)

OooooOodd
( )

2020 12 31
19 $ 32 $ $ 69
10 17 36
16 29 $ 49 $ 11 $ 105
$ 39 $ 14 $ 60
29 14 58
14 $ 68 $ 28 $ 118
24 43 $ 117 $ 39 $ 223
24 43 $ 117 $ 39 $ 223
$ 196
«
)
2021 12 31 2020 12 31

$ 1,428 $ 1,230
(370) 22)
$ 1,058 $ 1,208
$ 1,393 $ 843
(650) (824)
$ 743 19
$ 1,801 1,227
©) )
$ 1,798 $ 1,223

223/413
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cDS
( )
2021 12 31 2020 12 31

$ 126 $ 116

204 116

18 14

$ 348 $ 246

( )

2021 12 31 2020 12 31

$ (1,338) $ (1,452)

(563) 7

(451) (329)

$ (2,352) $ (1,838)

cDS
DS
CDS CDS
CcDS
DS CDS CDS

CDS
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CLN CDO CLN CDO
( )
2021 12 31
1
$ 58,974 $ 343 $ 296 $ 59,021
2 26,780 274 241 26,813
14,476 289 89 14,676
613 37 2 648
FFELP 8 1,672 11 11 1,672
102,515 954 639 102,830
28,653 882 81 29,454
2 48,195 169 1,228 47,136
2,267 - 51 2,216
1,053 28 5 1,076
80,168 1,079 1,365 79,882
$ 182,683 $ 2,033 $ 2,004 $ 182,712

225/413
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( )
2020 12 31
1
$ 45,345 $ 1,010 $ - $ 46,355
2 37,389 762 25 38,126
19,982 465 9 20,438
1,694 42 - 1,736
1,461 103 1 1,563
FFELP 3 1,735 7 26 1,716
449 - - 449
108,055 2,389 61 110,383
29,346 1,893 - 31,239
2 38,951 704 8 39,647
2,632 4 2 2,634
842 58 - 900
71,771 2,659 10 74,420
$ 179,826 $ 5,048 $ 71 $ 184,803
CMo

95
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( )
2021 12 31 2020 12 31
12 $ 31,459 $ 29 $ 151 $ -
31,459 296 151 -
12 12,283 219 5,808 22
12 1,167 22 1,168 3
13,450 241 6,976 25
12 2,872 89 2,779 9
12 10 - 46 -
2,882 89 2,825 9
12 21 2 86 -
12 7 - 36 1
28 2 122 1
FFELP
12 320 1 - _
12 591 10 1,077 26
911 1 1,077 26
12 46,955 607 8,824 31
12 1,775 32 2,358 30
$ 48,730 $ 639 $ 11,182 $ 61
2021 12 31 2020 12 31
2021 12 31 2020 12 31
33 26
2021 12 31 2020 12
31
VIE
FFELP 16

227/413
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( )
2021 12 31
1 2
$ 8,957 $ 9,017
41,374 41,350 .
10 8,643 8,654 1.2
58,974 59,021
1 1 1.2
191 194 1.6
10 1,231 1,254 1.8
10 25,357 25,364 1.6
26,780 26,813
226 227 1.7
2,562 2,598 1.6
10 9,072 9,302 1.6
10 2,616 2,549 1.4
14,476 14,676
4 4 1.8
26 28 1.9
10 59 68 2.1
10 524 548 2.2
613 648
FFELP
31 30 0.8
162 158 0.8
10 143 139 0.7
10 1,336 1,345 1.1
1,672 1,672
102,515 102,830 1.3

228/413
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10

10

10
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OOOo0oooonOn(eossr1)
ooooOoog
2021 12 31
1
$ 4,147 $ 4,181 1.9
17,615 17,927 1.7
5,328 5,662 2.4
1,563 1,684 2.3
28,653 29,454
491 503 .0
47,704 46,633 6
48,195 47,136
45 45 1.1
1,263 1,240 1.3
808 784 1.4
151 147 1.5
2,267 2,216
151 151 4.5
109 111 3.1
753 772 3.5
40 42 4.2
1,053 1,076
80,168 79,882 1.8
$ 182,683 $ 182,712 1.5
)
2021 2020 2019
$ 237 $ 168 $ 113
@7 (31) (10)
$ 210 $ 137 $ 103

229/413



EDINETOOOO
O0O000oo0gOooOoo(eoessr1)
oOoOooodn

230/413



EDINETOOOO

OOOo0oooonOn(eossr1)

OooooOodd
( )

2021 12 31
1
$ 197,486 $ (77,487) $ 119,999 $(106,896) $ 13,103
139,395 (9,682) 129,713 (124,028) 5,685
$ 139,675 $ (77,487) $ 62,188 $ (53,692) $ 8,49
21,981 (9,682) 12,299 (12,019) 280
« D
$ 12,514
1,041
8,295
139
( )
2020 12 31
1
$ 264,140 $(147,906) $ 116,234 $(114,108) $ 2,126
124,921 (12,530) 112,391 (107,434) 4,957
$ 198,493 $(147,906) $ 50,587 $ (43,960) $ 6,627
20,261 (12,530) 7,731 (7,430) 301
« D

$ 1,870
596
6,282
128

231/413
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( )
2021 12 31
30 30 90 90
$ 29,271 $ 53,987 $ 17,099 $ 39,318 $ 139,675
11,480 364 650 9,487 21,981
$ 40,751 $ 54,351 $ 17,749 $ 48,805 $ 161,656
30,104 - - - 30,104
$ 70,855 $ 54,351 $ 17,749 $ 48,805 $ 191,760
( )
2020 12 31
30 30 90 90
$ 84,349 $ 60,853 $ 26,221 $ 27,070 $ 198,493
15,267 247 - 4,747 20,261
$ 99,616 $ 61,100 $ 26,221 $ 31,817 $ 218,754
16,389 - - - 16,389
$ 116,005 $ 61,100 $ 26,221 $ 31,817 $ 235,143
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)
( )
2021 12 31 2020 12 31
$ 30,790 $ 94,662
73,063 71,140
25,881 24,692
9,941 7,999
$ 139,675 $ 198,493
$ 748 $ 3,430
20,656 16,536
577 295
$ 21,981 $ 20,261
$ 161,656 $ 218,754
$ 30,048 $ 16,365
56 24
$ 30,104 $ 16,389
$191,760 $ 235,143
( )
2021 12 31 2020 12 31
$ 32,458 $ 30,954

233/413
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( )
2021 12 31 2020 12 31
$ 672,104 $ 724,818
510,000 523,648
( )
2021 12 31 2020 12 31
$ 20,092 $ 34,106
2021 12 31 2020 12 31
9 10
12 12
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( )
2021 12 31 2020 12 31
$ 71,532 $ 74,714




EDINETOOOO

OOOo0oooonOn(eossr1)
OooooOodd
( )
2021 12 31

$ 5,567 $ 8,107 $ 13,674

31,471 3,879 35,350

7,227 1,777 9,004

44,251 7 44,258

86,440 62 86,502

174,956 13,832 188,788
(654) (654)

$ 174,302 $ 13,832 $ 188,134

$ 24,322

( )

2020 12 31

$ 6,046 $ 8,580 $ 14,626

25,727 3,29 29,023

7,346 822 8,168

35,268 48 35,316

64,232 67 64,299

138,619 12,813 151,432
(835) (835)

$ 137,784 $ 12,813 $ 150,597

$ 21,081

( )

2021 12 31 2020 12 31

$ - $ 13,674 $ - $ 14,626
- 35,350 196 28,827
343 8,661 574 7,594
18,966 25,292 13,120 22,196
22,832 63,670 18,973 45,326
$ 42,141 $ 146,647 $ 32,863 $ 118,569

15
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2021
2020
2019
2018
2017
2016

2021
2020
2019
2018
2017
2016

2021
2020
2019
2018
2017
2016

EDINETOOOO
O0O000oo0gOooOoo(eoessr1)
oOoOooodn

)
2021 12 31 2020 12 31
2,356 $ 2,328 $ 4,684 1,138 $ 3,231 $ 4,369
- 85 85
111 26 137 585 80 665
- 176 176 204 202 406
196 - 196 195 - 195
- 60 60 - 64 64
229 - 229 247 100 347
2,892 $ 2,675 $ 5,567 2,369 $ 3,677 $ 6,046
)
2021 12 31 2020 12 31
7,603 $ 20,172 $ 27,775 4,711 $ 14,510 $ 19,221
32 467 499
35 160 195 162 253 415
43 819 862 260 1,904 2,164
297 703 1,000 614 1,432 2,046
144 266 410 245 581 826
- 730 730 - 1,055 1,055
8,154 $ 23,317 $ 31,471 5,992 $ 19,735 $ 25,727
)
2021 12 31 2020 12 31
3 $ 149 $ 152 - $ - $ -
423 1,292 1,715
91 819 910 95 943 1,038
976 1,266 2,242 1,074 1,848 2,922
527 416 943 746 774 1,520
80 439 519 412 387 799
109 637 746 100 967 1,067
2,209 $ 5,018 $ 7,227 2,427 $ 4,919 $ 7,346
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2021
2020
2019
2018
2017
2016

2020
2019
2018
2017
2016

2021
2020
2019
2018
2017
2016

EDINETOOOO

O0O000oo0gOooOoo(eoessr1)
oOoOooodn
)
2021 12 31
FICO
740 680 739 679 80 80
$ 65 $ 27 $ 4 $ 96 $ - $ 96
12,230 2,638 257 14,116 1,009 15,125
7,941 1,648 131 9,210 510 9,720
4,690 1,072 140 5,536 366 5,902
1,865 497 55 2,231 186 2,417
2,157 558 65 2,588 192 2,780
5,973 1,919 319 7,485 726 8,211
$ 34,921 $ 8,359 $ 971 $ 41,262 $ 2,989 $ 44,251
)
2020 12 31
FICO
740 680 739 679 80 80
$ 85 $ 32 $ 5 $ 122 $ - $ 122
8,948 1,824 149 10,338 583 10,921
5,592 1,265 168 6,584 441 7,025
2,320 604 75 2,756 243 2,999
2,721 690 89 3,251 249 3,500
7,789 2,510 402 9,719 982 10,701
$ 27,455 $ 6,925 $ 888 $ 32,770 $ 2,498 $ 35,268
)
2021 12 31
2
1
$ 71,485 $ 6,170 $ 858 $ 78,513
807 708 103 1,618
- 651 626 1,277
19 1,079 633 1,731
232 273 375 880
- 531 217 748
16 1,294 363 1,673
$ 72,559 $ 10,706 $ 3,175 $ 86,440

239/413



EDINETOOOO
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( )
2020 12 31
2
1
$ 51,667 $ 4,816 $ 555 $ 57,038
2020 - 1,073 590 1,663
2019 18 1,156 623 1,797
2018 232 407 403 1,042
2017 - 654 122 776
2016 16 1,632 268 1,916
$ 51,933 $ 9,738 $ 2,561 $ 64,232
1. 2021 12 31 2020 12 31
2.
1
( )
2021 12 31 2020 12 31
$ 209 $ 332
_ 31
$ 209 $ 363
1 60
( )
2021 12 31 2020 12 31
$ 34 $ 164
375 _
195 152
138 97
151 178
! $ 893 $ 591
$ 356 $ 90
1.2021 12 31 2020 12 31 90

240/413



2020

2021

2019

CECL

2020

12 31

12 31

12 31

EDINETOOOO

OOOo0oooonOn(eossr1)
OooooOodd
( )
2021 12 31 2020 12 31
$ 49 $ 167
- 27
8 36
CARES TDR
( )
$ 309 198 $ 211§ 59 $ 58 $ 835
(23) 67 @n @ @ (126)
) (119) 34 25 1 11 (48)
@ @ (©) 1 (€)) )
$ 165 163 $ 206 $ 60 $ 60 $ 654
. 3 18 4 25 50 100
( )
$ 115 01 $ 53 25 $ 33 0§ 349
©) (42) 34 21 ©) 9
39 - (64) @ (€Y) (105)
4 - - - 4 8
(35) - (64) @ 3 ©n
) 224 136 197 14 (13) 558
7 3 (31) - 37 16
$ 309 198 $ 211 $ 59 $ 58 $ 835
4 19 5 26 46 100
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2018 12 31

2019 12 31

2020 12 31

2021 12 31

2019 12 31

CECL

2020 12 31

2018 12 31

2019 12 31

2021

EDINETOOOO

O0O000oo0gOooOoo(eoessr1)

oOoOooodn

$ 62 60 $ 67 $ 20 29 238
_ _ _ ) - )
58 42 8 7 4 119
®) (€)) - - - ()
$ 115 101 $ 75 $ 25 33 349
4 21 7 25 100
)
$ 323 38 $ 11 $ 1 23 396
37 2 10 - 3 52
) 1 (€)) - - O)
$ 356 41 $ 20 $ 1 26 444
)
$ 201 27 $ 7 $ - 6 241
(41) (11) 1 2 [6h) (50)
161 22 7 (6 14 203
2 - ) - 4 2
$ 323 38 $ 11 $ 1 23 396
)
$ 177 16 $ 3 $ - 7 203
27 11 4 - _ 42
(©) - - - () @)
$ 201 27 $ 7 $ - 6 241
2021 12 31

242/413



2020

90

(

90

)

EDINETOOOO

OOOo0oooonOn(eossr1)
OooooOodd
CECL
2021 12 31 2020 12 31
0.4 0.6
0.5 0.4
3 73.2 141.3
( )
2021 12 31 2020 12 31
$ 3,613 $ 3,100
113 140
$ 3,726 $ 3,240
(153) (165)
$ 3,573 $ 3,075
5.7 5.3

243/413



11

2019 12 31 1

2

2020 12 31 1

3

2021 12 31 1

4. 2021 2020

2019 12 31

1

2020 12 31

2

2021 12 31

2019

EDINETOOOO
O0O000oo0gOooOoo(eoessr1)
oOoOooodn

)

$ 261 $ 6,001 $ 881 $ 7,143

15 7 - 22

200 4,270 - 4,470
$ 476 $ 10,278 $ 881 $ 11,635

@ (68) €©)) 72)

- 115 5,155 5,270
$ 475 $ 10,325 $ 6,033 $ 16,833
$ 673 $ - $ 27 $ 700

2020 10
2021
)

$ 227 $ 1,828 $ 52 $ 2,107

14 3,309 - 3,323

9 - - @)

(35) (330) (®) (373)

- 2 - 2
$ 127 $ 4,809 $ 44 $ 4,980

- 134 3,844 3,978

_ (36) - (36)

(23) (495) (99) (612)

- 51 (H) 50
$ 104 $ 4,463 $ 3,793 $ 8,360
2020 10

2021
21
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( )
( )
2021 12 31
$ 2,120 $ 201 $ 95
- 8,851 3,515
- 737 117
- 180 92
$ 2,120 $ 10,059 $ 3,819
2020 12 31
$ - $ 178 $ 120
- 7,420 2,984
- 460 82
- 187 79
$ - $ 8,245 $ 3,265
$ 530
2021
12
( )
2021 12 31 2020 12 31
$ 2,214 $ 2,410
( )
2021 2020 2019
¢ $ 104 $ — $ (81)
1. 2019 41

245/413
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60

MUMSS

40

UFJ
MUMSS

EDINETOOOO

000000000 0(ES871)
ooooooo
( )
2021 2020 2019
$ 168 $ 80 $ 17
( MUFG UFJ
MUFG ( MSMS
40 MUFG
MSMS 51
MUFG
( )
2021 12 31 2020 12 31
$ 4,268 $ 4,419
5,157 5,327
8.9 9.5
3.1 3.2

246/413




2021
2022
2023
2024
2025
2026

EDINETOOOO

OOOo0oooonOn(eossr1)
OooooOodd
( )
2021 12 31 2020 12 31
$ 841
$ 886 793
834 740
711 639
593 532
527 467
2,387 2,218
5,938 6,230
(781) (903)
$ 5,157 $ 5,327
$ 480 $ 278
( )
2021 2020 2019
$ 852 $ 762 $ 670
187 154 152
® ®) ®)
$ 1,033 $ ol $ 816
( )
2021 2020 2019
$ 879 $ 765 $ 685
578 991 514

247/413
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FDIC
FDIC
FDIC

2022
2023
2024
2025
2026

12

EDINETOOOO
O0O000oo0gOooOoo(eoessr1)
oOoOooodn

( )
2021 12 31 2020 12 31

$ 332,747 $ 279,221
14,827 31,561
$ 347,574 $ 310,782

$ 230,894 $ 234,211
$ 116,680 $ 76,571
$ - $ 16

( )
2021 12 31

$ 6,404
4,087
2,815

821
311
389
$ 14,827

( )
2021 12 31

$ 756
377
231
$ 1,364

( )
2021 12 31 2020 12 31

$ 963 $ 910
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OOOo0oooonOn(eossr1)
OooooOodd
( )
2021 12 2020 12
1 2 1 2 31 31
12 $ — $ 1,300 $ 915 $ 3,549 $ 5,764 $ 3,691
2021 $ 24,241
2022 $ 6,665 $ 571 $ 963 $ 5,998 $ 14,197 22,209
2023 10,882 6,319 287 6,298 23,786 22,890
2024 16,455 4,051 587 8,073 29,166 21,727
2025 14,662 4,408 1,607 4,884 25,561 18,636
2026 17,679 417 612 5,318 24,026 22,042
81,134 5,506 8,576 15,411 110,627 81,643

$ 147,477 $ 21,272 $ 12,632 $ 45,982 $ 227,363 $ 213,388
$ 147,477 $ 22,572 $ 13,547 $ 49,531 $ 233,127 $ 217,079

, 2.9 0.9 4.0 N/M 2.7 2.9
LIBOR SOFR

( )

2021 12 31 2020 12 31

$ 213,776 $ 202,305

13,587 11,083

$ 227,363 $ 213,388

() 7.7 7.3
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EDINETOOOO

OOOo0oooonOn(eossr1)
OoOoOoOoOodno
( )
2021 12 31 2020 12 31
$ 174 $ 94
$ 1,622 $ 1,483
2021 2020
4.0 4.5
2036
2021 12 31 2020 12 31 2019 12 31
2.7 2.9 3.4
1.6 1.7 2.9
( )
2021 12 31 2020 12 31
$ 4,573 $ 10,453
5,468 5,410
$ 10,041 $ 15,863

250/413




EDINETOOOO

OOOo0oooonOn(eossr1)
Ogoooood
1,556 1,529
1
( )
2021 12 31
2020 12 31
2

12 $ — $ 3,754 $ 3,754 $ 10,453
2021 $ 1,655
2022 $ 14 $ 2,272 $ 2,286 1,405
2023 181 1,623 1,804 279
2024 — 233 233 96
2025 39 - 39 38
2026 — — — _
24 345 369 408
$ 258 $ 4,473 $ 4,731 $ 3,881

3 N/M 0.7 0.7 0.6

LIBOR
3.
VIE
VIE
16
1
( )
2021 12 31 2020 12 31

2021 $ 303

2022 $ 846 159

2023 586 626

2024 —_ 14

2025 7 -

2026 34 69

83 358

$ 1,556 $ 1,529

251/413
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EDINETOOOO

O0O000oo0gOooOoo(eoessr1)

oOoOooodn

)

2021 12 31
12,649 $ 32,475 $ 48,232 $ 9,729 $ 103,085
5,807 5,108 1,819 682 13,416
1,213 945 28 254 2,440
11,989 2,970 530 504 15,993
45,969 - - - 45,969
300 - — 11,870 12,170
1,195 184 50 372 1,801
26 - — 3 29
79,148 $ 41,682 $ 50,659 $ 23,414 $ 194,903
$ 7,753
$ 32,847
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( )
2021 12 31
1,217,083 918,456 332,329 845,220 (48,231)
1,354 1,068 862 2,701 45
88 2 — _ _
4,100 - - - 5
_ _ 77 23,104 -
- - - 79,437 42)
341 11 32 152 an
51 _ _ _ _
2021 12 31

84

CDS

254/413
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SPE
SPE
SPE
FICC
FICC
FICC
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2014 23

FGIC

2018

2021

FGIC

EDINETOOOO

0000000000(E05871)
ooooood
( )
2021 2020 2019
$ 157 $ 336 $ 221
FGIC
ABS 2007-NC4
ABS
876
2017 23
13
2018 12 20
30 2022
ABS 2007-NC4
ABS
277

258/413
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2015 23
ABS
ABS
( 10.5 )
2015 12 11
2018 10 19
2019
17
2020 12 22
277 (
)
2007 2012
2018 26
2020 12
18/00318 18/00319
2021 11
22 2007 2012

16
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2007-NC4

17
2019

15/3637

EDINETOOOO
O0O000oo0gOooOoo(eoessr1)
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2019
2020 19

2022

15/4353
141

2020 22

2021 29

2021
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SPE VIE
VIE
VIE
VIE
VIE
CLN
VIE VIE VIE
VIE VIE
VIE
CDO
CDO
VIE
VIE
CLN
VIE
CLN
VIE 1
( )
2021 12 31 2020 12 31
VIE VIE VIE VIE
MABS 2 $ 1,177 $ 409 $ 590 $ 17
8 717 294 776 355
508 39 504 39
510 286 248 3

$ 2,912 $ 1,028 $ 2,118 $ 414
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VIE VIE
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VIE
( )
2021 12 31 2020 12 31

$ 341 $ 269

1,965 1,445

37 —

200 —

31 23

85 98

253 283

$ 2,912 $ 2,118

$ 767 $ 366

261 48

$ 1,028 $ 414

$ 115 $ 196

VIE VIE
VIE
VIE
VIE VIE
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EDINETOOOO

000000000 m0(eos871)
ooooooo
VIE
( )
2021 12 31
MABS 1 CDo MTOB OSF 2
VIE $ 146,071 $ 667 $ 6,089 $ 2,08 $ 52,111
3
$ 18,062 $ 129 $ - % 1,459 $ 10,339
- - 4,100 - 5,599
771 - - - 1,005
$ 18,833 $ 129 $ 4,100 $ 1,459 $ 16,943
$ 18,062 $ 129 $ - $ 1,459 $ 10,339
= = 5 - 2,006
$ 18,062 $ 129 $ 5 $ 1,45 $ 12,345
VIE 4 $ 15,302
$ - $ - $ - $ - 8 362
( )
2020 12 31
MABS 1 CDO MTOB OSF 2
VIE $184,153 $ 3,527 $ 6,524 $ 2,161 $ 48,241
3
$ 26,247 $ 257 $ - $ 1,187 $ 11,008
- - 4,425 - 5,639
929 - - - 749
$ 27,176 $ 257 $ 4,425 $ 1,187 $ 17,396
$ 26,247 $ 257 $ - $ 1,187 $ 11,008
- - 5 - 851
$ 26,247 $ 257 $ 5 $ 1,187 $ 11,859
VIE 4 $ 20,019
$ - 3 - s - 3 )
MTOB—
1.
2.
3.
4. VIE VIE SPE
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VIE VIE
VIE
VIE
VIE VIE
VIE
( )
2021 12 31 2020 12 31

$ 15,216 $ 2,182 $ 17,775 $ 3,175

68,503 4,092 62,093 4,131

57,972 9,835 99,182 17,224

4,380 1,953 5,103 1,717

$ 146,071 $ 18,062 $ 184,153 $ 26,247

SPE SPE
SPE
SPE
SPE
SPE
SPE
SPE
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VIE
VIE
VIE
CLN
SPE SPE
SPE
SPE SPE
SPE
SPE SPE

SPE
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CLO CDO

SPE

SPE

ELN
ELN

2021 12 31 2020

SPE

12 31
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SPE

CLO

SPE

ELN
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EDINETOOOO

OOOo0oooonOn(eossr1)
OooooOodd
( )
2021 12 31
RML ML CLN
¢ CMO 1

SPE 2 $ 6,802 $ 94,276 $ 28,697 $ 13,121
$ 72 $ 638 $ 465 $ —_
19 586 — 69

$ 91 $ 1,224 $ 465 $ 69
$ 18 $ 118 $ 33 $ -
38 53 — 4

$ 56 $ 171 $ 33 $ 4
$ - $ - $ - $ 891
_ — - 284

( )
2020 12 31
RML ML CLN
¢ CMO 1

SPE 2 $ 7,515 $ 84,674 $ 21,061 $ 12,978
$ 49 $ 822 $ 615 $ _
16 195 — 114

$ 65 $ 1,017 $ 615 $ 114
$ - $ 96 $ 116 $ -
43 80 — 21

$ 43 $ 176 $ 116 $ 21
$ - $ - $ - $ 400
_ — — 436
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( )
2021 12 31
$ 536 $ 2 $ 538
40 40 80
$ 576 $ 42 $ 618
$ 168 $ 1 $ 169
70 25 95
$ 238 $ 26 $ 264
$ 891 $ - $ 891
194 90 284
( )
2020 12 31
$ 663 $ - $ 663
6 63 69
$ 669 $ 63 $ 732
$ 196 $ 16 $ 212
62 82 144
$ 258 $ 98 $ 356
$ 388 $ 12 $ 400
435 1 436
RML
CML
1. CLO
2.

SPE

268/413



CLO SPE

CLO
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2021 2020 2019
$ 57,528 $ 51,814 $ 34,464
8,822 9,346 7,403
169 763 2
15
( )
2021 12 31 2020 12 31
$ 67,930 $ 45,051
$ 68,992 $ 46,609
1,195 1,592
132 64

269/413




17

1956

CECL

12 31 2020
RWA

2025

RWA

Tier2

2020
CECL
12 31

270/413

EDINETOOOO

OO00O000000O(E5871)

ooooooo
MSBNA MSPBNA
( CFTC )
SEC
Tierl Tierl
RWA
2020 31
2021
CECL
2020
2022 25



EDINETOOOO

OO00O000000O(E5871)
ooooooo
2021 12 31
2020 12 31
— 2.5
SCB 5.7 N/A
G-SIB 3.0 3.0
1 0 0
8.7 5.5
1 2.5
Tier 1
SCB G-SIB
2.5 G-SIB
2021 12 31 2020 12 31
1
Tier 1 4.5 13.2 10.0
Tier 1 6.0 14.7 11.5
8.0 16.7 13.5
1.
RIWA
RWA
() RWA
() RWA
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ooooooo
RWA RWA
2021 12 31 2020 12 31
Tier
( )
2021 12 31 2020 12 31
1
Tier 1 $ 75,742 $ 78,650
Tier 1 83,348 88,079
93,166 97,213
RWA 2 471,921 453,106
Tier 1 13.2 16.0 17.4
Tier 1 14.7 17.7 19.4
16.7 19.7 21.5
( )
2021 12 31 2020 12 31
1
8 $ 1,169,939 $ 1,053,510
Tier 1 4.0 7.1 8.4
45 $ 1,476,962 $ 1,192,506
5 5.0 5.6 7.4
1.
2. SA-CCR 2021 12
SA-CCR RWA
2021 12 31 250
Tier 1 90
3. Tier 1
4. Tier 1
)
)
)
5. 2020 12 31 2021 31
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2021 12 31 2020 12 31
MSBNA )
( MSPBNA )
MSBNA MSPBNA
G-SIB
2021 12 31 2020 12 31 MSBNA MSPBNA
2021 12 31 2020 12 31
CECL MSBNA MSPBNA

2020
2022 25 2025
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MSBNA 1
( )
2021 12 31 2020 12 31
2
Tier 1 6.5 7.0 $ 18,960 20.5 $ 17,238 18.7
Tier 1 8.0 8.5 18,960 20.5 17,238 18.7
10.0 10.5 19,544 21.1 17,882 19.4
Tier 1 5.0 4.0 $ 185,120 10.2 $ 17,238 10.1
6.0 3.0 233,358 8.1 17,238 8.0
MSPBNA 1
( )
2021 12 31 2020 12 31
2
Tier 1 6.5 7.0 $ 10,293 24.3 $ 8,213 21.3
Tier 1 8.0 8.5 10,293 24.3 8,213 21.3
10.0 10.5 10,368 24.5 8,287 21.5
Tier 1 5.0 4.0 $ 149,375 6.9 $ 8,213 7.2
6.0 3.0 153,810 6.7 8,213 6.9
1. MSBNA MSPBNA SA-CCR 2021 12
2.
MSBNA SEC
CFTC MSBNA
MS&Co.
( )
2021 12 31 2020 12 31
$ 18,383 $ 12,869
14,208 9,034
MS&Co. SEC CFTC
CFTC
SEC 1934
15c3-1 E MS&Co.
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MS&Co.
2020 12 31
CFTC
MSIP
SEC
CFTC

MS&Co.

CFTC

MSCG

CFTC

SEC
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O0O000oo0gOooOoo(eoessr1)
oOoOooodn
MS&Co. CFTC
SEC 2021 12 31
2021 12 31 2020 12 31
MSSB SEC
MSIP
SEC
SEC CFTC
MSEHSE
MSESE
MSESE
CFTC
SEC CFTC
MSMS MSMS
MSCS
0TC SEC
CFTC MSCS
CFTC

275/413
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2021 12 31 2020 12 31
$ 49,516 $ 40,502




EDINETOOOO

OOOo0oooonOn(eossr1)
OooooOodd
18
( )
2021 2021 2020
12 31 12 31 12 31
(D)
A 44,000 $ 25,000 $ 1,100 $ 1,100
Ct 519,882 1,000 408 408
E 34,500 25,000 862 862
F 34,000 25,000 850 850
H?2 — — — 1,300
| 40,000 25,000 1,000 1,000
J3 _ — — 1,500
K 40,000 25,000 1,000 1,000
L 20,000 25,000 500 500
M 400,000 1,000 430 430
N 3,000 100,000 300 300
04 52,000 25,000 1,300 —
$ 7,750 $ 9,250
30,000,000
1. ¢ MUFG
2. 2021 11 19 H H
2022 18 13
3. 2021 15 J J
2021 15 15
4. 2021 10 25 0
17 Tierl
2019 11 25 G G
2020 15 500
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2021 12 31
3
1 2 ( ) 4
A 44,000 1,000 $ 25,000
Cs 1,160,791 N/A 1,100
E 34,500 1,000 25,000 2023 10 15
F 34,000 1,000 25,000 2024 15
I 40,000 1,000 25,000 2024 10 15
K 40,000 1,000 25,000 2027 15
Le® 20,000 1,000 25,000 2025 15
M7 400,000 N/A 1,000 2026 15
N7 3,000 100 100,000 2025 10
0 52,000 1,000 25,000 2027 15
1. C 0.01
A c L 0
3. A C
4. A C
)
) 90
5. C c
1,000 10
6. L 2019 11 25
7.0M N 2020 10
( )
2021 2020
1,810 1,594
! (134) (39)
69 _
- 233
2 27 22
1,772 1,810
1.
2. RSU
( )
2021 2020
$ 11,464 $ 1,347
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120
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2021 2022 30
10b5-1
( )
2021 2020 2019
1,785 1,603 1,617
29 21 23
1,814 1,624 1,640
- 5 2
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1
2021 2020 2019
1 1 1
A $ 1,022 $ 44 $ 1,017 $ 44 $ 1,014 $ 44
c 100 52 100 52 100 52
E 1,781 60 1,781 60 1,781 60
F 1,719 60 1,719 60 1,719 60
G2 _ _ - - 1,242 24
H3 719 38 1,143 60 1,418 74
I 1,594 64 1,594 64 1,594 64
Js 253 15 1,213 74 1,388 84
K 1,463 59 1,463 59 1,463 59
L 1,219 24 1,219 23 169 3
M 59 24 - _ _ _
N 6 5,300 16 _ _ _ _
07 236 12 _ _ _ _
$ 468 $ 49 $ 524
$  2.10 $ 3,818 $  1.40 $ 2,295 $  1.30 $ 2,161
G 2020 G
2019
3. H 2021 11 19 H
2021
4. 3 2020 15
) 2026 15
6. N 2023 15
7. 0 2027 15
« ) L
( )
DVA
2018 12 31 $ (889 $ (930) $ (578) $ 105 $ (2,292)
ocl ®) 1,137 (66) (1,559) (496)
2019 12 31 (897) 207 (644) (1,454) (2,788)
ocl 102 1,580 146 (1,002) 826
2020 12 31 (795) 1,787 (498) (2,456) (1,962)
ocl (207) (1,542) (53) 662 (1,140)
2021 12 31 $ (1,002) $ 245 $ (551) $ (1,794) $ (3,102)
1.
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ocCl
( )
2021
C ) C ) C )

ocl $  (40) $ (191) $ (3B $ (124) $  (207)
ocl $  (140) $  (191) $ (31 $ (129 $ (207)
ocl $ (1,803) $ 422 $ (1,381) $ - $ (1,381)

(210) 49 (161) - (161)
ocl $ (2,013) $ 4711 $ (1,542) $ - $ (1,542)
ocl $ (101) $ 2% $ @) s - $ (75)

31 ©) 22 - 22
ocl $  (70) % 17 3 (G3) S - $ (53)

DVA

ocl $ 882 $ (213) $ 669 $ 3 $ 635

36 ©) 27 - 27
ocl $ 918 $  (222) $ 6% $ 3 $ 662

( )
2020
C ) C ) C )

ocl $ 74 $ 9 $ 173§ 68 $ 105

3) — 3) — 3)
ocl $ 71 $ 9 $ 170 $ 68 $ 102
ocl $ 2,194 $ (508) $ 1,686 $ - $ 1,686

(137) 31 (106) - (106)
ocl $ 2,057 $  @77) $ 1,580 % - $ 1,580
ocl $ 162 $ @) $ 128 3 - $ 128

23 ) 18 - 18
ocl $ 185 $ B $ 146 S - $ 146

DVA

ocl $ (1,385) $ 337 $ (1,048) $  (26) $ (1,022)

26 (6) 20 - 20
ocl $ (1,359) $ 331 $ (1,028) $  (26) $ (1,002)
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( )
2019
) C ) )

6 $ B 3 3 11 $ ©)
6 $ B 3 3 11 $ ®)
1,588 $ @713 $ 1,215 - $ 1,215
(103) 25 (78) - (78)
1,485 $  (348) $ 1,137 - $ 1,137
@) 3 25 $ (73) - $ (73)
12 ) 7 - 7
©6) % 20 $ (66) - $ (66)
(2,181) $ 533 $ (1,648) (80) $ (1,568)
1 ) 9 - 9
2,170)  $ 531 $ (1,639) (80) $ (1,559)

( )

2021 12 31 2020 12 31

$ (2,217) $ (1,406)

1,275 611

$ (1,002) $  (795)

$ 15,605 $ 15,746
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( )
2021 2020 2019

$ 2,759 $ 2,282 $ 2,175
4,209 4,142 4,783
(181) 458 2,281
(1,017) (652) 1,204
2,038 2,417 2,899
1,603 1,515 3,756
$ 9,411 $ 10,162 $ 17,098
$ 409 $ 953 $ 1,885
2,725 3,250 5,052

93 564 1,967

401 419 642
(2.,262) (1,337) 2,858
$ 1,366 $ 3,849 $ 12,404
$ 8,045 $ 6,313 $ 4,694
( )

2021 12 31 2020 12 31
$ 1,800 $ 1,652
2,164 2,119

283/413

EDINETOOOO



20

RSU
PSU

2022
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RSU

2021
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PSU
( )
2021 2020 2019
$ 1,834 $ 1,170 $ 1,064
251 142 89
$ 2,085 $ 1,312 $ 1,153
$ 192 $ 157 $ 1
( )
2021 2020 2019
$ 432 $ 270 $ 243
( )
2021 12 31
1
$ 653
287
60
$ 1,000
2022 2022
( )
2021 12 31
149
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RSU
RSU
RSU
2021
( ) (D)
RSU 60 $ 49.82
29 77.28
(20) 53.32
@ 60.14
RSU 1 67 $ 60.27
RSU $ 6,547
2020 RSU 55.01
2019 RSU 43.05
1. 2021 12 31 RSU 1.2
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RSU
2021
( ) C
RSU 33 $ 51.27
29 77.28
@1 59.33
@ 60.14
RSU 39 $ 65.58
1. RSU
RSU 1
( )
2021 2020 2019
$ 1,539 $ 1,295 $ 1,497
1,647 1,289 1,292
1.
PSU
PSU
0 150
MS ROE
2021
MS ROTCE
S&P500 MS
TSR PSU RSU
2021 12 31 PSU
PSU
2021 2020 2019
MS ROTCE/ROE $ 74.87 $ 57.05 $  43.29
MS TSR 83.70 65.31 48.28
MS TSR
2021 0.2 39.0 0.92
2020 1.6 24.0 0.88
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2019 2.6 26.5 0.89
S&P500
( )
2021 2020 2019
$ 810 $ 1,263 $ 1,233
526 856 645
$ 1,336 $ 2,119 $ 1,878
$ 253 $ 194 $ 195
1.
( )
2021 2020 2019
$ 346 $ 215 $ 534
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( )
2021 2020 2019
$ 19 $ 17 $ 16
104 121 139
(48) an (114)
1 1 1
34 26 13
$ 110 $ 88 $ 55
401(a)
SEREP 401(a)
( )
2021 2020 2019
$  (891) $  (877) $ (779
(112) 161 (112)
- (@) -
1 1 1
34 26 13
@) 186 (98)
$  (768) $  (691) $ (877
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10
2021 2020 2019
2.43 3.08 4.01
1.42 2.35 3.52
3.25 3.28 3.34
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( )
2021 2020

$ 4,334 $ 4,026
19 17

104 121

122) 362

@) 2
(16) @
@17) (222)

(20) 30

$ 4,081 $ 4,334
$ 3,985 $ 3,553
(186) 600

38 35
@17) (222)
(15) @

- 21

$ 3,605 $ 3,985
$  (476) $  (349)
$ 117 $ 283
(593) (632)
$  (476) $  (349)

( )

2021 2020
12 31 12 31

$ 4,065 $ 4,318
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( )
2021 2020
12 31 12 31
$ 3,768 $ 708
3,753 692
3,175 76
12 31 2021 12 31
2021 2020
12 31 12 31
2.80 2.43
3.36 3.25
Aa
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( )
2021 12 31
! $ 9 $ - $ - $ 9
2,759 314 - 3,073
CDO - 1 - 1
- 3 - 3
- - 65 65
1 _ 2 — 2
$ 2,768 $ 320 $ 65 $ 3,153
NAV
33
162
39
235
$ 469
1 _ an - an
$ - $ an $ - $ an
$ 3,605
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( )
2020 12 31
! $ 4 $ - $ - $ 4
3,038 321 — 3,359
CDO — 4 — 4
- 2 - 2
_ — 61 61
1 - 53 - 53
$ 3,042 $ 380 $ 61 $ 3,483
NAV
48
169
54
250
$ 521
1 — (19) - (19
$ - $ (19 $ - $ (19
$ 3,985
1.
( )
2021 2020

$ 61 $ 53

1 5

3 3

$ 65 $ 61

2021 2020

86
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NAV

NAV
NAV

2021 12 31
2022 2022 40
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( )

2021 12 31
2022 $ 148
2023 153
2024 156
2025 163
2026 170
2027 -2031 938

401(K)

( )

2021 2020 2019
$ 357 $ 293 $ 280

401(K)
401(K)
401(K) 2021
IRS
2020 2019 100,000
2020
401(K)

( )

2021 2020 2019

$ 149 $ 130 $ 121
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( )
2021 2020 2019
$ 2,554 $ 1,641 $ 873
475 399 260
551 395 166
105 185 177
192 185 82
1 667 684 341
$ 4,544 $ 3,489 $ 1,899
$ 11) $  (249) $ 185
33 (38) 46
(€D @ 5
4 12 11
® (€)) -
1 24 30 (82)
$ 4 $  (250) $ 165
$ 4,548 $ 3,239 $ 2,064
1. 2021 2020 2019
2021 2020 2019
21.0 21.0 21.0
2.1 2.0 2.2
(0.6) 0.8) (1.6)
1.4 1.7 (0.8)
(0-6) 0.7 1.1
0.2) 0.7 1.4
23.1 22.5 18.3
2019
475
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( )
2021 12 31 2020 12 31
$ 276 $ 330
2,430 2,248
599 669
474 19
15 43
3,794 3,309
208 236
$ 3,586 $ 3,073
1,287 1,130
2,046 1,156
$ 3,333 $ 2,286
$ 253 $ 787

2021 12 31
50

2021 12 31
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( )
2021 2020 2019
$ 755 $ 755 $ 1,080
201 139 57
74 178 61
— 26 —
(37 (297) (419)
(10) (36) an
(12) (10) )
$ 971 $ 755 $ 755
$ 860 $ 665 $ 549
12
12

( )

( )
2021 2020 2019
$ 14 $ 56 $ 8
142 134 92
2017
2010
2011
2015
2015
IRS
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( )
2021
$ 10,272 $ 82 $ - $ (100) $ 10,994
12,353 418 (53) 92 12,810
607 48 721 - 1,376
2,878 3,019 1 @377) 5,521
583 13,966 5,576 (158) 19,967
495 577 (20) (10) 1,042
27,188 18,850 6,225 (553) 51,710
3,752 5,821 31 (193) 9,411
1,107 428 36 (205) 1,366
2,645 5,393 ) 12 8,045
$ 29,833 $ 24,243 $ 6,220 $  (541) $ 59,755
$ ) $ 11 $ - $ _ $ 4
9,165 13,090 2,373 - 24,628
8,861 4,961 2,169 (536) 15,455
$ 18,026 $ 18,051 $ 4,542 $  (536) $ 40,083
$ 11,814 $ 6,181 $ 1,678 $ ) $ 19,668
2,746 1,447 356 (€} 4,548
9,068 4,734 1,322 “ 15,120
111 - (25) - 86
$ 8,957 $ 4,734 $ 1,347 $ ()] $ 15,034
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( )
2020
$ 7,204 $ 559 $ - $  (89) $ 7,674
13,097 844 (34) 76 13,983
166 12 808 - 986
2,935 2,291 1 (376) 4,851
461 10,955 3,013 @157) 14,272
323 403 (39) ©) 678
24,186 15,064 3,749 (555) 42,444
5,809 4,771 14 (432) 10,162
3,519 749 29 (448) 3,849
2,290 4,022 (15) 16 6,313
$ 26,476 $ 19,086 $ 3,734 $  (539) $ 48,757
$ 731 $ 30 $ - $ - $ 761
8,342 10,970 1,542 - 20,854
8,252 3,699 1,322 (549) 12,724
$ 16,594 $ 14,669 $ 2,864 $ (549) $ 33,578
$ 9,151 $ 4,387 $ 870 $ 10 $ 14,418
2,040 1,026 1 2 3,239
7,111 3,361 699 8 11,179
99 _ 84 - 183
$ 7,012 $ 3,361 $ 615 $ 8 $ 10,996
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( )
2019
$ 5,734 $ 509 $ - $  (80) $ 6,163
3 10,497 734 ®) 51 11,274
325 2 1,213 - 1,540
1 2,484 1,726 1 (292) 3,919
12 413 10,199 2,629 (158) 13,083
3 563 354 (46) (6) 865
20,016 13,524 3,789 (485) 36,844
12,193 5,467 20 (582) 17,098
11,713 1,245 46 (600) 12,404
480 4,222 (26) 18 4,694
3 $ 20,496 $ 17,746 $ 3,763 $  (467) $ 41,538
8 $ 151 $ 10 $ - $ - $ 161
7,433 9,774 1,630 - 18,837
3 7,422 3,130 1,148 (461) 11,239
3 $ 14,855 $ 12,904 $ 2,778 $  (461) $ 30,076
4 $ 5,490 $ 4,832 $ 985 $ (6) $ 11,301
769 1,104 193 @) 2,064
4,721 3,728 792 ) 9,237
122 - 73 - 195
$ 4,599 $ 3,728 $ 719 $ “ $ 9,042
1/E—
1.
2.
3.
4. 2019 172
124 37 11
( )
2021 2020 2019
$ 3,487 $ 2,008 $ 2,116
6,785 5,196 3,618
91 92 90
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1
( )
2021 2020 2019
$ 740 $ 2,978 $ 2,773
1,008 902 395
7,331 6,200 5,246
2,599 1,762 1,617
1,132 2,141 1,243
$ 12,810 $ 13,983 $ 11,274
( )
2021 12 31 2020 12 31
$ 802 $ 735
15
( )
2021 2020 2019
$ 516 $ 135 $ 43
1940 2a-7
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( )
2021 2020 2019
$ 969 $ 699 $ 489
EMEA
( )
2021 2020 2019
$ 44,605 $ 35,459 $ 30,324
7,699 6,549 6,078
7,451 6,749 5,136
$ 59,755 $ 48,757 $ 41,538
( )
2021 2020 2019
$ 14,082 $ 10,027 $ 9,464
5,586 4,391 1,837
$ 19,668 $ 14,418 $ 11,301
EMEA
( )
2021 2020 2019

304/413



EDINETOOOO

O0O000oo0gOooOoo(eoessr1)
oOoOooodn
$ 2,391 $ 2,298 $ 2,705
2021 12 31
2020 2019 12 31

( )

2021 12 31 2020 12 31
$ 3,591 $ 3,200
( )

2021 12 31 2020 12 31
$ 792,135 $ 753,322
378,438 355,595
17,567 6,945
! $ 1,188,140 $ 1,115,862

1.

( )

2021 12 31 2020 12 31
$ 848,001 $ 815,048
EMEA 204,083 194,598
136,056 106,216
$ 1,188,140 $ 1,115,862
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( )
2021 2020 2019
$ - $ 2,811 $ 3,531
8,898 1,170 1,998
8,898 3,981 5,529
229 (244) (54)
4 51 80
9,131 3,788 5,555
2,648 3,666 5,121
2,822 3,087 4,661
(174) 579 460
8,957 4,367 6,015
443 387 300
8,514 3,980 5,715
(203) (109) (73)
8,717 4,089 5,788
6,317 6,907 3,254
15,034 10,996 9,042
(207) 102 ®)
(1,542) 1,580 1,137
(53) 146 (66)
662 (1,002) (1,559)
$ 13,894 $ 11,822 $ 8,546
$ 15,034 $ 10,996 $ 9,042
468 496 530
$ 14,566 $ 10,500 $ 8,512
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( )
2021 12 31 2020 12 31
$ 15,342 $ 7,102
5,298 6,862
(21,246 20,037
16,573 24,248 39,707 39,225
)

21,116 34,698

59,757 22,602

96,202 121,731

69,059 52,951

48,481 47,450

1,109 454

$ 356,071 $ 333,165

$ 1,688 $ 1,623

16,928 24,349

59,960 43,252

1,859 2,181

(15,894 18,804 ) 170,195 159,979
250,630 231,384

15
7,750 9,250
0.01
= 3,500,000,000 - 2,038,893,979 20 20
-1,772,226,530 1,809,624,144

28,841 25,546

89,432 78,694

3,955 3,043
« ) (3,102) (1,962)
266,667,449 229,269,832-01 ) (17,500) (9,767)
(3,955) (3,043)

105,441 101,781

$ 356,071 $ 333,165
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( )
2021 2020 2019

$ 4,257 $ 14,202 $ 24,175
(9,297) (9,310) (22,408)

2,611 2,013 4,671

5,636 5,651 3,157

13,581 (24,584) 15,422

(7,422) 19,719 4,631
(17,083) (13,832) (9,210)
(11,974) (20,343) (3,737)

1,275 - 497

42,098 25,587 8,337
(28,592) (22,105) (24,282)
(12,075) (1,890) (5,954)
(4,171) (2,739) (2,627)

17,042 7,194 4,378

_ (498) 12
15,577 5,549 (19,639)
380 (316) (271)

C ) 8,240 (908) 528
7,102 8,010 7,482

$ 15,342 $ 7,102 $ 8,010

$ 100 $ 20 $ 9

15,242 7,082 8,001

$ 15,342 $ 7,102 $ 8,010

$ 441 $ 381 $ _

$ 2,970 $ 3,472 $ 4,677

) 2,775 1,364 1,186

2021 2020
16
18
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(
2021 12 31 2020 12 31
$ 155,304 $ 148,885
13,591 11,094
$ 168,895 $ 159,979




2021

IHC

2021 12 31
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$ 47,129

2021 12 31

$ 610

2021

LLC IHC
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( )
2020 12 31
$ 39,745
( )
2020 12 31
$ 865
IHC
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13a-15(e)
( GAAP
)
GAAP
2021 12 31
(C0S0) (2013 )

2021 12 31
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12 31

31
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)

2021 12 31
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(2013 )

(

)(

C0SsO
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Consolidated Income Statement Morgan Stanley
wa Frllionss. wxoepl par shaos are 2021 2030 2015
Revenues
Irvesimisnt banking - 10,694 3 FEM4 S 6163
Trading 12,810 13,063 11274
Imeestments 1,376 86 14540
Commiasions and loes LM 4 851 35149
Assal managemen 10,967 14,272 13063
DOither 1,042 G678 BES
Todal naom-mberes] Pevsnues 1,710 A2 444 o6 A4
Iriterest income 9,411 10,162 17 58
Iritefasl expanae 1,308 3,845 12,404
Mot Inferest B,045 6,313 4,694
Net rovenues 59,755 48,757 41 5358
Provision for cradit losses 4 TE1 161
Hon-interest axpenses
Compenaation and banslits 24,628 20,854 18,837
Brokerage, cleadng and exchange fees 3,341 2029 2403
Inforrmation procéssing and communications 3119 2465 2,184
Professional sarvices 2,533 2.205 2,137
Occupancy and equipment 1,725 1,559 1428
Markiting and business development £43 434 660
Oither ¥, 604 3132 2327
Tatal non-interest expanses 40,083 33578 30076
Incorne belone provision o income taxes 15,668 14418 11,30
Proviskon for income Laxes. 4,548 3,239 2064
Mt incoame 5 15120 5 11,1978 § 8237
Hed incoma appicable 1o monconirolling mberasis a6 183 195
Hed incoma applicable 1o Morgan Stanley 4 15,004 5 10988 § 9042
Prefermed stock dividands 4638 55 530
Eamings applicable 1o Margan Stanley comman sharhalders H 14,586 5 10,500 5 8512
Eamings per common share
Basic -9 B8 5 655 § 5.26
Dilubed 803 646 518
Average common shares outstanding
Basic 1,785 1,603 1817
Diubed 1,614 1,624 1,640
Consolidated Comprehensive Income Statement
5 i mions 2021 2020 2008
et incoma 5 15130 5 1am § j 2
Qther comprehensive income (loas), nel of tax:
Forelgn currency ranslation adjustments {331) 1 3
Change in nel unrealized gains (losses) on available-forsaky secunibes 11,542) 1,500 1,137
Pansion and othar [53) 146 (BB}
Changs in nel deb! valuaton adjustment EfG {1.028) {1638
Toital other comprehiensing income (loss) 5 {1,230) 5 BEA § (B8}
Comprehensive iNcoma g 13,890 £ 12047 & 8672
Ml income applicabile 10 noncontrolling inberests a6 183 195
Oither comprehenaive income {loas) apphcable 1o noncontroling intenests (1} 42 1513
Comprehansive Income applicable to Morgan Stanlay 5 13,604 5 11,822 § 8546
December 2021 Form 10K T S Notes o Consalidated Financial Stalements
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Table of Coments
Consolidated Balance Sheet Morgan Stanley
At AL
Decomber 31, December 31,

i malfuna. eurcepd slhave dala 2021 2020
Assets
Cash and cash equivalonis 5 127,725 § 105,654
Traeding assels at fair wilue (3104, 188 and 5132 578 wene pledged b varous parties) 294, BES 278
Invesiment secufities (includas $102,830 and $110,383 al tair value) 182,998 182,154
Seoyrithes purchased under agreemants 1o resell {includes 57 and 515 ai fair values) 119,949 116,234
Spouriltiag bonmawed 128,713 112,30
Customer and other recaivables 96,018 LT
Loains:

Hesd fer investment (nel of aBowanoe for credil loases of $654 and $835) 174,302 137, red

Hedd for sale 13,832 12813
Goodwill 16,833 11,635
Intanginla assels (nel of accumulated amortization of $3,619 and $3,265) B350 & SR
Othor assats 23,491 21,742
Total assets g 1,188,140 3 1,115,662
Linbilities
Depasits (inchdes 51,940 and 53,521 al fair value) H T ET4 5 noree
Trading Eabiities &l fair value 156,328 157,631
Securities sold undar agreements o repurchase (includes $T81 and $1,11% at {air value) 62,188 50,587
Securities Daned 12,299 FarE |
Other securad Tinancings (indudes §5,133 and $11,701 at Tair vatue) 1,041 15,863
Customer and other payables 220,685 nraw
Oiher Fabfites and accreed axpendes 20,300 25603
Boarowings (includes 576,340 and 573,701 at {air valua) 233,127 217,008
Total liabilities 1,081,542 102,713
Commitments and centingant labliities (ses Note 15)
Equity
Morgan Stankey shareholders’ equity.

Profierred siock T, 750 8,250

Gomimon stock, $0.01 par value:

Shares authonzed: 3,500,000,000; Shares Issued: 2,038,893,979: Shares cutslanding: 1,772,226,530 and
1,800 624,144 20 N

Addilional paids=in capital 28,841 25,546

Relained sarmings 80,432 78,604

Employee shock trusls 1,955 3,043

Acosrulaled oliver comprenensive noame (loss) (3,102) {1,862}

Common siock held in treasury at cest, $0.04 par value (266,667 449 and 228 266 835 shares) {17.500) {9,767}

Comimon siock issued o employes stods usts (3,955) {3,043}
Total Morgan Stanley shareholders” equity 105,441 101,781
Moncontrolling inleresis 1,157 1,368
Total equity 106, 598 103,149
Taotal liabilities and aquity § 1,188,140 5 1,115,862

See Motes 1o Consolidated Financial Statcments NE] December 2021 Form M-k
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Total Equity Morgan Stanley
£ i ey 2021 20210 2015
Praferred Stock
Bognning balance 5 9,250 § 8520 § 8520
lssuance of prafarred siook 1,300 P a0
Redempiion of prefered stock [ — {500y
Ending balance 7,750 9,250 8,520
Common Stock
Baginning and ending balance 20 il 20
Additional Paid-in Capital
Bagnning balance 25 546 23,935 23,784
Share-based oward actiity 1,117 618 131
lasuanoe of prefared siock {25) -— 1]
issuance of common siock for the aoquisition of Eaton Vance 1,185 - —
Issuanoe of common stock for the aoquisition of E*TRADE — 1,083 -
Qiher ned increases (dechaanes) 18 — 13
Enifing balance 28,841 25,546 pakich]
Retained Earnings
Begnmng balance 7E B 70,560 64,175
Cumulative a-clualm?ntmmad o the adaplion of the financlal insirnemenis-credi! losses
accounting updale — {100} —_
Cumulative adustment relaled o the sdoplion of the leases accounting update — — B3
Nt income appicable 1o Mongan Stankey 18,034 10,056 9042
Predemad alock deddands” {#63) {406} 524y
Comman stock dividends’ (3518 (2,285) {2.161)
Ot i increases (decreases) 1y -— [£:1]
Eniing balanoe &9,432 78,684 10,589
Employes Stock Trusts
Begnning balance 2043 2018 2836
Share-based award acthity 912 125 az
Ernding balance I.555 3,043 2918
Accumulated Other Comprehansive Income [Losa)
Boginning batance [1,962) {2, Fin) {2.292)
Mt change in Accumulated ottt comprahensive inconbe (loss) {1,140) A28 {486}
Ending balance (3,102) 11,962} (2. 7BE)
Common Stock Held in Treasury at Cost
Begnning balance {2,767 {18,727} (13,971}
Share-based award actiity 1,210 a2 1,158
Repurchases of commen slock and employe tax withholdings {12,075) {1,883} {5.954)
issuance of common slock for the acquisition of Eaton Vance 3132 — —
Issuance of common siock for the acquisilion of E*TRADE — 8,918 —
Erufing balance {17, 500) [{=% 1] {18,727}
Commaon Stock lssued to Employes Stock Trusts
Begnning balance (3.043) (2,918} {28365
Share-based sward actvity {12 {125} (EE)
Enifing balance (3,955) (3,043} (2518
Noncontralling Interests
Begnming balance 1,364 1,148 1,160
Mied income applicabli 1o noncontrolling interests L] 163 185
Hed chinge in Accumulsted atfwsr comprehensive inooms: (loss) applicable 10 noncontrolling
Interesis [aa) 42 [
Oither nel incheases (decreases) {207) i5) (138}
End-'ng balanoe 1,157 1,368 1.148
Total Equity 5 106598 3 103,148 § B2.647
1. st Boslir 2 o Pt ok AT & ] bt i
2 Ses Mol 18 for irdormabion regarding dwvidends per share for each olass of slock,
December 2021 Form 1k ] See Notes o Consolidated Financial Statements
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement Morgan Stanley
5 i e 2021 2020 205
Cash flows from opoerating activities
et income 5 15,120 5 1117 § G237
Adjustmants to reconcie net income to net cash provided by (used for) operating ectivities:
Dedprred income Eaas 4 {2503 165
Sanck-based compansation axpanse 085 1,312 1.153
Deprociation and amorizalion & 216 3,765 20543
Provisian for credit loases 4 TE1 161
Other operating adjusiments (147} 274 {185}
Changas in assets and labilitos:
Trading assats, net of Trading liabilities 8,075 15,551 (13667
Securiies bormowed {17,322) {5,078} 9,764
Securilics loaned 4,568 11,541} {3.402)
Customer and olher receivables and ofher assels T4 {29,774} 233
Cuslomar and other payables and other labiliies 7,758 10,167 198402
Securities purchased undar agreements to resel [3,765) {28,010} 10,298
Securilies sold under agreamanis o fepurchase 11,801 {3.613) 4,441
Met cash provided by [used for) operating activities 33,971 {25.231) 40,773
Cash NMows from investing activities
Procesds from {payments for),
Oher assela—Pramises, equipment and softwire, net {,208) {1,444} {1.826)
Changes in laans, nel {36, 106) {17,045} (17,358}
Irresimiend securilies,
Puichaies (B9,571) {58,777} {42 5805}
Proceads from sales 20,652 13,750 17.151
Procseds from paydowns and malurities 40,916 24517 12012
Cash paid &= part of the Ealon Vance acquisition, net of cash acquired (2,5648) - -
Cash acquired as part of the E*TRADE acquisition —_ 3,607 —
Othar irvesling activilies (B32) {802} (5534
Hat cash provided by (used for) investing activities {40,887) (37 B5H) [X3.561)
Cash flows from financing activities
Het proceeds from (paymenls Tor)
Other secured Enancings. [E25) 2,784 30685
Diespaasits 36,897 5417 2513
lzsuance of praferred siock, net of [Bsuance cosis 1,275 —_ 4a7
Procesds from kssuance of Bormowings 90,273 60,726 30605
Payments for.
Bomowings {70, 1:24) {50,464} {40 54E)
Repurchasaes of common siock and ecrmployes tax withholdings {12,075) {1,690} (5.954)
Cash dividends (4,171) 2,738) (2827
Qther financing activities a7 (40} (1467)
Huet cash provided by (used for) financing activities 41,547 a3, 784 (11 866,
E#ect ol exchange rate changas on cash and cash equivalanis {3,550) 2828 (271)
Het increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 22071 23463 {5.025)
Cash and cash squivalents, at beginning of perod 105,654 B2, BT 156
Cash and cash equivalents, at end of perlod ] 127,725 § 105,654 § B2.171
Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information
Cash paymenis lor
Imenest H 1,303 5 4120 § 12511
Ineome lares, nel of refunds 4,x31 2,581 1508
See Notes 1o Conselidaied Financia Statements T3 December 2021 Form 10k
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Tablg of Comcnis
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

1. Introduction and Basis of Presentation
The Firm

Morgan Stankey is a global financial scrvices [inm that
mainkins significant markel positions in each of its business
sepmenis—Instingionl Securitics. Wealth Management and
Investmemt  Management.  Morgan Stanley,  through s
subsidianes and affilimes. provides o wide vanety of producls
and scrvices to a large and diversificd group of clicnts and
customers, including  corportions, governments, financial
institutions and individuals. Unless il comext otherwise
requircs, the ferms “Morgan Stanley™ or the "Firm”™ mean
Morgan Stanley {the “Parent Company”™) together with s
consolidaed subsidiaries. Sec the “Glossary of Common
Terms and Acronvins™ for ihe delimtion of ceraun tenms and
acrony ins used tiroughout this Form 10-K.

A descripion of the chients and principal products and
services of each of ibe Firm's business segmenis is as
follows:

[nsitutional Secuntics provides a variely of producis and
services 1o corporalions, govermmems, financial instilutions
and uliri-high net worth clienis. Investmemt Banking
services consist of capital mising and financial advisory
services, including the underwrting of debl, equity and
other securtics, as well as advice on mergers  and
acquisiiions, restmcionngs and project finamee, Our Equity
and Fixed Income businesses anclude sales. Ninancing.
prime brokerage, market-making, Asia wealth management
services and cerain business-related investments, Lending
aclivities  include  originating  corporate  loans  and
commercial real estwte loans, providing secured lending
Gcilites,  and  extending  sccunties-based  and  other
financing to cusiomers. Other activities include research.

Wealth Mamagement provides 5 comprehensive armay of
financial services and solutions w mdividual imvestors and
sl to medinm-sized businesses and instilutions covering:
fingncial advisor-led brokerage and investment advisory
services; sell-directed brokerage services; fomncial and
wealth planning services, workplace services, including
stock plan administration; annuity and insurance products;
secuntics-bosed lending. residential real estate loans and
other lending products; banking, and retirement  plan

SETVICES.

Investment  Management provides a broad  range  of
imvestmenl stratcgics and products that span geograplacs,
assel classes. and public and private markeis 10 a diverse
group of clients across institutional and  intermediany
chamncls. Sirategies and  products, which are offercd
throsgh o variety of investment vehicles, include equity,
fixed ncome, altematives and solutions, and lquidity and
overlyy  services.  Insiitutional  clienis  include  defined
benclividefined  comtribution  plans,  foundations,
endowments, govermnem cntities, sovercign weallh funds.
insumnce  compunics,  thisd-pany  fund  sponsors  and

December 2021 Form 10K
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corporations,  Individual
through  intermediancs,
affiliated distrbutors.

clients are  gencrally  served
including  affilisted and non-

Basix of Financial Information

The hnancea] statcments are prepared m accondance with LS.
GAAP, which requires ihe Firm to make esiimaies and
assumptions regarding the valwations of certain financial
instrumems, the valuations of goodwill and imangible asseis,
the outcome of legal and tax neiers, defemed X assets,
ACL, and other matters that affect its finamcal statements and
related disclosures. The Firm believes that e estimmes
wtilized in the preparmtion of il lmancial sicments anc
pradent and reasomable. Actual results could differ nuenally
from 1hese estimans,

The fimancial statements reflect the effects of the following
reclassifications o prior period amounts, The Provision for
credit losses for loans and lending commilments 15 presented
as a separte line in the income statements. Proviously, the
prowision for credit losses for loans wis included i Other
revenues, and the provision for credit losses for lending
commiimenis was incladed in Oiber expenses. In addition,
cconommic  hedges of cenam held-for-sale and  held-for-
investment loans, which were previously reponed in Trading
revemses, arc repored in Oiher revenues,

The Motes are an intcgral pan of the Firm's Ninancial
satements, The Firm has evaluated subsoquent events for
adjustment 1o or disclosure i these fnancial sEiements
throwgh e date of this repont and las not idemificd any
recordable or declosible evenls nal oilerwise reporied
these financial stemens or the notes therelo,

Conxoliduation

The financial statemems inclede the accounts of the Finm. its
wholly owned subsidiarics and other emitics in which the
Firm has a comrolling financial inerest, including cenain
VIEs (sec Note 16). Imtercompany bakances and Iransactions
lawe been eliminated. For consolidated subsidiaries that arc
not wholly owned, the third-party holdings of cquily iicrests
are referred o a5 Nonconirolling inieresis. The nei income
atributable to Noncontrolling interests for such subsidianes is
presented as Net income applicable 1o noncontrolling interesis
in the income statement, The portion of sharcholders” equity
that 15 wiinbutable o noncontrolling  interests  for such
subsicianies is presented a8 Moncontrolling inleresis, a
componcnt of Total cquity, in e balance sheci,

For emtimes where the to@l cquily imvestment ol risk s
sufficicnt 1o cnable the enlify to Nmance iis activities withoud
additional  subordinated financial support and the cquity
Iobders bear the residual economic risks and reiums of ihe
entity and have the power to direct the activities of the entity
than most sigmificanthy affect s economic performance. ks
Finm consolidates those entities it controls cither through a
megonly voling mnterest or olherwise. For VIEs (Ge. entines

76
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that do not mect the aforementioned cntcria), the Finm
consalidates those entities where it has the power 1o make the
decisions  that most significamly  alfect e cconomic
performance of the VIE and has the obligation o absorb
losses or the Aght 10 receive benelits (ot could potentially be
significam to the VIE,

For imvestments i etities in which the Firm does not have a
controlling financial imenest but has significam influence over
operting and hnancial decisions, i applics the oquity method
of accouming with net gains and losses recorded within Other
nevenues (sce Note 12) unless the Firm s clected 1o measure
the investment ai fair valwe, in which case net gains and losses
arc recorded within Invesiments revenucs (5o Note 3),

Eqquity and parnership inferests held by entities qualifving for
FCOUNlING Purpeses 4% investment compames are carned @
fair value,

The Fim's sigmfcan regolated US. and  inlernational
subsidianies include:

Maorgan Stanley & Co. LLC ("MS&Co.”),

Morgan Stanlcy Smith Bamey LLC ("MS5HE™),

Maorgan Stanley Europe SE (MSESE™),

Morgan Stanley & Co, Intermational ple (“MSIP7),
Morgan Stanley Capital Services LLC ("MSCS™),

= Maorgan Stanley Capital Group lne. (“MSCG™),

Morgan Stankcy MUFG Sccuritics Co., Lid ("MSMS™),
Morgan Stanley Bank, N A ("MSBNA™,

Morgan  Stankey  Private  Bank. Mational  Association
("MEFBNA"),

E*TRADE Bauk (“ETB"),

E*TRADE Savings Bank ("ETSE™) and

E*TRADE Secunties LLC,

On January 1, 2022, ETSE merged with and into ETB, and
subsequently ETB merged with and into MSPENA, with
MSPENA a5 the surviving bank.

2, Significant Accounting Policies
Revenue Recognition

Revenues arg mecognived when the promised goods or
services are delivered to our customers i an amouni that is
based on the consideration the Finm expects 0 meceive in
exchange for those goods or services when such amounds are
ot probable of significant reversal,

Firwestomrenrt Hanking

Revenucs from imvestmenl  banking  activitics consist of
evenues eamed (rom underwrling, pamanly equily and
fixed income seouritics and loan svndications, and advisory
fiees, pnmanly for mergers, acquisitions and restniciunngs.

Underwriling revenues are generally recognized on irade date
iF there is mo uncertanty or contingency related o e amount
10 be paid. Underwriting costs are deferncd and recognized in
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the relevant non-inierest expenses line itlems when the related
underw aling revenues ane recorded.

Advisory fees are recopgnized a5 advice is provided to the
chient, based on the cstimated progress of work amd when
revenues are npl probable of a significant reversal, Advisony
costs ane recopmized ws incurmed in the relevinl pon-intencst
expenses ling itlems, including those reimbursed.

Commitssions amd Feex

Commission  and  [ee  revennes  penerally  mesull  [rom
Irnsaciion-based armngements in which the clicw is charged
a fee for ihe exccution of tmmsactions Such revenunes
primarily anse from IEnsIcions in cquily securlics. senvicos
related to sales and wmding activitics: and sales of mutpal
(s, altemative Funds, fuores, insurance  products and
options, as well as revenues from order fow payments for
dirccting customer enders fo broker-deslers, exclumges, and
markel centers for excoution. Commission and fee revenues
are recognized on trade diate when the performance obligation
15 satisfied.

Asser Management Revennes

Assel mamagemend, distnbution and sdminisicion fees anc
sencrally based on relived &set levels being managed, such as
the AUM of a customer’s acconnt or 1 net asset value of a
fund, These fees are gencrally recogmzed when services are
performed and the fees become known Management fees ang
reduced by estimated fee waivers and expense caps, if any,
provided 1o the customer.

Perfomunce-based Fees not in the form of carmied imerest ane
recorded when the anmel pedomuncs target s mel and s
revemes ane nol probable of a significant reversal

Sabes commissions paid by the Finm in connection with the
sale of certmn classes of slares of 1ts open-end mutual fund
products are accounted for as deferred commission assets and
amortized 1o expense over the expected life of the contract.
The Finm periodically tests deferred commission assels for
recoverability based on cash Mows expected o be received in
future penods. Other assel managemend and distribastion costs
are recognized as incured in e relevanl pon-inlenest
expenses ling ilems,

Carrivd fnlerest

The Firin is enttled 10 receive performance-based fees in the
form of carmed imerest when the retum in cenain funds
exceeds speaified performance targets. When the Finm cams
carncd  amlerest  from  fumds as  specified  performance
thresholds arc met, thal carmed intcrest and any  related
general or linned parioer menest ane secounled for under e
couity meilod of accounting and measurcd based on ihe
Firm's claim on the NAY of the fund a1 the reporing date,
taking imo account the distnbution tenns applicable 1o the
imcrest held, Such fems are reflected within Investment
TEVEMIES.

7 December 2021 Form 10K

319/413

oOoOooodn



Tablg of Comenis
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Scc Note 23 for information regarding the net cumulative
wirezlised amount of perfonnance-based oo revenues al nsk
of reversal, See Nole 15 for idormation regarding general
pariner guarmiees, which include potential obligations 1o
neturn pedormance fee distnbutions previously received,

Chher Homs

Revenues from cenan commodities-related  contracts are
recognized as the pronised goods or services are delivered 1o
thi customer,

Recervables from commacts with customers are recognized in
Customer and odleer receivables in the balance sheet when the
underlying performance obligations have been satisfed and
the Firne his the right per the contract 1o bill the customer,
Comract assels are recoemzed in Other mssets wihen the Finn
has satisfied s perfomunce  obligations bul  customer
payment 15 conchitional. Conimct Labilitics are recognized in
Othser liabsalitics wihen the Firm has collected payment from a
customer based on the terms of the condmct but the usderdying
performumce abligations are not vel satishied,

For contracts with 3 term of lcss than once vear, incremental
costs 1o obtain the commsl are expensed as incurred.
Revenues are nod discoumted when pavment is gxpected
within one vear.

The Firm gencmlly presents, nel within mevenues, tses
assessed by a govenmmenal authonty el are both imposed
on and concumenl with a specific  revemsc-producing
transaction and collected by the Firm from a customer.

Cush and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consisi of Cash and due from
banks amd  Imterest bearmg  deposits with banks, Cash
equivalents are highly liguid investments with remsining
maturitics of throe months or less from the acquisition date
thst are resdily convertible o cash and ane not beld for trading
[HITPROSCS,

Cash and cash equivalents also include Restacted cash such
as cash scgregatod in complianee with federl or other
regulations, including minimum reserve requirements set by
the Federal Rescrve Bank and other contml banks, and the
Firm's imitzal muargin deposited with cleanng organiations.

Fair Value of Financial Instroments

Insirumems within Trading asscis and Trading labilitics arc
measured at Fair value, cither as required or allowed by
sccounting puidance. These Mnancial instruments primarnly
represend the Finn's trading and investmem positions and
wiclude both cash amd denvatne products. [n addition.
securitics classificd as AFS are measuned at Gair valee

Gains and losses on instruments carmied at fair value ane
reflected i Trding revenues, Iivestimenls  revenues or
Investment banking revenues in the income statemenl, exeepl

December 2021 Fonm 10K
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for gains and losses related 1o Available-for-Sale ("AFS7)
securiics (see “AFS linestinem Secunlies” secton hercmn
and Note 8) and denvatives accounied for as hedges, as well
as coonomic dervative hedges assoceed with certain held-
for-sale and held-for-mmvestment corporate loans and lending
commitments (s¢¢ “Hedge Accounting” and “Other Hedges™
Iserein and Note 7).

Intercst income and interest expense are reconded within the
e statemsent depending on the nature of the mstnument
and related market conventions. When interest is included as a
component of the instraments’ fair value, interest s recorded
within Teading revemses or livesimenis revenues. Otherwise,
it 15 recorded within Infcrest income or Interest expensc,
Drvidend  income 15 reconded in Trading revenuses  or
Investments revenues depending on the business activity,

The fair value of OTC fnancial instroments, including
derivative contracts  related o fmancial  instromems  and
comumodites, is presented i e accompany ing balance sheet
on a  met-by-coumcrpanty  basis,  when  appropriate,
Additionally, the Finn pels the Gur value of cash collaeral
paid or received against the fir value amounts recogiized for
net derivative positions exccuted with the same coumerpany
under the sume muster neiling agreement.

Fair Valwe Cyiion

The Firm has clected to measure cerfain cligible instruments
ar Fair value, including Secunties punchased under agreements
1o resell, Loans and lending commitments, cquity method
investments and cortun other assets, Deposits, Scountics sold
under agreements 1o repurchuge, Cilier secured hnancings and
Bormowings.

Fair Valwe Measurement—IDefinition and Hierarchy

Fair value is defined as the price thm would be received 1o sell
an asset or paid (o transfer a liability (L, the “exil price™) in
an orderly ransaction berween market paripams a1 e
measuremen date.

Farr value is a markel-based measure considered from the
perspective of @ markel participamt mther than an cntity-
gpecific measure. Therefore, even when market assumplions
are nod readily available, assumplions are set 10 reflecl those
tlat the Firm belicves markel participants would use in
prcing the asset or lability af the measarement date. Whene
the Firm manages a group of fmncial asscis. Ninancial
lnabalities, and nonfinancial nems accounted for as derivatives
on the basis of s nel exposure (o cither market nsks or crecit
nisk, the Firm measures the Gur value of that group of
fimancial — wEtruments  consistemly  wal bow  marken
participanis would price the net nsk exposure ar the
measuremen date.,

In detenmining fur valoe, the Finn uses vanouws valuation
approaches and esiablishes a hierarchy for inpuis used in
measuring fair value that requires the most ohservable inputs
b used when available.
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Observable inputs arc inpuls thal market participants would
use 1 prcmng (he asset of Lability ol were developed bised
on market data obtained from sources independent of the
Firm. Unobservable mpats are inputs that reflect assumplions
the Finm believes other murketl participams would use in
pricing the asset or lishility that are developed based on the
best informuation avialable in the cirumstances. The far value
higrarchy s broken down ime three levels based on the
obscrvability of inparis as follows. wiih Level | beng the
huglwest amd Level 3 bemng the lowest level:

Level 1. Valuations based on quoted prices in active markels
that ihe Finm has ibe ability 10 access for idemical assets or
liabilitics,  Valuation  adjustments, block  discounts  and
disconmis  for entity-speciflic resinctions  that would ot
transfer 1o markel pamicipants are not applied 10 Level |
instmumcnts. Sincc valustions are based on quoted prices that
are feadily and regulady available moan sctive madket,
valuation of these products docs not enlail a significant degroe
of judgment,

Level 20 Valuations based on one or mome quoled prices in
markets that are not active or for which all significu inpuls
are ebservable, cither directly or indirectly,

Level 3. Walumions based on inpuis ihat are unobservable
and signaficant 10 the overall Gair value measurement,

The availability of obscrvable inpats can vary from product 1o
product and is alfected by a wide vanety of factors. including
the tvpe of product. whether the product is new and mot vel
cstablishied mn the marketplace, the hquedity of markcts and
other chamsctenstics particular o e product. To the extent
that valuation is based on models or inputs that ane less
observable or wnobsenable m the market, e detennimiion
of fair value requires more judgment. Accordingly. the degree
of judgment exercised by the Firm in determining fair value is
greatest [or imstruments cateporized in Level 3 of the far
value higrmncly,

The Firm considers prices and inpuis that are current as of the
measurement  date, including  during  periods of  market
distocation. In penods of nurket distocation, the observability
of prices and inputs may be reduced for many instruments,
This condition could cavse an instrument 1o be reclassifed
from Level 1o Level 2 or from Level 2 io Level 3 of the fair
vilue hicrarchy,

Im cenain cases, the inputs used 1o measure Fair value may fall
into different bevels of the fair value hicrarchy, In such cases,
the 1ozl fair value amount is disclosed i the level appropriate
for the lowest level inpat that is significant 1o the tolal fair
vilue of the assel or liabaliy.

Valwation Technigues

Many cash instruments and OTC denvative contrcts have bid
and ask prices thar can be observed in the markeiplace. Bid
prices reflect the highest price that a pany is willing 1o pav for
an assel. Ask prices mepresent the lowest prce that a party is
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willing 1o accept for an asset. The Finm camics positions at (he
pomnt witlan the bid-ask mnge that mects i1 best estingte of
fair valoe, For offsctiing positions in the same financial
instrumen, the same price within the bid-ask spread is used o
measure both te bong and short positions.

Farr value for many cash mwstruments and OTC denvative
conirpcis is derived using pricing models. Pricing models take
into account the commet terms, as well as moltuple inpaits,
ingcluding, where applicable. commodily prices. quity prices,
imerest  mate vield curves, credit  cunves,  correlation,
creditwonthiness of the counterparty, croditworthiness of tle
Firm. option volatility and currency ries.

Where approprate, valuation adjustments are inade 1o account
for vamows factors  such  as  liquidity sk (bid-ask
adjustments),  eredit  guabiy, model  uncenamiy,  and
conceniration risk and funding in onder o arrive at Gir value,
Adpustments for bguidity nsk adjust model-denved  mid-
meirkel amoums of Level 2 and Level 3 el imstruments
for the bid-mid or mid-ask spread required to properly reflect
the exil poce of a nsk position. Bed-nud and nud-ask spreads
are nurked 1o levels ebserved in iade activity. broker quotes
or other external third-parmy data, Where these spreads arc
unobgervable for the panicular position in question, spremsds
are denived from observable lovels of similar positions,

The Firm applies credit-related valuation adjusiments o s
Borrowings for which the fair value option was clected and 1o
OTC denvatves. The Finm considers the unpact of changes in
its own credit spreads based upon obseratons of the
secondary bond market spreads when measuning the fair value
for Bernowings.

For OTC denvatives, the impact of changes in both the Finn's
and the coumerparny’s credit mting s considered when
measuring fair value, In determining the expected exposure,
the Firm simulates the distnbution of the future exposure (o a
countgrpany, then applics market-based defull probabilitics
1o the future exposune, levemging external third-pary CDS
spread data. Where CDS spread data ane wnavaalable for a
specific counterpariy, bond markei spreads, CDS spread daia
based on the counterpany s crednl mting or CDS spread dma
ihen reference a comparable counterpamy may be unilized. The
Firm also considers collatieral held and legally enforceable
MESCT Being agreements tal matigate 1s exposure 1o cach
COMNLETPany.

Adjustments for model unceraimy are faken for positions
whose underlving models are reliant on significant inputs that
are neilher directly por indirectly observable, hence requinng
reliance on established theoretical concepts in their demvation.
These adjusiments are denved by meking assessments of the
possible degree of varability using siatistical approaches and
merket-based information where possible,

The Firm mayv apply concentration adjusimenis io corain of
its OTC denvative portfolios 1o reflect the sdditional cost of
closing out a particularly brge risk exposure. Where possible,
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these  adjusimends are based  on obscrvable
markel  mlommation, bul o mary  mstances,  sagnificant
Judgment 5 required o cstimale the costs of closing
oul concenirated nsk exposures duc 1o the Lack of liguidity in
the narketplace.

The Firm applics an FYA m the G value measurcments of
OTC wncollmeralized or panially collaiemlized denvatives
and in collaterihzed denvatives where the lerms of the
aprecment do not permat the reuse of the collateral recemved.
In generl, FVA reflects a market foncing risk preminem
inherent in the moted denvative imstroments. The methodology
for measunng FVA leverages the Firm's exisiing credii-
clied  valuation adjustment  calculation  methodologics,
which apply 10 both assets and habilities.

See Mote 5 for a descnption of valuation echnigues applied 1o
the major catcgorics of Ninancial instnuments measwred at fir
valug,

Assets and Liabilities Measured ai Fair Value on g Non-
recutrring Busix

Cerain of the Finm's assets and lighilitics sire measwred a1 fair
value on a non-recurnng basis. The Firm incurs losses or
gains for amy adjustments of these assets or liabilities 1o fir
value,

For asscts and labilites messured at Gur value on a non-
recurring basis, Coir value is determined by using varous
valwation approacles, The same hicmarchy for inpuls as
descnbed above, which requires tlal obsenable mpuls be
used when available, is vsed in measuring fair valoe for these
lems,

For lunher information on financial asscts and liabilitics that
are measured at fur value on a rocurmng and nom-recurmng
basis. see Mote 5.

Offsetting of Derivative Instruments

Im connection with its denvatve activities, the Firm generally
cnlers  imo  master  neting  agreements  and - collateral
aprecments with s counterpariies, These agreemends provide
the Firm with the maght. an the evert of a default by the
counderparty, 1o net a coumerparty s rights and obligations
under the agreement and o lowidate and se1 off csh
collatgral against amy ogl amoun owed by (he counterparty,
Drerivatives with enforceable master metting agrecments ane
reparted net of cash collateral recerved amd posted.

However, in cenain circumstances, the Finn may not have
sich an sgreement in place. the relevamt insolvency regime
may nol suppon (he enforceability of the master netting
agreement or collaterl agreement; or e Firm may not have
sought begal advice o suppont the enforceability of the
aprecment. In cases where the Firm has not determuncd an
agrecment 1o be enforceable. e melied amounts ane ol
offsel (50 Mote 7),
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The Firm's policy is gencrally to receive cash andfor
securiies posted a8 collaterl (with nghis of el pothecation),
irrespective of the cnforceability determinaon regarding the
nm@sier neiting and collaterl agreement. In conain cascs, the
Firm may agree for such collateral (o be posied w a third-
party custodian under a control agreement at cnables it o
take control of such collateral in the event of a coume ity
defull. The enfarceability of the master neling agreement is
faken into account in the Fion's nsk management practices
and applicition of coumerparty credit lnmats.

For mformation related 10 offseiming of denvatives, sce Note
7.

Hedlge Accounting

The Firm applies hedpe acoounting using varous denvaive
financial instroments for the following tvpes of hodges:
Iedges of clunges in the Fair value of assets and labilitics due
1o e misk beamg Dedped (faar value hedgesy, and hedges of net
iwvestments in forcign operdions whose funciional cumency
15 different from the mpoming cwrency of the Parcnt
Company  qmet  imvestment  hedges).  These  linancial
instromems are incloded within Trading asseis—Denvitive
and other conmscts or Trading labihnes—Denvative and
other comtracts in the balasce sheet, For hedpes wlere hodge
accounting is being applicd, the Finm perfonns effectivencss
iesting and other procedurcs.

Fair Valive Hedges—Interest Rate Risk

The Firm's designated far value hedpes consist of inlenest
e swaps desigmaied as bedges of changes in the benchmgrk
interest mate of conain fixed raie AFS securitics and sewior
bomowings. The Finn also designmes imlenest rale swaps as
fair value hedges of changes in the benchmark iniercsi rate of
cerain fixed e deposits, The Firm is permated to hedge the
Tull, or part of the, conirmacinal term of the hedged instrameni.
The Finm wses regression anmalvsis o perform an ongoing
prospectve and retrospective assessment of the elfectivencss
of these hedging relationships. A hedging relationship is
decmed cffective if the change in fair value of the hedging
instrume (dervative) and the change in Tair value of the
hedged ilem (AFS secunity, deposit lisbility or bormowing),
due to changes in the benclmark inferest rate, offset within a
range of 30% w0 125%. The Firm considers the impact of
varlwatton adjustmems related 0 counterpanty crodit spreads
and s ewn credit spreads 1o determune whether they would
cause the hedging relationship 1o be ingfTective,

For qualifving fair valug hedges of benchmark inferest rafes,
the change in the foir value of the dervative, offset by the
change in the faer value atnbwable w the change in the
benchmark interest mie nisk of the hedged assel Chability ), is
reconized in camings cach penod as a component of Intercst
income (expense). For AFS sccurities. the change in fair value
of the hedged item due to changes other than the nisk being
Iedged will comtinee o be meponed in OCL When a
dervative is de-designated as g hoedge, any basis adjustment

&

322/413

oOoOooodn



HE Tl
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

emaining on the hedged asset (liability) s amorioed 1o
Initeresl inoome (expense) over the remamng life of the assel
(lizbality § using the cffective intercst method,

Net Frevestinent Hedges

The Finm uses forward forcign exchange contracis 10 manage
a porion of the currency exposure relating 1o il oel
mvestments o forcign opertions. To the extent thal the
notionl amounts of the hedging istriments equal the pomion
of the imvestmsents being hedged and (he underlving cxchange
rate of ihe dervative hedging instrament 15 the same as the
exchange rite between the funciional currency of the invesice
and the imermediate parent entity s functional currency, it is
considered 1o be perfectly elfective, with no income statemenl
rcoognition, The gain or loss from revaluing hedges of net
mvestments in forcign opemtions al the spol mie s reporled
within AOCT The forward points an (he hedging instnimcans
arc excluded from hedge effectivencss testing and changes in
the fair value of this excluded componem are recorded
currently in Inierest incoims,

Other Hedges

I addition w0 hedges that are designated and qualify for bedge
accounting, the Finmn uses denvitives o cconomically hedge
credit risk assocumed with cedan held-for-sale and beld-for-
investment corporate loans asd lending commitments, and the
related gains and bosses are reporied within Other revenues in
thie income SEemen.

For funther information on denvidive mstruments and hedging
activities, se¢ MNote 7.

AFS Investment Securities

AFS secunitics are reported at fair value i the balance sheet.
Imerest income, including amortization of premiums and
aceretion of discounts, is included i Inferest income in the
income statemenl. Unrealized gains are recorded in OCI, and
unrealized losses are recorded cither in OCT or in Oiler
revenues i described below.

AFS secunties o oan unrcalized loss position ane (st
eviluated o determing whether there is an ingent 1o scll or it is
mare likely than nod the Firm will be required 1o sell belore
recovery of the amomized cost basis, [F so, (he amomced cost
basis is writien down to the fair value of the secuniy such thai
the emine unrcalized boss is recognized in Chher revennes, and
ainy previeusly established ACL is wriiien ofT.

For all other AFS sccurities in an unrealized loss position. any
portion of unrealized losses represcnting a credit loss is
recognized in Other revemes and as an increase to the ACL
fer AFS secunties, with the renuinder of unrealized losses
recognized in OCL A credit loss cxsts if the Finm docs niot
expect 1o recover the amoiaad cost basis of the secunly.
When considening whether a credit loss exists. the Firm
considers relevant information, including:
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guaraniocs (mplici or explicit) by e ULS, govemment;
the extent 10 which the far valve las been less than the
amonized cost basis.

adverse conditions specifically related o the secunty, its
industry or geograplic anca;

changes in the fimancial condition of the issuer of the
secunty or, i the case of an asset-backed debt secunty,
changes in the Nmancial conditon of the undertving loan
obligors;

the pay ment structure of the debt security and the lkelilood
of the issucr being able 10 make pavmenis that increase in
the foture,

falure of the mssuer of the secunty 0 numke scheduled
interest or principal pay ments:

the current rting and any clanges o the mung of e
secunty by & miing agency.

IF a eredil loss exists, the Fimm measures the credit loss as the
differcnce between the present value of cash Mows expected
10 be collected (discoumted m the implici interest mie a
acquisition of the secuniy or discounted at the effectve vield
for securitics thal incorporate changes in prepayment
assawmptions) and the amomized cost basis of the secunty.
Clanges in prepayment assumplions along are nod considered
o result in a credit loss. When estimating the present value of
expected cash (lows, anformation  utiliced  includes e
remining paymeml ierms of the secariiy, prepaymeni speeds,
financial condition of the issuer, expecied defaulis and the
vitlug of any underhying collaeral.

Presentation of ACL and Provision for Credit Losses

Provision for
AGL Crodi| Losses

AFS securilios Conlra irvmsdimant secuntios.  Othat fvans

Nemacernal & ACL Charge-offs on AFN Securities

AFS secunities follow the same nonpccmial and write-off
rusdance a5 discussed in “Allowance for Credin Losses™
herein, except as sei forh in “Modifications and Nonacomal
Status for Bormowers Impacted by COVID-19" herein

HTM Securitics

HTM secuntics ang reponed ol amoriacd cost, net of any
ACL, in the balince sheet. Refer 1o “Allowance for Crodit
Losses” berein for pudance on the ACL  determimaiion.
Imicrest income, including amonization of preminms and
aceretion of discounts on HTM secorties, 15 mcluded in
[merest income in the income stalement.

Lasins

The Firm accounts for loans based on the following
calegories: loans eld for investment: loans held for sale: and
loans at Gair valee,
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Nonacoraal

All loan calcgories descnbed  below  follow the same
noauccrual and write-ofT guidance as discussed in “Allowance

fior Credin Losses™ herein,
Lovares Held for Investiment

Loans beld for mvestment are reported o outstanding
principal adjusted for amy charge-offs. the allowance for
credit losses, any wmnmonized deforred fees or costs for
onginmed loans, and any pnumonized premiums or discoums
for purclnsed loans.

feterest fmoome. Interest income on performing boans held
for investment is accrued and recognized as inlerest income at
the contrsctual rate of interest. Purcluse price discounts or
premiwms, a5 well as net deferred loan fees or cosis, arg
amorized into inferest mcome over il life of the loan 1o
produce a level rate of return,

Lending Commitments, The Firm records the Labality and
relaied expense for e credit  exposure  relaicd  io
commitments to fund loans. For more information regarding
loan commitments, standby leers of crodit and fimancial
guarmices, sce Mote 15,

For mome infermaton regarding allowance for credil fosses,
refer 1o Allowance for Credit Losses™ hercin,

Loares Held for Sale

Loans held for sale are measuned at the lower of cost or fir
value, with valueion changes recorded in Other revenues.
The Firm detenmines the valuation allowance on an individual
toan basis, excepl for residential morigage loans for which the
vahuion allowance s determined at the loan product level.
Ary decreases in Tair value below the indtial carmving amount
and any recovencs in fair valee up 1o the initial carmving
ansoul ang recorded in Other revenues. Increases in fair value
above initial carmying value are nol recognizacd.

fonterest Income, Interest imcome on loans held for sale is
aoccmied and  recognized based on the contrachul rate of
mkeresl. Loan ongiation fees or costs and purchase price
discounts or premiums are deferred as an adjustment 1o the
loan’s cost basis umtil the related loan is sold and, as such, anrc
ncluded m the penodic detenmimition of the lower of cost or
fair value adjustments and (he gain or loss recognized an the
timie of sale,

Lending Coanmitments, Commutments to fund mordgape
loans held for sale are deavatives and are reponed in Trading
assets of Treding liabilitics in the balance sheot with an offset
to Tracling revenoes in e income satement.

For commitmends (o fund nomn-morgage loans, the Fiom
reconds the labiliy and related expense for the Tar value
cxposurc below cost of such commitments in Other liabilities
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and accmecd expenses in the balance sheet with an offsct o
Onher revenues in the incode stlement.

Becnuse loans and lending commitmems held for sale are
recoznized at the bower of cost or Giir value, the allowame for
credii losses and clerge-ofl policies do noi apply o these
loans,

Loans at Fair Value

Loans for which the fair value option is clected are carricd at
Cair valuwe, with clanges in Fur value recognneed m cimings.
Loans camicd i Gair valiee are nod evaluaicd for purposes of
recording an  allowance for credit losses. For further
information on loans carmied s Gair valee and classified as
Trading asscts and Trading lusbilitics. see Node 5,

Lending Comvtmrenirs. The Firm reconds (he liabiliny and
related expense for the [air wvalue exposure related 1o
commitmens 1@ fund loans that will be measured at fair
vilz, The liahility is recorded in Trading liabilitics in the
balance sheet, and the expense s recorded in Trading
reverees in the income stalcment.

Because such loans and lending commuitimeins are reporned at
fair value, the allowance for credit losses and charge-off
policies do not apply 1o these loans.

For furiher mformation on loans, see MNote 10

Allowanee for Credit Losses

The ACL for financial instruments measured al amortized
cost and certain off-balance sheet exposures (e.g., HFI loans
and lemnding commitmems, HTM sccunties, customer and
other meceivables and cerain guarmecs) reproscnis  an
estimmate of expocted crodit losses over the entire life of the
Tinancial instasment.

Factors considersd by management when determining the
ACL include pavment status, fair value of collateral and
expected paviments of prancipal and dmeres, as well as
internal or exicmal information reliing 1o past cvenis, curmenl
conditions, and reasonable and supporable forecasis The
Firm uses three forecasts tlat include assumplions aboul
certain mgcrocconomic variables, including, but not limited
1o, UL pross domestic product (“GDP"), equity market
indices and uncmplovinen mics. as well as commercial real
estate and home price mdices. Al the conclusion of ihe Finm's
reasonable and supporable lorecast penod of 13 quaners,
ihere is & gradual reversion back o histerical sverages.

The ACL is measured on a collective basis when similar risk
characteristics exist for multiple instrements, considering all
available ioformation relevant o assessing the collectabaliy
of cash flows. Genemlly, the Firm applies a probability of
defmultloss piven default model for instrumends that ane
collectively assessed. under which the ACL is calculated as
e progiuct of probability of defaul, loss given default and
exposune il defanll. These parmmeters are forecast for cach
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collective group of assets using a scenano-based statistical
miadel.

If the instmument docs not share similar nsk clamcienstics
with other instruments, including when it 15 probable that the
Firm will be umable 1o collect the full pavment of principal
and interest on the mstruoment wlen due. the ACL s measured
on an individual basis, The Firm gencrally applics a
disconmied cash Mow method for instmumenis that anc
individually asscssed.

The Firm maw also elect to use an approsch tlut considers the
fair value of s collaeral when measunng the ACL i the
loan &5 collmeral dependemt (Le, repavment of the loan is
expected o be provided substantilly by the sile or opertion
of the underlying collaieral and the borrower is expenencing
finamcial difficuliv),

Additionally, the Finn can clect to use an approach 1o
measure e ACL that considers the fair value of collateral
where e borrower is required 10, and reasonably expecied to,
continally adjust and replenish e amound of collateral
securing the mnstrument 1o reflect changes in the fair value of
such collateral. The Finn has clected 10 use this approach for
cerun secuniics-based  loans, margin loans,  secuntecs
purchased under aprecnsents o resell and secunties borrowed.

Credit quality mdicators considercd in developing the ACL
include:

Cormporate loans, secared lending Gcilities, commsercial real
cstate loans and sccuritics, and other loans: Intermal risk
rtings  developed by the Credit Risk  Management
Deparument that are refreshed at least annually. and more
frequenily as necessary. These miings generally cormespond
to exterml rtines published by S&P. The Finm also
considers transaction simciure, including 1y pe of collateral.
collateral terms and position of the obligation within the
capital structure. [n addition, for commercial real estale. the
Firm considers propery ivpe and location, nel opomting
incomme and LTY nmtios, among other factors, as well as
commencial real esiate price and credit spread indices and
capitalization rulcs

Residential real estale loans: Loan onginaton Fair 1saac
Comoration (“FICO™) credit scores as determined by
independent credin agencies inthe U5, and LTY rtios,
Emplovee leans: Enployment status, wlach inchedes those
cumently emploved by the Finm and for which the Firm can
dedwct any wnpad  amoumts due 10 it through  cerain
compensation armangenems, and those wo longer emploved
by the Firm where such armngements are oo longer
applicable.

Onelitative and ewvironmental Gictors such as econonic and
busitness condirons, the miure and volume of the porfolio.
and lending torms and the volume and severity of past due
loans are also considered in the ACL calculations.
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Presentation of ACL and Provision for Credit Losses
Provision for
ACL Crushd Losaes
Hield for ivestmend loans Cortra aseel me‘;ruudd
Oither instruments measured al
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and customar and olher mopsvatian)
Em picryess s Cortra assel mﬂmﬁ
Hedd for smvesimend lending Oihew labilbes and Provison for oredil
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Oither of-balanos sheol nstruments

(b babdtes and o
[, corlain guarantons) aocruad

Trine blead Dbt Restrioturings

The Firm may modify the terms of cenain loans for econmmic
or legal reasons related to a borower's financial difficultics
by grnting one or more concessions that the Furmi would not
otherwise consider. Such modilications are accounted lor and
reported a5 a troubled debt restructuring (“TDR™), except for
cemain modifications  related 0 the corommvins  disease
(COVID-19") as noted in “Modifications and Nonacomal
Status for Bormowers Impacted by COVID-149" herein, A loan
iz has been modified in a TDR s generally considered 1o be
impared and s cvaluated indinvidually. TDEs are also
penemally classified a5 nomccrual and may be relumed o
acerual status only afler v Firm expects repaymeil of the
remgining contracher] principal and intcrest and there s
sustuned repay menl performance for a reasonable penod.

Newacernal

The Firm places financial instnmmenls on nomscemeal status il
prancipal or inlerest 5 nol expected when commciually due or
is past due for a period of 90 davs or more unless the
obligation 15 well-secnred and 15 in the process of collection,
For bomowers impacted by COVID-1%, see “Modifications
and  Monsccrual  Siztus  for  Borowers  [mpacied by
COVID-19" heremn for additonal considertions.

For amy instrument placed on nonaccrual stats, the Firm
reverses any unpaad  interest acorued  with an ofTsetting
reduction to Increst income, Principal and imerest payments
received on nomecnil instruments are applicd to principal if
ihere s doubi regarding ihe wlimate colleciability of
principal, If collection of the principal is not in doubt, inicrest
incom: 15 realized on a cash basis. 10 the instrument is browghi
current amd neither principal nor interest collection s in
donbi, instnumenls can gencrally retum 1o sconeal sties, and
inlencsl income can be meognied.

Maodifications  and  Nongoorwal  Status for  Borrmvers
Impacted by COVID-19

I the first quaner of 2020, the Finm elected 1o apply s
gubdance issued by Congress in the Coronavirus Aid, Relicf,
and Economic Seconty Act ("CARES Act™), as well as by the
LS. banking agencies siating iha cenain concessions granied
I borowers that arc currenl on existing  loans, cither
individually or a5 pan of a program for ereditworhy
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bommowers who arc experiencing shori-ierm  [inancial or
operational problems as a resull of COVID-19, penerally
would not be considered TDRs Additionally, these loans
gencrally  would not be considercd  nomaccrual  unless
collectability  concerns  exist  despite  the  modificion
provided, For loans remaining on accroal status, the Fiom
clected 1o contimue recopmizing mterest income durning the
modification periods. The CARES Act reliel expired on
January 1, 20232,

ACL Charge-affs

The principal balance of a financial instromem is charged off
in the penod 0 is deemed uncollectible, resulting i oa
meduction in the ACL and in the balance of the fimancial
instmemicnt in the bakance sheet. Accrued imernest reccivable
balances that are separately recorded from the nelated
financial instrumeends are charged of T against [nierest income
when the relmed Inancel istnument 15 placed on nonaccnial
status. Accordingly. the Firm elected not 1o messure an ACL
for aconsed imerest receivables, However, inthe case of loans
that ame modificd a8 3 mesull of COVID-19 and remaim on
aconet] stas due 10 the relielf noed in “Modifications and
Monaccmial Statws for Borrowers lmpacted by COWVID-19”
hercin accmeed interest receivable balances are assessed for
any reguingd ACL.

Transfers of Financial Asscis

Transfers of lnancial asses are accounted for as sales when
the Firm has relinguished control over the irnsfermed assels.
Any related gain or loss on sale 1s recorded in Net revenoes.
Trnsfers that are nol accounted for a5 sales are tremed a8
collatcralized Mnancings, Securitics borrowed or purchased
uncer agrecments 1o resell and secunties loaned or sold under
aprecnwents o mepurchase are treated as  colbaeralized
financings (see Mote 9),

Secuntics purchased wnder agreemenis o rescll (Mreverse
repurchase  agreements”)  and  Securntics sobd  under
agreemenis  to repurchase  ("repurchase  agrecmenis”).
including repurclase and reverse repurchase agrecments-to-
maturiy, are carned i the balance sheet g the amoum of
cash paid or received plus accmicd interest exeept for censin
reverse repurclase and repurchase agreements for which the
Firm has elected e fair value option {sec Moie 6). Where
appropriate, repurchase agreements and neverse ropurchasc
agreements with the same counterpany are reported on a nel
basis, Securitics bormowed and secunitics boaned are recorded
al the amount of cash collaeral advanced or received.

I imstanges where the Firm is the lemder in seournitigs-for-
secunties tmnsactions and 15 permutted o sell or repledpe
these securities. the fair value of the collateral received is
reporied in Trding assels, and the related obligation fo retum
the collateral is reponed in Trading Labalities in the balance
sheet. Securnities-for-securities ransactions whene the Firm is
the borrower are oot included im the balance sheet
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In order 1o nanage credit exposure arismg from (hese
Irnsaclions, n appropoale circumstances, the Finn cilers
ino master netling agrecments and collateral agreemens with
its coumterpartics, These agreements provide the Finm with
the right, i e event of a delfmll by the counterpany, to net a
counterpany s rights and obligations under the agrecment and
1o liqquadate and set of collateral beld by the Finm against the
et o owed by the coumerparty

The Firm's policy is gencrally 1o take possession of securines
purchased or bormowed in connection with reverse repurcluse
agreements and scournitics bormowed imnsactions, respectively,
andd 10 receive cash andlor securities delivered under
repurchase agreemenis or secuntics boancd imnsactions (wilh
rights of rehy pothecation).

For informanon related 1o offseiing of cerain collateralimed
Iransactions, see Mole Y,

Premises, Equipment and Capitalized Software Costs

Premuses, cquipment and capitalized software costs consist of
buildings, leaschold improvements. fermiure,  fixiunes,
compuicr and CoOmMMUMCAIGNS CQuUIpmCnt, power gencration
assets and capitalized software (externally  purchased and
developed for indermal use). Premises, equipment  and
capitalized software costs are stated ol cost less sccumubned
depreciation and amortization and are included i Oer asscis
in the balance shect, Depreciation and amortization anc
provided by the stmighi-line method over the estimated useful
lifie of 1he asser.

Estimated Useful Life of Assets

n prars Enlima o Lised s Life
Busidings a8
Leasehoid improvemenis==Ruaiding Ieem of leawse to 25
Leaseheid impnovements—Omher arm of lnase fo 15

Furmitune and ffuos T
Cormpndar ] COMMRIN S0 S MUl diaq
Prsvis’ ganaralion Assets 1510 28
Cagialzed softwire cosls 240 1

Premuses, cquipment and capitalized soltware costs ane ested
for impairmeinl whenever events of clunges in Circuimstinees
suggest that an asset’s carmving value may ol be Tully
recoverable.

Gavindlwill amdd Intangible Assets

The Finn tesis poodwill and indelinite-lved imtzngible asscis
for impainment on an annoal basis and on an inlerim basis
when certain evenis or cirenmstances exist. The Firm iesis
goodwill for inyprmment o the reporting una level, which s
generally at ithe level of or one level below the assel's business
segment, The Finn tests indefinite-lived intangible asscts for
imgirment al the ageregate level of management conlracts,
For both the annual and inenim tests, (e Firm has the option
10 cither (1) perform @ quantiave mnpainment 1251 or (i) st
perform a qualitative assessmemt o delermine whether il is
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mare likely than not that the Lair value is less than ils carmying
amsouind, W which case the quantilative test would be
performicd.

When performing 3 quantitalive impainment 1est, the Firm
comparcs the fair value with ihe carrving amount. If the fair
value 15 less than the carmying amound, e mnpuunment loss is
equal o the excess of the caryving vilue over the fair value,
limited to the carmying amount,

The estimaied fair values are denved based on valwiion
technigues the Finm believes market panicipams would use.
The cstimed fair valwes are genceally  determined by
utilizing 2 discoumed  cash  flow  methodology  or
methodelogics that incorporle prce-lo-book and price-to-
carmings multiples of cenain comparsble companics for
goodwill impainment testing.

Intamgible asscts with a fimie life ane amorized over iher
cstimpited useful life and are reviewed for impairment on an
imerim basis when impainment  indicsors are  present.
Impairmient losses are recorded within Other expenses in the
INCOME statement,

Earnings per Common Share

Basic EPS ks computed by dwiding camings available 1o
Mongan Stanley common sharcholders by the  weighted
average number of common shares outstanding for the peniod.
Earmings available 10 Morgan Sumnley common shareholders
represcms el income applicable to Morgan Stanley reduced
by prefermed stock dividends. Conunon shares outstanding
include commmon stock and vested RSUs where rocipicms
have satisficd the relevam vesiing terms. Diluied EPS meflects
the assumed comversion of all dilutive securines.

Share-based awards that pay dividend equivalents subject 1o
vesting are included in diluied shares ousianding (7 dilutive)
unger ihe treasury stock method,

The Firm has granted PSUs that vest and convert o shanes of
common stock only i predetermined performance and market
poals are satishied. Since the issuance of the slares ig
contingem wpon the satisfaction of cenain conditions, the
PaUs are mcluded m diluted EPS based on the number of
shares (if amy ) that would be issuable if the reporting date was
the end of the performance period,

For furher information on dilbed camings (loss) per
common share, see Note 18 to the financial stiements.

Deferred Compensation
Stock-Hared Compensation

The Finm measurcs compensation expense for stock-hased
awards al Gair value. The Firm determines the far value of
R3Us (imcluding PSUs  with non-market  performance
condifions) based on the grant-date for value of 15 common
stock, measured as the volume-weighted mverage price on the
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date of grant (" VWAP”), The fair value of RSUs not entitled
1o dividends untal conversion 1% measured al VWAP reduced
by 1l presemt value of dividends expected to be paid on the
underlving shares prior 1o scheduled comversion daie. PSUs
then contain market-based conditions are valued using a
Momie Carlo valuation model

Compensation expense is recognized over the vesting period
relevant 10 each separately vesting portion of the wward,
Compensation  ¢xpense  for  awards  with  performances
conditions is recognized based on the probable outcoms of the
performance condition al cach reporting date, Compensation
expense  for awards with  markei-based  conditions s
recognized imespective of the probability of the market
condition being achieved and 15 not reversed af' the marker
condition is nol mel The Firm accounts for foreiles as they
(0T,

Swck-based  avwards penerally  contwin  clawback  and
cancellation provisions. Certun awards provide the Firm
discretion to claw back or cancel all or a portion of the award
under specified cireumstances. Compensation expense for
those awards is adjusted for changes in the Tair value of the
Firm's common stock or the relevant model valoation, as
approprste, uniil Comersion, cXercise or expintion.

Employee Stock Trusts

In connection with certain stock-based compensation plans,
ihe Firm has established employee stock tnests 1o provide, at
ils discretion, common stock voling nghis 10 cenain RSU
hobders. Followimg the grant of an RSU award, when a stock
trust 15 wiilized, the Finm contrbutes shares 1o be held in e
stock trust umil the RSUs comven 1o commeon shares, The
assels of the cmplovee stock trusts are consohidated with those
of the Firm and are generlly accounted for in a manner
similar 1o treasury stock, where the shares of common stock
outstanding reporied i Common stock issued 1o emplovee
sock trusts are offset by an equal amount reponed in
Emplovee stock trusts in the balance sheed,

The Firm wses the grant-date fair value of siock-based
compension as the basis for recording the movement of e
assets o or from the emploves stock trusis, Changes in the
fair valse arc not recogmized as the Finn's stock-based
compensaion musi be seiiled by delivery of a lixed number
ol shares of the Finn's common stock,

Deferred Casfi-Based Compensation

Compensation expense Tor defermed cash-based compensation
awarnds is calenlated based on the notienal value of ihe award
eranted, sdjusicd for changes o the fair valoe of e
referenced invesiments that cmployvecs select. Compensation
expense 15 recognized over the vesting peniod relevant to each
sgparately vesting portion of the award.

The Fimn nvesis direcily, as a prncipal. in [inancial
instrymems and other investments o cconomically hedge
cemamn of ats obligations under s deferred  cash-based

55 December 2021 Form 10K
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compensation plans. Clanges in the valee of such imestments
are recorded 1n Trding revenues and linéglmenls mevennes.
Allough changes in compensation cxpense mesulling from
changes i the fair value of the referenced mvestments will
generally be offset by clanges in il faur value of imvestiems
made by the Firm, there is tvpically a timing difference
between the immediate recopniton of guns amd losses on the
Firm's imvestments and the deferred recognition of the related
compensation expense over the vesting period.

Retirement-Eligitle Employee Compensation

For vearend stock-based awards and deferred cash-based
compensation awards anticipated 10 be granted 1o relircment-
cligible emplovess under award temms el do nol conkkin a
future service requiremcnt, the Finn aocrues the estimated
cost of the awards over the course of the calendar year
preceding the gramt date, which reflects the period over which
the compensation 1s camed,

Carried Interest Compensation

The Firm genceally recognizes compensaiion expense for any
portion of carmied increst (both realized and unrealized) that
is allocated 10 employvees. For informution on perfomuance-
based Tees in the form of camied interest, which are dircetly
elated 1o camed micrest compensation sce “Revemuc
Recopnition—Carned litemres” herein

Income Taxes

Deferned tax assets and liabalities ane recorded based upon the
temporany differenges between the financial stpement and
income 1% bases of asscls and lisbilities using curremly
enacted tax rates neflect for the year imowhich e differences
are expecied to reverse, The effect of a change i tax mies on
deforred tax asscts and labilines s recogmized nincomns L
expense (benefity in the period tha includes the enactment
date. Such effects are reconded in Provision for income taxes
regardless of wihere defemed taxes weore onginally recorded.

The Firm recognizes nel deferred tax assets (o the extent that
il believes these assets are mone likely duan not 10 be realized.
In meking such a detcrmination, the Firm considers all
avinlable posive and negative evidence, includimg future
reversals of existing taxable emporary differences, projected
future traible mcome, tax planning stmicgics and results of
recent operations. When perforning the agsessment, the Firm
considers all (vpes of deferred 1ax assets in combination with
cach other, regardless of the orgin of e undedving
emporany difference. IF a deferred ax asset 15 detenmined 1o
be wnrealizable, a valuation allowance 15 esiablished. 1F the
Firm subsequemly determunes than it would be able o realize
deferred tax assets in cxcess of their net recorded amoumn, it
would make an adjustment to the deferned s asset valuation
allowance, which would reduce the proviston for income
Laxes,

The Finm recognizes lax expense associaied with Glebal
Intangible Low-Taxed Income as it s imcwrred as part of the
December 2021 Form 10K
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currenl income taxes o be paid or refunded for the curment

perod.

Lincertain tax pasitions ane recorded on the basis of a2 two-step
process, wherehy (1) the Firm determines whether it is more
Iikely than mot that the tax positions will be sustained on the
bazaz of the technicl ments of the position and (1) for those
iax positions that meet this threshold. the Finm recognizes the
largest amount of 1ax benclit that is more likely than not to be
realised vpon ultimate  setlement with e relaed tax
autleority. Inderest and penaltics related 10 unrccopnized fax
bencfits are recognized a5 a componemt of the provision for
IO xes.

Foreign Curreacics

Aggers amd liabiliies of operatiore with non-US. dollar
fumctional currencies ang transhied ot vear-end  mies of
exchange, Gains or losses resulting from trnslaimg foreign
currency Mmncial statemems, nel of bedge gains or losses and
related tax effects, are reflected in ACCT in the balance sheei.
Guins or losses resulting from remeasurement of foreign
curmency transactions are included in net income, and amounts
recognized in fle income stiement are inmslated at the mic
of exclange on e respective dime of recogmiton for cach
ameant,

Accounting Updates Adopted in 2020
Referenee Rote Reform

The Firmn has adopted the Reference Rate Refonm accounting
update, There was o impact 0 the Firm's financial
statemenls wpon initial adoption.

This accouniing updaic provides opisonal accounting relicf o
cnntics with comracts, hedge accountng relationships or
other transactions that reference LIBOR or other interest mie
benchmarks for which the referenced mte is expecied o be
discontinued or replaced. The Firm is apply ing the accounting
reliel as relevamt commct and hedge accounting relationship
medifications are made dunng the course of the reference me
reform iransieon penod. The optional reliel gencrally allows
for contract modifications. solely related to the replacement of
e reference mate 1o be accounted for as a continuation of e
existing comtmet instead of as an extinguishment of he
comtrct and would, therefore, naod Ingeer corain accounting
impacts that would etherwize be required 1t also allows
cntitics 10 clange cerain critical terms of existing hodge
accounting, refationships that are affected by refercnce e
reform, and these changes would not require de-designating
the hedge  accounting  relationship, The optional  relich
currently ends December 31, 2022,

Financial Instruments—Credit Losses

The Firm has adopted the Fimancial Instromems—Credit
Losses acooumting update.

13
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This accoanting update impacted the impainment model for
ceran fmancia]  assets measured o amorieed cost by
requiting a CECL methodology o cstimate expected credil
losses over the entire life of the financial asset, recorded at
inception or purchase. CECL replaced the incurmed loss model
previously applicable 1o loans held for imvestment, HTM
securities and other recenvables cormed al amonieed cost, such
a6 cmploves loans.

The update also climinated the concept of other-than-
temporany impaicment for AFS securitics and insicad roquines
impaimmems on AFS secoritics fo be recognized in camings
through an allowance when the fair value is less ilan
amonized cost and a credit loss exists, and through a
permanent reduction of the amoniaed cost basis when the
secuntics are expected o be sold before recovery of
amorized cosl.

Al tmansition on Janoary 1, 2020, the adoption of this
accounting standard resulted in an increase i the allowance
for credit losses of 5131 million with a comesponding
reduction m Reluned eamumgs of S100 mullion, net of tax.
The adoption impact wias  prnmanly  anobutable © a
5124 million increaise in the allowance for credit losses on
emplovee loans,

3. Acquisitions
Acquisition of Eaton Vance

On March 1, 2021, e Finm completed the acquisition of
10HF of Exton Vance Corp. ("Eaton Vance™) in a stock amd
cash transaction, which increased the scale and breadth of the
Ivestment  Management  busingss  sepment.  Total
consideration for the immnsaciion was approximaicly 587
billion, which consists of the 553 billion fair value of
6% million commen shares issued from Commen siock held in
tressury and cish of approximately $3 4 billion,

Upon acquisition, the asscis and liabilitics of Eson Vance
weere adjusted 1o their respectivie far values as of the closing
date of whe trnsaction. including e wentifiable intangible
asscts acquired. In addition, (he excess of the purclase price
over the fmr value of the net assels acquired las been
reconded as goodwill, The Gur value cstimates used in valuing
certain aoquired assets and liabilitics are bascd, in part, on
mpuls that are unobservable. For imangible assets. these
include, but are not limited o, forecasted future cash Mows,
revenue grovvih mues, attriton res and discount rtes.

OOOo0oooonOn(eossr1)
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Morgan Stanley
Eaten Vance Purchase Price Allocation
Al
March 1,

§ i el o
LEET ]
Cash and cash eguivabents 5 a3
Trading assels al far value:

Loans and fending commitmesnts adn

Irrresiments k]

Covporate aned other debil 52
Custiamset ard ol g v bies am
Goodwil 5,270
Inlangbin Asss 3,956
Oithrr ansals BAG
Total assets % 11,860
Liabilitlas
Othar sacuned frpnsngs 5 e
Drirvinr Bt lates. el BOCryend NS 2,147
Borrowings T8
Total llabasies 5 3,224
Acquired Intangible Assets

‘Weighted AE
Arpnracs Lite March 1,

5 i s Yaark) 20
Mam-amartizable

Management contracts Indefinda & 2,120
Aumortizble

Customer neiatorahips 14 14585

Traderarmes 23 n

Maragement coniracis 16 16
Tolsl ﬁllfﬁl ntangible assets 5 3,956

Eaen Vance Mel evenues of approximately 1818 mllion
and Net income of approximately $413 nullion are inchsded
i the Finn's consohidated resulis for the penod from March
I, 2021 1o December 31, 2021,

Morgan Stanley and Eaton Vance Proeforma Cembined
Financial Information {Unaudited)

5 i milignn Foral 200

Ml revinuns 5 BOO51 5§ 50 371
el irenms 15,250 10,778

The proferma financial infermation presented i the previous
table was computed by combining the historical financial
information of the Firm and Eaton Vance along with the
effects of the acquisition method of accounting for business
combinations as though the companies were combined on
Jamiary 1, 2020

The proforma informaton does sot reflect the potential
benchits of cost and funding svnergics, opponunifics 0 cam
additional revemes or othier Tactors, and, therefore, does not
represent wlal the actual Net revenues and Net income would
have been lud the companics actually boen combined as of
thiis dae,

Acquisition of E*TRADE

Cn Ogtober 2. 2020, the Firm completed the acquisition of
1% of E¥TRADE Financial Corporation (“E*TRADE”) in

87 December 2021 Form 10-K
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a stock-Tor-stock transaction, which increased the scale amd
breadih of e Wealth Managemenl business segment. Total
considertion for the transaction was approximaely $11.9
billion, which principally consists of the $11 billion fair value
of 233 million common shares ssued fom Conuncn stock
hebd in treasury, @ an exchange mtio of 10432 peor
E*TRADE common slare. In addition, the Firm issued Sencs
M and Series N peeferned shares with a fair value of
approximaicly 307 billion in exchange for E*TRADE's
exmsting preferred stock.

Upon acquisition, the asscts and labilitics of E* TRADE were
adjusied 1o iheir respective Fair values as of the closing date off
the iransaction, inchading the Mentifiable imangible assels
scquired. In additon, the excess of the parchase price ever the
Gur value of e net assets acquired has been recorded as
gocdwill. The fair value cstimates used in valning certain
acouired assels and labiliies ane based. n par. on nigpats thal
are unobservable, For intangible asscis, these include, bt are
not limited fo. forecasted future cash flows, revenue growih
raes, customer attntion res and discount rales.

E*TRADE Purchase Price Allocation

A
Cctobar 2
3 iy vy S0
Ansats
Cash and cash equivalents E 3807
Trading assols 81 lak vabse:

Loans and landing commilmenis 1.124

ImmsEmnnls s
Ervestmend securdes 48 855
Securtios borowed a1s
sk sl olhar ¢ i 12267
Loans:

Hpid fior irswarsimiont L7
Gkl 4270
nlnngitie assots’ 3283
Ot Ansats 1,451
Tedal asseis ] TE AT
Liabilities
Dopoais § A4 FriK
Securlies baned THG
Cushnma Sl oinar payabls 15 488
Db kabdbing and aors s eapees 1 i
Bomowngs 1 665
Todal labilithes ¥ Gk 0T

1. Atquied langbl mSHS ane preally epossd of 528 bon related do
curmttemit relatonshen wih & 1 it e ol 17 yaars.

E*TRADE's results are included in the Finn's consolidated
mesulis for the period from October 2, 2020 (o December 31,
2020, For this period, Met revenues were approxinuiely $600
million, and MNet income (loss) was nol misterial,

Morgan Stanley and E"TRADE Proforma Combined Financial
Informaticn {Unaudited)

5 b e 20 2015
B nveroes ] 3 § da 182
Mol oo 11453 2830

December 2021 Fonm 10K
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The proferma linancial information presented in the previons
fable was computed by combimng the lustoncal Nnancial
information of the Finm and E*TRADE along with the cffecis
of the acquisiion method of accounting  for business
combinations as hough the compames were combined on
January 1, 2009

The proforma information dees noil reflect the potential
bencfits of cost and funding synergies, opperunitics to cam
additional revemees or other factors, and, herefon, docs not
represent what the actual Net revennes and Met income would
Iuwe been had the compandes actwlly been combined as of
ihis dage.

4. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Al AL
Decombar 31,  December 31,
$ in millon Fural 20
Cash ard dus from banks £ Bagd § & Fa3
Intergsd B anng deponits wilth banks 118,30 a5 a2
Talal Cash and cash equvalents ] 127,725 § 105 54
Reslriciod cash E) 40,887 § a8 g0

For addimom] information on cash amd cash equivalems,
ill;!udiug restmcted cash, scc Note 2,
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5, Fair Values ———
-
Recurring Fair Value Measuremenis malhhm el tomt lemd eie B
Azsels and Liabilities Measured at Fair Value on 8 Recurring mﬁmim: R d Wi B R
e WS, Treasury and
i1 December 31, 2031 agency seonies 16433 aig e - 1EV5Z
5 b i Lewnl 1 Level 3 Lewtl 3 Meming'  Towl Qihar scrmneigr
Apsets at falr value ml I 2062 — —  228m
Trading assets: Corporats and ol )
T debl -  B7o7 1% - BT
agunCy securiles 545970 § 29740 § 28§ = S5TETH Corporate oquibes’ 785,181 L L] - Th482
Dbt SOvrign Crerivative and ofher conlracts:
gevaenimant
onEgations 8,041 4,533 1 =  3H2,THS Inlnrost rale 1087 145670 ks — AT
St ol it asl Credt — a0 4n —  Bson
secunboes - 1,505 13 —_ 18918 Ferign F 18 73,096 = = 73495
HAES - 1237 344 — 1.581 Equity 2448 TTABL 1456 — BDETE
ikt - — 2 Commodtyardonr 4,963 16837 1,528 ~  azams
Comorate and olher Hatting' (5,061 (241.814)  [TR4) (50,633 {204.936)
o — X 187 — oz TP P ——
Conpomie HN‘-'HJ 1,630 B 1% — U287 lhar CoriRcls e ] 00,242 00 [(S06320 34548
Dt alive and et eOnR Talal irading Latitas 114477 1556 2937 (50637 158328
Rm—— 1364 15a04B 1,153 — s S
Gl — a4 509 —  BEsd e o 140 ES1 = ™
Fonsgn sxchangs n T T 132 - TdTM Dihor secuted Fruncings - 4,730 403 _ 5133
Eipaly 1582 ELSD 251 — T3 Borrowings —  T4183 2187 —  TEMD
= T it
:TMW 1m f_,:‘:':b “:::, —— u:::;:] ™ S114.477 S1TZ482 § 6,205 S(50.633) 5242532
mmm:..e, 4720 B2950 4,308 (50833 38,154 A Dopcambae 31, 2050
(LT T35 B8 1,128 — 2708 £ i iy Lewel 1 Lewel? Level3  Molling'  Tolal
Pl commod bes - oz - — 2m Assuts ot fair value:
Total Irsdng assats’ 1EA086 180962 11,887 (5083 290122 Trading ssieta
”:’;SW’“W*“- BN A3sE - - — 102830 uﬂ?fm".’;;ﬂ Bakode S48 £ 8 %8 — §Tadiy
Securibes purchased Other soveregn
IR sysamants I = 5 5 = r S hgutore. MATH Bp4n oA - 31480
Todal assels af fair vabue S237.117 S204.77H 311,887 ${30,613) 5302058 Taleaciviicon SR = - 123
MABS — 10 — 1
Loarms and | ng
cammidmant = S58% SR — 11148
Corporate and offee
bl e L I — 335
o porate equities” 1575 1,147 85 — tizE03
D reahive g ol eonirssts:
Inbanest sal 4458 TAIE 1210 — AR ARE
Cradd - i B0 o -_ 2 B
Forign suchange 2 om0 — 0D
Exquity 113 65043 1389 —  GBAH
Commadity ard offer 1818 10,108 FTE3 —_ T4 645
Hesiting (5458} (310,534) 1,351} (62056) (380.309)
Tolal gl s
olher cordracls 1648 835945 4517 (62056) a7Es0
Irasimants” B4 24 [-r ] - 1585
Physcal commodfes - A2 — — 3.0
Talnl tading assels” BR3A06 172840 15619 [62856) 308509
Invesimenl seouries —
4638 61275 7EM — 0=
Securilies purchased
under sgreeTls ko
gl - 12 3 — 15

Total assots at fair vales 5576 760 5734007 $18496 S062056) $419.307
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Al Depaenitar 31, 2020

§ i ey Livod 1 Lowel & Lewsl 3 Meming'  Towd
Liakilities a1 fair valus
Doposi -1 - f 3335 § 126 5 - & 35N
Trading liasbites
ufa'Mt.-r mm 16204 1 - - 10205
Oratsr SOVRHGN
pEnvernmnl
oiigabions 24209 176 16 - 25963
Conporate and olher
[ - & Al - - ARG
Compombe equbes’ 6T RIZ 172 63 — 68057
Dervalive and olher contracis:
Irdesrs] fate 4TEF H3IE 528 — 18638
il - 7m0 657 - 8152
Fonige dchangs 11 B4Eah 18 - S50
Euity 124F B85 3600 — 86528
Caommadity and othar 1758 41| 104 — 12180
Halting' (5.488) (3105340  [1.351) {58105} [FTHATH)
Toka! decreatve and
othes coniracts 25 GEOBE 4647 (SB0S) 44038
Tkl rading liabiliios 104,550 105455 4731 (EI05) 15763
Sacurfios siid urnider
mm —_ &71 444 - 1,118
Ot isicarind findincsngs - 1185 516 - 11,704
B rgrwngh = BRN2T 4374 = T3,
Total liabilities &t fair
warlus S104,550 $191 043 $10.081 (58 105} S24T 6E9

MARS—Worigage- and assel-backed securted

1. For postiorn wih B same courdenparty Thel coss over e et of the Ler walue
esranchy, bolh counleiperty neing and cash oolaleral nettng ate inckeded in the
cofume Diksd “Haltng.” Postions classSed witen i snme Mvel Bl ase wilth e
BET Conrlr ity Snp rapied wilhin Ral level, For e indnemation on Gommvatve

b and hedgeg i hicla T,

. For @ Aarihar broakdosn by Type, soe the lofowng Detsd of Losrs and Londing
Commilments at Far Vialue table.

A, Fer lradey purposds, e Fom hoids of s ahor equity secunbes msusd By
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Yaluation Technigues for Assets and Liabilitics Measared
at Fair Valee on a Recurring Basis

LS. Treasury and Agency Secoritices

U8 Treasury Securilies

Waluation Technigue:

= Farr value is detenmined using quoted nurkel prices.,

WValuation Hierarchy Classificaion:

+ Level 1—as inputs are observable and in an active market
U8 Agency Securities

Waluation Techmigues:

+ Mon-callable agency-issued debt scouritics ane pencrally
vilued using quoted markel prices. and callable agency-
issud debt securitics ane vahesed by benchmarking model-
denived prices to quoted market prices and trade data for
comparable instrments.

The fair value of agency mongage pass-through pool

securnities 12 inodel-drven based on spreads of comparable

Io-be=amnownced scourilics.

+ UMOs are generlly valoed wsing quoted markes prices
and trade data adjusted by subsequent clanges in rekited
indices for comparable instniments,

Valuation Hierarchy Classification:

= Level l—on-the-mun agency isswed debi securities if
actively traded and mpuls ane observable

= Level 2—all other agency issued debd secuntics, agency
mongage pass-through pool  securitics and CMOs il
actvely tosded and inputs are observable

= Level F—in instances whene (he trading activity is limited
or inputs are unohservable

Other Sovercign Government Obligations

Waluation Techmgues:

= Fair valoe is determined using quoted prices in active
murrkets when available. Wihen not available, quoted prices
in kess active markets are used. In ihe absence of positon-
specific quoted prices, fair value noy be determingd
through benchmarking from comparable instnomems.

Valuation Hierarchy Classification:

= Level 1—if actively traded and imputs arc observable

= Level 2—if e omrket a5 less aclive oF prces are
disperscd

+ Level 3—in instances where the prices are unchservable

Statbe and Mumnicipal Sccuritics

Waluation Techmgues:

= Fair valee is determined using recenily  execuied
transgctions, markel price quotalions or pricing models
that facter in, where applicable, inferest rues, bond or
CD5 spreads, adjusted for anv basis difference between
cash and denvatnve instnuments,
‘alaation Hiemrchy Classification:

* Level 2—if value based on obscrvable markel data for
comparable insimments

= Level 3—in instances where marker data are  pot
observable
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements Morgan Stanley
MABS expecied fisture cash Mows using the Firm's best available
Valuation Teclinsques: estmnates of e key assumplions, imcluding forecasied

+ Mongage- and assei-backed socuntics mmy be valued credit losses, prepayvment rates, forward vicld curves and

based on price or spread data obtamed from observed
ragactions of independent  extermal parties such as
vendors or brokers,

When position-specific  extermal price dma are not
observable. (he fair value delermination may  requine
benchunarking 1o compamble  istruments,  andfor
analyrng expected credit fosses. defauln and recovery
rates, andfor applyving discounted cash fow techniques.
When evaluating the comparable instnmmemnts for use in the
valuation of ¢ach securily, secunly collaeral-specific
attnibartes, including payvment prionty, credit enlencement
levels, tpe of collateral, delinquency rates and loss
seventy. are considered. In addition. for RMBS borrowers,
FICO scores and the level of documenation for the loan
are considered.

Markel standard cash Mow models may be wilized 1o

discount mics commensurate with the nisks imolved or a
methodoloey e utilizes the capital structure and credin
spreads of recent comparable securnitizion IRMnsictions,
Fair value of equity margin loans 15 detemuned by
discountimg Tulure imerest cash Mows, mel of potential
lesses resuliimg from large downward poice movemenis of
the underying mergim loan collateral. The potential losses
are modeled wsing the margin lean rale, which is
calibrated from market observable CDS spreads, implicd
debt vields or volatility metrics of the loan collmeral.

Waluation Hiemrchy Classification;
= Level 2—if value based on observable market data for

comparsble insirments

* Level 3—in instances where prices or significam spread

inputs are unobservable or iF the comparability assessment
invalves significant subjectivity

madel the speafic collateral composition and cash flow
stiscture of cach transaction. Kev inpals 1o (these inodels
arc markel spreads, forccasied credit losses, and defanh
and prepay ment ries for cach assel category.

* Valuation levels of MBS and CMBS indices are wsed as
an additvonal dita point for benchmarking purposes or 1o
price outright imdes positions,

Corporate and Other Debt
Clowprrale Howreds
WValuntion Techmgues:
= Fair wvalue is detcrmined using recently  xcculed
{ransactions, muarkel price cquotations, bond spreads and
CDS spreads obtained from independent external partics,
Valuation Hicrarcln Classification: such as vendors and brokers, adjusied for any  basis
s Level 2—ifl m];.c based on observable market data for dufference between cash and denvative instruments.
comparable instruments = The spread dma wsed are for the same msunty as the
+ Level 3—if exteral prices or significant spread inpuls are bond. IF the spread data do not reference the issuecr, then
unobsenable or if the comparability assessment imolves data that reference comparable issuers are used. When
significaml  subjectivity  related 1o propeny  type posiion-specific external price dafa are ot observable.
diﬁﬂmlﬂﬂ.f}ﬂh jh“sl p:d'um!_lgrm urmlwrjmu!s fﬂi.l' value is d:ll:ﬂm]'l:‘d bascd on cither I:lcn::hm:!lklng o
comparable instrumenis or cash Mow models with vield
curves, bond or single-nune CDS spreads and recoven
rates or loss given delul as sigmficant inpuis.
aluation Hierrchy Classification:
= Level 2—if value based on observable market data for
comparable insirments
* Level 3—in instances where prices or significant spread
inpuls are unsbservable or i the comparability assessment
ivalves spgnilicant subjectivity
Le
Valuation Techmgues:
= The Finm bolds cash CDOs that vpecally reference a

Loans and Lending Commitments

Waluation Technmgues:

= Fair valug of corporate boans is determined using receinly
cxeonwted  tmnsactions, markel price quotations  {(where
observable), implied yields from comparable debt, market
observable CDS spread levels obtained from indeperdent
extermal parties adjusied for any basis differcnce between
cash and deavative imstruments. along with propaictary
valuation models and defaull recovery analysis where such
trsncions and quodalions are unobsevable,

+ Fair value of contingent corponse lending commitments is

determined by using exeenied imansactions on comparable
loans and the anticipated market prce based on pricing
indications from syndicatc banks and customers. The
valwstion of loans and lending comnutments also takes
i pecount fee income thal is considencd an attnbue of
the coniraci.

Fair valee of modgage loans 5 determined  osing
observable prices based on transaciional data or third-pary
pricing for comparable instruments. when available.

Where position-specilic extermal prices are mol observable,
Fair value is estimated based on benclmarking (o prices
and rates observed in the primary: market for simibar loan
or borrower types or based on ihe present value of

|

tranche of an underdying synthetic porifolio of single-naume
CDS spreads collateralized by corporate bonds (CLN) or
cash porfolio of ABSMoans (“assel-backed CDOs™),
Credit correlation, a primary input used to determine the
fair value of CLNS, is usually uncbservable and derved
using a benchmarking technique, Other model inputs such
as credit spreads. including collateral spreads and imernest
rales, are typically observable.

Asset-backed CDOs ane valued based on an evalumion of
the market and model inpul pammeters sourced Trom
comparable instnanents as indicated by market activity,
Each  assct-backed CDO o position 5 eviluated
independently  waking  imo  consideration  available
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comparable  nmarket  levels,  wnderlving  collatcral
perfomance and prcing, deal structuncs and hgudity.

Valuation Hicrarchy Classification:

* Level 2—when cither comparable muirkel mnsackons ac
observable or credit correlation mput 15 ingigmicant

* Level 3—when cither comparable market imnsactions arg
unsbsenable or the credil cormelation mput is significint

Fagnity Comracts with Financing Featwres
Valuation Technigues;

* Fair value of cemain cquity comracts, which are mo
classificd as OTC denvatives becawse ihey do not meet the
et imvestment criferia, is determined by discounting
future imerest cash Nows, inclusive of ke estimated value
of the embedded optionality, The valiation uses the same
dervative pricing models and valuation technigques as
described under “OTC Denvative Condracis™ herein

Valuation Hiermrchy Classification:

+ Level 2—when the contmact is valued using observable
inputs or where the unobservable input is nod decmed
sigmilicam

+ Level 3—when the comtmetl @5 valuwed using  an
unobservable input that is decmed significant

Corporate Equitics

Vahustion Technegques:

+ Exclunge-traded equily secuntics are generally  valwed
based on quaeted prices from the exchange.

« Unlisted equity securities are gencrally valued bused on an
assessment of cach secunty, considenng rounds of
financing and third-pary  transactions, discounted cash
Mow anabyvses and market-based information, including
comparable irmnsaciions, trading multiples and changes in
market outlook, among other faclors.

« Listed fund units are generally marked 10 the exchange-
traded price if actively tmaded. or 1o NAV i not, Unlisted
Tund units are generally marked 10 NAY.

Valuation Hicmnchy Classification

* Level l—actvely traded exchange-irded sconntics and
Tund units

s Level 2—if not actively imaded, mputs are observable or il
undergoing a recent Ma A evenl or corporate aclion

+ Level 3—if mo actively traded. inputs are unobservable or
irundergoing an aged M& A cvend or corporie action

Derivative and Other Contracts
Exchange-Traded Derivative Contracls

Valuation Techniques:

+ Exclunge-iraded denvatives ihal are actvely irsded are
valued based on quoted prices from the exchange.

+ Exclange-traded derivaiives that are nod actively iraded
are valued using the same technigues as those applicd 1o
OTC denvatives as noted bebow.

Vatuation Hicrarcly Classification:

* Level l—when actvely traded

+ Level 2—when nod actively iraded

OFC Derivative Corntracts

Valuation Technbgques:

« OTC denivative contracts include forward, swap and
option comrects  relied o0 merest  mes.  foreign
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currencics, credit standing of reference entitics, equity
prices o conimodily prces.

= Depending on the product amd (he terms of the tmnsaction,
the fair value of OTC derivagive products can be modeled
using A seres of wechmques, wcluding  closed-form
amalviic formulps, such as (he Black-Scholes option-
pricing model. simuldion meodels or a2 combinstion
thereol. Many pricing models do not cntml  matenal
subjectivity  as the methodologics employved do  not
necessitme sigmficant judgment since model mnpas may
be observed Trom actively quoted markets, as is the case
for gencric imlcrest rale swaps, many cquity. commaodity
and foreign currengy oplion comrts, and cerain CDS, In
the case of more established derivative products, the
pricing models used by the Firm ane widely accepted by
ihe financial services indusiny.

+ Mone complex OTC derivative products are tvpically less
ligpuid and require mene judgment in the implementation off
the valuation technique since dircct (reding activity or
quedes are unobsenable. This includes cortisin types of
interesl me deavatives wills both volatility and correlation
exposure,  oquity, commodity or  forcign - curmency
derivatives Ut are either longer-dated or include exposure
1o multiple underlvings, and credin denvatives, including
CDS om cenain mongage- or assel-backed sccuritics and
basket CDS. Where required inputs are unobservable,
relationships o observable data points, based on hastorical
anfor implied observabons, mav be emploved as a
technigque 1o cstimate the model input values, For Turther
information on  the valetion tcchniques for OTC
denvative products, see Nole 2.

Valuation Higrarchy Classification:

* Level 2—when vilued using observable inpuls or where
the unebservable inpat is not deemed significam

= Level 3—if an unobservable inpui is deemed sigmificant

Investments

Watluation Techmigues:

= lovestmenis include direct ivestments in equily Secunlics,
as well as varous investment management funds, which
mchede  mmvestments made o connection with certmn
cinglovee deferred compensation plins.

* Exchange-ineded direct cquily investimenis arc gencrally
vitlwed based on quoted preces from the excliange.

= For direct imwvestments, imtially, the trmnsaction price is
generally considercd by the Finm as the exit price and is iis
best estinure of G valoe.

+ Afler imitial recognition, in determining the fair vilue of

non-cclunge-tmded imernally and externally managed

funds. the Finn generally considers e NAY of e fund

provided by ihe fund manager to be il best cstimate of

fair value. These investments are included i the Fund

Imcresis table in the "Net Asset Value Measurements”

section herein

For non-gxcluange-traded imvestmems entler held darcctly

or held within intcrally managed funds, fair value after

initial recopnmiion 15 based on an assessment of cach

underlying investment, considening rounds of financing
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and third-pary transactions, discounted cash Mow analyscs
and market-based nformation, including comparble Fimi
transactions, trading multiples and changes in market
oatlonk, amang other factors,

Valuation Hierarcly Classification:

+ Level I—if actively traded

* Level 2—when not actively traded and valued bused on
rounds of Nnancing or third-pany ransaclions

* Level 3—when noi actively iraded and rounds of
financing or third-pany ransactions are not available

Physical Commoditics
Valuation Technsgues:.
« Fair wvalue i5 determined wsing  obscrvable  inputs,
including broker quotations and published indices.
Valuation Hicrmrely Classification:
* Level 2—valued using ebservable inputs

Investment Securitics—AFS Securitics

Valuation Teclnsgues:

« AFS sccuritics are composed of ULS, govermment and
agency secunbies (e, US. Treasury secunlies, agency-
issued debt, agency mongage pass-through secuntics and
CMOs), CMBS, ABS, state and municipal securities, and
corporate bonds.  For  funher mformation  on  the
determination of fair value, refer o the comesponding
asset/liabaliy Valuation Techmique descnbed hercin for
the same instrements.

Valuation Hicrarchy Classafication:

+ For further mnformation on the determnation of valwimon
hierarchy classilication. see the coresponding Valumion
Hierarchy Classification described herein

Deposits

Waluaton Techmoques:

* The Firm issucs FDIC-imsured cenificaies of deposit that
pay cither fixed coupons or that have repayment (enms
linked 1o the pedormmnce of debt or equily securnlics,
indices or curmencics, The far value of (hese cenificates of
deposit s delermined  wsing  valuation  models  that
mcorporale  observable inputs  referencing  adentical or
comparable  securitics,  including  prices (o which t(he
deposits are linked, inferest mte vield curves, option
volaulity and currency rates. equity prices. and e impact
of the Firm's own credit spreads., adjusicd for the impact of
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spread over the QIS rmte for a specific collateral e (which
refers o the e applcable 1o a specilic vpe of secunly
pledged as colkeral),

Valuwation Hicrarchy Classificiion:

= Level 2—when the valuation inputs are observable

* Level 3—in instances where an unobservable inpal is
decmied sigmificzm

Other Secured Financings

Valumtion Technigques:

= Onher secuned Ninancings are composed of shon-dated noles
securcd by Comporate cquitics, agrecments o repurchase
Plwvsical commoditics, the liabilities relited to sales of
Loans amd lemding commitmems accoumted for as
linancings, and secured commcts that ase mot classified as
OTC denvatives becouse they fml nel imvestment crlema.
Fer furler mlommation on the determunation of Gor value,
refer 1o the Valuetion Technmigues descnbed herem for the
comesponding  instruments,  which  are  the  colladeral
refenenced by the other secured financing liability.

Walustion Hicrarchy Classification:

* For further mformation on the determmation of valuation
hierarchy  classification. see the WValuation Hicrarchy
Classification described hercin for the  comesponding
instamments, which are the collateral referenced by the other
secivred Ninancing liabilite,

Borrowings

Walumtion Technigues:

= The Firm camies cemain bomowings al i value tat ang
primarily composed of: instnunemts whose payments and
redemption values are linked 1o the pedonmance of a
specific index, a basket of stocks, @ specific cquity securily,
4 commodity, a credht exposure or basket of credit
exposures, and instruments with vanous interest sue-rekied
features, including sicp-ups, siep-downs and #cro coupons,
Also mcluded are umsecured contrmcts which are ot
classificd as OTC denvainves because they  Faal  men
imvestment eriteria.

Fair value is determined using valuation models for the
derivative and debt portions of the instroments, These
midels incorporate observible inputs referencing identical
or comparable sccunties. including prices 1o which the
instmemeents are linked, niercsi mle vield curves. opltion
volatlity and currency rates, and commodily or egquily

the FOMC insumnce. which is based on vanilla deposit PrICEs.

issuAnCe mEles. * Independent, extermal and traded prices are considered, as
Valuation Hierrely Classification: well as the impact of the Firm's own credit spreads, which
* Level 2—when valuation inpuis are observable are based on observed secondary bond merket spreads.
¢ Level 3—in instances where an unobservable ingut s Walumtion Hicrarchy Classtl"_m.'muu: y

deemed significant + Level 2—when valued using observable inputs or where the

unobservable ingut is not decmed significant
Seeuritics Purchased under Agreements to Resell and * Level 3—in instances where an unobservable input 15
Securitics Sold uader Agreements to Repurchase decmed significant
Valuation Technigques:
+ Fair value 15 compuled using a standard cash flow
discounting melhodology.
* The inputs o the valuation inglude contractual cash flows

and collmeral fumding spresds. which are the incremental

w3 December 2021 Form 10K

335/413



OOOo0oooonOn(eossr1)
Ogoooood
Table of Coments
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements Morgan Stanley
Rolforward of Level 3 Assels and Liabilities Measured at Fair § in miSons 2021 030 019
Value on & Recurring Basis Corporate squitios.
§in milfons 2021 2020 2018 Baginning batance 5 5§ a7 % -]
.. Tressury snd sgancy sacurllies Fieaiized and unmakzed gaing (0sses) # {55} {8}
Basgireing baknon 5 L 22 % 54 Punchasss 12 aE ag
FReabzed and unmealized gairs (osses) - 1 1 Sabis 1) it 1271}
P — L = aE Met bansios 4 5 349
e L N Erntin takars s 155 86§ o
Mol ransders - B 1
Erding hatars 5 3 E e = Lireaalized gaens (nsss) 3 o BT ] 1
Unnealized gains {iosses) 5 — § — % 4 A
(ther soversign governmant obilgations Baginnlry belance § b ¥ a3 FAH
Blaghicirg bkl t it st a7 Riesiized #nd unraakzed gaing flosses) 2 2 78
Fnabind are unealized gors (oases) ) - i Purchassy 2% Ll o
Purchasss 186 S5 ¥ Salrs 115 (905} [CAH]
Sales [1a2y 2 L] N nnstins [19) 117} 24
Mel lransiors L) — {10 Ending halance § 1125 § B8 §  e=8
Ersirg balaroe 3 i3 268§ 5 Wrrnalidod gans [losss| § 1 % [is) 3 &7
Unneaired gains fiosses) 5 — § — § {3 Irivestment securiiies—AFS
State and manicipal sacuritiss Beginning balanon § 2B § et —
By iy Bafanda z - 1 % g Prealized and unreakzod gains [osses) 4] 5 —
Furthases 4 —_— - Purchases” _ 2R -
Saies (L] - (AL LH] Sales [203) - -
Mol ransters 13 i1 - Met Eanstors’ 12,987 — -
Ersirg balards 5 13 § — § 1 Ending balance 5 — & Iadd § -
Wnriaiisd Gairs {Kisana) 5 — § — § — Urrealized gains (osses) ] — 5 5 35 -
MABE Securithes L d urar agr o resell
Beagy rrineg baanen $ 322 5 438 3 354 Boginning balance 5 LR - =
FRoalzed and unmalized gairs (osses) 1 ] (16) el ranstne e] A —
Purchases 254 175 132 Ending balance £ — & 33 -
Sales (215) (244) {175 Urrealiced gains [losses) [ — 3 — 3 —
Baftermwnis = - (44) Mt diprieatives: Inferest rate
B Iranmsiers 1.1 15 187 Baigiruniirngy il £ gz § vir§ gnm
Encirg batancs 5 45 325 a4 Fewiized and unrankaed gains osses) b 7] (950} 17
Uniealized gains josses) 5 DopF 4w § (5T Purchases &7 174 58
Loans and kending commiiments [rrep—— 1521 144} (16}
Bexgrring balance § 5758 § 5073 § 6870 ey —— 5 an |
et () mn s s
Saies (26084 (51 (4288 fn::li'-i talance $§ T § Gk 3 TV
Semements 2680 (2196)  (2.200) e s [ 5k pas o7
[TPrp—— (513 45 (6i3) Mol Gty aags orici
Ersirg balincs 5 3806 & 5750 § 5073 Baginning balance $ 493 imF A
Unredbred gauns foasas) 5 Ms M3 m Pty i) gt e ) L ) S
Corporate and cther dob Purchases 1% G 144
Blasgy g Balandsy £ 3435 5 1308 3 1076 IssaantEs (48] (112} {190}
Biralzod and unealized gains (ossos) {140} 318 418 Soltemonts E5] 1 111
Purchases snd onginalions 1,358 2623 5 Ml Fandlam. [ L] 43
Sl [TES) PE1T) (T2%) Ending balance 5 e 5 i 5 174
Sekterrants - (311) n Urrpalzed gans (losses ) $§ 122 5 Mminys (7
ol ranstors” (1,882 Ed 112}
Ending balare 3 1807y & 3435 § 1006
Unmeaized gains fosses) 3 (255 311§ il

December 2021 Form 10K

L]

336/413

EDINETOOOO



OOOo0oooonOn(eossr1)
Ogoooood
Tablg of Coments
Naotes to Consolidated Financial Statements Morgan Stanley
£ iy e 2021 2020 2018 5 i s 2021 00 019
Mt darivatives: Foresgn sxchang Critver secwned Snancings
Begrring balarcn £ &5 (s f Bajinning balancs § ME § WA s A
Raatzad and uniedlized gairds (Rsses) 111 156 (05) Risalized aind unmaaksed lsses (ghinsg) 1n 1 5
Furchanes 2 F] - Ismannres 449 v ] =
isauances LE - - Seltments e @ (L]
Sulbwrronty 18 {7 7 Mt bansior e s vt
Mel iransters T (511 1k Ending balance § 403 5 516 % 1
Endirg balancy 3 525 615 (3 Ureoalzed loss (gars) 5 [EF 23 5
Unrealized gains fiosses) 5 (EHS  WM5 (18T Borrowings
Hut durivatives: Equity Begining batance § 4374 § 4088 § 2808
Bog rring bwancs % (22300 % (1884) 5 (1485) Restiized] #nd unreabzed ksies (ghns) (5% 0 TR
Realzed and unfealzed gairs (osses) kT 72 (26 Insanoes v 60 1981
Purchases 0 178 158 Sollments (448 (461} {5esap
Halances (443} (T3 (3 Med banatars” 12,347 (437} 167TTh
SeRemanis 160 [354) 43 Ending balance § 2,457 § 4374 § 4088
ol trangters” 1,158 260 7 Urrnalizod losses (i) $§ (M4 % 1 %5 A
Ersirg balarcn 5[5 5 (2231) % (1684 Portion of unmealized icsses (pains ) recooded
Unieaiized gains (ossea) 5 (O0nS (s (1) N R AL B s
Het derivatives: Commodity and other 1, el ransders i 2021 refinct the trarede in tha Ferd quarier of $385 meton of eouty
Bagirring bainey 5 1708 § 1612 § 2052 — :ﬁf&*&fm‘iﬂﬁmﬂ:wﬁ“ﬂ’;
Realzed and unrealized gairs (osses) 529 251 3 asuity margn ioan ransfers of S85T miloh nlo Level 3 in P G quarter and
[ —— M Y 152 $T07 mior out of Leviel 3 i T newond quarter, both diven By changes in B
sigrdfcance lovel of the margin Wan rabe ingut Deaed o0 dranges m Bguaity
IS5 UGS 1] (57) {82 cofdions.
e Wy % NI et P b e e 2t
Blipl Irnriiern [12]] (k1] I8 Bomowings from Lol 3 o Lovel 2 a3 fa unctsenvabie npuls wern nof sigrdicant
Etifing bralervon 5 1529 § 1708 3 1617 1ﬁumhwr$rrnnmnnmmmnamum
s g Pt im0 % orci P, Purhures, o APS, et sotes 1 2000 swa 5
Daposity curtatn anqursd as par of the ETRADE framsacon. For sddfanal informalion
Bagnring baanog £ 126 % 1m0 % 7 on ihe soqusiion of E"TRADE, soa Kote 3.
e Criehond oo (=) =B P Levdl 3 instumens may be hedged with instruments
A o " i clrlssmed in Level | and Level 2: 'T‘h-: _rcatm_;d_nnd unrealized
rprT——re e pro ) gains or losses for assels and _hahllllbcs within the Level 3
Erira ! ot i % calegory p@mmﬂ in the previous. tables do not reflect _|I|c
Urimiied anes (gana] y —% %: B ::i:lamd realieed and unrcalized gains or Iusai_:s an Im:igmg
Hordertvative tradie Habis instruments that have been c:lz.rssﬂ'iud by il Firm within the
Binginning balanes ¥ ToOAT CsEa. W Level 1 andfor Level I catepories.
“"“‘“":""’""“”""’""""""" ::: :;:: :x The unrealized gains (losses) during the period for asses and
— - = lmlbllltu:s 1.1.-|th:|_n he Lc'l.'cila catggony may |||f:l|.1d¢ changes in
e - : - fair value during the period Ihs_|l were atinbutable to bath
e e = = nhscn-_ahin :tl_ad unobservable inputs. _Tmal mqhmd qhd
Frar T lmrl:nlm:q gains {losses) are primanly included in Trading
e o rener T Teveres i the ncone statcmenl.
Bapousttien sold underagrasments fo mepurchans Additionally, in the previous tables, consolidations of VIEs
Blagiing Idaraees 3oy -5 - are included in Purchases, and deconsolidaions of VIEs are
Roakzed ard unnlined lossis (gans) 1 {27y — inclnded in Sciflements.
S uaNCRs —_ i) =
Blel ransiers 208 1 oo
Ersdrg Balaris £ &5 % 444 5 i,
Unnealized iosses (gans) 5 1% (271 § =
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Table of Coments
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements Morgan Stanley
Significant Unobservable Inputs Used in Becurring and By ¥ R e}
NMI‘EI.IH‘EM?. Level 3 Fair Value Measurements £ 0 ealleang, awoel gty &l Degarmbsr 31, 2021 Al Decomber 31, 2020
Credit 5 [TH )
Valuatien Technigues and Unebeervable Inputs Crodit dolal
Batanc | Rangs [Frarage') [ 7 points T gt
§ i el a8 e £ Decombar 10, Bid1 Ab Dcarntsse 51, 000 Bard oo e 1o B3 polnds (46 points) [ 1o BS pords (47 points)
Anants sl Fair Value on & Recurring Basis: Crndil spemad 14 to 47T bips (68 bpe) 20 80 435 boa (T4 bps)h
Othar acvareign Funding spenad 15 o 433 bps (55 bas) 5 1 190 s {85 bps)
abiEgations 5 21 5 FEE Correlation mode:
Comparabie prcng: Cradit comelation LY 2T Ba 4% (32%)
Bond price 100 1a 140 points {120 Forslgn sxchange” & 52 § 61
polnts] 106 poinls Oplion moded:
MABS % 144 % ) )
et : I« FXcomelabon &% bo S6% [S5% 1 84%)  55% ko 5% (0% ) 50%)
i pricing:- 5 B wolaliily show 9% bo TO% [B4% FBI%) 0% bo 340% 52% 1 50%}
B"'"’ﬂ"‘“ - Jo. 90 pobets {8 il O bo 80 poinla (31 poinied IR curve A% 80 T [2% 1 %) 5% I 8% (7% /%)
itmeris Foreign exchange
e 3N % Sy ity e A% to W AN TN PR 0 28 (3% 1%
Bllargin loan moded Cort
Margn boan il 1% to 4% [X%] T I 5% (%) proian ity SO% bo 95% (4% 195%) 509 b0 95% (B3N / 53%)
Comparatie prcing Euity’ § [345) § [2:231)
Loan price B0 ta 104 pairia (97 75 40 TOF peinis (93 Oplian modid:
e pobnts] i) Equety veiataly B4 1o B0% [24%) 16% 80 97% (3%
firl 4 il
::: 5 1ama % e o 4% 10 O% (1%} 3% 10 0% [4%)
Somparabia pidng: " Eqisty cormetation 5% b B9% (13%) 24% 8o 6% (T4%)
Bord price 80 50 183 polut 160 N ok i F corretalion B te 3T, (42%) T 1oy BO0%% (-16%)
Discounted cash fow: IR cormintion 13% o 30% [15%)  -13% bo AT% (% [ 20%)
Loas given gl 549 do BA% (629 /54%)  40% o B3 (46% / 40%) Gomencdityand " g 300
i Optan mod:
E ity vilatibty WM 16% 1o 31% [19%) Bl Sl
Corporate equities 5 115 § & prica S 1o 5263 (£39) per MWh  5-1 8o $157 (£28) per MWh
Comparable pricng: I‘Jn'ﬂn'lnddpw!ﬂ:hiry A% 10 3858% [23h) B% b0 1HI% {109%)
Equity price 100% 100% Cross-commodity
; 3 o e ) 43% 1o 100% [B4%) 43% o B0% (02%)
Discounted cash fow: Liabilities at Falr Value on a Recurring Basis
WALE 1% to 16% [15%) % o 1% (159 :"’“"‘, e ’ LU Lo
Ext mutipie Bto 17 tmes (12 times) 710 17 tmes (12 tres) ]
Nikhat e Equity velalisly ™ T% bo 2% (B%)
EBITOA muliple Bto 25 tmes (10 times) B to 32 Ures {17 bmas) m;','h“m"h
Comparabie prcng
[ a8 &3
Eilly price A% o 108% (%) 45% I 100% (515 ,_“"‘ e $ 5
Invgatment L g
sacurlties—AFS & - % 2 854 Equsty price 100% 1005
Comparatie prcing: S-uulrﬂ.:mldd
Bond price e ST b W07 pednls (101 1o repurchass {4 651 & 444
s e — Edinks] Déscosnted cash fiow:
' Funding sproad 11 T 1 107 1o 1 1
' e s 08 § - wuﬂm'::u 2na 127 bps (120 bpa) 07 i 127 Bon (115 bps)
Chyatia Priosded financings 5 403 § 516
IR valatity shira % o TH% (64% J XS] 0% o MR (8% ¢ S Drscenaesiod cagh fow:
IR Curn COmRAton  02% to 6% (I JBAY) S0 o DS (AT | B Funding sersad s 11 bps [111 bps)
Bond voabibey 5% 10 2% (1% %) 6% Io B4 (13% / 139%) Cormparabie preing:
infation volalitty 2% 1o G5, (AA% S B0%)  FEOL U BB (5% / A3N) Loan grice 30 te 100 peints (83 30 1o 101 ponts (56
IR curve 4% 1% pestnkal poo)
Deccmber 2021 Fomm 10-K 4y
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Balance | Hange [Averaga')

5 rlinst wnregd Al Decombar 38, 2031 AE oot 31, 0

Borrowings: 5 2,157 § 4,374
Dption modet

Exgusty weolatility T4 to BEW (20%) % o B [N

fktbrmw A% 1o 0% (0% 2% o O (%)

Equity comulaticn A% o B4 (B1%) FT% 1o G (TR

Equity = FX

Comeation «55% o 25% [-30%) ST2% 80 13% (-24%)

IR - FX Cormslatnn e bo B [<5% 1 5% «20% b 6% -B% § £
Discountsd cash Rra:

Loss green defaull S 1o BAY (20 | 54%) )
Honroecwring Fair Value Measusremaent
Loans. H 1576 § 3134
Comparabe loan mods

sl aphed 108 to BES bps | 284 bps) 36 1o G35 Inps {335 bps)
Comparabie pricing:

Lo prioe &0 1o BO poiria (61 A
Wanshouse moded:

Credt sproad 182 1o 446 bps (376 Bps] 200 o 413 bys {368 bos)
Comparabie pricng

Bl Pric L B to 58 bos (54 bps)
Poiris—Porosntage of pat
R—rlyost rile
FX—Ferpgn escha

L

1, A snghe amount 8 Mﬂumwlmwmlnﬁl A f agnibcan
diffargnoy Babwoees B B, Amcunt fegen]
mmmnmmmmmﬂmmmuma-
O Sk

2 Inchuses danvalie conimols wilth maoBipis rsks [ie., hybnd produds)

The previous table provides information on the valwtion
technigues, significant unobscrvable inputs, and e fmnges
and averages for cach major ccgory of assets and liabilitics
measured ai fair value on a recuring and nonrecurning basis
with a significant Level 3 balance, The level of aggregation
and breadth of products cause the range of nputs o be wide
and not evenly distnbuted across e inventony of Riancial
insimiments, Further, the mnge of unobscrvable inputs may
differ across Gims i the hnancial services industre becanse
of diversity im the tvpes of products included in cach firm's
inventory, Crenemlly, there are no prediciable relationships
between muluple sigmficant unobservable inputs atnbutable
1o a given valuation technigque,

During 2021, there were no significant revisions made 1o the
descnplions of the Finn's significant unebservable inputs.

An increase  (decrease) 1o the  following  significam
unebsenvable inputs would generally resuldt ina igher (lower)
Faar value.

* Comporable Hond o Loan Price. A pricing inpul wsed
when prices Tor the identical instmument are not available,
Significant subjoctivity may be involved when fair value is
determined wsing pricing dia available for comparable
instrumends. Valuation using comparable insirumenis can
be done by caleulating an mmplied vield {or spread over a
liguid benchnwrk) from the price of a comparable bond or
Toan, then sdjusting that vield (or spread) o denve a value
for the bond or loan. The sdjustment 1o yveeld (or spread)y

EDINETOOOO
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Morgan Stanley

should account for relevant differences in the bonds or
loans such as matunly or eredil quality, Allematively, a
price-ig-price basis can be  assumed  between  ihe
comparable instrument and the bond or loan being valued in
order to establish the value of the bond or loan.

Comparable Fguity Price. A pnoe derved from exquity
raises, share buvbacks and extemal bid levels, eic. A
discoumt or preminm may be included in the fair valne
estimate.

Cortingency Probabilite. Probability associaed with ihe
realization of an undedving cvent upon which the value of
an assel is confingenl

ERITDA Muftiple i Muitiple. The wtio of Enlerprise
Value 1o EBITDA, where enterpnse value i the ageregate
value of aquity and debt minus cash and cash equivalents,
The EBITDA multiple reflecis the value of ihe compamy in
terms of its full-vear EBITDA, whercas the exit multiple
reflects the valwe of the company in terms of ats full-vear
expected  EBITDA w0 exit.  Eiher multiple  allows
comparison  between  companigs  from an operational
perspective a8 the cffect of capital stmecture, Lecition and
depreciationamanianion is excluded.

An  increase  {decrcase) to  the  following  significant
unobse rvable inpuls would genemlly resull ina lower (highar)
Fxir value.,

o Casi-Simthetic Hasis. The measune of the price differential
between cash hnancal mstruments amd therr syviathetic
derivative-based equivalents. The range disclosed in e
previgus table significs the mumber of poings by which the
svmbetic bond equivalent price s logher tan the quoed
price of the underlying cash bonds,

Funding Spread. The cost of bomrowing defined as e
incrementdl spread over the OIS mie for a specific
collateral rate {which refers o the rate apphicable 10 a
specific tvpe of security pledged as collateral),

Lose Civen Defoulr,. Amounl expressed a8 a percentage of
par that is the expected loss when a credit cvent occurs,

Margin Lean Rate. The anmoalized mte that reflects the
possibility of losses as 2 result of movements in the price of
the unclerly ing meargin loan collateral. The rate is calibrated
from the discount me, credii spreads andfor volatilibe
MEASUres.

WACC, WACC represents the theoretical rate of retum
required io debi and equity imvesiors. The WACC is used in
a discoumed cash flow model that calculates the valwe of
the equity. The model assumes dlen the cash fow
assumplions, including projections, e fully reflected in the
current couity value, while the debt o equity ratio is held
constnl.

o7 December 2021 Form 10K
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An imcrease  (decrcascl fo the  following  significan
unabservable ihpuls would generally resultl in an impact 1o the
fair value, but the magnimde and direction of the impsact
would depend on whether the Firm is long or shon the
CXPOSIIE.

« Correlation. A pricing inpul where the pavolT s doven by
mere than one underlying risk. Correlation is a measure of
the relationship beween the movement of two vanables
(i, Tow the clange i one vanable nflwences a clamze in
1l other variable).

Crecis Speead. The credit spread reflects the additional net
vield an investor can cam from a secunty with more credit
risk relative to one with bess credil risk, The credin spread of
a particular scourity is ofien quated in relation 1o the vicld
on a credin rsk-free bencluark secunty or reference rae,

Inierest Rate Cureve. The term strociure of intercst mabes
(relationshap  between  interest mates and  the tme 1o
maturity ) and a mearket’s measure of future inferes! ratcs o
the e of obsenation. An interest mte curve is used to sel
intgrest rate and forgign exclange derivative cash Mows and
is a pricing input used in the discouming of amy OTC
denvative cash Mow.

Palatifitv. The measure of varability in possible retums for
an imstrument given low inuch el instrament chamges in
villug over time. Volamility is a pricing input for options.
and, generally, the lower the volaility, the less nsky the
optione. The level of vokatlity used an the viduation of a
particular option depends on g number of factors, including
the mature of the nsk undedving tat option, the enor and
the strike price of the option

Fadaufity Skew, The measure of the difference in implicd
vobuility for options with identical underdiers and expiry
danes but with differem strikes.

December 2021 Form 10K
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Morgan Stanley
Net Asset Value Measurcments
Fund Interasts
AL Decamber 31, 2021 Al Docanber 31, 2020
Car
5 i mlBcns Eﬂi" Commiment  Vad.  Commimant
Private equity 5 492 § 615 § 2367 § 644
Ryl wslals 2064 248 1,403 136
Hexige' 191 2 59 i
Total ] 4747 § BEE & gx & ]

1, ivesiments 0 Redge funds may be subiedl fo edal petod loc-up o gabe
prowisons, which resingt an imeestor from withdarsng fom e und Genng a
cortnin indal panod of resliel e redemphon BOUNT O By FeIEMpEON dak.
Oy

Amounts in the previous table represem the Finn's carving
vitlue of general and bmited parnership imerests i fund
imvesiments, a5 well as any related perdformance-based income
in the form of camed interest, The canving amounts ang
measured based on the NAY of the fund 1aking imo account
the distrbution terms applicable to the nterest held This
same measurement applies whether the fund investmems are
accounted lor under the equity metlod oF Gir value.

Private Equily. Funds thint pursue multiple strategics,
including leveraged buvowts. venre capital, infrastniciure
erowlh capital, distressed wnvestments and mezzmne capatal,
I addition, the Monds may be streciured with a focus on
specific goographic regions,

Real Fxrare.  Funds that invest in real esiaic assets such as
comumercial office bubdings, retwl propenics, mulin-famly
residential properies. developments or hotels. In addition, ihe
fumds may be stmectured with a focus on specific peographic
TEEHns.

Investments in private oquity and real estate funds gencrally
are nol redeenmble due 1o the closed-end mwure of ese
fumds, Instead, disinbutions from cach Tund will be receved
as the underlying investments of the funds are disposed and
menelized.

Hedpe, Fumds thal pursug various investment siral¢gies,
including long-shor cquity, fived income/oredit, cvent-dmven
andd multi=strateiy .

See Note 15 for information regarding gencral partner
guarantees, which include potential obligations 1o relum
performance foe disiributions previeusly received. See Node
2% for information regarding camed imerst a onsk of
neversal,

Honredeemable Funds by Contractual Maturity

C-ln)-lnq Valus at December 31, 204

£ in mlliand Privale Equity Real Estale

Liess than & yoans 3 a2 3 403

B0 ymawrn 1,163 1,283

Chver 1 yaars 47 TR

Tatal 5 2432 § 2064
98
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MNonrccurting Fair Valoe Measurcments

Assels and Liabilities Measured at Fair Value on a
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Morgan Stanley
Financial Instruments Not Measured at Fair Value

Al Decasne 31, 2021

MNanrecurring Basis IFair Vb
£ in sl Valm Lownl 1 Lovel 2 Leweld  Toladl
Discambar 31,
i o 1.-mif Lawwnd : mw . '
n Cash and cach equnalents § 427,735 $127.735 § — & — F12T. 735
VTR S e
Loans F 4035 5§ 15T6 5 6N HTM™ 80,188 I9AS4  49,35F 1,078 TeAaR
Oiher pssete—Dne iMemens - B & =TCE ¥ n.-uunh
CHher assets==ROLU asseds 16 — 16 ey AgRAn 110592 = TBZZ Ze7S 119887
Total 5 4051 5 2 1584 5 5635 Securibey boormwnsd 20,713 — 13 — 1ET
Liaklities Customer and oftwr
D Eabiiod. i Socnmd tecabcen g 01684 - M0E1 2442 8153
sopensos=—=_prcng commilments  § 1731 § Th 5 24 Loars' 00,14 — 2,708 16LT84  WERADD
Teaal 5 73§ To § 243 Cthot avmets aan — b — ErL)
A Decomber 31, 2000 KRN Wb
$h a7 v Tott Droriests §  MM5AM § — B3E50M1 % — BM5011
vy Sacuiniars. s0id undne
sas BFeETEOE 1D
Loans 5 #5665 3AM 5 570 i = WHN o WA
O assete——{tne immstmens L= 16 16 Secuniben loaned 2.4 — 1220 — ke
o RO} sasets 24 o T Cthr oz v 4508 —  aApe — 4840
Total 5_cear-d 3u50. 8 &7 o mesn  — meen  — e
Liabilities [ 458, 74T — 183,154 4 1ErASE
Db kabilbes and accned Pyw——
experas—Lard iy commilrects 4 183 § a8 05 e
Total 5 193 § ) 265 Liastadirey commumitimnts” § 133510 & 0 — % EBO & 470 & 1380
1. For sgraficnct Levol 3 b ribiet B *Siagnfecant Lino bie Iegats Lised in
MWMWLWJFHMW wacdion hivnan lor
delads of the sigrdcent ynotservable npoly used R nofrecurming el value A8 Dpoemier 1. 2120
MBSl : Fair Yol
£ i sl Vel Lowwl 1  Livel 2 Lowed 3 Tolad
Gaine  [Losses fram Nenrecurring  Fair  Value Financial ssacts
Remaasuremants Cash nnd cash equwnients § 05654 S105654 § — & — S10565
Irre ST S A
§ i e 2021 2030 2008 HTM THIT 3123 42,281 SN 7440
Ansots Mr.:wmh
Loans’ 5 e 5 (s § 1% e 1628 — Tagds 21T Ve
Goochall 8 —_ —_ Spcutiey horrmwend T2 —_ ]
Enlangities [E) 12 - Cuiaimes and ottar
; i e 3 e 156 1561 I-w:m B2 00 - BREXZ A1 EZATH
Loara 150557 - CWEES TREEIT 151802
ard software’ e 5 122 ] 45 - 485 — 485
Ciret asspts—ROU anseds” 2% [F=1] - Finanzial Babifitars
Tetl $  (ioB) % e g 1) Denosts 5 T3t 5 — SITE0T 5 — SMTET
Linkilitiss s-nwmmhm
m_mbﬂﬁﬂlﬂd eaperias % a8 5 P nirathing 40472 — 4535 195 580
o ) COMIT 1 . 3 anea Tt - m -
3 ar s i E Ll Dl Satcsstited fematnviangs #1832 —_ 4162 - 4,962
1. e and Kided ke Loars and Omer Sises—0rmer i & il i1 Cusio T
Carsir sinennug, For ol i, mﬂhmutwnmw _ Parpaitiery s — I — 3
o P ibem i kil or e, , ¥y ane neconoed N Brsirarrits 447378 —  1S0.EM 5 150820
1Hmmcwmmnmmdmmmmmm:m 1 .
awoude B mped of reaied economie hodges, ane ituaied as folows:! b (he c""’““““"w
Pt hor-armepstomant eategory, Daced on Il valus of (he unddrhing collateral; and
for ihe hesd-focsa caligrory. hased on rececly pacubid Raessctons, macusl e 5 125488 5 00— 5 T 5 M5 5 1M

for any bass diflonenoe Debwsbn cish and cemalve eetuments. o delsl
STy ARRA S W e el S fuslil B A6 uhalhinnie,

1 Lowse relsted e Ofher  missts—Onrer g
Imchniquos Tal incuded decousiid cosh fow models, methodologies Hal
incomoents maliples of cofaln comparabls comoands and eoenty oxsoulsd
A,

4, Lotssd nelaled [0 OG0 Sdes—Primsd, sfopenl ahd Soleni (irarally
ey wnparmants i wol o wite-olfs relaled b Fo desixnal of codas assets,
5. Lossen relabed 0 Other asseb—ROU . sisol nciude mpemants eloted b e

dsoonbinued wee off carian leased propaertes

1, Amourts inchuce loans measunsd a2 fae walae 00 & nofescumng o
Luncing aocouried bor px Feid for Inwvestmand and Holkd
lﬂ'&l‘t For & lurir Secumsen of Mnding Comimid manals. S Role 15

The previous tsbles exclude all non-financial assets and
liabalitics, such a5 e value of the long-tenn relationships
with the Firm's deposit customers, and cerain financial
istreMs, such as equily method mvestments and certun
receivables.
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6. Fair Value Option

The Firm las elected the Fair value option for certaim chigible
instruments that are risk managed on a fair value basis o
mitigate income statement volatility caused by measurement
basis differcnces between the elected instrumems and their
associaled risk management Imnsactions or o climimte
complexitics of applying cortain accounting models.,

Barrowings Measured at Fair Value on a Recurring Basis

At £l
December 34, 2021  December 31, 2000

8 i il

Buminass Unit Rosg 1or Risk Management

Equiy L] ITME § 33952
Entarest ratos 24,632 31222
Commuodiios 7,837 5078
Sl 1.347 1344
Fonisgn aachangs 1472 2106
Todal 5 THMG E 3.7

Mat Revenues from Borrowings under the Fair Value Option

3 by el 202 2020 29

Trafing rireifas $ B89 & (5135 § p68ad
Enlangal sEpenss 08 341 Tt
Mak nevenises’ ] Ebd § (S4TE) 3 (F M

1. Amcorty do Aol il any gaics o neses T rilaled eocname Fadges

CGains (losses) from changes in fair value are recorded in
Truding revenues and arc nuanly attnbutable (o movemenls in
the reference price or index. interest mies or foreign exclunge
Rikes,

Gains [Losses) Due to Changes in Instrument-Specific Credit
Risk

& by il H:rm 0Tl
202
Loans and other receivaties’ § 278 5 -
Landing cormnitnants z —_
Deposts - 17
Bormowngs {38 L]
2020
Loans and other receivaibies’ 5 (116) § -
Londing cormmilments (k1] -
Dopuais. _ {15)
Berrirrgh [Eo] 11,340
EE]
Loans and olher eceivabies’ ] s ] -
Lending commiiments (k] _
Deponts — 130
Berrerwrg [100] {2 140
g -_— -
£ i mllzea D e 3, 721 D ' 31, 2060
Cumulalive peo-tax DA gain {loss)

rpognad in ADCH 12.439] § [3357)

1. Losrs and olfed coopvasbes-speclo credd gains [Kases) wieo delermined by
auchdeg e Pon-Cns Lomennents of gairs and oases

December 2021 Form 10K
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Difference between Contractual Principal and Fair Valus'

At sy
December 11, 2021 Depember 31, 2030

£ i il

Loang ard olnor rcsvalias” % 12,633 § 14 (42
MNonaccrual ipans” 0,999 11,551

Borrowings’ 12,108) (3773

1. Amounts indicabe coniractual prnopsl greatar than o {ikes Than) far valu,

2. Tne magnty of he dfierencs Deteens prncipal and lier valus amgunts ko igans
e ol o reab o S dust purchiaes at pmcunty
weedl Saplowy pan.

3. Exciudes borowings whanes B repaymeanl of [he ndsl procipasl sound Tckaales
i O CRAMGES I A FERTENOE P OF oax

The previous tables exclude  non-recourse  debi  from
comsolidmed VIEs. hiabilines relaed 1o transfers of Nnancial
asseis  dreaded  as  collmemlized  inancings.  pledged
commmodities and other liabilities thet have specified assets
attnbutable o them,

Fair Value Loans on Noenaccrual Status

A1 Al
Docamber 31, 2021 Dascaenizes 31 2020

5 in i

Morsocreal loans 1 a8g § 1407
Morwccrinl leand B0 o mons
days past dos 5 361§ X

7. Derwvative  Instruments

Activities

and Hedging

The Finn ixides and makes markets globally in listed futures,
OTC  swaps, Torwands, optons amd  other  denvatves
referencing, among other things, imerest mtcs, cquitics,
curmencees, ivestment  prade and  nonsimvestment  prde
corporsle credins, loans, bonds, US. and other sovercign
securitics, cmerging market bonds and loans, credit indices,
ABS indices. property indices, mongage-rekied and other
ABS, and mal esiaic loan producis. The Firm usecs ihese
instnments for market-making, managing forcign currency
and credin exposure, and assetTisbility managemen.

The Finm manages 11s market-making positons by employing
a varicty of risk mitigation sitiegics, These strategics include
diversification of sk exposures and  hedging. Hedging
activilies consist of the purclase or sale of positions in rekied
securitics and Muancial instruments, including & varicty of
dermvative products {eg. fotures, forwards, swaps and
options), The Firm manages the market nsk associated with
s :mﬂm-nulking activilies on a Firmwide basis, on a
worldwide trading divigion level and on an indocidua] product
basis.
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Table of Coments
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements Morgan Stanley
Fair Values of Derivative Contracts Asiats 8 Decembar 31, 2070
Ansats 1t Decamber 31, 2021 S mata N T
5 in s o ﬁ?'h:“ rated Tots Designated as accounting hedges
Designated as sccounting hedges Irressd il £ mE§ 28 - % pda
Coiaal filn 5 T 1% 1 535 Frgign axcrange & 2 — T
Foresgn amchangs 181 & = 197 Toinl g1 1 — ey
Totad 85 T - o2 oo e chad g hedy
Not designated as accouriting hedges. Econamic hedges of laans
Economiz hedges of loans Craft® i # = 5
el pii, 15 o 15 Dthar dafveives
Difres urivathas Inbaces! rate LN T T a0 2 s
Enlnnest rak 147,585 7,002 383 As4.970 Cendi 531 FT —_ T A8E
Credt 5740 2188 - 8538 Foreign exchange PEEM 15w TH o p0s2
Foreign exchange TIITE 1,210 M 74534 Equity 4,378 - HABE  BEAAdd
Equity /AT — 41455 7033 ekl ] ot Moss  — @ 355 W64
Commodty and olhes 22ATS _ 5538 27713 Totsl 345 14180 3809 AT M
Tolad TTHE2 11422 4TAIS 236499 Totsl gross dedivatives SI55856 S14184 § 20059 SamaTa
Tedal grona durivatives SITBAAT 511429 5 47415 5337291 Asro s oflee
Amounts offsat Countorparty nellng (276.682) (1601} (35260} (323543}
Counlemarty nefing [204.720) (B.B98)  (42BR3) [I56E30) Cash cofateral natling (54.921) (1865} — {56,786}
Cash oollalnral nefing 345} (1,213 —  ATOT) Tatal in Trading asssts S M § 718§ IR § AN
Tedal in Trading assats 5 33221 5 399 3 4512 5 36154 Amounts ot affset!
Amsounts not otfset Finarginl malrombnls colliand {13, 315] - - (1338}
Financal instumants cofaternl (10467} — —  [a4sn Eineronsh collgteral el = - @81
Hot amounia 5 22766 5 999 5 4532 § 27607 : ""‘""“"hr — R L A L b&.m e AL
" Ret s pioce o iy 74 b0 el onlprcabBie T 8 6728 ol lce o ay oo gy Siocnabe " 3 aran

Liablilties at Becember 39, B3

Linbditirk 8 Dotomber 31, 2080

i e ot Ot Tater o oL e “ore” et Em"- L
Designated 3= sccounting hedges Desig - w
sl rln s B3 13 — 3 &7 Inimres rale 5 — 5 19§ - % 19
Frmgn ssctargn 57 50 - 107 Forsign sxchange il 5 = il
Total 143 51 - 194 ] il il = <l
Mot desig am g heaedges
Mot designated as accaunling hadges A el Mo
Economic edges of losns y
it P _ o Credit 18 177 - 195
Lo —— Cither derfralives
Rrleceat e 140770 BA12 233 47118 |I‘|-l20l'l!d:i“ 200008 ToEs B8 HAEIS
Credt 5600 3483 = 2072 Cradi 5278 REE2 - T 887
Fooe g eschangs TS 1,198 I 73,088 Formsgn mecranga B2.875 1.500 A3 B4 518
Equty 9507 A} 41,081 $0.67H Equity &0, 543 - 365,585 6, 56
Gommosdty and oihes 17,180 — 570 z2aim Ccrtpnodiy and o a3 = ___BaN. . iw
o 275032 11,183 7095 333310 Talal E =TI Pl 4GS 430007
Total gross darhvatves $275175 511234 5 47005 5333504 Totsl groms davivatives EI6T 40 B2 442 8 A0EHS SaMRA1S
Amounts obfsat ANTALIEL DITM
Countarparty netting [2O1.728) (O8M8)  (428B3) |254.430) Coundorparty matling (2T6.68F) (11.601) (5360 (323543
Eash collalnral reftrg (433080 (4,204) — 506 Carsh codiateral nelling (58,112 [B23) —  i51.835)
Tedal In Trading llabilities $ 30441 § 215 3 4212 § 14568 Total in Trading I-l:llhi- $ 30554 § 18§ 5355 5 44033
Amsounts net offse’ Amounts nat affset
Firncal ingfruments cofateral [5.866) 18 (39 (583 Fingncinl malnamenls coilitendd [ 10,508) — (1520} (12898}
Hut amounts S 24275 5 207 5 4473 § ZA68E AT e comma e o = LT,
Bl armeesis. for which Masier refling O cOiabe sl AGIeEnaniE Bp Mol araconis 3 2EM 8 15 5 GG 5 32755
o b plavce or may nol e legally enforoeatie § &194 Mt amounis for which mastes netting or oolaleral agresments ano
nol in place o May ot ba legally ertorcmabin 3 GBI

1

1, Amousis relate to masind feliing agreements and calirieal agreemants Ral havwe
Espin: Sptaiminad by e Frm io Be legaty endoronssle in B evend of dolaul Bl
whare cortan clher criena o rgl med 0 acoondanco Wi sppicable offsslling

FCOTUTTENG gadanor.
2, Corlin pror pircd asounls have beon reclissfed o conkem ko 0 cument
Bt
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See Notc 5 for information related 1o the unseitled Fair value
of [uures conticls nol desigimted as accounting hedges,
which are excluded from the previous 1ables.

Motionals of Derivative Contracts

Amawts a8 December 31, 2021
Bilgteral Claansd Exha
OTC oTc Tr

£ iy by Toas!
Designated as sccounting hedges

intprest rale 3 4 § 1M % — 5 18
Foregn exchangs B 1 —_ L]
Todad 12 p L] —_ 117
Not designatod as accounting hedges

Economic bedges of loans

Credit —_ - _ -
i darivathieg

Ertereal rle 3488  ToE2 570 11,140
i k3l 105 - x:
Fonsign enchangs 3,385 ] 12 343
Egquly 494 - 407 02
Commesdty and othe 139 i i) It
Tota! T T2 1060 16,088

Tedal gross dervatives 5 T8 §TIT S 1,083 5 16,183
— S EE——

Linbinies at Docasnbar 31, 2021
Bistsral Cloared Exchan
oTe Triljr- Tedal

3§ i bllony oic

D '_ d an i o [} ‘__

bl tabe 1 = 5 9 5 e ] 99

Fonign auzhangs 5 3 - L3

Totad 3 Rl - 07

Hot designated as accounting hedges.

Econumic bedpes of loans

Craia, 1 12 - 13

Ditver derivatives

Eribapst radn 3BT S 445 11,257

Cedl 25 106 = I

Eoregn exchange 3,380 ] 12 3480

Egquity 552 s -] 1,287

Camimaadly B olfu 146 —_ B 1

Todls! B,075 717 1,272 16,519

Total grass durivativis 5 B0A0 5 TITE 5 1373 % 164

Angats ol Docember 31, 230

Bitsteral  Cleared Exchange-

§ i Siors o7 o Traded Toal

Dumig d an ting hadg

riprest rale E 5 i 8 -_ 125

Foregn exchangs & = i 2

Totad B 133 — 134

Wt deslgnated 23 Mg hadg

Ecansmic hidges of losas

= - 1 - 1

Diteer dorivathes

Entmrest ratn 384T GoME 409 12

Credd' 140 &r - m

Fossign enchange 3046 W03 R L&) 3,159

Equty EEE) - any (3R]

Commoaily And ol 1y - L] 175

Total TA8 Taar BEL 15878

Total gross derlvatives F T5O2 3 TR0 3 &5 § 15706
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Morgan Stanley

Labiliion al Decambe 31, 7020
Bilaleral Ceand E

5 i bicens aTe aTs T Total
Desig Py e

Irididred cal 5 - 5 B0 S - % -]
Fnsign axcrangs 11 3 - 14
Talal 11 ik ] = S
Mot designated xu i Mty

Eeonomic hedges of loans

Crodi' 1 5 — L]
Othor denvsives

[T 4000 G915 51 11 426
Crmdit' 142 83 - 235
Foresgn sxchange 3180 102 11 3283
Equity 414 = 591 1,065
Cormmiity and other 3 — L) 161
Talal TERD 7115 1.181 16 186
Totsl gross derivatives £ 7vo0 Svaee 180 % 16280

1, Corlmn prios padcd
prespiation.

P baen fnd B condor=y i B Gument

The mouonmal amounts of denvative comtmcts  generally
overstale the Firmi's cxposure. In most  circumsiances,
nottonal amomwnls are wsed only as a reference poand [rom
which 1o calculate amoums owed between the panics o the
conirect. Furthermore, notional amounis do not reflect ihe
benefit of legallv enforceable netting armangements or nsk
IHEAINE IRAECHnS.

Gains (Lesses) on Accounting Hadges

3 ip millotd 2021 2000 Fard ]
Faif walus hadges—Recognized in Interesl in

Inlerest rale contmces 5 Tz § TS O§ (10}
Investmanl Securlies—aF5 [629) 23} 10
i - o

Inbsresd rale contracs S (430 £ 4ETE £ 4217
Depasis =] (100} T
Borowings 4,04 (Afazy (4 oma)
Mat Investment hadges-—Foreign sxchange contracts

Recogrized in OCI 5 G4 5 (355 F 14
P it

Ininrest inpomae 53] 18 136

Falr Value Hedges—Hedged items

A1 A
Dacambar 31, Docember 31,
§ in milgng 02 202

Invesiment securitiss=AFS

Amomiced cosl bass cumenlly & préndously
hadgec i - §  arshz B8

Basa adusimonts included in ameciized cosl’'  § [591) § ol
Depoalis

Carrying amourt cunmently of peaviously
¥ 61r8 3 15050

Bass adiisimants ncluded in camying

oy . 23 L
Borrowings
Carrying amount cunmently ar peasiously

'&9‘3_ 5 122911 5§ a8
Basis adustmants includad in carying

Aol Crtstandng Paxkges 5 235 65T
Bas's adusimants included in carrying

amouri—Terminalag hedges 5 [T43) § [T55)

1, Medge sooouning bass sdnsiments are prmanty retaled 1o outslanang fedges.
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Tabie of Coments
Naotes to Consolidated Financial Statements Morgan Stanley
Gains (Losses) on Economic Hedges of Loans “Faars b Malurily al Decombse 31, 2050
i o o2 o I 3 b £1 13 35 Qvers  Tobal
Reccgrined In Other re Single-name COS
Gl conlracts’ 285) E] 7% Irtmatmant grscie §i ko e f 6F 48
1. Amcunty nelebed ko Fadges of cerdsn held-for- ireiimact and Fald-lor-sale ogon il 1 L = e
) ) Talal _ $ 6% HE 405 115 WS
Derivatives with Credit Risk-Related Contingencies Tepch i Bl TR
Investmant grade § 2% 55 IS 45 &
Met Darivative Liabilities and Collateral Posted Mor-imestimant grade . ] & 4 58
Tolal $ B % W% A% 8% 118
i ms aR Total COS sald 5 @45 4335 17§ M3 e
54 miBons 021 00 Dihar eneddl contracts - - - - -
el dommtive Bobiibes with cred® risk: Total credit proectionsobd — § 24 § 43 § 17 § 30§ 23
retated contingenl atures ¥ 0,548 5 421 COS protechon soid win werdcal probection purcrased T 1
Codabernl posted 14,TEH FAB4AT
: ; : Fair Value Asset (Liability] of Credit Protection Sold’
The previous table presemis the aggregate fair valee of cenain
sl « iy il s Al Al
derivative conricts that contain eredit nisk-related conlingent Decamnber 31,  Dacorroes 31
features that are in s me lability position for which the Finn § i milons 2021 O
has posted collateral in the normal oourse of busingss. Singla-narme C0S
Investment grade $ 1428 & 1230
Incremental Collateral and Termination Payments upon Morrimestment grade [EEL] (=2
Patential Future Ratings Downgrade Tolal [ 1.058 § 1208
a Index and basket COS
Dicmbsier 31, Imvastmand grada 5 1,393 § a3
4 Iy ey 2021 Morinvestmant grads 1650 124§
Orenolch downgrmds 5 Fa2 Tt 5 T41 % 14
Twt-radth demngrade sT Totsl COS sald £ 1,804 § 1227
Nmﬂlmﬂn gressmenls inchuded in the amounis . r Dithar cred il contracts ™ [
Total credit protection sokd 5 1,798 § 1.223

1 Aol rQnesenls MTaNgEsnls Detwvinn hi Fiom end ol pamss whenl upon
i deranigiace of one picty, e dovengrmded party Mkl delvir cofsional & the
ciher party. Thesa beliberal doengeade smangemsnts am wed by the Frm o
manage the nek of courlsparty downgraces

Thee additienal collaterl or ienminstion poyments thil may be
called in the cvent of a future credit rating downgrade vary by
contract and can be based on mings by either or both of
Moody's [nvestors Service. [nc. and S&P Global Esings. The
previens table shows the future poteniial collateral amounis
and temmnstion pavmems that could be cilled or roquired by
coumerpartics or exchange and clearing organizations in the
cvent of onc-nedch or two-notch downgrsde scenarnos hased
on the relevant contractual downgrade (mggers,

Maximurn Polential PayoubMotional of Credil Protection
Sold’

Yoars to Maturity ot Decembar 31, 2021

F o a2 =3 35 Owver §  Tolal
Sangle-nsme COS

Ervesimient grade § 10 5% XM3F M3 05 T4
Moa-svaslmanl grida 5 13 i7 2 ar
Tetal 5 15 § H 5 46 5 11 § 111
g and Banket COS

Erveplmaed geade 5 2% 11 5 166 5 15 § 14
Mon-nyesiment grads f 14 7 12 T2
Toba! § 11 5 X5 F 143 % It 5 208
Todal C0E sodd § 22 5 &4 5§ 1893 385 3T

Oithmer cradil oonlrects —_ =

Tedal cradit protectionsald 5 26 § B4 5 189 § 38 5 37T
COE protocton soid wilh identical proleclon purchased [

i, Irversiment  gradeinon-rresimend grece debemmenabon @ based on Bha o kemal
ensaill rabeg off i nifisin’sin . il Bro0l FRNGS it il P CRAS
kil of i ek and e e ka0 & Soarehiiie erci kst raminecrs
wind o conlml e sk, The Fum uses quacbiaive models and pdgment ks
wskmalo Fa vanous rak parameders. relaled B aach obigor.

Protection Purchasaed with COS

Kb enal
AL Al
December 31, Decermber 31
5 i biios 2021 220
Fefug FeleTHY 5 126 § 116
Inda ard Bucihi 204 116
Tranchrsd ndos and basiost 18 14
Total L] 48 5 245
Fas Valus Assel (Liasbity]
AL M
Decambear 31,  Dacarrie 31
£ i mlns Forl 2020
Singie name 5 (1.338) § (1452
Indea ard basket 1563 (573
Tranchisd ingrs and basionl 1451) (329)
Taotsl 5 {2,352) & 11,8385

The Finm cwiers into credit denvatives, pancipally CDS,
under which it receives o provides protection aganst the nsk
of defaull on a sct of deb obligations issued by a specilied
reference entity o emtitics, A mojority of the Firm's
counterpanics for these denvatives are banks, broker=dealers,
and insurance and other financial instilutions.

The Fair value smounis as shown in the previous tables are
prior i cish collateral or counterpany nelting,
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The purchase of crodit protection docs nod represent the sole
manner i wheh e Fiom nsk aeugiges s exposure o credil
derivatives, The Firm  memages its cxposure o these
dervative contracts through a vanety of nsk mitigation
strategies, wihich mclude meaging the credit and correlaion
nsk across single-name, non-irinched indices and baskets,
tranched idices and baskels, and cash positions. Apgregale
market risk limits have been established for credin derivatives,
and markel nisk measures are routinely monitored agninst
these limas. The Finn may also recover amounls on the
underlyving reference obligation delivered to the Firm under
CDS where credit protection was sold,

Stngle-Nanre CO5 A CDS protects the buver against the
loss of pancipal on a bond or loan in case of a defaull by the
issuer, The proteclion bauver pavs a perodic premium
(generlly quancrly) over the life of the contnect and is
protected Tor the perod. The Fimn in turm, perfomms under a
CDS if a credit event as defined umder the contrict occurs.
Typical credit evems inclede bankmpiey, dissolution or
insolvency of the referenced entity, failure 1o pay and
restnectunng of the obligations of the referenced cntity.

Tngdex and Basker CDN Index and basket CI¥S are producis
where credit protection 15 provided on a pontfolio of single=
name CDS, Generally, in the event of a default on one of the
unceriying names, the Firm pavs a pro mta portion of the total
oo amount of te CDNS.

The Farm also enters mio tmmched index and basket CDS
where credit prodection is provided on a particular porion of
the portfelio loss distnbution. The most junior (mncles cover
imtial defaulis, and once losses exceed the notioml of the
ranche, they arc passed on to the next most senior imanche in
the capital stnscture.

Cithver Credit Contracts,. The Finn has invested in CLNs and
CDOs. which are hvbnd instruments contaiming embedded
derivatives, in which credin protection has been sold o the
issuer of the note. If there 15 a credit event of a3 reference
entity underdying the mstrument. the principal balasce of the
node may noi be repaid in full o the Fiem.

December 2021 Form 10K
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Morgan Stanley
8. Investment Securities

AFS and HTM Securities

At December 31, 2024

Groes Gross
Amotioed  Unmabzed  Unrealzed Fair

& i oy Cosl G L. Wil
AFS securition
LS, Troasury securites. § 85874 § 43 3 296 § s
LS. mgoncy securibes’ 26,780 i FELE E i E]
Agercy CMBS 14,476 289 a3 14678
Slabe ard municipal
SElrbes 613 kX 2 E48
FFELP student loan ARS" 1,672 LAl 11 1672
Talal AFS sacunbas 102,515 asd 639 102830
HTM sacuriliss
ULE, Traasury socuriles 28,553 Baz Bl A5
LS. agency securilies’ 48,195 169 1218 4T3
Agency CMBES 2,287 — £ 2316
Moreagency CMBS 1,053 FL 5 1,076
Talal HTR sacurites B0,168 1,073 1,365 79,882

Tolal investment secusitien § 1826831 §

.'mmqﬁd Unreadimed  Unisalined Fadr
Walug

5 i milBona Cout Baing Lirksas
AFS pecurities
UL, Treasury securites  § 453445 § 1010 § — §45355
WS, agancy securies’ a7 389 TE2 LB R
Agency CMBS 19,8082 Eri 4 M4
Corparatn bonds 1604 42 —_— 1,756
Slate arsd municipal
e 1461 L 1 1563
FFELP shufent ioan ARS" 1735 T M 176
it ARS A0 — — 440
Talol AFS secunbis 108 055 ] 1 110383
HTM securities
LS, Trmasury Ssecuriles B WS = ¥
LS, agency sacurities” 3 851 o 8 JBAT
Agency MBS 2632 4 ? 25H
Non-agency CMBS 2 58 — 00
Talal HTM gicunibon 71771 765 W TeARD
Totsl Inveatrment securities § 170826 § 5048 § 71 §184 800

1, Amoutts son nat od any AGL

2. U5, agency soounbes consist mainly of agency mongagn pess-Rrough pood
sauntes, CMOS a0 gency- s oot

2 Ureartyieeg boasrs e Btk by & gusssclisn, ulmally Fom e 1S, Depanimest
o Educaton, of ol st 5% of (he prntped bashncn s inerist cohilindng

L]
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Investment Securities in an Unrealized Loss Position

At Decombar 31, A5 Docember 31
Firdl 2020
Gross Gross
Fay Unvaal 2ol Far  Uniisized

£ mallarsd Walse Losies Wl Loy
U.E. Treasury securitos

Lot trun 12 months 3459 5§ 296 § 151 § —
Todal 31,459 296 151 -
LL.5. mgoncy sacufilios

Leas thand? moning 12,203 Fall 5 B8 =2

12 moniths o longar 1,167 1,168 3
Total 13,450 241 & 76 25
Agercy GMBS

Lesss fhand 2 mordhs 2,872 Ba 274 a

12 moriths of engor 10 s &4 T
Tokal FA. Lk L] 225 4
Liabe and municpal seooles

Le=s thand ¥ monihs H 2 86 —

12 moniths or longer T — 36 1
Tidal 28 2 122 1
FFELF sludenl lnan ABS

L thind 2 g kFL 1 -— -

12 moniths o longer S0 10 1077 26
Tolal EiL] " 14077 26
Total AFS securition in an unrealioed loss position

Lk B 2 menifa &6,95% BOT aa2a h]

12 mnifs of longer 1,778 a2 258 30

Toda! 5 48,730 5 630 % 11182 § &1

For AFS securitics, the Firm belicves there ane no seourilics in
an unrealieed loss posison that have credi losses afier
performing the analysis described in Note 2, Additionally, the
Finin does nod intend to sell these secunties and 15 nod likely 1o
be required 1o sell iese secuntics prior o recovery of the
amortized cost basis. As of December 31, 2021 and December
31, 2020, the secuntics in an unrealized koss position e
predominantly investment grade,

The HTM securities net carrving amounts a1 December 31,
2021 and December 31, 20000 reflect an ACL of 533 million
and 526 mllion, respectively, relmed o Mon-agency CMBS.
See Note 2 for a description of the ACL methodology used
fior HTM Secunitics. As of December 31, 2021 and December
3. 220, Nom-Agency CMBS HTM  secuniies were
predominantly on acenel status and imestment grade,

See Note 16 for additional information on secuntics issued by
WIEs, including U5, agency mongage-backed securitics. non-
apency CMBS. FFELP student loan ABS and other ABS.
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Morgan Stanley

Investiment Securities by Contractual Maturity

Al Docamber 31, 2021

; Annualzed
5 b o ”ﬂ# 'rfd.:u' h‘fw
AFS gecuritios
LLS. Trasury sectile
Dhbr wilhin 1 yoar 5 B95T 3 9047 1.7 %
After 1 poar Boogh 5 yeas 41,374 41,340 1.0 %
After 5 ynars through 10 years 8,843 B854 12 %
Talal 58,974 50,021
ULE agoncy securites:
Do within 1 year 1 1 12 %
Aftar § paar Peough 5 years i 194 16 %
After 5 ymars haough 10 years 1,01 1,284 18%
At 10 yoars 28,287 25064 16 %
Talni 26,730 26,813
Agancy CMBS:
Diue within 1 year Fric) 27 1.7 %
Afier i yoar Frough 5 ves's 2,562 2,598 16 %
Al 5 years theough 10 yoars 8072 o302 16 %
Aftesr 10 yoars 2,008 3,545 1.4 %
Tolal 14,476 14,678
Slabe ard municipa! seairbes:
i within 1 yos 4 4 18%
Al 1 i BouGh 5 yid . m 18%
Aftge 5 yaars theough 10 yaars - 2.3 T %
A A0 yoans S34 S48 2.2 %
Talal 613 Lai]
FFELP studanl loan ARS:
Dhbin wdihin 1y a i 0B %
Al Y yar Evouh 5 pes 162 158 o8
Al 5§ paars through 10 years 143 139 T
Aftar 10 yoars 1,338 1,348 1.4 %
Talal 1,672 1,672
Tolal AFS securibes 102,515 102,830 13%

103
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A1 Decembar 31, 2021
Anraanired

Et od Far o
Cost . ewa Vi
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Morgan Stanley

bc mitigated by increases in collaieral margin calls on
securiies purchased under agreements 1o resell and secuntics
borrowed  tmnsactions  with  similar  quality  collateral.

5 in il
HTH socurities Additionally, the Firm nuy request lower quality. collienl
U.E. Trewpury sncufibas: pledged be replaced with lagher quality collateral thirough
D witrin: 1 ykar § 4T 5 4l 19% collateral substitution rights in the underlving agrocments,
Anar 1 year Iraugh 5§ wars 17818 17ar 7%
Al yoars thiough 10 years 5328 b 2% The Firm actively manages its secured Ninancings in a manner
Aftar 10 years 1.563 1688 3% that reduces the potential refinancing risk of seourcd
Toka! 25653 asa financings of kess lgmd assets and alse comsiders the quality
U.5. agency secunbis: of collperal when negotiating collmeral eligibility with
Aller 5 years Trough 140 years ek s03 20 % counterpantics, The Firm utilizes shorter term  secured
Afa 10 yeurn LU 1EX financing for highly liquid assets and has established longer
Total 44195 47138 tenor limits Tor less liguid asscts. for which funding may be at
Ay (AR risk in the event of a market disruption.
D welin: 1 yoar 45 45 1.1 %
Aier 1 year though 5 years 1263 1240 13% Offseiting of Certain Collateralized Transactions
Afar & years twough 10 yeers =08 7B 1.4 %
Aflor 10 years 151 147 1.5 % At Docesnber 31, 2021
Toiad L7 Izt Groas Ampunis m A
Mon-agency CMBS: $ 0 miSpng Amoucts  Ofset  Amounts  Offs"  Amaunis
Bhpe welitn 1 yoar 151 154 4.5 % Al
Afer 1 year (hrough 5 yoans 109 M 31 % Sl
At 5 s threugh 10 yishis 753 772 15 % undar agmeriei $1STABE § (TTAST) § 1919809 S{106,896) 5 13103
Aher 10 years Ll S % 5 Borrowed 430305 (DB&E 120743 (124028 sess
Tots 1,853 1,676 Lisbifitias
Total HTM socarites 80168 TREBT 1.5 % Sncuriies soid under
Toal irvestment securitiss 5§ 15REE1 § 182712 1.5 % aulmr'iah BIMETS § (TTASTI S SE1M § (D0.8001 % HASE
1. Amcunis are ned of ary ACL. Socuriss loaned FaR-1h1 [EXEri] LF&o- ] {13005 o=l

L Ariakred v ol & compulid g ihe et yeld, waeghbed Desod on
thi armodtred cotl of aach setunty, The offedne yeld o shown pio-lax and
cormders Ihe contictull coupon, amorirabon of poetRem and socoeton of
desoounts, ond tha effect of relaied Fedging dervatros.

Gross Realized Gains (Losses) on Sales of AFS Securities

5 Jy eralicy 2021 ot 2018

Gross raakzag gains § Iar % tER 5 113
Groes roalead (oases} 2Ty (311 (0]
Todal $ M0 % 137 5§ 03

1. Ribdized gand ahd Gades a0 Mosgnized B Dhed feviiues n P income
FabpTert,

9, Collateralized Transactions

The Finm coters into securities purclased under agrecments 1o
resell, secunties sold under agreements 10 repurcluse,
securitics bormowed and securitics loaned Imnsactions 1o,
among odher things, soguire securties 1o cover shor positions
and settle olber secunties  obligations, 0 accommodate
customers” necds and fo fnance iis inventony posifions,

The Firm monitors the fair value of the underlying sccurities
as compared with the related recenvable or payvable, including
accreed interest, amd, as necessary, requesis  addiiional
collatcral, as provided wnder the applicable agrecmem 1o
ensure such transactions are adequately  collmermlized. or
reiums ¢xcess collateral,

The risk relaed o a decline in the narket value of collateral
podged or received is managed by seiling appropriate markel-
based nurgin requirements. Increases i coltueral nurzin
calls on secured fnancing due 10 market value declings may

December 2021 Form 10K

Mat amounts Tor which master netiing agresments ane nol in plece of ma)
nol Be legally endoncesble Y

Securiles prhassd under agresmants io resel 5 12544
Securilis Barmomd 1,044
& sl undar by 15 4 Mg Eh s B.295
Sacurilis laned 129

| B
Balid  Ambunta

Grose  Amounts  Breel Nel ol Bl

© i oy Amouris Amoods Offesl'  &mounis
Adzals
Sacurils purchisad

under el

I ressadl S254. 180 S147006) § 116234 S[114108) 8 2135
Securilios borrowsd 124921 (12530) 12391 (MOTAM) 4587
Lizbilities
Spcurilies soid under

agresments 1o

et 3198493 147 000) 5 S0SBY 5 (435e0) 5 GB2T
Sarwnilies lnaned 261 (0X A3 el (T A 3
Met armounts Tor which master natting agresmsents are nol in plece of ma

nat be legally endorcsable v
Soouriles prrchased under agresmaents jo resed § 180
Spouriles bormovsd o
= fliers Mok undier B B R A BXER
Sheufilid loaned gF)

1, Amoucts relale 1o master relfteg agriements Ral have been determened by B
[Firm ia b legaly enfoecsabis in e svinl of SHauT bil whene oedan oifar ol
arw Fot med in acoordancs wih spplcable offseting aoccunlng gudaron.

For mfonmation related 1o offseiting of denvatives. see Note
T.
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Gross  Secured
Contractual Maturity

Financing Balances by Remaining

At Docember 31, 2021

Croernighl Loas than 3000 Over 90
and Opoen W Days  Days Ciys:

§ in il
Securbes soid woher
AR I
repurchass § 2IT1 § 51887 S17.069 $15.318 5139678
Hecurbos loaned 11,480 i G50 DAST 31904
Totad included in B
eefaniting disclosany § 40TH1 § S35 SITTA) S4BEDS 5161656
Trading liabd ileg—
Dblgaton o fmuem
BoCuribes reciced
as colabernl 30,104 — — — 104
Tedal § TOASS § SHAH FITT4R MHEENS 5100760
Al Dascoriber 31 2020

Crowemighl  Less than 3080 Over 90
5 iy el and Open 3 Days  Days  Days Torasl
Securbes soid under
puemonts o
regrirchasm £ 8340 § AORAY SMGEEY BXVOT0 5188460

Socur LS iaanind 15 267 247 - AT4T 20261

Tobad inchdsd in
offsmiting disclosarne

Trading liablita—

£ SAGI6 5 B1000 L26.2M S3181T S214.7584

Obligaton fa feturn

securibes recoeved as

codaberal 16,388 = o = 1638
Tedal 5 116,005 § 61100 $20.3701 531817 8235143

Gross Secured Financing Balances by Class of Collateral

EDINETOOOO

O0O000oo0gOooOoo(eoessr1)

Morgan Stanley

Pledged financial instrumemts (hat can be sobd or repledged by
e secured party are wentifed as Trading assets (pledged to
various panics) in the balance sheet,

Fair Value of Collateral Received with Right to Sell or
Repledge

Lt Al
Decambar 31, Decembor 31,
§ i muibona 205 200
Collatirad recsved wil nght i sell or mpisdge § ET2,104 % T EA
Coilstoral that was soid or repldoed’ 510,000 51368

1, Do foch ifnchcy ShsunBos hid B Ml fedenl repgulations for B Fum's U5
Bt s

The Firm receives collateral in the form of securilics in
comnection with sccuntics purclased under agrecmcnis (o
resell,  secunities borrowed.  secunties-for-securilics
iransactions, dervative (ransactions, customer margin loans
and secunties-based lending. In many cascs, the Fim s
permitted 10 el or repledge this collateral 1o secune scouritics
sold under agrecments 1o repurchase, o cnter inig scouritics
lending  and  dervative  tansactons or w0 deliver 1o
counterpanics 1o cover shon positions,

Sacurities Segregated for Regulatory Purposes

A Al
December 31, Deoember 31,

& i mallonidl Firal
Pledgad Sesgresgated socuilin' [ 20003 5 34106
D-w::-tr:h. Dom::-nﬂl 1. Socuntis segeegiied under kedoral reguilions for the Fum's LLS. bobor-goakes

& i il 204 I e wdunoed Bom Secuihes putchaind uhded agfimmacks 10 bl and Tradeng
Securitien sold under sgreaments 1 repurehian A Pemnon i
.3, TrwRsy o SMCE SCUEN L] 310 § 4,882 Concentration Based on the Firm's Total Assets
Ot sIvedmgn gowwTemon! Dbigators 72,083 IR

oo i o Mr::-v!t. Dow::ur:ﬂ.
i B4 T 5 2024 o)
Tetal 5 130675 § 198463 U5 g and sgency stcuriies and
Becurites leansd other sovereign govermmmant obligatsons
Other severmgn govarmonl ohligators 5 T8 5 3,430 Trading assats’ 9% 10 %
Copoabe sgibes 20656 16,536 Off balanoe shest—{Collaleral recsivd” 12 % 2%
Other T 2 1, CHihie Sowventign gowertmnnd chigaton induted in Teading skaets prmanty (inaal
Tolad 5 FBECE 20,261 ol obigations of the LK., Japan and Brazi,
Total inchuked o B fseting dedosuns ] 161656 & 218,754 Z m;m:m.mumw:auuwmmu
Trading liabdties—ObIGaticn ta returmn securitis recrived an collatpml
Companle egulies $ 30,045 & 1, 385 The Firm s subject 1o concentration risk by holding large
Diher % 4 POSILEONE 1N CETLAN [vpes of secunties, oans or commibments
i 3 M ¥ 6350 10 purchase securitics of a single issuer, including sovercign
Total 5 1M, 780 5 235143

Carrying Value of Assets Loaned or Pledged without
Counterparty Right to Sell or Repledge

A A
December 31, Decomber 31
5 iy e 201 2000
‘I'mqu assals 5 32 488 & 30, 524

The Firm pledges centam of iis trading asseis io collaieralize
sccurities sold under agrecments to repurchase, seouritics
loaned. other secured Minancings and dervatives and 1o cover
customer shor sales, Counterparties mew or may not have the
mght 1o sell or repledge the collmerl.

sovermments and other entines, wsoers located in a particular
country  or geographic arca. public and private  issuers
imwolving developing countnics or issuers cengaged inoa
particular imdustry.

Positions taken and underwrting and fnancing commitmems,
including those made im connection with the Firm's privaie
cquity, prncipal imvestment and lending activitics, oficn
imvolve substantial amouns and significanl  exposure 1o
individual isswers and businesses, including imestment grade
and non-imvestment grade iSSucTs.
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Custamer Margin and Other Lending

At

A1
Decambes 31, Ducarrbes 31
3 dry railicr 2021 Falrit)

Mlaigen ared otfr landing 5 71532 § T4 TH4

The Finm provides margin lending armangements that allow
customers 1o bormow against the value of qualify ing securites.
Recervables from these amangements are included witlin
Cusiomer and other receivables i the balance sheet, Under
these armngements, e Finmm receives  collateral, wlich
inclades U5, governmeni and agency securitics. other
sovercign govermment obligations, corporate and oiher debi,
and corporate equities. Margin leans are collateralioed by
customee-cwned sccuritics held by the Finne The Firm
momitors required margin levels and established credit enms
daily and. pursuani to such guidelines, requines cusiomers io
deposit additional  collateral, or reduce  positions,  when
NECESSAry,

Margin loans are extended on a demand basis and genemlly
are nod conmmtted facilities. Factors considered in the meview
of margin loans arc the amoum of the loan, the inended
purpose, the degree of leverage being emploved in the
sccoum and the amount of collateral, as well a5 an overall
evitleation of the portfolio o ensure proper diversification or,
in e case of concentrled positions, approprme lguidiy of
the underlving collaieral or poteniial hedging strmicgics o
educe nisk. Umderdving collveral for margin loans is
meviewed with respect (o the ligquidity of the proposed
collateral positions, valuation of securitics, histonc trading
range. volitlity analvsis and an evaluaton of  imdustry
concenirations. For ihese transactions. adberence o the
Firm's collateral policics significamtly  limits  its  crodil
exposure in e evem of a customer defaul. The Firm muay
request additienal margin  collateral from  customers, il
appropriate, and. i neccssary, may sell securitics 1hat have
ol becn paid for of purchase secuntics sold bul not delivered
from customens,

Alsp included in the amounts in the previgus table is non-
purpose secunties-based lending on non-bank entites i the
Wealth Management busingss scgment,

Other Secured Financings

Other secured Ninancings melude e Habihnes relved 10
transfers of fimncial assets thal are accounted for as
financings miher than sales, consolidsed VIEs where the
Firm 15 decmed o be the primary beneliciarny, and cenain
ELNs and other sccurcd bomowings, These liabilitics are
gencrally pavable from the cash fows of the related asscrs,
which are accounted for a8 Trding asseis (sce Notes 14 and
16y,

December 2021 Form 10K
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Morgan Stanley

10. Loans, Lending Commitments and Related
Allowance for Credit Losses

The Firm's held-for<imvestment and  held-for-sale  loan
ponfolios consist of the following iypes of loans:

* Corporate.  Corporte mcludes revolving hines of credit,
term loans and bridge loans made (o corpomic entities for a
varcty of purposes.

Secwred Lemdling Foacifives,  Secured lending Facilities
include loans provided to clicnts, which are collateralined
by vanous assels, inchaling residential amd commiercinl real
estate mongage loans, invesior commitments for capital
calls, corporile loans and other assels.

Conuercial Real Estate. Commercinl real estale loans
include owner-occupied loans and income-producing loans
Hesiclentiol FKeal Estare.  Reswdentinl real estue loans
mainky inchede non-conforming loans and HELOC,
Securities-based Lewding and Other.  Sccuntics-based
lending includes loans that allow cliems o borrow mongy
against the valee of qualifving sccuniies for any suilable
purpose  other  than  purclesing, imeding, or  camving
securities or refinancing margin debt. The majority of these
loans are steciired a5 revolving lines of credit. Other
primarily mchedes cemain loans ongimeted in s tnlored
lending business within the Wealth Mamagement business
segmenl,

Loans by Type
ikt Decombar 31, A1

& i el HF1 Loans HFS Loans Tolatl Lo
Corparate k] 5567 § 8107 § 13674
Secured landing faclies 3,471 2878 35,350
Corrrmnnrcipl radl fibat T 1.7TT 9,004
Resitarhal roal astido ad,251 T A4, 250
Spcuritios-tased endng

ard Dihar lgars B 440 G2 &6, 502
Talal bars 174,056 13832 1&R,TRE
ACL (854) La54)
Tatal leans, et 5 174,302 % 413832 § 188,134
Loans o rar-LIS. boerownns, red 5 24,322

Al Decombar 31, 2020

£ i el HFI Loans HES Loans Tolal Loans
Cirponate ] G04E § B580 § 14 626
Socured lending facilias 25727 3206 20,023
Commaercial real estato T.346 i) 168
Remidurlinl roal outate 35,268 48 35316
Sacurilns-based Mndeg

ard Other loans 54,232 &7 4.2
Talal lgdi 138,619 128143 151 432
ALL (BS) (835)
Totsl loans, met 3 137 Thd 12813 §  150.587
Lain (@ raor-LLS. Bdrovents, ral § 21081
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Loans by Interest Rate Type
A1 December 31, 2031 Al Decamber 51, 220
Froat Fooat
usiabie e
& b e Fimisd Re il Finind Rl it
Copaiiate 1 — 5§ 13674 3 — § M4E2E
Saturod londing Inabites — 35,350 196 mET
Commarcial neal eslate 343 B, 651 574 T804
Rrsdertal ronl eslabs 18566 29,72 13,120 2196
Securties-basad lendng
ars Ol KA A 63,670 16873 45 E26

Tolal loans, bafore ACL 5 42141 5 146847 5 APBGRI § 118560

See Note 5 for funber informemion regarding Loans and
kending commitments held at fair value. Sce Nole 15 for
detals of curreni commutmients 1o lend in the fuiune,

Credit (uality

The CRM gvaluates now obligors before credit {rnsaciions
are initially approved and st least annually thereafier for
comporate and commercial real estate loans. For Corporate,
Secured lending faciliies and Ciher loans, credii evaluaiions
tvpically imvolve the evaluation of financial statements,
assessient of leverage. liquidity, capital swrength,  asset
composition and quality, market capitalization and access 1o
capital markets, cash flow projections and debl service
requireiments, amd the adequacy of collateral, i applicable.
The CRM also evalwales simiegy, market position, industry
dynamics. obligor's numgemen and other factors that could
affect an obligor's risk profile.

For Commercial real estate loans. the credit evaluation is
focused on property and transaction metrics.  including
propey tvpe, LTV mno, occupancy levels, debd service ratio,
prevailing capitalization raes and market &y namics,

For Residential real csiaie and Securities-based loans, the
mitial credit evaluation tvpically includes, bot 15 not limited
. review of the obligor's dncome. net worh, liquidity,
collateral, LTV rmtio and credit burean  infornurlion.
Subsequem credit momtonng for residemial real estate loams
is performed at ibe porfolio kevel Secuniies-based loan
collatcral valees are monitored on an ongoing basis.

For information related 1o credin quality indicators considered
indeveloping the ACL, see Note 2.
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Morgan Stanley

Loans Held for Investment before Allowance by Origination
Year

AR Decembser 31, 2021 Al Decnrmber 31, G0

Corporale
4 i s i< HIG Tolal L} HIG Tolad
Revorving & 2356 § 2320 5 40684 511380 § 2231 § 4560
201 - 85 S
20E0 111 6 137 545 By a5
219 — 176 176 L] 202 R
i 1 186 - 196 =51 - 145
207 - Lo L] - B [
Price Fry) - Frol 247 108 M7
Total $ 2BO2 5 2675 F 8567 § 2360 % 3677 § 6.4E
Ak Dwcember 31, 2021 Al Deoomber 31, 2030
Securod Lo ng Facijes
§ b milons L] HiG Tilal G HIG Tobal
Revohing  § 7,603 § 200172 § 27,775 § 4711 § 14510 $18an
Faivg ] 12 &6T L]
2020 18 160 195 Vi 253 £15
2019 43 19 BEE 260 1,804 2164
2018 207 3 1,000 614 1432 2046
207 144 oo 410 245 581 H26
Prige —_ T30 T —_ 1,055 1.055
Totsl § 5154 5§ 2T 5 347 8 5663 § 19738 £057a7
AR Dacambser 31, 2021 A Decembar 31, 2000
Commurcial Peal Estabs
1 s s G HIG Tolal G HNIG Tolal
Revolving  § - 140 5 1= 35 — 5 — 5 =
20 4723 1292 1715
FED ™ 19 10 a5 843 1038
2018 AT 1,266 Tk 10704 1848 24922
P [} 82T 16 2] Tai T4 1,520
a7 B0 L] §19 412 347 a0
Priof 100 63T b 10 T 1.067
Totdl 5 2200 5 5008 § T.EET 5 2437 § 4019 § 7.346
At Decombar 34, 2021
Ragdrda Rl Estily
by FICO Soomes by LT\ Rabo
£ in o T TH)  EE)-TI S6TE  sSE0%  »80% Total

Rewohing § 65 § Wy 4 3 s - 3§ o
2021 1M TEXE  IST 14,016 1000 15,125
) T 1E4E 13 .10 510 0,720
A% 4630 1072 140 5,535 ZEE 5,002
08 1,865 a7 55 s | 186 2417
ot I ZAsT 358 &5 2588 192 2,780
Priar 5473 1819 e TARS Teh B2
Tarial SR8 F B354 30T % 4IEF 8 ZOED § 44051

Al Decumber 31, 2000

Fasdertal Resl Eslaln

By FICO Sexeas by LTV Ratia

Shmions 2740  EBO-T3E S6TH  S&I%  » A% Total
Rewotvng & &85 § ni 5 3% 122 § = 3% 122
2020 BA 184 149 XA 583 19.821
HAG 54802 1365 164 5,584 i T AR5
2018 250 ] k] 2T 243 2,000
AT 3| 2] ] 3551 240 3,500
Prior T.TE 2510 402 LR 2 10,71
Total §ET4n5 § BOE5 S A28 % 32TV0 S 2498 § 35268
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Al Decomber 31, 2021
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Morgan Stanley
on TDR guidance issued by Congress in the CARES Act, as

: oz i Dihar well a8 by the U5, banking agencies.
3 by ey Londing G NG Total
Fevating 1 71485 § 5170 § 858 5 7E513 Allowance for Credit Losses Rollerward and Allecation—
2021 w7 708 103 1618 Loans
il Spcumd 5BL
2020 L] idh 1277 Lending Reakdantisl - and
2010 1% 1,079 633 1,731 % in mikona Comporale Faolbes CRE  Fepl Cslole Ot Tolal
2018 232 T3 ars BEO Docomber 31, 2020 § 308 % 08  S211 3% 55 85B  BAGS
a7 - 531 Hr T48 (Gross charge-ofls [F=) 6T 127 My (E (126
Prace 16 1,294 b 1,673 Provisaon [meleaso) 1% 34 % 1 11 [LL:1]
Total 3 TREED § 10706 & 3478 & SgAsd Other 2 wmoom 1 W m
t b 31 B Mm;ru.zﬂ:l S 185 5 163 5206 § B3 560 5654
S e cuned Other? Iotal iours. A% 8% 4% 5% 50 % 100 %
iy e Landing I3 MG Total
Revohiog ¥ S1E6T 5 4816 § 555 § 57008 ot P iyl
2020 ) 1,073 560 1663 § i iy Copyale Fasilboa CRE Fasl Ealale Oiner Tolal
2019 18 1,058 623 i, rar Decorbar 31.2018 § #9115 § 100 S/ § E=  §33 52
Effect ol CECL
3:: = ;:,: :i:: 1?.:: addoplion 2 ez M noo@ e
= 1'; e = — Giras chasge-ofe (1) - ) (b (106)
Il: 5 T8 07w s 281§ B - ! - e
sl C — Mk [charge-oifs)
G Irversiment Grasdie heacchaledl 135 — i 3 (8n
K —harsnvetmant Grase Provdision | nelaase) Fa 136 197 4 [13) &G54
1. Secutbin-Dased Gam. ' wmiwcl B w;-rﬂ FusfleCanc (e, and s Oither T 3 (3 R T
[ M, 27 and O 31, 200, Foses oans ane presemaanty ower-
Mm.i‘vmmmhMmeh::mhmn- Decarmber 31 2020 £ 306 & 198 a1 & L
s ans, S Mok 2. Poreanl of s 1o
2. o bde'ch SoTRY NGl CMLNN IDaT Originabod i the RSomd nding Tuaness \olnd ioans 4% m% 5% SN 45% 100%
withen Fa Wea® Mragoemen buinass segmen
Socred e SEL
1 L iontial  and
Past Due Loans Held for Investmant before Allowanca R Comonis Fouit CRE. fiasl et Ctas  Totat
$is mlicra At Docemnber 31, 2020 Al Decamber 11, 2020 Decomber .21 5 BX 5 60 %67 5 W0 A a8
Rescertal noal eslate  § 09 5 337 G shurge-ofls - - - IR ]
Securties-based landing Prerision {rinasn) ] LH B ¥ 4 11
and O loans - Al it 51 iy = = — &
Total L] o 363 December 412019 § 115 5 WM 575 5 35 533 534
Parcent of lgans o
1. ek msjordy of iNe S=0unts. Bée Dol Gua o & padioe of ioss fnee B0 cays ' % 1% TH E 43% 100%

Monacerual Loans Held for Investment before Allowance

it Al
Decombar M, Deterser 11

] 22 ik

Compaale 5 M5 e
Sased land:ng Inskad ars -
Commessial real eslate 185 152
Rosdertal roal estats 138 o7
Secur bes-based londing and Othe loans 151 178
Totat' 5 893 5 564
Blonacorual ks withaol an ACL 5 LT T

1, Includes al ipans Fald for mypatrnd thal e B0 days or mone gl Sus as ol
Dracambes 31, 2021 and December 31, 2120

Troubled Debt Restructurings

At Al
Decembar 31, Do 31
§ i e 203 Farral
Loans, bafons ACE H 49 5 TET
Linntding coemembmianls - a7
Bigaance for crodil losses ] ¥

1, Prarcert of loarm I olal kans mepasents loace hed e vestmant by loan bpe &
Wokal inars Fepld or umerstmant

Allowance for Credit Losses Rollforward—Landing
Commitmants

Seosnd SBL
Landirg Fregiential  and
& i mibona Comporaly Facibes CRE  Feal Eslabe Othes  Tolal
Decomber 31, 2030 § 38 B Nns 15 723 536
Provisson | reloaso) ar F 10 — 3 52
Other [l 1 {1 = (4]
Decomber 31, 2021 § 356 § 41 § 20 § 1 5§ 26 5444
SEL
Lnding Fesidential and
§ i mllons Compevuly Facibes CRE Rasl Ealaly Other  Tolal
Decorbar 31,2010 § 20 § 37 § 7 § - & B 5@
Efteci of CECL
adoplion 41 (11} 1 k] (LI
Prescision (rlnasa 161 =2 T () 4 =3
Diner ] —_ 28] — 4 2
December 31, 2000 § 323 5 |5 11§ 1 § 23 538

Troubled debt restructunngs vpically include modifcanons
of interest rates, collateral requiremenis, other loan covenanis
and pavment exiensions. Sec Note 2 for funher infonmation
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Socurmd

Laring Rasderkal  and
§ b i Corporabe Facdtes CRE Real Extate Other Tola!
Decambar 31, M8 § L ] it § 3% — % 7 5204
Prowvsion {release) bl 11 4 = = 4z
Ot 3 — - - (1
Dacambar 31, 2018 § Farl oy TF - % 6 $2a1

The aggregate allowance for crodil losses for loans and
lending commitments decreased 1n 2021, prinanly reflecting
charge-offs, The provision for crodit losses on loans and
lending commitments was flal, primanly a5 a result of
portfolie growth, offset by the mmpact of clomges m loan
quality mix, The base scenano used in our ACL models as of
December 31, 2021 was genermied vsing a combination of
industry consensus coonoimic forecasts. forward mwes, and
imerally  developed and validated models, and assunes
continued growth over the forecast pered. Given (e nature of
our lending ponfolio, the most sensitive model inpat is LS,
gross domestic product,

Sec Mote 2 for a descnption of the ACL calculied under the
CECL methodology, including credit quality indicmtors, wsed
for held-for-investiment loans beginning in 2020 and for a
sty of the differences compared with the Firm's ACL
methodelogy umder e prior incurred koss model,

Salected Cradit Ratios

AL L1
December 3, 2021 Doosmber 31, 2020

ASL 8o okl ioans” o 5% 06 %
Monacorual saans o lolal loars’ 0.3 % 4%
ACL B0 nonacorual loans” TIZ % 1413 %

OOOo0oooonOn(eossr1)
ooooOoog
Morgan Stanley
11, Goodwill and Intangible Assets
Goodwlll Reliforvard
& iy millona s Wil i1} Tokal
Al Decamiver 31, 2019° § M1 5 BO01 § M1 T4
Fonsgn cumpngy & other 15 T -— 2
Acguend’ o0 A4 — 4470
Al Dttt 30, 000" $ 476 S1037E § A3 10635
Fareign currancy and oiher (41 (£ (&]] 7z
Ao’ - 15 5185 5270
Al Decnmiver 48, 5021* § 475 510325 § 6,003 516833
Accurmadtabed irparmenls” 5 673 3 - 3§ 2§ T

1, Balsrces mopewinid Be amcunl ol Be Fre's goodwll aler asccumolsted
ImpaerTrinty,

4 The Wealth Maragement bianaess sapmanl snourd rdlecs the impad of B
Frr's ponuesbann of E"TRADE on Ooiober 2, 2030

3 T reilimisl A Wisaln Do i 3
anoutli il B mpeel of e Firmts sojuriden of Elan WVanes o Aars 1,
o2l

4, Theee were nompammaents mecondoed o S0EY, 3001 or 2006,

Intangible Assets Rollforward

§ ip mllons 5 ] W Tetal
Al Dacarmisge 34, 2019 § 227 5 1808 % 52 § 207
Acgqurnd’ L b - 33Z
Crspasals [ray — - (T}
Amorzabion spensa [35) |30} 113 373
Oithar — 2 — -
Al Decarrioer 3, 2020 § 137 5 4809 5 44 § a6E0
Acquend” - 134 3844 3978
Disposals - [ ) - (361
Amorzabon sxpense (23} [455) 154) 164
Othar — Ll (1) =
A% December 31, 2021 S 104 § 4463 § 1793 § A.3E0

1. Adorwanos fof credd oasors for loans 1o okl oo edd for ayvasimisnt.

2 Monsocrual ans held ke ovesimenl, which Ao ioafd thal ane S0 days of Mo
foartl st x ol sl b lor il

3, Asorwands B crecl idses o icans 1o nonaccrual ioans Felkd for mremtmest

Employes Loans

Al Al
Dacamber 31, Decemrbar 31,

5 n millorg 02 00
Curmenliy eenployed by the Fim' 5 1613 § 3,100
Mo longar benplind iy o Firm? 13 140
Ernpicnm loans 5 3T % 3,240
MG 1153 {165)
Ermpioryes loans, net of AGL 5 3573 § 3,075
Ramainng nepdyren fenm. woighed

AVOTRGR o PRATE a7 54

1. Thase l0ans ane prodominanlly Corent
2. T lodns a0p pradosunisly bl dud for o genod of B0 diys of mode,

Emplovee loans arc granted in conjunction with 3 progrm
csablished prmanly o recroit cenam Wealth Management
represematives, are full recowrse and  generally  requine
periodic repavments, and are due i full upon termination of
complovinenl with the Finne These loans ane mecorded in
Customer and other receivables in the balance sheel. Sec Note
2 for a descoption of the CECL allowance meihodology,
including credin quality indicanors, for cmplovee loans.

111

1. Tha Waealln Maragemesl amoont principelly rallects e impec of e Fem's
eusition of E"TRADE on Oolots 7, 20020,

2 The Panig and Weath Mansgemist prncpally fefadt
e mpadl of tha Frms stguaton of Esten Vaccs on Manch 1, J00E, which
nciudes §2. ¥ bikon of non-amortizable nlangibes asssls

Intangible Assels by Type

Mon-armort zatie Amorizable
Gross ]

$ in miSgny AT Amodizabion
At Decembser 31, 201

Merngamant contracts  § 2420 % Fi- j: 1}

Cushormor nslatorships - B, 851 A58

Traderarmes - T 117

b - &0 o2
Taotal 5 2120 § 10,059 § 3,818
Al Dresommier 31, 3000

Menipgaement conlrngis 8 - f a2 120

Cushoemar relatonships — TAM 2904

Traderames . 4E0 =)

i - 167 T
Talal § — 5 BI45 § 3265
Eptmated annial amortizabion expenss foe (e nox fnoe ples § 530

The Firm's amual goodwill and non-amonizable imangible
assel impairment lesting as of July 1, 2021 did not indicate
anv impairment. For more information, see Note 2,
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12, Other Assets—Equity Method Investments Balance Shest Amounts Related to Leases
and Leases A e
Dezemiber 31, Decembe 30,
& i millBona 20 o]
Equity Mathad Investments e = r— T
At Al Oithaer kaboiless arsd socred oxpons e
Decembor 3, December 11 Loass tabd bes 5,157 5337
_S.nm 20 200 T p—
Ervesimants ] 2214 § 2410 Riamaining easa torm, in yaars & s
5in mithens 2024 2020 2019 Discount ratn 3% 32 %
Encen (oss)’ 5 14§ — 5 81

1. Includes mparmenls of Mo imesaimen! Manapemanl Dusedss SeQment's Ul
o svestmants of 41 mdson = 1he Toudh quatier of 2019 milaked ko & Thed-
paty axiel Sanage:

Eqquity method imvestments, other than investmenis in cerain

fund nterests, are swmmanzed above and are included 1n

Onleer assets in e balasce sheet with related income or loss

incliaded in Other revemes in the income stalement. Sec “Met

Asset Value Measurements—Furd limerests™ in Note 5 for the

carrving value of cerain of the Firm's fund iwtcresis, which

arc composed of gencral and limited pannership inlerests, as
well as any relied carried interest.

Japanese Securities Joint Venture

§in miloms 021 020 2019
Incaer from ivesiment in MUBISS 5 162 % Bl § 17

The Firm and Mitsubishi UF] Fimancial Group, [nc.
(CMUFG™) formed a joint venture in Japan comprising their
respective investment banking and sccurines businesses by
forming two joing venure companics, Mitsubishi UF] Morgan
Stanley Secunties Co., Lid, ("MUMSS" ) amd Morgan Stanley
MUFG Securities Co.. Lid. (“MSMS™) (the “leim Vemure™ ).
The Finm owns a 40% coonomic interest in the Jomn Veniure,
and MUFG owns the otler 60045,

Tl Finm's $0% voung imerest in MUMSS 15 accounted for
under the equity method within the Institutional Secuntics
business segmem and 15 mcloded in the equity  method
investment balances above. The Firm consolidates MSMS
into the Institutional Securitics busingss scgment, based on iis
§1% voling imerest.

The Finn engages in transactions in e ordinary course of
busingss  with MUFG and s affilises, for  example.
investinent banking, fnanciil advisory, sales and imading,
denvatives, imvestment management, lending, secuntnzimion
and other Mimancial services iransactions. Such imnsactions are
on substantially the same tenns as those that would be
avlable 10 unnclated  third  parties  for  comparable
Iransaclions.

Leases

The Firnm's leases are pancipally nen=cancelable operting
neal cstale leascs.

December 2021 Fonm 10-K

Lease Liabilities

$ in milons
2021 B8l
FGEF 1 BRG T
2033 (ol Fili)
2024 T L)
2035 593 P
M 52T 45T
Tl 28T 228
Tl undesconbed cash Rows ] 250
Impubed irfeensl [rE1) [l
Amounl on bakanos sheel H 5157 § 5387
Corrrnilegd ibigad. ned yol commarntnd § 4B0 § &8
Lease Cosls
£ i i 2021 00 019
Frad comis 3 B85 3 L
iariinbie coaln' 17 152
Less: Soblesse income &) (]
Talal lease cost, nel 5 1032 § BAE

N, Inchicrs DOTITION AT MSNisTanoE Changes nd oiher wanable costs nol nciudes
1 e miairsursmant of ROU axsels and inase Sabitas.

Cash Flows Statement Supplemental Infermation

& i g

2021 ]

a1a

Cash putfows—Lwass Sabilts

Mon-cash=—ROLU assels reconded for new

o o T s e

5 B3

572

[

Occupaney  lease agreements, in addition o base rentals,
generally provide for rend and operating expense cacalations
resulting from mcreased assessments for real cstate wves and

other charges.
13. Deposits

Deposils
At ]

Decembaer 31, December 31,
5 in millons Fir gl 2020
Savings and domand deposils H 33xT4T 2793
Time deposils 14,827 31 551
Total § 347 574 300 TER
Deporsils sulyect 1o FING insurants 5 230,854 FrtWeal
Deposits nol sutkpct k FONG msurancs $ 116,680 AT
T e R
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Time Deposit Maturities

At
Dwecembaer 31,
§ i il 203
2022 5 A
2023 4,087
2024 2818
2025 w3 ]
2026 n
Thareafier 343
Total [l 14,827
Uninsured Non-U.5. Time Deposit Maturities
AL
Decembser 31,
3 dn il 2021
Liga than 3 months ] 5
3 -Emonths AT
& - 12 monihs 21
Total 5 1,364

Deposits in U.5. Bank Subsidiaries from non-U.5. Depositors

ALD b 31, D b 31,
§ iy ey 2021 030
Deposits in LS. Bank gubsiderss
from non-LlLS . doepaosilnns 5 8631 % L]

14. Borrowings and Other Secured Financings

Maturities and Terrms of Borrowings

Frasees Coompars Bobrariae As
Fisd Vorabls Fasd Varabds M"Mr!'l Discmmbar 31,
£ miiora Pl Asw’  Rms  Ras' o Fo]

Dbl BT Ses ol e yaar oF ks
Maxilimosths % — 0,300 % 914 § 350 % 5764 & b

Oviginal maturses greater than one year

2021 B M
2022 §oASES 3 AT1 5 BE3 B 5SAE § 14,187 22,900
i) 08 839 w7 era AT Frd ]
o 1BASE 408 8T BeTy .8 HR )
225 4BET 4408 LEOT 484 25 5610 12,636
2028 TE T M2 5B 240 22042
Froraste: BN BE06 BETE 18400 110,827 1,643
Total FMTATT 529372 $12632 S5547 5 2370 5 21008
Total borrowings BWTATT 22572 510047 S9.501 § 200327 5 217000
wesmge
b MEEER am n9% 40% KM 27 % 20 %

1. Food e bomowings noiude mstiuments wih slap-un., sho-Cown and I8 ooopon
Paarluras,

2 Varabla rabe inclose Poss inal Dear nioresd Dasod on 8 vty of
i, enchoting LIBOR, fsdanl fnds rates and SOFR, in adaton 1o cedan nalea
caried 8 [or valus Wit vahous piyman] proves, nousng noles nked o [he
podomarca of 3 speclic index. @ basked of siocks, & specilo equity sacunty, &
ooy, & Crecd SRpOEUe O bkl of credd axposunes.

1. Owiy oy SOTONgE wiR ongans malunitbed grankes than onn ik Wistiod
iR S H SalUled UlEERG LS. Bt ne LS, Ssllsd AR AENGE &N
aachudis Enancual Fatruments e whech the (ar vakes opbon was. alecled. Virkually
all of Bo variabie rale noles ssund by subsidiares ame cared of fas vaokes 50 &
kgl Sttt Coupoen & ol emasanenglul,

000000000 m0(eos871)
ooooooo
Morgan Stanley
Borrowings with Original Maturities Greater than One Year
At AL
Decembasr 31, December 31,
§ i eoliona 201 20240
Sonio 5 M3TTE 8§ AR5
Subordirated 13,587 11083
oM 5 227361 § 13388
Wirghiisd awragn ftated matunty. in years LK 7.3

Certain scnior debi securitics are denominated in various non-
LES. dollar currencies and may be structured to provide a
retum (et is linked 1o equity, credit, commodiny or other
indices (eg., the consumer price mdex). Semior debi also may
be structured 1o be callable by the Finn or extendible a0 the
aption of Tobders of the senior debt scouritics,

The Firm's Bormowings inchede notes carmied and managed on
a fuir valse basis. These inchede instnnments whose payments
and redempiion values are linked to e pedommance of a
specific index, a baskei of siocks. a specific cquaty securiiy, a
comunodity, a credit exposure or basket of credit exposures;
and instmumenis with vanous inderest rate-related features,
including  step-ups. siep-downs and zero coupons. Also
included are unsecured commets which are mo classified as
OTC denvatives because they Tail net investinen critenia. To
minimize the exposure from such instnoecnts, the Firm las
entered into vanous swap contracts and purchased options
that cffectively comert the borrowing cosls into floating rates,
The swaps and purchased options wsed 10 econonically hedge
e embedded femures are derivatives and alse are carmied
fair value, Changes in fair valwe rckated 10 the notes and
coonomie hedpes are repofted in Trading revenucs. See Notes
2 and & for funler infonmaion on bormowings carmcd at Gair
value,

Senior Debt Subject to Put Options or Liquidity Obligations

AR AL
Decembaer 31, December 31,

£ in milodd 201 2020
Pul opbona ambedded i dibl agrenmants  § i g o
Liguidity oiligatons’ ¥ 16 § 1483
1 > 1 i o el irdeg.
Subordinated Dbt

2021 2020
Coriractual wiighlod sversge coupon 40 % A5 %

Subordimsed debt genermlly is issued 0 meet e capital
regquiremnenis of the Fine or ils regulsied subsidiaries and
pamarly 15 US  dollr depomimated.  Maunties  of
subordinated debd range from 2022 10 2056,

Rates for Borrowings with Original Maturities Greater than
One Year

A Decombar 31,
2021 D 1R
Certrachial woighiod sverage coupon’ 2T% ZZ8% 34%

Eflacivm wisghind mobage coupon afler swigs 1.6% 1.7% 38%

1, Winighled svrige cowpan wars catuiated ukieng LS and norrll S, dollars avlenesd
raters o machdes feancial retruments Tor whch B e value cpbon: e alechsd.
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In general, other than scouwritics imventorics and cusiomer
bakinees Mamced by secunsd funding sources. e majonly of
the Firm's asscts are Danced with a combinstion of deposits,
short-term funding, floating mte long-term debt or lixed mie
long=term debt swapped w0 a Moaung rate. The Finm uses
interest rate swaps 1o morg closcly match these bormowings 1o
the duration, holding penod and interest nole clursctenstics of
the assets being funded and 10 manage interest mie nsk. These
swaps cifeciively conver cerin of ihe Finn's fixed maie
bormowings mto foatng rale obligmions. In addition, for non=
LS. dollar currency bormowings ila are not used 1o fund
assets i the same currency, the Firm has emtered imio
curreey swaps that effectively comven the bormwings o
L5, dollar obligations,

The Firm's use of swaps for asset and liability managemen
alfects its effective average bormow ing mic.

EDINETOOOO
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Morgan Stanley

further information on ofler sccurcd  financings relied o
WIES andd secuntiaation actvities,

Maturities of Transfers of Assets Accounted for as Secured
Financings'

At A

Decambar 31,  Doosmber 31,
5 in mdSons 01 2070
20 5 303
HFZ H B 1454
23 LE2S &6
e l] = 14
s 7 3
20 H &
Tunra s 21 A5H
Total 5 1,556 & 1520
1, Exclucies 5 Bk wrsinr ag 0 mpurchase and Securlies Kunod

For iranslers of assets than Tl do meel accounting cntena for

Diher Secured Financings a sale, (e Finm continues to record the asseis and recognizes
At A 1he associaied liabilities in the balance sheet.
December 3, December 31,
201 200 -
r_.,.. : 15. Commitments, Guarantees and
wnal maturlios: E 3
One year o loss 5 ast3 s nas Contingencies
Girpiie [Fan oo year 5,483 5410
Total 5 10041 § 15 853 Commitments
Trarsfors of aiasts actoonied o &8
e bty 1558 1558 Yoars to Maturity ot December 35, 2021
Loss
£ iy millona s 1 1.3 a5 O & Total
Maturities and Terms of Other Secured Financings' Landing:
I
D 31, 3031 Al m;ﬂq S 12640 522478 540232 § BTI 103088
Fuaisd Lanmhak Desosmiber 31,
i Fltﬂ Rate” Toa P R e ST S.108 1818 B 13408
Original maturities of one yoar or less: METS#T;J
Bed §2 months 5 — 5378 5 3ITS 0§ 10,453 estale 1213 G5 28 44 A0
Sacunlies.based
Original maturithes groater than ons year: londing and Dihar wae 2am s 4 6083
2021 £ 1455 E g
227 5 14 F 237T: & 2EBE 1405 francing recevabies FEL] - A = 45,9485
203 181 1633 1504 2T Certral coundirpaty 300 - -  11EM 120
224 — >33 233 3 Imvistment actrilies 1,195 184 50 arz 1,801
2025 b = ] 34 Lethern o erodit and
2026 francial
- ) - - guarartens 26 — = 3 Fo
Tharesfiar Ead 345 ) 408 Total § 7048 § 41582 S SOESD § 23494 $104.903
Tedal §  inh 5 4473 5 aTh 3 380 Lending commilments paricipald b Erird partes § 7T
‘Wiz hied dreecage Farwart-stan, el oA o P e
Cinipon # porod-ond’ WM OT%  07% 06 % e ! ol " 5 12847

1. Exciuchin ranalens of et tocunind ke ol secund franting. Sie sutsagoe
Labés,

2. Wariobée rafe ofar sscured Tnancings Boar miefest based on g vonely of ingdoes,
mciufng LBOR and federal funds redes. Amounls incleds noka ciemied ol fae
VB Wil VETOUS PAYTER BROVERDNS, SOutng moles nked 10 ety oedl
ooy of olfv ndor.

Includes oaly oihied eecuted Trancings with onginal matuies grealer Ban oo
v ‘Wisghind mverage coupon B Giculied ullmng ULS. and moneU.5. doler
irderesl rales &l enchades obned Secunsd Francings Mal an inked iy non-infenes
iy A o wench D e kol GPR6R Wik dbactia

e

Other secured financings include ihe ligbilities relaed 10
certuin ELMs, transfers of financial assets that ane sceounted
for as fmancings rather than sales, pledged commodities,
consolidated VIEs wlere the Finm 15 deemed 1o be the
primary  beneficiany and other secured borrowings, These
liabilitics are generally pavable from the cash flows of the
nelmted assels accounted for as Trading assets. See Nole 16 for

December 2021 Form 10K

Since commutments assocuated with these mstruments ey
cxpire unused. the amounts shown do not necessarily reflect
the actual futwre cash funding requirements.

Tipes of Commitmenis

Lending Cowminnents, Lending  commitmenis  primarily
represent the noticl amownt of legally binding obligations 1o
provide funding 10 chients for differcnt bpes of loan
trnsactions, For svndications (et are led by the Fimm, the
lending comumitments accepted by the bormower but not vet
closed are net of the amouns agreed 1o by counterpanics ol
will paricipate in the syndication, For syndications that the
Firm participaies in and does not lead, lending conumitments

114
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accepled by the borrower but not vei closed include only the
arsouil Ut the Finm expects 1t will be allocated lrom the lead
svidicate bank. Duc to the nature of the Finm's obliganions
uncder  the commitments, tese amounts nclede  certnin
commitments parcipmed to third paries.

Forward-Starting  Secured Financing  Receivables. Tlis
amoum includes secunitics purchased under agreemenis io
resell and secuntics bomowed that the Finm has emered indo
prior 1o the bakimce sheet date that will senle after the balance
shoet date. These transactions are primanly  securced by
collateral from U5, govermment agency securitics and other
sovercign government oblignions when they are funded.

Central Connterpariy. These commitments relme 10 the
Firm's membership in ceriain cleannghouses and  arc
contingem upon e defaull of a cleannghouse member or
other siness cyenis.

Underwriting Comnnnnments, The Finm provides underwrting
commitments in conmection with its capital mising soures 1o
a diverse group of corporate and other institutional clicnds.

frvestnreny Acoivities.  The Finm sponsors several non-
conselidated bnvestment management funds for Uiind-pany
investors where it tvpically acts as gencral partner of, and
imvestment advisor 1o, these funds and tvpically commits 1o
ivest @ iinonty of the capital of such lunds, with
subscribing thind-party investors contribating the nejority,
The Finm has contmctual capital conumitments, guaranioss
and coumcrparty  arangemens with  respect o these
imvestment managemen funds.

Letters af Credit and Cilver Financial Cruarantees. The Firm
Tas outstanding letters of credit and other fimancial guaraniees
issucd by third-party banks 10 centain of the Finm's
counterpartics. The Finm is contingently lizble for these letiers
of eredil and other fnancial guaranices, which are primarily
used to provide collateral for sccurifics and commoditics
traded and 1o satsly vanous margin regquircmens i lico of
depositing cash or securitics with these coumerpariics.

OOOo0oooonOn(eossr1)
Ogoooood
Morgan Stanley
Guarantees
At Becarmiser 31, 2021
Nt maim “"ﬁ"ﬁ"‘.ﬁ“‘i":ﬁ.‘ o wrng
Lirss Al
5 i milions a1 -3 35 Cvr S (Lisbifty}
Man-credll darvalves LT003 DIS4SE M MAEM W2
ares u:m:w
e msued” 1,354 1,068 auz 27 45
Wearual vl fuaranioes s F] - = =
Liguity (ot A&, 100 — - - ]
VWhahp e 5340 guanarlings - - T 2304 =
Sl Fabon tpranlatem
B T e — - = THALT 1421
Cianacal partnes guaranioe. 341 " az 152 {FT}
Chi Searing guitnie [ = = = =

1, Tha camying smourks of Gervatve conbracs 1hal meot he socouning definbion of
& QuErEnisO @Ne Shin 0N & e hasi. For fufhir oo o ot
ennlinets, s Nole 7.

2. Themn amoonbl nclude cafain mied slindiny oo of creddl patcpated fo fhed
parten, bolaing S0T bdkon of nofonst and collslsmlrecourye, dua o e ratune of
fra Firmva cidigalbions under thissa mmangemants. As of Decembe: 31, 2021, ha
caimyieg amoind of standsy iers of oredd and othar Enancisl guarankes S
bty B alrinted 5 el berkiard of S24 il

3. Ropliisd liy eismnconl 80 fiddaflsl MEASiGe Securieaboii.

Tipes of Guarantees

New-Creelit Dverivarives. Cenain dervative contracts meet the
accounting delimtion of a guaranice, including conain writlen
options, comingent forward contracts and CDS (see Note 7
regarding credit dervatives in which the Firm has sold crodit
prodection o the counterpary which are excluded from ihe
previous table). For non-credit denvative contracts that meet
ihe accounting defimiion of a gearaniee the notional ameunt
i5 nscd as the maximnm potemtial pavout for cenain dervative
coniracls, such as wnllen dnlenest rate caps and writien foreign
curmency options, The Firm evaluates collaterl requiremenis
for all dervatives, including denvatives that do mot mect the
accounhng delinition of a puasamec. For the effects of cash
collateral and coundcrpany netling, scc Note 7.

In certain situations, collateral may be held by the Finm for
ihese contracts thal meel the defimbon of a puarantee.
Generallv, the Firm sets collasiermal  requircments by
counterparty 5o that the colluer! covers various trnsactions
and products amd & not allocated specifically o andividual
comracts. Also, the Firm may recover ampunts related o the
underlving asset delivered to the Firm under the derivative
conlret.

Standby Letters of Credit and Other Financial Grarantees
Tusmed, In connection with its corporate kending business and
other corporate activitics, the Firm provides standby letters of
credii and other Ninancial guarmnices 1o counerparties. Such
armngements represent obligations 1o nuke pavments o third
parties if the coumterparty faals 1o fulfill 1s obligation under a
porowing armngement or other comtraciual obligation. A
majonity of the Firm's standby leters of credit are provided
on behall of cownterpartics that are investment grade. 1F the
counterpanty Fails 1o fulfill its contracheal obligation. the Firm
lus access o collaterl or recourse thal would approxinmale its
obligation.

December 2021 Form 10K
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Market Verliee Civavantees, Market value guarntecs arc issucd
1o guarantes mely pay e of a specilied retum o vestons
in cenain affordable housing tax crodit funds, These
guaramices are designed to retum an imvestor's comribution 1o
a Tund and the ivestor's share of @x losses and Ly credits
expected to be generated by a fund,

Liguidity Facilivies. The Firm has entered into liguidity
facilitics with SPEs and other counterpartics, wherchy the
Firm 15 requined 1o make corain payimems if losses or delauhs
occur. Pamarily, the Firm acts as liguidity provider 1o
municipal bond scountization SPEs and for stmdalonc
municipal bomds in which ihe holders of beneficial interesis
issued by these SPEs or the holders of the individual bonds,
respectively, lave the nglt 1o tender their inlerests for
purclase by the Firm on specificd dates at a specified price.
The Firm oficn may have recourse to the anderlving asscis
held by il SPES in il evenl pavinents are mequired under
such liquidity Facilitics. as well as make-whole or recourse
provisions with (e trst sponsors. The recourse amount often
exceeds the maximum  potential  pavoul amount of the
guaramice, Substantiglly all of the underlving asscls in the
SPEs are mvestmen! grade. Ligpudity  Gwcilities provided 1o
municipal tender option bond (rusis are classified as
denvalives,

Whale Loan Sales Coiarantees. The Finn has provided, or
otherwise agreed 10 be responsible for, represcnlations and
warraniics regarding certain whaobe loan sales. Under certain
circumstances, the Firm may be requined to repurchase such
asseis or make other paymenis related 10 such asseis il such
mepreseniations and warmantics ane breached, The Firm's
maxamm potential payvoul related 1o such represenlations and
warrantics is oqual 1o the current UPE of such loans. Since the
Firm no longer services these loans, it has no iformetion on
the curmrent UPB of those loans. and, accordingly, the amount
included in the previous table represents the UPE at the time
of the whole boun sabe or at the ume when the Finn Last
serviced any of those loans, The curremt UPE balances could
be substantially lower than the maximum potcntial payout
aiounl mcluded o the previous able. The relmed Labiliy
primarily relates 1o sabes of loans (o the federal morgage
WECTICICS.

Securitization Represemiations and Warraniies. As par of the
Firm's  Institutional — Secunties  business  scgment's
securitizations and related activities. the Finm has provided. or
otherwise agreed 1o be responsible for, mepresentations and
warrantics  megarding  cenlain asseis  mnsferred o
secunitiztion transactions sponsored by the Finm, The extem
and nature of (e representations and warranties, if any, vary
among differeni secuniizations. Under ceriain circumstances.
the Firm may be required 1o repurchase cenain asscls or make
other payvments related 1o such assets i such represemations
and warrics ane breached, The maximam podential amogn
of future payments the Firm could be required 10 make would
be equal 1o the current outstandimg balances of, or losses
mssociaicd with, the assets subject o breaches of such
represendations and warranties, The amount meluded n the
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previous table for the maximum potential pavout includes the
current UPB or lnstoncal losses where kuown and the UPB at
the time of sale when the current LIPE is not known

Gromeral Partrer Grargefces, As a general panner in cemain
incesiment management funds, the Firm receives ceriam
distobutions from the pannerships when the etum cxceeds
specified performance targets according 1o the provisions of
the pannership agreements. The Firm may be required 1o
returmt all or a pormion of such distnbutions o the limited
partners in the evem the limited panners do not achicve a
cemain relum as specificd in the varous  parinership
agreements, subject o cenaim limitations.

Chent Clearing  Guaramlees. The Fimmn is a  sponsosing
member of the Government Securitics Division of the FICC's
Sponsored Cleaning Model. Cliemts of the Firm, as sponsoncd
members, can teansact in overmight and term securitics
repurchase and resale agreements, which are cleared through
e FICC. As sponsoring member. the Firm guarantees o the
FICC the prompt and full payment and performance of ils
clients” ebligations. In 2000, the FICC s spomsored cleanng
medel was updated such that the Firm could be responsible
for liquidation of a sponsorcd member's sccowm  and
guaraniees any resulting loss to the FICC i the evem the
sponsored momber fails 1o fully pay amy net liquidation
amenunt due from e sponsored member 1o the FIOC,
Accordingly. the Firm's maximuwm potemtial payoul aanount
reflects the todal of the estimated net liquidation amounts for
spongored member accounts. The Firm minimizes  credit
exposure under this guamniee by obiaining a securnity indercss
in s sponsored member clients” collateral and  their
commciual nglits under sponsorcd  membor  IRMSCIONS,
Therefoee, the Finn's exposure is cstimeied to be an amount
substantially  lower than the maximom  potential  pavont
amount. The collateral amouni in which ibe Firm las a
sccurity intercst is approximately equal to the maximum
potential pavout amount of the guarmniee.

Other Guarantees and Indemnitics

In the nommal course of business, the Firm provides
ruarantees and indemmifications i a vancly of tmnsicions,
These provisions generally are standard contraciual temns.
Cenain of these goaranices and  indemnifications  are
descnbed below:

+ fwdemmivies. The Firm provides standard indemmities 10
countcrpanics for cenain contingent ¢xposuncs and 1axes,
including U5, and foreign withholding taxes, on imerest
and other payments made on dermatives. secuntics and
stock lending tmnsactions, certain anmuity  products and
other fimancial armngements, These indemnity  pay menis
could be required based on a clange in (he tax laws, a
change m inferpreiation of applicable tax milings or a
clumpe in factual circumstances. Cemain COMBICES contamn
provisions that enable the Firm to terminate the agreement
upen the occurrence of such evenls The muramum
potential amoum of future pavments tar the Finm could be

&
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mequired to make under these indemnifications cannot be
cslumated.

Evehange Clearinghouse Member Guarantees. The Firm is
a member of vanous exchanges and cleannghouses that
irude and clear sccuntics andlor denvalive conimcis
Assocuted witl its membershup, e Finn may be required
i pay a cenain amoun as determined by the exchange or
the clearinghouse in case of a default of anv of its members
or gy a proportonate share of the financial ebligatons of
ancther member thet may default on its obligations 1o the
cxchange or the cleannghowse, While the ules governing
different exchange or cleannghouse memberships and the
forms of these guaraniccs may vary, in general the Firm's
obligations under these miles wounld anse only i the
exchange or clennglouse had previously exhavsted ils
TCSOUNCCS.

In addition, some clearinghouse miles requine members 1o
assuie o proportionile share of losses resultimg Froom the
clearinghouse’s investiment of guaraniee fund comnbutions
and mtial margin and of oiher losses unrelated 1o the
defimlt of a cleanng member. i such losses exceed (he
specified resources allocated for such purpose by the
cleannghouse.

The nurximum potential pavout under these niles canmot be
estimated The Firm has not recorded any contingent
liability in its financial statememnts for these agreements and
belioves that amy potemtial requirement 0 make payioents
under these agreements is /emote,

= Merger amd Acguisition Guaramiees. The Finn newy, from
me (o tme, in s mle as imvestment banking advisor be
recquined 1o provide memntees in connection wilh certam
Evropean merger and acquisition transactions. 11 requircd
by the regubaing methoritics, the Firm provides @ guaramce
then the acquirer in the tmmgaction los or will have
sulficient Nunds 10 compleie the transaction and would then
be required to make the acquisition pavments in the cvem
e acquirer's fumds ame nswlficient at the completion date
of the iransaction. These amangemenis generally cover ihe
time frame from the transsction offer date 1o s closing date
and, iherefore. are genermlly shon tenm in naiure. The Finn
belicves the likelibood of any pavment by the Firm under
these armngements 15 remode given the level of s due
diligence in its role a8 investingnt banking advisor,

In addition, in the ordinary course of busingss, the Firm
puammecs the debt andfor cerain trading  obligations
fincluding obligations asseciated with demvatives. Tomign
cxchange  commcts  and  the  sciilement  of  physical
commoditnes) of cenain  subsidianes. These  guaranioes
generally are entity or product specific and are required by
investors or inefing coumerpartees, The actvilics of the
Firm's subsiduines covered by ilese puwaraniees {ncluding
any related debt or imding obligations) ane included in the
faneal statemends.

EDINETOOOO

O0O000oo0gOooOoo(eoessr1)

Morgan Stanley
Contingencics
Legal

In addiion o the matiers described in the following
pamgrapls, in the nommal course of business, the Firm las
been named, from time (o tme, as a defendan invanous kegal
actions, incheding  arbitrations, <lass actions and  other
lingation, ansing i connection with its activitics as a global
diversified financial services instiistion. Cenain of the actual
or threptened legal actions include claims [or substantial
compensaory  andfor punithve damages or <laims  for
indeterminate amoums of damages, In some cases, the entitics
et would otherwise be the primary defendants in such cases
are bankrupt of are in fmncial distress. These actions lave
included, but are not limited 1o, antitrust, false claims act,
residential morgage and credil ensis-related maners.

While e Firm has  dentificd below sy andivadual
proceedings where the Finn believes a matenal loss o be
reasonably possible and reasonably estimable, there can be no
assumnce thal material losses will nol be incurred from claims
than have not vet been assened or those where potential losses
Tewe nod yet been determined (o be probable or possible and
reasanably estimable.

The Firm contests liability andfor the amoum of damages as
appropante 0 cach pending  manwer.  Where  available
information indicates that it is probable a liability had been
inenrred al the date of the fmancal stmements and the Finm
can reasommibly estineue the amount of (i loss, the Firm
accmucs the estimated loss by a charge to income,

& i malBona 202 2020 rary =]
Limjal repansens L R

The Firm's legal expenses can, and may o the future,
Muctume from peried to period. given the currem environment
regarding  government imvestigations and private litigation
alfecting global financial services firms, meluding the Finn,

In numy  procecdings and iwvestigabons, however, il 1S
inherently difficult 1o determine whether ame loss is probable
ar ¢ven possible or (o cstimale the amount of any loss. In
addition, even whene a loss 15 possible or an exposun: 1o koss
exists in excess of the lability already accrued witl respect 1o
a previously recognieed loss contingency. il 15 wol always
possible 1o reasonably estimate the size of the possible loss or
range of loss, particularly for procecdings and investigations
where the factual record s being developed or comtested or
where pluntilfs or govermment enfitics seek substantial or
indeterminsie damages, restitution, disgorgement or penaliics,
Mumenous issues may need 1o be resolved before a loss or
additional loss, or range of loss or addilional range of loss,
cin be reasonably estimated for 2 proceeding or imvestigation,
including  through  poentally  lengtly discovery  and
determination of imponmant factual matiers, determination of
issucs welated o class certification and the caloulation of
damages or other reliel. and consideration of novel or
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unscitbed legal questions relevant 10 the proceedings or
veslizalions in quéestion.

For centain other legal procecdings msd imvestigntions, the
Firm can estimale reasonably possible losses, additional
losses, ranges of loss or ranges of addiiional loss in cxcess of
amounts accred but does vol believe, bused on curment
knowledge and afier consuliation with counsel, that sech
losses could have a matenal adverse effect on the Finm's
fmancial  stements as a whole, oler than the maters
refierred to in the following paragraphs.

On Scptember 23, 2004, Financial Guammy  Insumnce
Compamy ("FGIC™) filed a complaint against the Firm in the
Supreine Court of the Stae of New York Counly (“Supteme
Court of NY7) stvled Furanciel  Guorandy fnsurance
Compeany v. Meorgan Stanley ABS Capital 1 fnc. ef al. relating
o the Morgan Stanley ABS Capital [ Inc. Trst 2007-MNC4,
The complaint asserts clums for breach of commeotl and
fraondulent indocemem and alleges. among other ings. that
the loans in the trust breached various represenations and
warranties and el defendants made unirue statements and
matenal omissions 1o induce FGIC 1o issue a fimancial
guaranly policy on cerain classcs of cerilicates that had an
original  balance of approxinmely 5876 mullion.  The
complaint secks, among oller relicl, specific performance of
the loan breach remedy  procedurcs in the  transaction
documems,  compensmory.  consequential  and  punitive
damages, aitomeys’ fees, interest and cosis. On January 23,
2017, the court demed the Finn's moton 0 dismiss the
complaint. On Septemiber 13, 2008, the Appellate Division.
First Department ("First Depariment”™) affinmed in part and
reversed i opart the lower coun's order denving s Finm's
mioion o dismiss the complaint, On December 20, 2018, the
First Department denicd plaintifT™s motion for leave t appeal
1o the New Yok Coun of Appeals (“Court of Appeals™ or. in
the alicragive, for re-argumend. On July 30, 2021, e Firm
filed a modion for summary judgment. On February 4, 2022,
the partics eniered into a confidentaal senlement agrecment,
which is comditioned on conswmmuttion of the Firm's
agrecineil 10 selle Dewtsche Bank Netwonal Trust Company
solely i s capacity ax Trustee of the Morgar Stanfey ABS
Capited § fre. Trust 2007-NCJ v Morgan Stanley Mortgage
Capired Heddings LLC ax Swpeessor-beMerger 1o Maorgan
Sterley Mortgage Capitel fne, amd Morgan Stafey ABS
Capited [ fne. Buged on currently svailable informution, the
Firm belicves that it coubd incur a loss in this action of up o
approximately $277 million, the total ongiml unpaid balance
of the mongage loans for wiach e Firm recemved repurchase
demands from a cemificate holder and FGIC that the Firm did
not repurchase, plus pre- and post- judgment imerest, fees and
costs, a8 well as claim payments that FGIC has nade and will
make in the fisure, In eddition, plyintiffl is secking 1o expand
the mumiber of loans al issue and the possible range of loss
could increase.

On Janary 23, 2015, Dewscle Bank  Natiomal Trst
Company, in its capacity as truste, Niled a complaint agains(
the Firm siyled Dewvtsche Bank National Trast Cempany
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sobelv in its capacity as Trustee of e Morgan Stonley 85
Capital § fne. Trwst 2007-NCF v Morgar Standev Mortgagpe
Capited Holdings LiAT as Successor-bv=Nevger to Movgan
Stanfey Mortgage Capital Tnc., and Morgan Stanfey ASS
Capital § fne.. pending in the Supreme Coun of NY. The
complaint asserts claims for breach of contract and alleges,
ameng other things, that the boans in s trest, which had an
ongiml prnncipal balance of approximately S1.05 billion,
breached  various  mepreseniafions  and  warmaniics,  The
complamt secks, among other rehiel. specific pedfomemee of
ihe loan breach remedy procedurcs in the transaction
documents,  compensmory,  conscquemtial,  rescissory,
couitable and punitive danmges. attomeys” Tees, costs and
other relmted expenses. and interest. On December 11, 2015,
the coun granted mopan and densed i pan the Firm's motion
io dismiss ihe complaini. On October 1%, 2018, ibe coun
granted the Fimm's motion for leave to amend its answer and
1o stay the case pending resolution of Deutscle Bank National
Trst Company s appeal (o the Court of Appeals in ansther
case, stvled Dentsche Sank National Trust Company .
Barelavs Beank PLC, reparding the applicable stmute of
limitations. On Jameary 17, 2009, the First Depanment
reversed the tnal conn's order 1o ihe extent that o had gramed
in pant the Firm's motion to dismiss (he complaint. On June 4,
2009, the First Depanment granted the Finn's motson for
leave o appeal is Janery 17, 20019 decigion 1o (e Count of
Appeals, On March 19, 2020, the Firm filed a motion for
partel swnmary judgment. On December 22, 2020, the Courd
of Appeals reversed the Fist Department and reinstated the
tria] court’s order 1o the cxtent it had granted in pan the Finm's
motion o dismss the complant, On Febrnmmy 4, 2022, the
parties entered into an agreement 1o seitle (he litigation, wlach
is conditioncd on approval by cither cenificatcholders in a
consenl solicilation of 8 courl ina st instctionl
proceeding. Based on currenily available information, the
Firm believes that it could mcur a loss n this action of up o
approsimaicly $277 million. the waal original unpaid balance
of the morngage loans for which the Finm received repurchase
demands from a cerificate holder and a monoling insurer tat
the Firm did not repurchase. plus pre- and post-judgment
imterest, fees and costs, bt plaintff is secking to expand the
nmumber of loans at 1ssue and (he possible mange of loss could
ngresse,

Tax

In matters sivied Ceve smmber 33637 and Cose nwnber
154353, the Duich Tax Avthonty (“Duich Anihoniy ™} is
challenging in the Dutch couns the prior set=0ff by the Finn
of approximately €124 million {(approximatcly $141 million)
plus accmed merest of withholding tax crodits agminst the
Finm's corpomtion tax liabilitics for the tax years 2007 1o
2012, The Dutch Authority alleges that the Firm was not
entithed 10 receive the withlolding tax credints on the basis,
ier alix, ithat & Firm subsidiary did not hold kegal uile 1o
cemain securitics subjoct to withholding tax on the relevant
dates. The Dutch Awilority has also alleged that the Firm
Tailed 1o provide cenain information to the Duich Authonity
and to keep adequate books and records. On Apnl 26, 2018,
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the District Cour in Amsterdim issued a decision dismissing
the Duteh Authonty 's clams willi respect 1o certan of the tax
vears in dispute, On May 12, 2020, the Coun of Appeal in
Ansterdam grmted the Duich Authoniy s appeal in nmatiers
re=sly led Cove munber 1800318 and Caxe number 1500319,
On Jung 22, 020, the Firm filed an appeal against the
decision of the Count of Appenl i Amsierdiom before the
Dutch High Coun. On January 29, 2021 the Advecaie
General of the Duich High Court issued an advisory apinion
on the Finn's appeal. which repected the Finm's principal
grounds of appeal. On Febmary 11, 2021, the Finm and the
Dhrtch Authority cach responded 1o this opinion. On June 32,
2021, Dunch criminal authonines sought varous documens in
conmection with an imvestigition of the Firm related o the
civil claims assered by the Dutch Authorily concermuing the
sccuracy  of ibe Firm subsidiary’s tax reiums amd ihe
maintenance of its books and records. for 2007 o 2002,

16. Variable Interest Entities and Securitization
Activities

Overview

The Finm is imvolved with vanons SPEs in the normal course
of business. In most cases, these entilies are decmed 1o be
VIEs.

The Firm's vanable interests in Y1ES include debl and cquity
intercsts, comumilmenis. guaranices, denvalive  insimemenis
and certaim fees. The Finm's imvolvement with V1Es anses
prinunly from:

« Inferesis purclased in conneciion with nerket-making
activities, sccurtics held in its  Ivestment  securnilies
porfolio and  retansed  amterests held as a0 result of

sccuritization  activities,  including  re-securitization
IRNSC oS,
» Guaramtecs issucd and  residual  inlerests  retaned  in

conneciion with municipal bond securnilizations

Loans made o and imvestiments in VIEs thar hold debi

couity, real estale or olser assels,

Denvatives cidened into with VIEs,

Structumig of CLM: oF other assel-repackaging noles

designed o meet the imvestment objectives of clicnis,

« Other structured transactions designed 10 provide tax-
cificient vields to the Firmn or its clienis,

The Firm determines whether it is the prinwary beneliciary of a
VIE upen iis mitial imeolvement with ihe VIE and reassesses
whether it is the primary benefician on an ongoing basis as
bong a5 il has amy continuing involvement with e VIE. This
determination is based upon an anabyvsis of the design of the
YIE, including the VIE s structure and actvitics, the power 1o
make sigmficant economic decisions beld by ihe Fiem and by
other partics, and the variablc imenests owned by the Firm and
other panics.

The power 1o nuke the most significant econonmic decisions
may lake a nomber of different forms in different tvpes of
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VIEs, The Firm considers servicing or collierl mamgement
decisions a8 representing he power 16 make e most
significant cconomic  decisions  in iransactions such as
securitizations or CDOs. As a mesull, the Fim does not
consolidae securtizations or CDOs Tor which it does not act
a5 the servicer or collaierml manager wnless it holds comain
other nghts o replace the servicer or collatenl mumieer or to
requarg s liquidation of the entity, 17 the Firm serves as
servicer or collaierml manager, or has ceriain other nghis
described in the previous sentence. the Firm amadvecs the
ierests im the YWIE tha it holds and consolidaics only those
WIEs for which it holds a potentially significam imerest in the
VIE.

For many ransactions, such 15 re-seouniiznon IRHscions,
CLNs and other asscl-repackaging nofes, there ane no
significant economic decisions made on an ongoing basis. [n
these cazes, (e Firm focuses its analves on decisions made
prior to the initil closing of the tmnsaction and a1 the
temuination of the imnsaction. The Finm concluded in most of
these transactions that decisions made pror 10 the initial
closing were shared between the Firm and the initial imvestors
baged upon the nature of e assets, including whether the
assels were issued in o transaction sponsongd by (he Firm and
ihe extent of the mfommation available o the Firm and to
investors, the numbser, natune and ivolvement of imvestors,
other mghis held by ihe Firm and  investors,  ihe
stanckrdizition of the legal documenmation and the level of
comtinung imcolvement by the Firm, mcloding the amount
and tvpe of imtcrests owned by the Finn and by other
ivestors. The Finn focused s comrol deasion on any mght
Ield By the Firm or invesiors relaied io the termination of ihe
VIE. Most re-sccuntization imnsactions, CLNs and other
assel-repackaging notes ave no such termination rghis.

Consolldated VIE Assets and Liabllitles by Type of Activity'

Al Decambaer 31, 2021 Al Decembes 39, 2000

& i ol VIE Assets VIE Lnbilbes VIE dazpls VIE Liabities
MARST - 1477 % 408 % S0 % 17
Invmgtmani vehics” kit 04 e 355
Opatng et son N =
Cithae 510 286 FAE 3
Tatsl 5 2 8 1028 & 2118 % 414

4, Corlan pror porod amounts fuve been echssfed B oonlorm 0 B oument

SRR
2 AMOURE Poiucs Marmeclots haousd by A Enbal MOAZag0 A, commoial
=igage Barm and olfve trpet of neh including conaumor o Sommanas
panpli ard may Be o an o secunly lom, The value of soiets w debermirid
s o thae Laer vl o T labdBas and Tha indesests owndsd By This Finm in sich,
WVIES a8 iho Rer vl bor B abad b and wininshs ownad o e Dlseryaiie.
3, Amdusti ficlss Eiliveel Tunss &5 CL0R
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Consolidated VIE Assets and Liabilities by Balance Sheet
Caption

At Al
Decombaer 31, Decomber 31,

5 i s 203 2020
AEsEtE
Cash ard cosh equslents. 5 M1 5 -
Trmding assats &l lni vake 1,965 1,445
Errveesimaend sacurilins ar -
St B purehassid undar sgr s 1o

el 00 -
_Eudnrrmr and plhar recanables | 23
Enlnng e assels &5 =31
Other ansets 253 53
Todal 5 292 § 118
Liakilhies
Other secored financings § TeT & G
Dither labubes and oo epormes o] AR
Total ] 1038 § A4

—

Blonconinolting intevesis 5 118 & 1585

Comsolidmed VIE assets and liabilities are presemted in the
previons tables aficr intercompany climinations. Generally,
most assels owned by comsolidued VIEs cannod be removed
unilaterally by the Firm and are nol available o the Firm
while the relmed labilises issued by consoledated VIES ane
moa-recourse 1o the Finn However. in cenain consolidated
WIEs, the Firm cither has the unilvieral right 1o remove assels
or provides addiional recourse through denvatives such as
tolal retum swaps, guaranices or other forms of invelvemen.

I general. e Firm's exposure 1o loss in consalidated VIES is
limiied o losses thai would be absorbed on ihe VIE net asseis
mecognized o Ws fAnoncial stiements, ool of  amowns
absorbed by third-pany variable interest holders.

Naen-consclidated VIEs

ARk Decembser 31, 2021

& by ralerss MARS' CDO MTOR  OSF  Otherd

WIE msals UPE) 246,071 3 667 S6.08% S208b § S2111

Maximum sxpasuns o loss”
Dot and mquity inlenests 518062 5 120 3 — 54450 510339
Diervalre and other contracts - — 4100 — 5,599
Commilments, Garaniaes and

ol T —_ —_ - 1,005
Tetal S 18833 5 129 54100 51459 § 16943
Carrying valus of varlable interesis—Assais
Dbt and wguity inlerests 318062 5 129 5 — 1459 210238
Dervalre and olher contracis — — 5 — 2006
Tetal 518062 5 129 § 5 51459 512345
Addnonal VIE pssets ownsd” 5 15.]“1

Carrying valus of variable interests—Liabilities
Dadvvalroy ald glhor condmcts § - =% =% —§ 82
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A1 Decamber 3, 2030

§ in migny MaBS'  CDO  MTOB  OSF  Otrer’

WIE assets (UPE) 14153 S3sr7 SEs2e S2161 S48
Maxbmum sxposure to loss'

Dol ! el y ireesls SMMT 8§ 2T 5 = 51,187 511008
Dorriative and ot coniracts -— - A2 -_— 683

Commiments, guarniess and
other ey - — — Ees]

Tatal § 271976 § X5T §4.425 51187 §17.355
=i e e oot

Canrying walue of vadable imereste—Aseots
Dot gl vty irbee it SHMT & M7 § = 51187 §11.008

Drivalivi and olifee ponlrasis - = = - &5
Totsl T § T 8 5 L1087 £ 118589
Additonst VIE sasels camed’ § 200019
. e it e

Dernalive and otrer conlracts — § — 5 — 5 — %5 —§ @@

M T OB sricipa Sendes oplion bonds

1, Amousts Pdute Iarseclions hacked by rdiental mongage loans, commetcial
egagh loard and oo hped of FESel, inchuting CORSUSET Of Commehtal
aipti, and may be 5 San o setyrity form,

2. Hher primandy inciudos orsosues o commencid mesl ealale propedy and
vt hands.

3. ‘Wher notional amourts @ USRS i quantiying o MRESTIT SpoSUD Telaies
1o Gerhove, fuch smcunts 90 nol reect changss n st valos mconded Oy T
Frm

4. Addibonal VIE assets cwnoed mprosents this camying valee of fotal eaposune ko ron-
consobdaled WIES for whech B MacimUm SxposUm 1o 088 & eSS than spechc
Irearihaids, prmaily mberests Ssobd by securleation SPES. Tre Frm's slcmus
pIiLn 0 ik gonealy squis T e valus of Mo asset twnid. Thoss sxiets
aw pnmarly inchaded i Tracdng masts and inesimect eecunties and ane
mwatnred ol e valuo (seo Note S) The Fum Goss nol provice scddSoral suppodd
i et ranachons nough conireolusl Lok, O SErTElar i i

The megonty of the VIEs included in the previous whbbes are
sponsored by unrelated partics: examples of e Firm's
invalvement with these VIEs include ns sccondany mearkel-
making activities and the secuntes beld in s [nvestinent
securitics porfolio (sce Note 8),

The Firm's maxinun ¢xposure o loss is dependent on the
nature of the Finm's vanable interest in the VIE and is liniled
10 e mational amounts of cerain quidity Gxcalities and other
credii supporn, todal return swaps and wrilien pul oplions, as
well as the fawr value of conaim other derivatives and
investments i Firm has oade in the VIE.

The Firm's maximum exposure 1o loss in the previous lables
docs not include the offsciting benelit of hedges or any
reductions assoctated with the amoum of collateral held as
pant of a teenssction with e VIE oF any party 1o the VIE
directly againsi a spocific exposurc 1o loss,

Liabilitics issued by VIEs genemllv are non-reconrse (o the
Firm,

Detail of Mortgage- and Asset-Backed Securitization Assets

Ak Dwcombas 31, 2021 Al Deceber 51, 20240

5 in milona UPE |I"i’;‘:';5 Ura |"E\Hm';h;'l
Remidanial mofigages 5 1526 5 2182 § 1S % 3475
Commprein! mogages 68,503 4092 BI09G 413
LS. agincy colabir nkzod

manigage ohigators 57972 9835 0882 17224
Qiihar Sorsu e of

COTITHCL Mosire 4,380 1953 5103 1.717
Tatl 14607 § 18062 S1Ba%y & BT
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Securitization Activities

In & securitization wansaction, the Firm imnsfers assels
(menerally  commeercial or residential mongage loans or
secunitics) 10 an SPE, sells o investors most of the bemeficial
interests, such as noies or certificaies. issucd by ihe SPE, and.
in ey cases, retams odber beneficial imerests. The purchase
of the transferred asseis by ihe SPE is financed through the
sale of these imlerests.

Inm many sccuntization transactions imvolving commercial
mortgage loans, the Finm transfers a ponion of ihe asseis 10
the SPE with unrclyed panics tansfeming (e remaining
asets. In addiion, mainly 0 secuntization  IRNSECHONS
ifvelving mesidential mongage loans. the Firm may also cirler
intn denvative mnscions, primarly infcrest rile swaps or
inkerest rate caps, will the SPE.

Although not obligated, the Firm generally makes a market in
the securitics issucd by SPEs i secuniizaton IGHSIcions, As
a market maker, the Firm offers 1o buy these securities from,
and sell these secunlics to, investors. Securitics purchised
through these market-making activities ame nod considersd 1o
be retained imerests, these beneficial interests generally are
ncluded i Tracing assets—Corponne and other debt and e
measered ai Fair value.

Tl Firim enters o dermvatives, generally inlencst mile swaps
and infcrest mic caps, with a scrior payment prionily in many
securtizton ansctions. The nsks assockated with these and
similar denivatives with SPEs are cssentially the same a8
simibar derivatives with non-5PE  counlerpartics amd ane
mantped a5 pant of the Finn's ovemll exposune. See Notwe 7
for funler infometion on derivitive instroments and hedging
wclviies,

Tirwestment Secnrities

The Firm holds sccuntics issued by WIEs within the
Ivestment secunties portfelio. These secuntics ane composed
of those related 1o iransactions sponsorcd by the federal
margage agencics and  predominantly  the most  scnior
secuniics issucd by WIEs backed by sindent loans and
commercitl mongage loans, Transactions sponsored by the
federal morgage agencies mclude an explict or implicit
guarmice provided by the LS, govermment. Additnomally, the
Firm holds cenain commercial mongage-backed sccunitics
issued by VIES retained a8 a resull of the Finm's secuntizimion
alivitics. Sce Nowe & for further information on the
Iivestment secuntics porifolio.

Muicipal Tender Option Bond Trusts

Im i mumicipal tender option bond trust ransaction. the cliem
transfers a muomcrpal bond to a trust. The trust issucs shon-
term secuniies ihai ithe Firm, as the remarketing agent, sells io
mvestors, The clicnt generlly retains a residual imerest. The
shor-erm securtics are suppored by oa liquidity facility
pursuant to which the investors may put their shor-tenm
mterests. In most progroms, @ third-pary  provider will
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provide such Niquidity facility; in some programs, the Finn
provides s lquidity Gacility

The Firm may, in liew of purchasing shon-tenm scouritics for
remarketing. decide 10 extend a temporany loan 1 the trust.
The clicni can generally terminate the ansaction al any time
The hgquidity prowider can generally temmmate the irannsscion
upon the occurrence of cenain evems. When the immnsaction is
terminated, the municipal bond 15 generally sold or retumed (o
the client. Ay losses suffered by the Bguidiny provider upon
the sale of the bond are the responsibility of the ¢lient. This
obligation 15 gencrally collateralized. Liguidity facilities
provided w municipal iender option bond irusts are classified
as denvatives. The Firm consolidates any municipal tender
option bond trusts mowlich i holds the residual imerest

Credit Protection Purchased through Credir-Linked Notes

CLM tramsactions are designed fo provide imvesiors waith
exposure 1o cenain crodil nsk on referenced assets. In wese
iransactions, the Firm irmnsfers assets {generally high-quality
securitics or money markel ivestments) o an SPE, enters
o a denvative transaction in which the SPE sells prowection
on an unrcled referenced wsset or group of assels, through a
credit denvative, and sclls (s secunbies 1ssued by the SPE 1o
imvesiors. In some iransaciions. the Firm may alse enter inio
inferest mic or cumency swaps with the SPE, Depending on
ihe structure. the asseis and liabilities of the SPE may be
consolidated and recognized in the Firm's balance sheet or
accounted for as a sabe of asscls.

Upon the occurrence of & credit event related 1o the referenced
assel, the SPE will deliver secunties collateral as payment o
the Firm, which ¢xposes the Finm (o changes in (he
collateral s value.

Denvative pavisenis by the SPE are collateralized. The nisks
associnted with these and similar derivatives with SPEs are
essenfially the same as those with non-5PE counterpartics and
are puanaged as par of the Firm's overall exposure.

hthrer Strwctured Financings

The Firm invesis in inderesis issued by entitics that develop
and own low-income communibes (mcludimg low-mcome
Trousing projects) and ctines that construct and own Gacilitics
that will gencrate energy from renewable mesources, The
imerests entitle the Firm to a share of wx credis and gax
losses generated by these projects. In addition, the Finm has
issued guaninices 1o imvestors inocerain low-income howsing
fumds, The guammices are designed 0 relum an imestor’s
coninibution to a fund and the vesior's share of fax losses
and tax credits expected 10 be generated by the fund. The
Firm is also involved with emitics designed o provide tax-
efficient vields to the Firm or 115 clicns.,

Coliateralized Loan and Debt (ligations

CLOs and CDOs are SPEs that purchase a pool of asscis
consisting of corporate loans, corporate bonds, ABS or
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synthetic exposuncs on similiar asscls through derivatives and
wsue moluple tranches of debl and equily secunlics 1o
imvestors, The Firm underwnites the securitics isswed in
certaim CLOY transactions on belall of unaffiluted sponsors
and provides advisory services to these unalliliated sponsors.
The Firm sells corpore loans 10 many of these SPES, in
SO cases represeming oo significant portion of the total
assels purchased. Although not obligated. the Firm generally
makes a market in the secuntics issued by SPEs in these
transactions and muay retain unsold secuntes. These benelicaal
imterests are included in Trading asseis and arc measwred ai
fair value,

Equity-Linked Nates

ELN transactions arc designed 10 provide investors with
exposure o cerain nsks related 1o the specilic equity secunty .
cquity index or other index. In an ELN ransaction, the Finm
typically transfers (o an SPE cither a note issucd by the Firm,
the pvments on wloch are linked 10 the pedformence of o
specific cquity seourity, equity index or other index, or debt
secunbies issued by olther compames and a dermvalive contract,
the werms of which will relate 1o the pefformance of a specific
cquity security, cquity index or other index. These ELM
transactions with SPES were not consolidmed at December
31 2021 or Degember 31, 2020,

Transferred Assets with Continuing Involvemant

At Decamber 3, 2021

B Jn el RARL CML
SPE assels (PR $ 802 04376 S ZhBaT 5 134
Retained interesis
Brvesimend gracde 5 T2 5% B S 465 § -
Nonnwesiment grade 19 545 — ]
Tedal F 9 §12M 5 455 § ]
rr 13 purchansd in the dury Farbat
Brrviplmaed grade $ 16 % 118 % % —
Blon-snaslmen Grade - 53 _ d
Teaal $ 565 1M 5 33 3 4
Dorivalroe sdsets F — 5 — 5 - § B
Doarivatray st dos - - - 84
A2 December 31, 2000
S e on BT e
SPE assels (UBET £ T A1 SBasTa B 061 § 1RATR
Rtyined interesis
Irvesimend grade £ 405 2% 615 § -
Muan-nvasdmant Grade 16 195 == 114
Teal §  E5 § 017 § 6IS § 114
Interests purchased in the dary mark
Bl Gradle £ =5 oh 5 116 & -_
Blon-myppsiment grode 43 B — 21
Teaal § 43 % 1% § 116 % |
Diervalie assels F — % — § — ¥ A

Daivelnny i ibes - _ 435
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Fair Value at Decamber 31, 2021
§ i mdgny Lol 2 Lol 3 Total
Refaimed interests
Invstment grade -4 536 § F3 538
Morpimesimend gradie &0 40 Bo
Tobal 5 76 & iF & BiR
Immrests purchased In the secondary market
Irpeidmenl grady 1 168 § is 169
Mor=irmveslmal grada T 25 a5
Tatal 5 238 5 % 5 264
Dertvative asiels - Bt 5 - & B
Dherrvabiva habdlas 104 W 84
Fair Value at December 31, 2020
5 i il Lyl 2 Ll 3 Tolal
Fetalned intermsis
Invpstmant grade g 651 5 - &ha
Mor-imasimeni grado [ 63 (]
Tatsl % 665 & 63 & a2
Irtaewsts purehrsed in ihi dary market
Investment grada & 106 5 L 292
M-l gride 62 i 144
Tatal 5 258 § 48§ EL]
Derraalive isiety § 388 § iz § 400
Duriwativeg tabl ey 435 1 A

ML —Fpcdantal modpage g

CML—Commirsad morigage ioarm

1. Amounts nohuce GLO Irensactons managed by unnssted Thind pares.
2. Amounts NCUSe aSsets Paraiemed by ureekried Fanskenors.

The previous tables inclwde imnsacteons with SPEs in which
the Firm. scting as poncipal, transferred financial asscts with
continaing imvolvement and received sales ireatmeni. The
tansferred  assets are camied at fair value  prior o
sgcuritization, asd amy chamges i Gor value are recognized in
the income statemem. The Firm may act as undenwriter of the
bencficial interests issued by these scountization vehicles., for
which Investment banking revenues are recognized. The Firm
ey netain inierests in the securitized Mnancial asscis as one
or more inmches of the secuntization. These relained imerests
are generally carmed at fair value in the balance sheer with
changes in fur value recognized in the income statcment. Fair
vl for these imenests is measured using (echniques tal ang
consisten with the valuation techmigques applicd 1o the Firm's
neEjor categones of asseis and liabilites a5 desenbed in Notes
2 and 5. Further. as permifted by applicable puidance. cenain
transfers  of asscts where the Firnm's only  cominuing
invalvement is a denvative are only reported in e following
Assets Sold with Retained Exposure table.

Proceeds from New Securitization Transactions and Sales of
Loans

£ b redilons 2021 2020 219

Moy Varsactions' § ST.528 §F 51814 §F 4464
Fodsired inbwosty £.822 B35 7AD3
Sales of corporate ionans bo GLO SPEs’ ¥ 168 Ty #

1, Kol gaime on new tramactons and sk of comporale icans o CLO eniton. af e
e of tha sake werg nol matenal for a8 perods presenied
2. Sponsoind by ron-alliaes

The From has provided, or atherwise agreed to be responsible
for, representations and warmantes regarding conain asscis
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transfered in sccurilization tmnsactions sponsorcd by the
Frrm {gee Note 15).

Assals Sold with Retained Exposure

At AL
December 31, Decamber 31,

] Faral 2020
Groes cash precend from siie of pisls’ 5 67930 5 45,051
Fair valua
Aapnls sokd 1 EZ @2 § 45 BOG
Dierivale sssels moogrined in e balancs

shool 1,195 1,552
Diafivaisng i e rmcognzd in lhe

beranion sheal 132 el

1. Tha enimying viluo of assits devecogramd al o bma of & approomales gPoss
Canh Procids,

The Firm enicrs into transactions in which it sells securitics,
primarily equitics, and contcmporancously - enfers  ino
bilmermal OTC  dermvatives  with e purchasers  of  the
secunitics, through which it retains exposure 1o the sold
SeCurniies,

17, Regulatory Requirements
Regulatory Capital Framework

The Firm s an FHC under the Bank Holdimg Company Act of
1956, as amended. and is subject io the regulmion and
oversight of the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve
System (“Federal Reserve”). The Federl Reserve establishes
capital - requirements  for the Firm. including  “well-
capitalized” standards. and cvalwates the Firm's compliance
wilh such capital requirements. The OCC establishes siimilar
capital requircments and standards for the Finn's 1.5, bank
subsidianies,  inclading, among  others, MSBNA  and
MSPENA. The regulatory capital requirements are largely
bascd on the Basel 11 capital standards established by the
Bagel Comumitiee on Banking Supervision and also implement
certain provisions of the Dodd-Frank Wall Strect Reform and
Comsumier Protection Acl In additton, nuany of the Fi's
regulated  subsidiaries are subject to regulatory  capatal
requircments, incleding regulated subsidianics provisionally
registered as swap dealers with the CFTC or conditnonally
registered as security-based swap dealers with the SEC or
registered a5 broker-dealers or futures commission merclls,

Regulatory Capital Requiremenis

The Firin is required 10 maiotain mininom nsk-based and
leverge-based  capital mtios  under  regulatory  capatal
requircmients. A& summary of the calculations of regulaiony
capital and RW A follows.

Fisk-Bosed Repwlotory Capitel. Risk-based capatal mtio
requirenients apply 1o Common Equity Tier 1 capital, Tier 1
capital and Total capital (wlach includes Tier 2 capital), each
a5 a percentage of RWA, and consist of regulivory minimaim
required mtios ples the Finn's capital buffer requircment,
Capital requiremments  require certain adjustments 1o, and
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deductions from, capital for purposes of delermining these
rios,

CECL Deferral. In 2020, the LS. banking agencics adopied
a Ml role, consistent with an imenm final rle tha was
cifective March 31, 2020, aliering, for purposcs of the
reguliory capital rules, the required adoption tme penod for
CECL. As of December 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020, the
nisk-based and beverage-based capital amounis and rifios, as
well a8 RWA, adjsted average assels and supplementiny
leverage exposure ame caloulated excluding the eiTect of ihe
adoption of CECL based on the Firmi's election to defer this
elfect over a live-yvear tansiton penod that began on Janmeiny
I, 2024 in sccordance with the final rule, The defermal impacts
begin o phase back i at 25% per vear beginming in 2022 and
become fully phased-in beginning in 2025,

Capital Buffer Requirements
Al Dacamber 31, 2021 and
Crecember M, 2000
Shndamioed  Advanoed

Capital bufiers

Cagital conssnalion buflar —_ 5%
SCE 57% L
G-5I8 capilal surchiege 30% 3.0%
CoyE' o o5

Cagital buffer reuineman a.T% 5.5%

% The CCyll can bo sol up lo 25% bl 5 ocurroniy sef by Fe Federsd Resense ak
B,

The capital buffer mequirement represents the amount of
Common Equity Tier | capital (he Finm must maintain above
the minimam risk-based capital requircments in onrder to avord
reslnchions o (e Fimn's abaliy to make capital distabutions,
including the payvment of dividends and (e repurchase of
stock, and 10 pay discretionary bomuses to execntive officers.
The Firm's Standardized Approach capital buffer requircment
is equal to the swm of the SCB, G-31B capital surcharge and
CCvB, and the Advanced Approsch  capilal  buller
regquargment is equal to the 2.5% capital conservation baffer,
G-518 capital surcharge and CCvB.

Risk-Based Regulatory Capital Ratio Requiremants

Al December 31, 2024 and
[ Dracrmige 34, 2020

Minimum  Stardardized  Advanced
Requined ratios’
Gerrenon Equity Tier 1 capial raba 4.5% 112% 10.0%
Tior 1 cagital rato 0% 14.7T% 11.5%
Tolal capilal rato B.0% 16.7% 13.5%

1, Reguead ol napiesnl The reguiilony memomom pha B Capdal boffer
FELATHTE

Rivk-Weighred Assets

RWA reflects both the Finm's on- and off-balance sheet nsk,
as well a5 capital charges amnbutable 1w e sk of loss
arising from the following:

* Credit Risk: The failure of a bomower, countcrpany or
issuer o megt ils fnancial obligations o the Firm:

December 2021 Form 10K
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+ Market Risk: Adverse changes in the level of one or more
iarkel prces, mdes. mdices, volatilies, correlations or
other market factors, such as market liquidiny ;. asd

» Operational Risk: Inadequate or failed processes or systems
from humen Gctors or from extemal evems (eg.. fmuod.
thelt, legal and compliance nsks, ovber attacks or damage
1o plvsical assets).

The Firm's risk-based capital ratios are compuied under both
(1) the stancardised approaches for calculating credan nsk and
market nsk RWA ("Standardized Approsch™s and (i) the
applicable advanced approaches for calculmting credit risk,
market nsk  and  opemiional nsk RWA  (“Advanced
Approach”y, The credit risk RWA cabculations between the
o approaches differ in that the Sundardized Approach
mequires calculation of RWA using prescribed nisk weights,
whercas the Advanced Approach utilizes models 1o caloulate
exposure amounls and rsk weights. Al December 31, 2021
and December 31, 2020, the differcnces between the aciual
and mequired o were lower under the Standardized

Approach

Leverage-Gaved fegulatory Copiol, Leverage-based capital
mequirements include 3 minimum Tier | keverge mtio of 4%,
a minimmm SLE of 3% and an enhonced SLE capital bufTer
of at least 2%,

December 2021 Form 10K
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The Firm's Regulatory Capital and Capital Ratios
A D By 31, AL D b 38,
5 i milliona ﬂﬁ:‘ld;?d 2021 Faerd]
Rink-based capltal
Corrrnon Equity Tar 1 caphsl 5 T5T4Z 5§ T8 R
Tior 1 cagstal £3,343 50,078
Tal capetal a3, 166 arai
Talal FWAT AT1.030 A53, 106
Common ty T 1
CagLal rAlG rE‘w‘I’I - 13.2% TE.0% 174%
Tier 1 capital rato 14,7% 17.7% 10.4%
Tolal capelal rato 16,7% 19.7% 21.5%
ALD Bar 31, Al e 31,
& in millona mﬁ 2031 Faird
Leverags based capital
Addpuished pveage aasls” 5 1160929 5 1053510
Tiof 1 lgvarage o 400 TA% BA%
Supplomantasy leverage sxposae’ 1 14TE96Z & 1192 506
SLR" 5.0% 5.8% TAd%

1, Rigusnd talicn i nd\rw-‘;lld‘:rhﬂri i ol P b o I
2. Thi Fes sty the 5 ke Courtarparty Chadd Rak
{BACOR) on Decomises 1, X3!, ShCﬁthdmﬁhinmﬂummmmm
mnmmmwmmmmwmm
A h AW a5 Rt & As A
mﬂﬂﬂwuﬂbﬂmikﬂﬂ!ﬂhm‘tmwuﬂw
wndor the Standsedaed Approach sceased by 525 bEon, and the Fre's
Standardcred Common Equdy T 1 copidal rmlo docreased by B0 bass pores.
Adpsied avwrage assels repesonts Ihe denomenator of the T 1 hearage il
and A composed of the remge Saly balanoo of corscltalod or-Balance shal
el ke P QUAMEt Bnding on The mpacineg Tolieon aha dalin, mduted by
Sligwnd goodwill, mlangSle asets, fveeiments 0 coeensd Bonds, Sefined
beneff penson pan assels, aflentax gaén on saie from assel soid ko
secunbzalons, ineslments in e Fem's oen capdal insiruments, oeelan, SeSnes
A il and OINOF CApAE AU,
4, Suppleminiany g axpodund o B S of Adusbod Svbhgs Iaets usEd 1
e T 1 Wwvemge mbo and obfer scdsimects, poeeety: (i} for Servativos,
mﬂmmmuwmhmmwmdsmdM|
prokecton, oftset by cuablyng purcrased crecd prolechon; {5) B oourlematy
cmmm-mwmmmmmmmmmmmm
fuancs wheat nagRmren
8 The Fum's SUK and Supp ¥ e a% of s 1, H
vwmhmmdusmmmwmmmum
Banks based on & Federsl Rosersa mbenm leal noe thal wees in efieo undd RMech
1, 2021.

=]

Certain U.S. Bank Subsidiaries” Regulatory Capital and
Capital Ratios

The OCC establishes capital requircments for the Firm's LS.
bank subsidiaries. which as of December 31, 2021 and
December 31, 2020 inchide, among others, Morgan Stanley
Bank, N.A. (“MSBNA™) and Morgan Stanley Privale Bank,
Mational  Associanon ("MSPBNAT)L and evaluates their
compliance with such capital requirements. Regulatory capital
requirements for MSBNA and MSPBNA are caleulated 1 a
similar manner to the Firm's regulatory capital roquiremens,
although G-51B capital surcharge and SCB requirements do
ol apply 1o the LS. bank subsiduines,

The OCCs regulatory capital fmmework includes Prompt
Cormective  Action ("PCA™) sundards, incloding  “well-
capitalized” PCA siandards tha are based on specified
regulitery capital mio minmuems, For (e Firm (@ emain an
FHC, its U5, bunk subsidiarics must remain well-capitalized
i accordance with the OCC's PCA standards. In addiion,
failure by the U8, bank subsidiaries to meet minimuam capital
requircments  may  result in cenain mandamory  and
discretionary actions by regulators that, if undenaken, could
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have a dircct material effect on the U5, bank subsidiarics”
and the Firm's fisncial statenents.

At December 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020, MSENA and
MSPENA nsk-bosed capital mtios are based on the
Standardized Approach miles. Al December 31, 2021 and
Drecember 31, 20240, the nsk=based and leverpe-based capatal
amounts and miios are calculmed excleding the effect of the
adopiion of CECL bascd on MSBNA's and MSFBNA's
election to defer this effect over a live-year iansilion penoed.
which began on January 1, 20200 The deferral impacts begin
to phase back in at 25% per vear beginming in 2022 and
become Nully phased-in beginning in 2023,

MSBNA's Regulatory Capital”

A1 Dacembaer Al Decarmbas
Camhi T 31, 2081 41, 300
3 in ey Roguremenl  Rabo®  Amount  Rolo  Amounl  Rolo
Risk-basad capsital
Erguty

Tier 1 captad 6.5 % TO% $18960 208% S1V238 AT %
Tiewr 1 capstal o BE% 10960 MEW 1Y AT %
Tota! capial 1W00% 103% 1050 MAYW TR 194 %
Leverage-hased capital
Thesr 1 hmmsrags S0 % 40% SIB5120 102 % $17.338 101 %
SR 6.0 % 30% IS E1% IVEM A0
MSPBNA's Regulatory Capital'

el M 2ozt Mot 2020
Capidnized  Requepd r

§ i el Reguiremanl  Rabe®  Amouni  Rablo  Amessd  Rabo
Risk-basad capital
Common Eguity

T 1 capial 65 % TO% 510,203 H3I% 58713 M3%
Tt 1 capélal a0 % 85% 10,200 AN B3 MAa%
Total capinl 100% 10.5% 10358 24.5% BT H158%
Lavewage-basad capfal
Tiewr 1 lvemge 50 % 40% 5140375 BN S AFF TE%
LR 6.0 % 30% 153810 67% BF3 69%

1. MESBNA and MEPBNA sary sdopled 5A-CCR on Decombar 1, 2027 Tre adopbon
0 sl el @ il st on dithe of M BanCs eadsl mibod of SUR.

2, Foprjursd alien &f0 nchrina of by bufars Sopbessiy 0s of g G sresactsg.
Fadurg o mantsn the boffers would mosull in resiricions on e abddy o mako
capdal dedrbutions, ncludig the payman of dencands,

Addionally, MSBNA 5 conditionally registered with the
SEC a5 a security-based swap dealer and is provisiomally
registered with the CFTC as & swap dealer. However, as
MSBENA 15 prudeniially regulried as a bank, its capatal
requircments continee to be determined by s banking
e gulators.

Other Regulatory Capital Requirements

MS&Co. Regulatory Capital

At AR
§ in maillicey Dwcambar 31, 2021 Decomber 31, 2000
Bl captal 5 18,383 5 12 868
Expess red capstal 14,208 9,054

MS&Co. 15 registered a8 a broker-dealer and a futurcs
commission  merchamt with the SEC and the CFTC.
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respectively, and provisionally regisicred as a swap dealer
with the CFTC.

As an Alicmetive Net Capital  broker-dealee, and in
accordance with Sccunties Exclange Act of 19534 (“Exchange
Act”y Rule 15¢3-1, Appendix E. MS&Co. is subjeci o
minonum net capital and emative nel capital requirements
and operaies with capital in excess of iis regulatory capital
requirements.  As a fures  commission merchant  and
provisiomally sregistered  swap dealer, MS&Co. 18 subject o
CFTC capital requircmens, In addition, MS&Co, musst notify
the SEC i 115 tentative nel capital falls below cenain bevels,
Al December 31, 2021 and December 310 2020, MS&Co.
cxceeded 1is net capital roquirement and had fewiative nel
capital  in excess of the minmuwm  and  potiflication
TCUING MEnls.

Mher Regulated Subsidiaries

The following subsidianes are also subject o vanous
regulitery capital requirements and operated with capital in
excess of their respectve egulatony: capital requirements as of

December 31, 202 1 and Decomber 31, 20040, as applicable:

« MSSE, a registered US. broker-dealer and intreducing
broker for the fuiures business. is sulyject o, respeciively,
the minimum net capital requirements of the SEC and
CFTC capital requireinems.

* MSIP, a London-based broker-dealer subsidiary, is subject
wo e capital requircments of the PRA. MSIP 15 also
conditiomally registered with the SEC as a security-based
swap dealer and provisionatly registered with the CFTC as
a swap dealer. bui 1s currently complying with home-
country  capital requirements in licy of SEC and CFTC
capital mequircients  pursuant 1o applicable  substituted
complianee mles and inteam no-action reliel.

* Morgan Stanley Euwrope Holdings SE Group (“"MSEHSE

Group™), mcluding MSESE. a Germany-based broker-

dealer, is subject 1o the capital requirements of 1he

Eurppean Cemral Bank, BaFin and the German Ceniral

Bank. MSESE is also conditiomally registered wath the SEC

a5 a secunty -based swap dealer and provisionally registered

with the CFTC as a swap dealer, but is currently complying
witly home-country capital requirements in lign of SEC and

CFTC capital requirements pursuant o infcrim no-action

relict,

MEMS, a Tokyo-based broker-dealer subsiciary, is subjeci

to the capital equirements of the Financial Services

Apency, MESMS is also provistomally megisiened with

CFTC a5 a swap dealer but is currently complving with

homse-country capital requircments i e of CFTC capital

FECuiTEIIEnis pursuant (o mienm no-aciion reliel,

MSCS, a LS cmity and the Firm's primary non-bank

secunly -bised swap dealer, is condinomlly registered with

the SEC as a scounity-based swap dealer, registercd with the

SEC as an OTC denvatives dealer and  provisionally

megistered with the CFTC as a swap dealer. MSCS is

subject io the capital requircments of both regulsiors.
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MSCG, a ULS. emtity, is provisionally registered with the
CFTC as a swap dealer amd 15 subject to als capital
TeCjuanemenis.

E*TRADE Bank and E*TRADE Swvings Bank are subject
1o e capital requirements of the OCC. For additional
information on E*TRADE Bank and E*TRADE Savings
Bank, see Note 1.

E*TRADE Sccuniies LLC, a registered broker-dealer. is
subpect io ihe miumum nei capital requiremenis of the
SEC.

Cemun other U5, and non-ULS, subsidiancs of the Finm are
subject o vamous sccuriies, commodies and  banking
regulations, and capital adequacy requircmcnts promulgated
by the regulatory and exchange authonitees of the countnes in
which they operate. These subsidianes have also consistemly
operated with capital in excess of their local capital adequicy
REE TERELS,

Restrictions on Paymoents

The regulmory capital requirements referred 1o above, and
Corlan covenans containgd in vanous ageements goverming
indebtcdncss of the Firm, muy restrict the Firm's ability 10
willedraw capatal from its subsidianes. The following table
represenis el asseis of consolidaied subsidines that may be
restricted as 1o the payvment of cash dividends and advances 1o
the Parem Company.

Al AL
Dwcombar 31, Decambaer 31,
3 Jn el Favral 200

Restricted nel assets $ 49,516 § 40,502

December 2021 Form 10K
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Morgan Stanley
18. Total Equity
Morgan Stunbey Sharcholders’ Equity
Praferred Stock
Enanes
Dhetlandnig Carrying Value
Sl oo At Liquidation A M
wcad gt Decomber M. predgepnce  December 31,  Decermbor 31
Ao g el pa B 0N 2030

Serles
A 44000 5§ 25000 § 1980 5 1,000
g 519,852 1,000 408 408
E 34,500 25,000 262 BEZ
F 34,000 25,000 as0 BED

-— — — 1304
| 40,008 25,008 1500 1.0
P 43 s = 1,500
K 40,000 25,000 1,000 1,000
L 20,000 25,000 500 i)
M 400,000 1,000 &30 430
M 31,000 104, 0 pali] Iy
o 52,000 28,000 1300 —
Total 5 7.750 § 9,250
Shanes sulhorioed 30 J00H D

%, Soros O prolersd siock & heid by MUFG.

Z On November 15, 2021, Ba Fim anrounced e edenplon n whols of s
ciiviandeyg Sofed M pelieed ahock, OF nobob of maemplon, e amoust Sob i
Fasichien of Sacod H Priskrsid SEack wird fcliiadad 1o Barowings, afd on Jahulsy
18, 2022, the redempbon setted af Bo compng vakee of $1,3 bion,

3. On March 15 H31, Fe Fum anrcunced the redemplon n whole ol B oulsisnding
Soros J prafared sioch. On noboe of redempion, e amound due o holders of
Batirs J Proderted Siock wirs rclissbed i Bomowinga, and on Apnl 15, 221, o
oo Bl ol S carng valu of 31,5 ilon

4, The Firm mssad Soenes O Prdered Siock on Octobar 25, 7021

The Finn's prefermed stock las a preference over ils comamon
steck upon liquidation. The Finm's prefermed siock qualifics as
and 15 incloded in Tier | capital in accordance with regulatony
capital requirements (se¢ Note 17).

On Movember 25, 201%, the Finm announced the redemplion
in whole of its owstanding Series G prefomed stock. On
motice of medemption, e amount due 0 holders of Sencs G
Preferncd Stock was reclassified (o0 Borrowings, and on
Jamgry 15, 2020, the redemption seitled at the camying value
of S50 million.

126
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Description of Preferred Stock as of Decembaer 31, 2021

Raedempbon
o

Snares Shares Price
Serms' Ismu per Snate per Shane” Dale?
A 44 000 1000 & 25000 Gurenty mdesmabies
ra 1180, 71 s 1,108 Gurenlly mdesmabis
E 34,500 1 (e 25 Ok Orelober 15, Hidl
F 34 00 10 25 OO Jaruany 15, 204
1 40,000 1,00 25 000 Chelobar 15, 2024
K 40 000 1.000 25000 Aprl 15, 2027
L 0,000 1,000 25000 Jarasary 185, H0S
M 400,000 B 1000 Soplember 15, 2028
L 3000 0 00 R0 Dclober 2, HIIS
o 52000 10040 25000 Juraesty 15, 2027

1. AX shanes Ssued oo nor-curdstvie, Each Shane Pas & pa vilos of 5001, sxcept
Swws

2. Dindends &0 Soces A ane hased 6n & foatrg mbe, and dvadends on Seres G L
and & ane based on & fand e Drvidends on a8 ofher Senas ane based on a fopg:
o= Ficasling rals.

3. Safn A B C e nad i &l Mo

B S A unsad

PRGN pROn GRS Y OeClennd and unnaed derdends, up bo Dol eaciudng tha
it fonsd fof encemiplon.

4, Soras & and C ane cumenlly sessamabio at ihe Fiem's oplon, & sholo of = par,
frem by bo bma, Al oltwe Seras a'n desmabls, 4l tha Fim's aptan (i) in el
or in pard from Bew o hme, o5 any ddend paymecl dale on of afler the
redmmipaon daln of (i) in wiols But nod in par at ary bma within 60 days indowing &

MMMiMmmMmHmMMml
5, Semad C B nohvhig limad aboci. [ o Seasd O
d AksEk i B i PGk Baid, i 80 i ddclanid By tha
Board of D¥edoms. i cash, # Be mle ol 10% per arrum of the kgudaton
prefomngy of 34,000 por share.

6. Serws L Proderrod Siock was mausd on Rovesbaer 25, 2O,

T. Sorops AR and N Profomed Sioch worn Asoed on Ociober Z, HI20 as pan of o
acgaton of B TRADE

Common Stock

Rolforward of Common Steck Qutstanding

in millle 20H 20

Shares oulslanding ol bagneing of penod 1810 1,504
Treasury sinck purchases' (134} 3%
Esduance for the acquisition of Ealon Vanos 60 -—
Essuance for ther poquisition of E-TRADE - 733
Othir? 27 ]
Shares cutstanding 2 end of perod 1,772 1,840

1, Tr Frm's Board of Deeclors has suthorosd Ba reporchass of e Fem's
outslancng siock under & sFare reporchase program (CShane  Regurchase
Progam). In ad$ion o the Fm's &“ﬂopurmuiﬁcqln Troasury siock
U 1 ClU AR o sk foF mmgs

Z-MWMMMhmmmmmmw
mwud for REL mnverscne.

Share Repurchases

3 Jry il 2021 20
B of commaon siock undar e Firm's.

Eﬂ:: Risei i Pooiram 5 11464 & 1047

On June 28, 2021, the Firm announced that its Board of
Directors awhorized the repurchase of up to 512 billon of
outstanding comimon stock from July 1, 2021 through June

30, 2022, from time o tme s conditions warrand, which
supersedes  the  previous  commwon  stock  repurchase
authonzation.

Pussiant 1o the Share Repurclase Progrum, the Finn
considers, among other things, busincss scgment capital
needs, as well as siock-based compensmtion and benelit plan

127
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Morgan Stanley

requirements. Stare repurchascs under the progrmm will be
exercised from b o e prces the Fim deems
appropralc subject (o vanous faciors. including the Finm's
capital position and market conditions, The share repurchases
mery be effected through open nuirkel purchuses or privalely
negotigied imnsasctions, including through Rule 10b35-1 plans,
and may be suspended a any ime.

Comman Shares Dulstanding for Basic and Diluted EPS

i muliong 221 A 28
Weighind average cormman shantd cutstanding,

basic 1,785 1B0E 16T
Efictve of ddulne RS and PSUs ] 1 3
Win average cammon shanes oulstandi

ansd comman stock squivalsnts. diluied 1814 1824 1,680

g g0 anlackiuly Bk

equivaiients (enctuded from The computation of

diuted EFS) - 5 2
Dividends

a0 2020 e

RIS, e’ Tl Shaa! ot Shaw T
Prafered Stock Serles
A 51,022 5§ 44 £1047T 5 44 S1014 § 4
C 100 52 100 52 101 52
E 1,1 0 1 L] 1,781 &0
F 1,719 B 1719 2 At &0
G’ - - — — 1242 1
H' 19 38 113 B0 1418 74
[ 1,594 B4 1584 1,504 54
I 3 5 1313 T4 1288 1
L3 1,463 1463 54 1463 58
L 1.9 M 138 3 164 3
M’ 59 ] - - — -
Mt 5,300 16 - - - -
o' 236 12 - o an s
Totsl Prefarred siock 5 488 £ dob s
Common stock 5 210 S3MR 140 $2255 § 130 82161

1, Common and Prefemed Siock dendency ane Dayable Quantedy ufios oiherwiae

.

2. Senes G profered siock was redeomad dunng T foesd guarker of 2001, Dvedands
Seclaned on Senid G foliowing Mo Bauance of o pobod of MSEMPLON Wone
SO frS [ el e B A echucedt Trom e 2015 meen.

3 A rotic of medemplon wan moued ke Satey W profemed slack on Wovemnbat 19,
2020, Dendends docansd on Seros W folowng B mauancs of the rolice of
PRoEETlon Wi 0 =R T and ane aucieded o e 2000
HTRHINAS.

4, Sk J wad payabli damannusly ol oy 15, B0, aher wReR d wid payabie
i hiely Ui i e pan

% Senes M 5 payable semannually wrbl Saplember 15, X030 ard thereafier will be
Dy atbe Craaredy.

B. Bares W & puysbls sesaenualy undl March 15, 2003 aed ineoaler wil b
b cpantiindy,

¥, Socms O o payablo semannually uill Saouacy 15, AET and Bweisfior wll b
SRR cpariEry
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Table of Coments
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements Morgan Stanley
Accumutated Other Comprehensive Income [Loss)' 018
Pro-tax  fncorre Tan Afler-lax Mo
AFE Pinsiorng Gain Benofi Gain  conbroding
5 in mislers CTA Seasites and Ciher  DVA  Townl s o [Loss) (Provisior)  (Lossh  nlerests Mol
Decembaer 31, 2008 § (B3 5 [y § (57H) § 905 S{2E3) ETA
D! during the peiod B 066 (1559)  [495) 01 actity $ & ME 2% s g
Dackmber 31, 2000 {BET) T (G44) (145} (ZTEE) Rosscinssifind o sarmings - — - - -
N during ey peerind 10 1580 146 (1,002} -] Mea OC| [ ) 2] EE ] 1 % 18}
Beoambar 31, 2020 {75} 1787 CR0A) (2455} (1.962) Change In net unrealized gains (lesses) on AFS sscurities
O during the pevind 207 (15 (53) B6X (1040 G acthily 51588 § (373 % 1215 8 — § 1215
Decombar 31, 2021 SI1002) 5 245 § (551) S{1.7M) 5(3102) Reclnssifed o sarrings (103 25 7 — s
E Th—iCumlative foregn cumency trarslabon adysimants Fied GG 51485 § (348§ 1137 § — § 1637
1, Awmenis ate nel of o and nonesnisaling nilstis Ponslom and ofhes
) . OG! acthily 5 el & 258 (T)§ - % (T3}
Compeonents of Period Changes in OCI T S PIp— 12 (5} 7 o 7
2091 Fied O 5 (861§ 5 6§ — § 66}
Pre-iax  Incoms  Aftentax Bon= Change in nat DVA
- G e TSR ot . ooy salens s sases s
TTh Rcisailsind b adrmongs 11 2k ] - ]
! actviy S (a0 s (9N s @IS (s om  Heodl N B SIS NS
Redasstod o samings — — — — -
Hat 001 $ [140) § B S (33} 5 (1241 5 (207) Cumulative Foreign Currency Translation Adjustments
Changs in net unmealized gains (losses] on AFS securities Af "
O activiy $01.8005 § 422 5 {1080 % — S[1.381) Dwcembar 31, December 31,
Redassfed o samings [0y 4% (181} ey (161} £ i ol 203 20
Mot OC1 — Associntind with red ivastmants @
RTINS M Sy bt el wilh 4 non-1.5, dolar
Pension and other functicnal currency & [2ITT) & (1,408
QG arieky £ (101 § /58 s - & [T5) Hadgns, nel ol tnx 1278 611
Roedassted o samings B 3] 2 — a2 Total ] (1002} § (T8
MNet OCI 3 (ro) 3 1T & 8 5 — % [53) ny] vaiies of ol invesstrrasnts in none
= —— L5, doilar furclional fumency subsdanss
hange syt I Feckges 5 15605 § 15746
O activiy § &B2 § (M35 669 5 34 5 635
stttk = ! = = Cumulative foreien carrency translton adpstments include

Mot OCH 5 918 3 (d22) & 696 3 4§ GE2

gains or losses resuluing From translating foreign currency

2020 financial  statements  from  ther  respective  Tunctional

gl it il e mﬂ;m currencies o US. dollars. net of hedge gains or losses and

3 in i floss) [Provsion) [Loss) Inferosls el related tax cffects. The Firm uses foreign curmrency comiracis
CTA 1 momage the curmency  exposure relaing 1o s net
QA metivaly LA B F PR3 B3 OIS iwvestments  in non-U S, dollar  functional  currency
Fodialted ks saimingy 5] = 3 = @ subsidiarics and determines the amount of exposure 1o hodge
LLL ik . 5 I o R R on 4 pre-tax basis. The Fimm muy alse clect not 1o bedge its

RN I 4t SrHRDY s Josiee) on AES Sec IS net investments in cenain forzign operations due fo market

zzmnnmmns S?[::::S u’:::' $ 1::::] $ : 3 1::] u:m.dillnns or other reasons, including the .'l'l':lllﬂ:llii.'l}'.ﬂf
o o0 T3007 TN E 15 B —yT vanous curmency conlracls ai acceplable cosis. Information
reTr———— relating 1o the cffects on cumulative foreign  currency
OO sctiey § 167 § @S 1As — 5 128 trmnskation adjustments that resulicd from the inmskation of
RndassSed 1o samings 23 = " = 18 fofeign curmeincy linancial stateimenls and rom gains and
Not OC1 $ 185 § (355 1456 § — % 146 losses from hedges of the Firm's mel imestments in non-1, 8,
Changs in net BVA dollar functional currency subsidiancs 15 summaneed o the
OCH activEy §(1,385) § 337 S (104815 (26} 501.022) previouns ble,

Redassded o samings 26 {63 Hp — 20

Nut OC1 $(1.359) § 33161008 8 {76) S01.002)
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19, Interest Income and Interest Expense

§n il 202 2020 2018
Inberest incoma

Irvealmend secunties $ 2750 § 232 % 207h
Loans 4,209 4 142 4 TR
a::i‘? biace . [1E1) A5H 2281
Securtiog borowed ' [1.017) (B52) 1.204
Tradding aisats, nel of Tradeng kabdlies 2,038 2417 2 B
Customer recehabies and Other* 1,603 1,515 4,756
Total irterest income 5 9411 510162 5 17098
Enterest sxponss

Deposts 3 400 F BS3 § 1885
Barrowrgs 2725 3.250 5052
5&“@'&4‘5* i 23 564 LpeT
Securiies oanod™" &M 410 B
Cusbomer payabies and Oher’ [2.262)y [1.337) #* B5E
Total Irtarest axpenss % 1366 § 3B 5 12404
Mat interest 3 BO&3 5 6313 § 460

1. Cortan phoe poficsd amgunts have Desn fecliaibed 1o conform 83 Ma cummanl
e lifion,

Inciudes meresl pard o0 Secuntes pUrTRased under agresTents b resed,

Inciudes beas pakd on Secuntes Dommwed.

Inchudas mbeest fom Cass and Cash egavakints

Inchuses et o i L iy ik

nciucs beir record of Securtes oated.

mncudes fees mosived bom Eguty Finencing apdoman relaled B ther shor
Iransachins, whech Can ba erder Shar Masgen O Se0ies indng arangamonts,

= & IR e o

Imerest meome and Interest expense are classilied i the
income stpement based on the namre of the instrumem and
related market conventions, When included as a component of
the mstrment s Gur value, interest 15 ineluded withan Trading
revenues of livesiments revenues, Otherwise, it is included
witlun Inlerest inconmie or Inferest éxpense.

Acerued Interest
Al L]
December 31, Doosmber 31,
4 in mellara a0 2020
Custamer and oller recevabie -] 1800 % 16852
Customar and olhar piyabiss 2,164 2113

20. Deferred Compensation Plans and Carried
Interest Compensation

Stock-Based Compensation Plans

Cemain current and former emplovees of the Firm participate
in the Finm's stock-based compensation plans. These plans
mclode RSUs amd PSUs, the detals of wiuch are furler
outlined bekow.

Stock-Based Compansation Expensa

8 in il 2021 2030 2018

RSUs 3 O1EM 5 1170 5 1064
Fills 51 142 %
Total 5 2085 § 1312 § 1153
Rl amani-shobla awards' 5 925 155 i1

1. Total xponsa includes siock-based compersation anfopated 1o be swarded m
darasary of I fodiowing yoar al Soes nol contsin & (Ul SEAce Ngunmon.
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Tax Benefit Related to Stock-Based Compensalion Expense

i millons 0 2 19
Tz Bvrarlil' $ 4R 5 05 M3

1. Excludes noom L CONSequences reialed 0 employes sharebased award
[

Unrecognized Compensation Cost Related to Stock-Based
Awards Granted

it
Decambar 3.

i o 203’

T by rcongrn 2and 10

202 H 653
03 287
Theneafter &0
Total ] 1000

well bagen:§a ba amorired n 2022

In  commection  with  awards  under s siock-based
compensation plans. the Firm is authorieed 1o issuc shares off
comumon stock held in treasury or nowly issued shares,

The Firm gencrally wses treasury shares, if awvailable, to
deliver shares 1o emplovees or employee stock truses and las
an ongoing repurchase authoriztion that inchedes repurcloses
m connection with  awards  under s stock-based
COMPENSMIoD plans,

Commean Shares Avallable for Future Awards under Stock-
Based Compensation Plans

At
Dwcaen bar 31,
it il ksl
Shares 145

Sce Note 18 for additional imformation on the Finn's Share
Repurchase Program

Resiricted Stock Units

RSUs are subject 1o vesting over lime, generally one to seven
vears from the date of award, contingent upon continued
employment and subject 10 restrictions on sale, mnsfer or
assigniienl unbl comversion o common stock. All or a
portion of an award mayv be forfeited if employment is
terminasted before the end of the relevam vesting period or
canceled after the relevant vesting pericd in cenain situalions,
Recipients of R5Us may have voting nghts, af the Firm's
discretion, and generally receive dividend cquivalents i the
awands vest.

120 December 2021 Form 10K
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Vested and Unvested RSU Activity

20H
Wmghied
Mariber of A Gt
Ehaves i milona Shares Fair Wabue
FR5Us al begnning of peviod 50 & 082
Awarded ) TN
Comparsione ¥ Common Slock cay s
o fed £ &0,14
RS atond of parbod’ &7 5§ 6027
mgabn irbrrsie walue of REUs at ond of penod
3 in miligns) 5 8,547
Weighited average award date tair value
RSUs swarded in 2030 S5.01
RSUs swanded in 2019 43,05

1. A1 Decarmteie 31, 2021, th wisghhed Smvags momansyg leim will delbeey e the
imitslancing RSLE was appranmabey 1.3 pean

Unvested RSU Activity

il

Wdmghed

i of Mm

BNACER i RO Shidti Fair Vs
Wrvirited RS fl Baginning of paios) i3 ¥ 137
Awanded 20 7728
Wastnd 21) 59.33
o haed 12 GO14
Unvveited REUs 21 ond of period' a3 ¥ G554

1. Linvestesd RS migrarian] swards whans rmcpants have pot o sabaly alar the
gt veatng lerm o wigrtin =

Fair Value of RSU Activity'

# b il a2 2020 2
Comearmions o Cormmon Sinc $ 1538 & 1205 % 0467
Washng 1647 1.280 1,202

1. Far vakay of corsriod Slock & based on i Shalp pien of comvarsan, Fai velue
of visbed SEOCK i BasEd on Pl SPan prce B dalo of vasbng

Performance-Based Stock Units

PELs will vest and comnvent to shares of commaon stock only if
the Firm satisfies predetenmined performance and market-
based comditions over a three-vear performance persod. The
nunher of PEUS et will vest ranges from 0% (o 150% of the
target award, based on the extent 1o which the Firm aclueves
the specilied performance goals. One-hall of the award is
carmed based on the Finn's average rolum on cquity,
exchuding certan adjustments {“MS Adjusied ROE™). For all
awards grnted beginning in 2021, (his performance measirg
was updated and is now based on the Firm's iverage returm on
tamgible common equaty excluding certain adjustmems (M3
Adjusied ROTCE™). The other hall of ihe award will be
carned based om e Firm's 1ot sharcholder reurm, relative 1o
the towal sharcholder reium of the S&P 500 Financials Sector
Index ("Relative MS TSR PSUs have vesting, restriction
and cancellation provisions et ane genermlly sumilar o those
of RS5Us. At December 31, 2021, approximetely 3 million
P&LUs were outstanding.

December 2021 Form 10K
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PSU Fair Value on Award Date

2021 F0E0 08
M5 Adymsind ROTCEROE $ T48T & 5705 § aa
Relalve M5 TSR A3.70 6531 4828

The Relavve MS TSR fir values on the award date were
estimated wsing a Monte Carlo simulation and the following
ASSAMPLIONS.

Monbe Carlo Simulation Assumptions

Expecisd
FighFrow Siock Price  Comnlaton
Irfuresl Rate Volality  Costioien
Fuwrard yoar
202 0z% 39.0 % (L H
2020 16% 240 % 088
Fa i) 25% 6.5 %, a8

The risk-free intercst rale was determined bascd on the vickds
available on LS. Treasury sero-coupon issues, The expected
stock  price volanltyy was  determined  using  hastencal
volatility, The coreliion cocfficient was developed based on
historical price duta of the From and (he S&P 500 Financials
Secior Index. The model uses an expecied dividend vield
equivalent to reinvesting dividends,

Deferred Cash-Based Compensation Plans

Deferrcd cash-based compensation plans generally provide a
retum 1o the plan pamcipants based upon the pedomunce of
cach panticipam’s referenced investments.

Deferred Cash-Based Compensation Expense

£ ip millony 20 2020 ek =]

Dhetterrad cashehased saands § MO 5 13 5 1233
Retim on refonencsd invesimants. bre [ [SE]
Tatsl $ 133 £ Z119 5 1.87A
Rt remanl-adiginie s’ 5 53 § -?il._i._Tis-

1. Tolal eapirss aolotes Selemad Cash-based DOMMANAEMGS anlopaka 10 b
warad i Janoary of 1N IoBng yia! I 0088 not conlain & TUAE SENA0e
gLl

Carried Interest Compensation
The Finmn generally recogmiacs compensalion expense for any

portion of camied interest (both realized and wnrealized) then
15 allocated w cmployees.

Carried Intereat Compensation Expense

£ i milony 20 IO s ]
Exponsa 5 346 § 215 % o=t
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Weighted Average Assumptions Used to Determine Met
Periedic Benalit Expense (Income)

Pension Plans Panson Plans
20 020 2018
Compenents of Nel Periodic Benefit Expense [Income) Dt rabe A% IEH A0 %
Expnchind iorg-damrm rada ol nstuem on plan
Perdinn Plans Aty 142 % 235 % 5%
& in el 204 2020 2019 Rt of furluirg G pOnEaton inCiibes 325 % 328 % 3%
Seryion oosl. benafils eamed dunng the
] 5 i § LERE 1 15 i . . .
iriarmst. cast on projeciod enll chigation ol i i The accounting for pension plans  iwolves  conain
Expecind reium on plan asses. [any g i assumplions and estimates. The expecied long-lerm rale of
Bt amoetatan of prae seroon coul i 1 i rum  for the US Qualified Plan was cstimed by
Bl armorizabon of schmssl s k1] % 13 computing a weighted average of the underlving long-term
Mot paricdic bensdit sxporss § 440 § BB § =5 expected returns based on the imvestment neregers” tarsct

Cenain currend and former U.S. cmplovees of the Finm and s
LS, affilzies who were hured before Julv 1, 2007 are covered
by il LS. pension plan. a non-contnbutony delined benefit
pension plan that is qualified under Section 40i(a) of the
Internal Revenue Code (“US. Qualified Plan™). The US.

allocations.
Benefit Obligation and Funded Status

Rollferward of the Benefit Obligation and Fair Value of Plan
Assats

Pansion Plans

Cralificd Plan lus ceased futens benelit accruals, PP i 020

Raoliforward of prajected benslit RO
Unfunded supplementary plans (~Sopplemental Plans”™) cover Banafil ww“wqﬁr 5 PR 4055
cenain executives. Liabilities for benelits pavable under the Bardcs ot 10 7
Supplemental Plans are accrued by the Firm and are funded ntarrsd coat 104 171
when pard. The Morgan Standey Supplemental Executive Actuarial {gain) foss' {123} s
Retiremem and Excess Plan ("SEREF”), a non-contributory Pian amendments (1] 2
defined beneli plan that is not qualified under Section 408 (a) Pin somiermesis {i8) k]
of the Imemal Revenue Code. las ceased future benefil Borafils poid T (Z22}
sconials. Dikar’ 120} 30

Banafil obligation al arnd of year 5 4,081 % 4. 33
Certain of the Firm’s non-U.S. subsidianics also have defined Ralttorward of fair value of plan assets
benefit pension plans covering their cligible current and Fair value of plan assats at beginning of yoar § 2088 § 553
former emplovees. At raturn o plan assets {186} ]

Employer contrilisions 38 35
The Firm's pension plans generally provide pension benefits Banafita paid (217} (=2}
that are based on each emplovece’s vears of credited service Pl SaWemiants (15} ]
and on compensation levels specified in the plans. Ot = =

Failr walus of plan assets at end of year 5 508 3 G
Rollforward of Pre-tax AQCH Fundud junfursed) status 5 14rs) & (349}

Amounis recogrized in the balance shesl

Parsion Pl Antets 5 "r % -]
5 iy el 2021 2020 2018 Linbdies (583} 1532}
Begrring baanoe 5 esNE (BT s (W Mel amount recognized 5 (476} % [343)
Mol gain [loss) [REH] 161 (112 . i W ok i
Prioe sorsoe cosl - 2 - changas in morakly assumpbons.
Asrarhration ol DIor Sarvics oosk 1 1 i 2 incudes e mpact of Tongn CLTency ENchangs fks changes and imnsion oo
Armprtizaton of nel ks 34 % 13 PR
Changes recognized in OCI el 1B (98] g ted Benefit Obligation
Ending balance 5 (reAy § (6641 & (B7T)
AR .13

The Firm generally amoniacs ino oot periodic benefit s o ""3;"1""‘ nm;x 4,
expense (mcome) the unrecognized net gains and losses Punnaon plars 5 4085 3 4318

exceeding 10% of the greater of the projecied benefil
obligation or the market-related value of plan assets. The U5,
pension plans amoniee e unrecomnized net guins and losses
over the avempge lifc expectancy of participants. The
mmaming plans gencrally amoriize the unrecognized net
gaing and losses and prior service crodit over the averge
remaining service period of active paricipants

151
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Pension Plans with Projected Benefit Obligations in Excess A1 Doconbar 31, 2020
of the Fair Value of Plan Asaets S i Lovel 1 Lewl?  Lewd ol
m-:;n M om::-arsn At
il 2031 ! 2000 Cash and cash eguvaients’ % 4 8 - -3 4
Projecied benelll ohigalion § Aredr ¥ e e e ey 3,0 A - &3
Accumulated beredt obigalon 753 a2 Corporate and D debi_C00 = i _ 4
Eair valos of plan assels 3178 L vt cesriracty o 7 o 2
Cither invsstmants —_ —_ E1 &1
The pension plans incheded in the table above may dilffer Otvar recnhvabing — 53 — 53
based on their fonding status s of December 31 of each vear. Totsl § 3042 5 180§ B1 § 3483
Drecember 31, 2021 includes the LS. Qualified Plan, Asasts Messurad a1 HAV
Corrmingiod tust funds;
Weighted Average Assumptions Used to Determine Projected Moy rariot A
Banefit Obligation Faormign funds:
Pansson Plans Fixed incoma 1649
. H, it 31, Liuidity o
2021 F Targeted cash fow 20
Dusacount rali 280 % 243 % Totsl E 521
Feata of Bofum oompenialion s 336 % 12X % Liabilitins
Oiiher payables’ — 118} - [ap
The discount rmies used to determing the benefit obligation Tatal llabistias. $§ -5 0es -3 09
Fair value of plan assats % asan

were selected by il Finm, in consultation with is
independent actuary. The LS. pension plus use a pension
discouni vield curve based on ihe characiensiscs of the plans,
cach determuned independently. The pension discount vicld
cerve represents spod discoum wields based on durmion
implicit in & representative broad-based Aa-mted corpomie
bond universe of high-guality fixed income imeestmens, For
all non-L1.5S. pension plans, the assuimed discount res based
on the mture of Habilines, local coonomic enwvironments and
available bond indices.

Plan Assiets

Fair Value of Plan Agsets

At Db 51, 2021

# i et Leved 1 Lovel?  Level 3 Total
Ansuts
Cash and cash equivalents” 5 8 % -5 - ]
e e 28 - A
Componaty and Gthir detl—C00 i 1 — 1
Dadivaleas coniracts = L] — 3
e imvesiments — — BS ES
Othaer rpeabvibles’ - H - 2
Tetal § 2768 5 A0 5 6% § 3153
Asasts Measured ot HAV
Commingied inst fands:
onoy market 33
Fosmgr funde!
Fiosd rcoma 162
Liguietity a9
Targuied cash fios P
Todal 5 g%
Liabilitien
Ot paayabion’ - ] - 117)
Tedal liabilitien 5 et | T 5 it | 117
Falr valus of plan asssts 5 3503

December 2021 Form 10K

1, Canh and canh equvaleniy, ofer recohabies and offer payablen ane vaued af
Rraar GG VLA Wheth Soprmaimuates Lur vaiee.

Rollforward of Level 3 Plan Assels

§ i millns 2021 202

Balivson &l baginning af penod £ a1 8 53
Realized fnd unrgabiod Gaing 1 ]
Purchasas, saies and saftiamants, sl 3 3
Balance at and of period 1 68 5 &1

There were o transfers between levels duning 202 1 and 20240,

The U5, Qualificd Plan's asscts represent 86% of the Finm's
iial penston plan asseis. The US. Qualified Plan uses a
combinstion of active and risk-comrolled fixed income
imvestment strategies. The fised income assel allocation
consists primanly of fxed income secuntics and related
derivative instruments designed 1o approxinute the expected
cash Nows of the plan’s habilites in order 1o belp reduce plan
cxposure o imeres! mbe varation and (o betier align asscis
with 1the obligmion The longer-duraton fixed  income
allocation 15 expected o belp protect the plan’s lunded status
and maintzin the stability of plan contnbutions over the long
o The mvestment portfolio perfonnance 15 assessed by
companng actual investment performance with changes in the
estimated presend value of the U5, Oualified Plan’s benefi
obligation

Denvative mstruments are permutied e U5, Qualified
Plan’s imvesiment porifolio only io ihe exieni ihai they
comply with all of the plan’s investment palicy guidelines and
are consistent with the plan's risk and reum objectives.

As g fundamental operming pranciple, any resinctions on the
underlving assels apply o the respective denvative product.
Ths includes percentage  allocations and  credit quality.
Denvatives are used solelv for the purpose of enhancing
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imvestment retums in the underying assets and not 1o
ciremivent porlolio resinaions.

Plan assets are measured i fair value using valistion
techmigues that are consistent with the valuation 1echnigques
applicd to the Firm’s major caicgones of asseis and liabilitses
a5 described in Notes 2 oand 50 OTC denvative contracls
consist of investments in interest rale swaps and total renam
swaps, Other investments consist of insumnce contrcts held
by mon-L1S. based plaes, The insurance comrcts are valwed
based on the preminm reserve of il insurer for 8 guarmmee
that the insurer has given to the cmplovee benefit plan that
approximates  fair valee. The insurance comirmcis are
categoriced in Level 3 of the fair value hicrarchy

Commingled trust funds anc privatcly offercd funds regulated.
supervised and subject 1o penodic exanunation by a US.
federal or state agency and available (o instilutiona] clicnis.
The trust must be meimtained for the collective imvestment or
reivestment of assels comtnbuted 0 0 from US. tax-
qualificd cmptoyec benefit plans maintained by mone than ong
crplover or controlled eroup of corporations, The sponsor of
the commingled trust funds values the funds based on the Gur
value of the underlying sccunitics, Commingled trust funds
are redeemable sl NAY at the measurement date or i the near
future,

Some non-1U.5 -based plans hold foreign funds tha consist of
investments in fixed income fnds, trget cash Now Tunds and
lquadity  funds. Fived income funds omvest e imdividoal
secunilics queded on a recoginized stock exchange or traded in
a regulated market, Certain fixed income funds aim 1o
produce retums consisient with ceriain Financial Times Siock
Exclange indexes. Targel cash fow funds are designed 1o
provide a senies of fived anmal cash flows aclucved by
mvesting i govermmen bomds and denvatives, Liguidity
funds placc a high priority on capital preservation, stable
value and a high lquidity of assets. Foreagn funds are readily
nedeemable at NAY.

The Fanm generlly considers the NAY of commingled trsst
funds and forcign funds provided by the fund manager o be
the best estimete of fir value.

Expected Contributions

The Firm's policy is 10 fund o least the amount sulficient 1o
meet o funding  requirements  wader  applicable
cmplovee benefil and tax laws, Al Decomber 31, 2021, the
Firm expected to contribute approximately 340 nullion o s
pension plans in 2022 based upon the plans’ curremt Tunded
status and expeciod assel rplum assumplions for 2022,

133
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Morgan Stanley
Expected Future Benefit Payments
At Decombar 31, 2021
§ i llcns Panaion Plarm
207 5 145
HE 153
02 156
2005 163
.l 1ma
HFT-200 fs]
4l {k) Plans
£ in o 2021 H@o Fud ]
Expinas $ v s X3 F M

LS, employees meening ceriain cligibiliy requirements may
participate in the Firm's 401(k) plans.

Morgan Stanbey 401(k) Plan

Eligible emplovees receve discretionary 401k matching
cash comnbutions as determined anmeally by ihe Firm. The
Firm mgiched cligible cmployee comnbutions up o the IRS
Tt al 4%, or 5% up 10 a cerlam compensation level, in 2021
and 4% in 2020 and 2019, Eligible emplovecs with ¢ligible
pav less than or cqual o S100,000 also received a fixed
comlabution equal o 2% of cligble pav. Trnsion
comributions relating to acquined cnlities or frozen cmployee
benefit plans were allocated 1o cenain cligible cmplovees
tsrough 2020, Contnbations are imvested among avaikible
Tunds according to ¢ach pariicipant s investment direction and
are included in e Finn's 401{k) expense.

Hon-U.5. Defined Contribution Pension Plans

Fat ]
1305 A

5 in o 2024
Exparia §

The Firm maintring separme defingd comribution pension
plans thm cover eligibbe emplovess of cerain mon-U 5.
subsiciaries. Under such plans, benefits are  pencrally
determingd based on a fixed rate of base salary with cenain
VeI RequIrsnenls.

December 2021 Form 10K
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22, Income Taxes Deferred Tax Assets and Liabilities
At AL
Componants of Provision for Income Taxes Docember 31, December 31,
& i g raers ] 2020
5 i el 2021 P 218 Gross dofenned tax asselts
et Mt oo boess. anad Lax cresdd
2 s WM?E: 5 6 330
L¥ Empioyss compermabion and bonefl plans 2430 2348
Fadiral % 2884 % 1841 5 B3 P o a
Stabe and local &T8 S 2l rESBIVES 5% &5l
Mo 415 Walustion of mvesrlany, mvestments and
UK 5851 305 165 reciEwabing 474 19
Japan 105 185 177 Rty L b
Hang Kang Y Y = Tolal dufarrod Laa nssats 3,704 1309
Othae’ o1 & 1 Deferrec tax ansls valualon alowancs 208 36
Teal S 4544 5 3400 5 1800 Dederrad tnx amsels after valuabion allowance: § 1588 & 2073
- - Gross dabermed tax labities.
o Fimesd azants 1,287 1.130
u.s.: Inlarg it s ginsben 2,045 1156
Fodersl s s @S s Tolal defarred nx Labibes 5 131 % T
State and local n (38) i Mok darlorrod Lax asmts 5 %3 3 T
Hean-l1.5.:
LK. 37h =) 5 Dieferred income Graes reflect the net tax effects of tempomny
Japan 4 12 " differences between (e lrancial epofting and ax bases of
Hang Kong 9 3 - asscts and liabilitics and are measured using the cnacled fax
i’ 24 a (B3 rres and laws that will be in effect when such differences are
Total 5 4 5 (as0) 5 s expected 1o reverse.
Prosesann {or income taes $ 4588 5 320 § 204
1, e B AN, e o T y— S Tnciude BraclL The Fi_rn: believes the recogniacd net defermed 1ax assels {_ut‘ter
Singagene and B Ketrenans valuation allowance) ai December 31, 2021 are more likely

il i lined hased xpectati 1o fu
Recanciliation of the U.5. Federal Statutery Income Tax Rate LR 0 - Il i s i

to the Effective Incarme Tax Rate taxable income in the junsdictions in which it operales.
2031 2020 WA The eaxrmngs of cenain foreign subsidiarnes ane indefiniely
LS. federal stabsiory rcome L mie HO% FO0%  HO% reinvesied doe o regulyory and other capital requircmenis in
Uf;“ mfmlmf;mmr;- netof = s g3 foreign J_'urisdbcliuu:s. As ] ol_' : Ducc:_nhcr 3l _ZIJZL _ e
i B o S e S Toara 08 108 118) uqrbmsnm:d dm'cn':d Lk hah_lllty anributable to indehimigly
Hon L5, oamings 1d 7 0.8y reimvested camings is immatenial,
Empicyes shan-based awnnds [} [arh [1.1) ~
&5 o) o tia) Rollforward of Unrecognized Tax Banefits
Efeclive income L rale El % &6'}: 184 % £ in mdlong 2021 0 209
Batance al baginning af period 5 T § 7S5 5 1080
The Firm's effective tax mie for 2019 includes net discrete tax Imﬂn‘" il rlmlnd 1o i i o
bemehits  of  S475 million, pnnmn.l:. associaied  with : PRy T
remessurcment of reserves and related interest as a result of prior peviods T4 178 &1
v information  peraining to (the resolution of muli- Incias baged on (e acqusiiton of
PR R E-TRADE - 5 -
jurisdiction fax cxamingtions, as well as benchits related 1o A iy e
conversion of emplovee share-based awards. prior peviods (a7 [297) {478}
Decrenses reatnd lo selilamenls wilh lnxsng
authoritas (e (28} (17
Decronses redated 1o lnpse of sintule of
imitabans [12) {10} [0
Blalancs ol end of pesriod £ BT % FiS % TES
hiet anmcagniced tax bonefits' §  BB0 § 655 5 B
1, Represenl ndiy uitelopneed i Dhralis adnabed for Mo mgact of e fedent
tmrE of slade adan, L ity aerang and foregn Lax crad®
oftuet, ¥ recognised, s nel becalin woold Bvecably impad] the ellaciee Lix
LT T
It 15 reasonably possible that significant chamges i the
balance of unrecognized tax benefits may occur witlin 1he
mext 12 months. AL this time, however, il is not possible 1o
reasonably cstimate the expected clampe 1o (s ol amount
December 2021 Form 10K 134
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of unrccognized tax beneliis and the impact on the Firm's Setected Financial Information by Business Segment
elfective tax rate over the next 12 montlis, o
Interest Expanse [Benefil) Asssciated with Unrecognized Tax EN o B L "“ L
Banefits, Mat of Federal and State Income Tax Benefits JTEAMTANE DAnkng $I072 5 B2 S — 3 [106) 51050
Trading 12343 418 k] #2120
i e 221 W0 28 Investmants w7 a ™ - 1378
Recognaed in income sinlnment 5 TR 56 § B Commissors ard fpes' LETE 30 i [ 55
A ol end of pestad 142 134 B2 Al ranagamecd' ¥ 553 13,068 55T [15H) 10.967
Cither 435 577 L L
Interest and penaltics relyed 1o unrecognized tax benefits anc oL nr-Wre! avtanind EAW 15850 6% (S W.THe
recognized as a component of the provision for income laxes. :m'm S A SLCUED e
Penalizes related o unrecognized tax benefits for ihe vears r:mm;“w" ;m s.ﬁ E m:' ;:::
mentioned sbove were anmateral. Het revanues S20433 S24.243 36,220 § [S41) 550758
; i ’ . Provisionlercreditloases 5 [)S 115 —§ — 5 4
ﬁ:::::lliz Year Subject to Examination in Major Tax i P r— — o
Merrcomparanbon expenses  BAE1T 4061 2160 [S36] 15458
Juradiction T Yaar Totsl non-interest sxpenses  § 10,006 518,031 5 4,542 § [536) $40,083
[TE:# T Income before provison o
Morw York Staln and M Yor Gy Fr ] bp=rgg B01 Y FUiE4 § GUmd S9.6TH 5 [5) S100nER
UK. 2011 Proviisson for incoma taxes LT4E L447 356 (] 4548
Tepan 2015 Het income B068  4TM 1,322 ) 15,120
Hung Kong s mﬁ%ﬂﬁ 111 —  m — %
o ) o mlmm:mmm-w
The Finm is under cominuous examination by the IRS and Mirigin. Sty 3 0957 % 4TI 31047 S () 515004
other tax guthornilics in cerain countrics, such as Japan and )
the Uk, and in states and localities in which it hus significam § in mitions 15 WM 1M € Tolal
busingss operations, such as New York, Investmant barking § 7204 § 558 5 — 5 [89)5 TET
Tradeg” 13,087 44 ) TE 1a5A3
The Finn believes that the  mesolution of these  Lax Invustmants 165 12 808 - e
examindions will nod have a matenial ¢ffect on the annaal Commissons and fees' 2005 2 1 [aEp 48
financial statcmicnts, although a resolution could have a Assal mansgement’ ¥ 451 WSS IMI (15T} M4ETR
material impact in the income statement and on the elfective Other® 3 A 3% [ e
e rate for any P’-‘Ti")d in whicl such resolutions occur, Tolal nons-nberest smanues 24185 18084 3745 (555} A2d4d44
|l ircOrs L8] 471 1L 432y 10182
23, Segment, Geographic and Revenue TR e o N I B
Information Mat interast 2200 4022 15 16 6313
n Hat revanues’ $26.475 §10.085 § 3,734 § (530} S48757
5 : " . Proviglon for credithosses’ 5 731 8§ 30 8§ — § — § 751
The Finn siniciures its scgments primanily based upon the Cormgennton snd ety 8342 W00 182 — 208
miture of the fnancial products and services provided 10 Mercompansaton mepenses’  B2SF 3089 1922 (MG 12734
customers and 15 management organgzation. The Fiem Total non-interest sxpenses® S 16,504 §14.660 § 2864 § (549) 533578
provides a wide range of finmcial products and services (o is INCOME BeAor provimon a1
customers in each of s business segmemis: Instilstional Peome e 3891 % 4387 3 6103 0 314418
Sccurities, Wealth Management and Tivestment Management. Evcadii Kx oo Loy Lo e N # _ 3zm
For a further discussion of the business segments, see Note 1. A B -8 o B._Nars
Ml incorms apobcabia
noncontrolling inee osls -] —_ B4 —_ 183
Revenues and  exponses  directly  assocefed  with  cach Nt Income applica bie tor
respective business segment are included in determining s Morgan Sta 3roE S 20 5 6155 8 510605

operating resulis. Ciher revenues and expenses that are noi
directly atiributable o a particular business scpmem e
generally  allocated based on each business sepment’s
espective nel revenues, non-infercst cxpenscs o other
relevant measures.

As a nesult of revennes and expenses from rnsactions with
other operating scgmens being (reated as tmmsactions with
eitermal pantics for purposes of segment disclosurcs, the Firm
includes an Iniersegment Eliminaiions categony 1o meconcile
the business sepment resulis (o the consolidated resalis,

133
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2018
5 in e 18 WM . VE  Totw
Ervesiment hanking $ 5734 5 509 % = § 8015 6163
Trading’ 10 457 T3 ) BT 11374
Errveslmanis 325 2 123 - 1540
Commissions and fees” 2484 1.7 1 (202 3018
Agsol management'? 413 10088 FEED  (158) 13083
Ot 563 354 46y iBl 865
Total nor-rdenes] e 20016 13524 3788 (8A5] 35844
Erifiprigdl Hiaii 12,153 & AGT 20 (BA3Y 1T OB
Bt expanse 11,743 1.245 6 B0 12404
ot nlarasl Ay 4ZED [26h 1B 4604
Mot revenues' $20496 517746 $3.763 § (467) 541538
Proviskon for credit losses” £ 151 % 0 5 — & — 5 18t
Comparsation ard banf 7433 974 15M  — 18837

Wm.w‘ T AX2 3_1‘3& 1148  (461) 11235

Tedal nondnlerest expenses’ 514855 512004 52778 5 (861) 530076

Encoema Dafone provmson for
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Morgan Stanley

presentation of trding revenucs for regulatory  reporting
PUrpaSEs.

Investment Management [Investmenis Revenues—MNet
Cumulative Unrealized Carried Interast

AR Al
Decembar 31, December 31
£ i millons Foril 2000

Mt cumuialive unmeslized peclonmances
based foes al sk of mmsing ] e 5 a5

The Firm's porson of net cwmubiive perfformance-based fees
in the form of unrealized cammied inierest, for which il Firm
15 not obligated 1o pay compemsation, 15 al nsk of eversing
when the mm n cemmin funds fall below  specified
performance targets. See MNote 15 for information regarding
peneral  partner poarantees,  which  iclude  potential
ebligations 10 eum performance fee distributions previcusly

IrecaiTiay L § 5480 § 4832 § 8BS 3 (6) $113500

Brousion for income taes 76D 1M 183 @ 2084 received.

Mel incorma 47H 3728 Tz M} 9237

Mot incorme applicable (o Investment Management Assel Managemeni Revenues—

nonconkroling nlorests 122 — 73 — 195 Reduction of Fees Due to Fee Waivers

Hﬂhmmﬂﬁﬁhh

Morgan Stan § 4509 § 3728 § T19 5 4) 8§ 904F § in milpny 2024 0 08
[ § 86 § 138 £ 43

VE=Infersogman] Ekméralons

1. Sutsiarbaly ol revinoes doo fom conlmces with ousiomess.

&, Inch cilnm T thal muy neabs 1o senices peronmeed in pror peficd,

A, Cortan phcr piniddl amdsnts have tien niclasifed $0 cooform o e curmnt
presgriyion. Seo Kobe | kor addSonad nformaton.

4 Tre Ruih guardter of 2019 nduded speols severanoereiled cosls ol
apeonialely 5172 miton, whith am rouced i Compensalion and tenalits
WIS 1 I Ineome Stalesel This comls wite feosided i Pe businind
L] ¥ & oliows: InslSutongl Secunfas 5124 milon, Wealh

Maragoment 837 mélaon and rvesiment Maragoment § 11 milion

Detail of Investment Banking Revenuas

§in milrn 203 2070 20w
Erililubional Sogurilbi—Ada by $34a7 S2008 £2116
Enstilutional Eﬂn.lnl.rﬁ-—unﬂﬂwbng B85 519 2518
Firm Irasimant Baniing M Som

conlraits wilh cusiomary 9% g% al %

Teading Revenuas by Product Typa'

iy mallona 2021 202 2018
Fritereat rotn 5 T4 5 297B § 2773
Foreign exchange 1,008 2 195
Equby’ Tam 6,200 8 246
Commaily and ol 2,508 1,162 1647
Credid 1,132 2,141 1,243
Todal 3 12810 § 13883 5 11274
— —

1. Corasy phor poncd amounls hae Desn rocassded 10 conform o e cusmanl
pricerlaton, S Mot 1 ke addansl edormaton

2 Diwidend moome & included wilhn squity contradts,

The previous table summarizcs realized and vnrealized gains
and losses, from derivative and non-denvative fimancial
mstmements, mchwded i Trding revenues o (e income
statemeil. The Firm generlly atilizes Nnancial instomenls
across @ varcty of product tvpes in connection with s
muarket-making and related nsk mamgement siralcgies. The
rading revemses prescmed in the table arc not represcnative
of the manner i which the Finn manages its business
actvities and are prepared in oA manner similar 1o the

December 2021 Form 10K

The Firm waives a porien of iis fees in ihe lovesiment
Management business scgment from cenain regisiered moncy
nmerkel funds thar comply with the requirements of Bule 2a-7
of the Investment Company Act of 1940,

Certain Cler Fee Waivers

Scparately, the Firm's cmplovees. including its semior
officers, may participale on the same feons and conditions as
otler investors i cenan funds (hat the Finm sponsors
primarily for client invesiment, and (he Firm may waive or
lower applicable fees and charges: for its employvees.

Other Expanses  Transaction Taxes

5 in mlliona 2031 2030 2013

Transacbon laxes 5 02 5 69 3 45

Transaction txes are composed ol secunties rinsscion axes
and stamp dutics, which are levied on the sale or purchase of
scounties listed on recogmieed stock exchumges o certam
markets, These taxes ane imposed manly on trades of cquily
securitics in Asia and EMEA, Stmilar transaction taves ang
levied on rades of histed demvative instmiments i cenain
cOuntrics,

Mot Revenues by Region'

$ in miiona 2021 20E0 Fark -]
Amanicas § 44608 § 25459 5 a0a0d
EMEA T899 i 545 & 078
Asa T.4% 6,749 5136
Total § 50755 § 48757 § 41538

1, Corimn prod pinod svounts Faes boon reclissifed o conloem i @ cument
ririantaton. S Mok 1 lor agctonal infermalion,
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Table of Coments
Naotes to Consolidated Financial Statements Morgan Stanley
Income before Provision for Income Taxes Tolal Assets by Region
§ in millans 2031 A 218 Al A
Decomber 31, Decersitnr 31
B SIS B i e
--- - . A ] BERO01 § B15 048
Tedal $ 19668 5 14418 § 1130 EMEA 204,083 154 508
1. Mol 8. Foome @ defned as oo genenaled from cpembons ocaled cutsdo Anay 136,058 106 216
H L% Tatal 5 1188140 §  f115EA2

The Firm operates in both US, and pon-U.S. markets. The
Firm's non-L.5, busingss activitics are prncipally conducted
and memaged through EMEA and Asia locations. The nct
revenues disclosed m the previous table reflect the egional
view of the Firm’'s consolidaicd net revenues on a managed
basis, based on the following methodology ;

fstitutional Securities: Chent location for advisory  and
equity  underwnting.  svndicate desk  location for  debi
unckerwriting. trading desk location for sales and trading,

Weairk
opcrate.

Managesent, Amencas,  where  represcniatives

fervesimens  Management: Clieni  location, except  certain
closed-cnd funds, which are based on asscl location

Revenues Recognized from Prior Services

5 b mellcrg
Ppn=enlosesd nevinues

202 2020 2018
5 2390 5 2398 5 2705

The previous table mcludes revenues from comracis with
customers  recognived where some or all services wers
performed i prior penods. For the vear ended December 31,
221, these mevempes primarily include investment banking
advisory fees, and for the vears ended Decemiber 31, 2020 and
2009, these mevenues pringrly include investment banking
sdvisory fecs and distribution fees,

Receivables from Contracts with Customers

Ax Al
Decombar 31, Decomber 31,

& by il Faves] 2020
Customar &l olher recsivabias 5 1 3 ]

Recevables from comtmcts  with  customers,  which e
included within Customer and other receivables i the balance
shoet. anse when the Firm has both recorded revennes and the
nght per the contract o bill the customer,

Assels by Businesa Segment

1] ar
December 31, Decamber 31,
5 il 20 2020
Eratibstiona! Sooanies % 135 B (ke
Waalth Managemant ara.438 k]
Ermvesimaend Managoment 17 567 %=1
Total! 5 1488140 § 9115852

1. Pamecd gl hawe been hily alocaled ko the business segmenis.,

137

24. Parent Company

Parent Company Only—Condensed Income Statement and
Comprehensive Income Statement

£ i oy 20H 2000 2%
R itk
Divatencs from bari subsdianes 5 - % A1 § 3534
Crvactesnscts from BHIC and nonsbank subsdianes FE T 1170 1538
Tolal dendends from subeidiaries BEDE 38 ]
Trading 228 (4} (54}
Oihor 4 51 =]
Tala! nie-inberail s LR b oy ] B BAG
Inlanfsd ircoms B4R 3 B &1t
Irnheraead sopeesryme 2R JoET A B
ek interes (174} ar A
Med revenuss 957 4367 015
Nerviniomsl sxpensen 443 a7 g
Iy Esdern insame laxes LE ST T X - H
Prevision for [Denaly tom) ecoms Lanes [203) (0@ (73}
Mt innemie babov mcstnibated gaon o

g danrios BT A 0 5 TER
Urstributed gain of subsidianes T HOOT 3N
et income 15034 10996 @042
Difer compraharsh income (aa), rel of lax:

Formgn camency ransiation adusiments [207) 103 (ap

e i ot N gasns (oasas ) on

arvailabbe-for-giie secuniies [1.542) 1880 1937
Ponsiors, ard oifne (53} 144 (121
Chargss in rad dobl valanion sdustreni EA2 (100 [7.5540)

Compmhersiva income S8 FU1822 § B4
— —_—

Mk income §15034 SA0995 § G042
Prefamed siack dividends. and ofher 468 L] =]
Earbiign leable 1o Morgan Stanbey

COATITRI ratiniders S14566 SR0800 § EEI2
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Morgan Stanley

Parent Company Only—Cendensed Cash Flow Statement

December 31, December 33 - - B L
r
] ’ Mt cash providid by {uied for) operating
3 in i, pucep! share dali 201 2020 activities § AZST §14.202 $34.175
Assats Cash fows fom investing activities
Cash and cash equivalents 5 15342 § 0z Prosesds from [paymrets for):
Trading assols al fakr vales 5298 B.852 Invsiment seouniles
Brveatmend securiies [inchades $21 246 and Purchases
570,037 al fair value, $16,573 and 524,248 PEH (900 FELeey
Wil P 00 VACKRIS pirTing b .7 L] Proceeds from sales 2611 213 4671
Bt bes puithased under agreemand la Procueds. frorm paydoers and malor s 5535 5651 3157
resafl 1o afilHes 21116 34,658 = s e undier agr ®0
Advarces 1o subsdianes: resedl witn affkates 13,581 [24584) 15432
B, gl BHC 59,757 e =] & el ok uraar by 1= b
- g T gL m.nﬂum [7422) 19719 4531
By brvastiants in subsiarion :wmh M”zawny ;;"dm :;T::mm (7,083 [(138IZ)  [2210)
cash prov g
Bark and BHC 050 52.951 activitios [11.874) [30343)  [3.737)
Hon-hunk, 48481 A7 450 Cash flows fram linancimg activities
O pstats 1,109 Lo Procaads from!
Tedal anasin p] 30T 3 L3, 155 Imumirdn of profenmed slock, nol of Esursce
Liabilities coRlE 1275 - 447
Trading lstiites al fr values 3 1,688 3 1,623 I of Bormowings 42008 F55ET 8337
Securfies sold urder agreements bo Payeranis for:
regrirehase fram aflen 16,520 24,549 Fitwriracris [2B502) (Z2108) [24 282
Payabies Ir and advances from subskdinnes 59,960 43 552 Repurchasens of comeman shock and srogicyeg
e Fabdtes A Seehsd Sxparies 1,850 7181 B wthFOngs 2075  (L80) (5854
Bawreraiegs (ncludas 515,894 and $18.804 m Cash dridands ATy (2T (2ERT)
fiaer sk} 470,195 158,979 Mt charge n advances from subssdianes 17042 7104 4.3TA
Total llabilities 250,630 230,384 Other fnarcing actvites — (408} 12
Mt cash provided by (used for) financing
Commitments and contingent Habilties (see Note 15) activities 15,577 5540 [190630)
Efecl ol axchange i#le changes on b ad
Equity cash squyvalenls 3B0 (G [T
Prifurd slock 7,750 G280 Ml increase (decrease) in cash and cash
Comimae shock, 50,00 par valus: "qm::':ﬂ - = iciid L] urd
; Cash aquvElents. 8 beginning
i Wﬁwﬁﬁmﬁ:" period 7A02 B0 T4
1,77E220,530 5o 1 BOG 624 144 ' 0 0 Cash amd cash aquivalents, st end of peried 18,342 § 7102 § 8010
Addtonal padd-n capial b B2 25 Sl Cash and cash squivab ;
Ralgingd gemings Ll A Cash and dos from banis $ 0% W3 9
Eerployws sino: Inssiy Eh Lt B3 Deposits with bank subsidisries 15242 TORZ  BOO1
Accumuialod othesr comprensns Roome
fore Bion  gos  Cashandceshequbserts stendolperied $15342 37102 S 8010,
Common siock held in reasury at cost, $0.01 Restricked cash B 441 3 34t ¥ —
e vl | 266,667 449 and 79 P69 B35
shared) [17. 500§ [BTET) Supplemenial Disclesurs of Cash Flow Information
Common siock ssued 1o erployee slock Canh payrments for:
mﬂh s - - p‘“f" - '5:"“?' Intpresd § 2970 § 2472 § 46T
ke i iflis Incame Lases. el of rekinds! 278 1384 1188
Tedal liabilities and sguity 1 ILEOTY % 3331685

December 2021 Form 10K

1, Fepresnntd lolel paymants, nel of refunds, made i9 vased Tix Sufofies &5
inchudes Bices paid on betad of cortan subskd Eral arn ok sapbtid
tmah e Paren G y and Fane st . Tha TS
oo subsichanies wans $30 balon, 518 bllon snd 59,5 pon For 2021, 2020 and
TG, sy

For informaiion on the Parend Company’s preferred stock. sce
Mote 18,

Parent Company’s Borrowings with Original Maturities
Greater than One Year

At A1
Decembar 34, Decerber 31
§ i il M 2020
St 5 155,304 5 145 885
Suboerdirutd 13,50 11,064
Totel 5 168,895 & 1zaard
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Transactions with Subsidiarics

The Pargnt Company has transactions with its consolidated
subsidiarics determined on an agreed-upon basis and has
guamaniced cenain unsecured lines of crodit and contractual
abligations on cerain of its consolidaied subsidiarics,

Guarantees

In the normal course of ils business, the Parent Company
guamanices corain of it subsidiankes” obligations on a
leansaction-by Amnsaction  basis  under vanous  fAmancial
armangements, The Parent Company has issucd guamnices on
behall of s subsidiarics to varous US. amd non-ULS.
exclunges and clearinghouses that trade and clear secuntics
and/or futures contracts, Under these guaranios armangements,
the Parent Compamny may be required 1o pay the Gmancial
obligations of its subsidianes relaed 1o business transacted on
or with the exchanges and cleannghouses in the event of a
subsidiany 's delfmll on its obligations 1o e exchange or the
clearinghouse. The Parcnt Company has noi recorded any
contingem lability in s condensed ficncial stmements for
these  amangemenis  and  believes that  any  podential
requircsenls to make payments under these armngements s
e,

The Parent Company also, in the nommal course of business,
provides standard indemmnines 1o counlerpartics on behall of
s subsidianes for taxcs, including US. and  forcign
withholding taxes, on mterest and other paymenis made on
derivatives. secunitics and stock lending imnsactions, and
certain anmuty products, and may also prowvide indemnitics 1o
or on belall of affliaes from tme 1o e for oller
arengemenis, These indemnily paymems could be requined,
s applicable, based on 2 change i the tax laws, change in
mnterpretaton of applicable 1ax mulings or claims anising from
contractual relationships between affiliates, Cenain contracts
contin  provistons that enable the Parem Company 1o
terminate the agrecment upon 1he occurmence of such cvenis,
The maximum potemial amoum of future pavments that the
Parent Company could be required 10 make under these
indemmnifications cannod be estimaied. The Parent Company
has not wecorded amy contimgent lability i 18 condensed
financial statemenis for these indemnifications and belicves
that the occumrence of any events that would ingger pavmenis
under kse CONLRICtS 15 remole.

Guaranteas of Debtl Instruments and Warrants Issued by
Subsidiaries

AL Al
Docambar 31, Dacambaer 31
§ i ey 2021 g

A npane halecs 5 AT % 3 145

Guaranteas under Subsidiary Lease Obligations

AL Al
December 31, Docomber 31,
5 in il Firil el
Agrrogats nalece’ 5 &0 § BES

. Amounty prmandy reale 1o e LUK
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Morgan Stanley
Finance Subsidiary

The Paremt Compamy fully and unconditionally guaranices the
securitics issued by Morgan Stanley Finance LLC, a wholly
ownd finance subsidiary. No other subsidiary of U Parent
Company guaramices these sccuntfics.

Resolution and Recovery Planning

As andicated in the Finm's 2021 targeied reseluwlion plan
submitted 1o the Federal Reserve and the FDIC, the Parcnt
Company has amended and restated its suppon agreement
with its material enfitics (including its whollv owned, direct
subsidiary  Morgan Stanley  Holdings LLC (the “Funding
IHC™ ) and cenain oller subsidianes), as defined in the Fiem's
2021 rargeted resolirion plan, Under the secured, amended
and restated suppor agreement. in the event of a resolution
scenanio, the Paremt Compame would be obligaied 1o
comtribme all of ns mustenial assets that can be comribmed
under e teans of the omended wnd restated suppon
agreement (other than shares in subsidiarics of the Parcn
Company and certam oiler assels) (“Contnbutable Assels™ o
the matenal cntities andfor the Funding IHC. The Funding
IHC would be obligated o provide capital and liguidity, as
applicable, to the matenal entitics.,

139 December 2021 Form 10-K
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Table of Comenis

Changes in  and Disagreements with
Accountants on  Accounting and  Financial
Disclosure

Maone,
Controls and Procedures

Conclusion Regarding the Effectiveness of Disclosure
Controls and Procedures

Under the supervision and with (he participation of the Fiom's
management, including the Chicl Executive OMicer amd Chicl
Fimmcial Officer, the Finn conducted an evaluation of
dischosure controls amd procedures, as such term is defined
ungler Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(c), Based on this cvaluation,
the Chiel Executive Officer and Cheel Fimmcial Officer
concluded that the Firm's disclosure comtrols and procedurcs
were effective as of the end of the period covered by this
annual report.

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial

Reporting

The Finn's mamagcinent is mesponsible for establishing and
maintaining sdegquate inicmal control over financial reporing.
The Fim's iermal comirol over fmancial reporing is
designed to provide reasonable  assumnce regarding  the
reliability of [nancial reporting and the preparation of
fmancial stalemems for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepled accounting principles in the United States
of Amenea (“US. GAAP™).

EDINETOOOO

O0O000oo0gOooOoo(eoessr1)

Morgan Stanley

The intermal comrol over financial reporting includes those
policies ad procedures tial:

Pertin 1o the maintenance of records that, i reasomble
detail. accurately and fairly reflect e ransactions and
dispostions of the asscis of the Firm:

Provide reasonable assurance thal transactions ane recorded
A% necessary o permil preparsion of financial staicments in
accomdance with US. GAAP and that reccipts and
expenditures are bemg made only in accordance with
authonzations of the Firm's manageme and diecctors, and
* Prowvide reasonable assurmnce regarding  prevention or
iimeely  detection of wnauthonezed  acquisilion. use  or
disposition of Finm asscis that could have a matenial effect
on the Finm's fimamcial statements.

Becamse of s mherent limitations, imermal control over
financial repoming may 0ol prevent or detecl misstalemens,
Also, projections of any evalwition of effectivencss 1o futune
penods are subject 1o e msk tlen controls ey become
inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the degree
of complance with ibe policics or procedures ey
deteriorate.

Mampement assessed the eifectuveness of the Finm's el
conirol over Ninancial reporiing as of December 31, 2020, In
making this asscssment, memegement used the cntcra scl
forth by the Commitiee of Sponsonng Organizations of ihe
Trepdway  Commission ("OO0S07) in Internal  Control—
Integrated  Framework (2013). Based on  mamigement’s
assessinent and those coteria, management belicves thar the
Firm maimaimed effective mfermal control over Timancial
reporting as of December 31, 2021,

The From's independent registered public accounting firm has
audited and issued a report on the Finm's internml control over
finamcial reporiing. which appears below

143 December 2021 Form 10K
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Teo e Sharcholders and the Board of Directors of Morgan Stanley:

Opinion on Internal Contral over Financial Reporting

We have audited the imermal control over financial repoming
of Morgan Stankey and subsidiancs (the “Finm™) as of
December 31, 2021, based on enteria established in Intemal
Comtrol — Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the
Committee of Sponsonng Organiations of the Treadway
Commission (COS0). In our opinton, the Finn maintained, in
all matenial respocts, effective internal control over fimmcial
meporting as of December 31, 2021, based on catenn
established in Iniermal Comirol —  Iwicgrted Framework
{20113 1ssued by COSO.

We lurve also audited, in scoordance with the standards of the
Public Company Accounting Chversight Board (Umeed States)
(PCACE), the Nmancial siatemenis of the Firm as of and for
the vear cnded December 31, 2021 and our report dated
February 24, 2022 expressed an ungualificd opinion on ihose
financial siatcmens,

Basis for Opinion

The Firm's management s responsible for  seiniaining
effective intemal control over financial eporting and for its
aesessment of the effectiveness of intermal control over
financial  reporing,  incheled in e accompanying
Manmagement's Report on Internal Control Owver Fimamenal
Reporting. Cur responsability is 10 ¢xpress an opinion on the
Firm’s intemal conirol over linanceal reporiing based on our
audit. We are a public sccounting firm registened with the
PCAOE and are required to be independent with respeat o
the Firm in accordance with the US. federal secunties laws
and the applicable rules and megulations of the Securtics and
Exchange Commission and the PCAOB

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards off
the PCAOB, Those standards require that we plan and
perfonm the audit 1o oblmn reasonable assurance  aboul
whether effective idermal control aver financial reporting was
mainkuned in all matenal respects, Our aedit included
obtammng an understanding of imemal contrel over limncial
reporting,

fa/ Deloitle & Touglw LLE

Mew York, New York

February 24, 2022

December 2021 Form 10K

assessing the risk that a matenial weakness exisis, esting and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of mtermal
comol based on the assessed sk, and perforiming such ather
procedures as we considered necessany i fhe circumsiances,
We believe that our andil provides a reasonable basis for our
opInkoIL,

Definition and  Limitations of Internal Control over
Financial Reporting

A company’s imemal control over financial reporiing is a
process designed 1o provide reasomable assunince regarding
the reliability of fimncial reporting and the preparaon off
financial statements for extermal purposes in accordance with
penemally  aocepted  accounting  principles. A company s
ilernal contrel over Mimncial eporing  includes  those
policies and procodures that (1) penain 1o the mainicnance of
records that, in reasonable detul, accurately and Gy reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the asseis of the company;
(2) provide repsonable asswrance thal  fmmsactions  arc
recorded a8 pecessary (o pernul preparation of Ninancial
statements in accordance with generally accepied sccounting
ponciples, and that meecipls and expenditures of the company
are being made only in accordance with autlorizations of
management and directors of the company. and (3) provide
reasonable assumnce egarding prevention or limely detection
of uwnauthorized acquisiion. wse, or disposiion of e
company s assets that could have a nuerial effect on the
financial statements.

Becawse of s inberest limivations, imernal conirol over
financial reponing maxy ol prevent oF detect missiatements,
Also, projections of any evaluation of effectivencss 1o Moturne
periods are subject to the risk ilei conirols may become
inadequate because of chamges in conditions, or that the
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

144
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the Shareholders and the Board of Directors of Morgan Stanley:

Opinion on the Financiad Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Morgan Stanley and subsidiaries (the “Firm”) as of
December 31, 2021 and 2020, the related consolidated income statements, comprehensive income statements, cash flow
statements and statements of changesin total equity for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2021, and the
related notes (collectively referred to as the “financial statements”). In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of the Firm as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, and the results of its operations and its
cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2021, in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States)
(PCAOB), the Firm's internal control over financia reporting as of December 31, 2021, based on criteria established in
Internal Control — Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission and our report dated February 24, 2022, expressed an unqualified opinion on the Firm's internal control over
financial reporting.

Basis for Opinion

These financial statements are the responsibility of the Firm’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the
Firm’s financia statements based on our audits. We are a public accounting firm registered with the PCAOB and are required
to be independent with respect to the Firm in accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules and
regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financia statements are free of material misstatement, whether due
to error or fraud. Our audits included performing procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to error or fraud, and performing procedures that respond to those risks. Such procedures included
examining, on atest basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. Our audits also included
evaluating the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements. We believe that our audits provide areasonable basis for our opinion.

Critical Audit Matters

The critical audit matters communicated below are matters arising from the current-period audit of the financial statements that
were communicated or required to be communicated to the audit committee and that (1) relate to accounts or disclosures that
are material to the financia statements and (2) involved our especially challenging, subjective, or complex judgments. The
communication of critical audit matters does not alter in any way our opinion on the financial statements, taken as awhole, and
we are not, by communicating the critical audit matters below, providing a separate opinion on the critical audit matters or on
the accounts or disclosures to which they relate.

Vauation of Level 3 Financial Assets and Liabilities Carried a Fair Vaue on a Recurring Basis—Refer to Note 5 to the
financial statements

Critical Audit Matter Description

The Firm's trading and financing activities result in the Firm carrying material financia instruments having limited price
transparency. These financial instruments can span a broad array of product types and generally include derivative, security,
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loan, and borrowing positions. As described in Note 5, these Level 3 financial instruments approximate $11.9 billion and $6.2

billion, respectively, of financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value on a recurring basis at December 31, 2021. Unlike
financial instruments whose inputs are readily observable and, therefore, more easily independently corroborated, the valuation
of financia instruments classified as Level 3 is inherently subjective and often involves the use of unobservable inputs and
proprietary valuation models whose underlying algorithms and valuation methodologies are complex.

We identified the valuation of Level 3 financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value on arecurring basis as a critical audit
matter given the Firm uses complex valuation models and/or model inputs that are not observable in the marketplace to
determine the respective fair values. Performing our audit procedures to evaluate the appropriateness of these models and
inputs involved a high degree of auditor judgment, professionals with specialized skills and knowledge, and an increased
extent of testing.

How the Critical Audit Matter Was Addressed in the Audit

Our audit procedures related to the valuation of Level 3 financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value on arecurring basis

included the following, among others:

» We tested the design and operating effectiveness of the Firm's internal controls that address fair value estimates, including
model review and price verification. The Firm maintains these internal controls to assess the appropriateness of its valuation
methodol ogies and the relevant inputs and assumptions used to determine fair value estimates.

* We independently evaluated the appropriateness of management’s significant valuation methodologies, including the input
assumptions, considering the expected assumptions of other market participants and external data when available.

» We developed independent fair value estimates for selected Level 3 financia instruments, using externally sourced inputs
and independent valuation models, and used such estimates to further evaluate management’s fair value estimates. For certain
of our selected Level 3 financia instruments, this included a comparison to the Firm's fair value estimates for similar
transactions and an evaluation of the Firm'’s assumptions inclusive of the inputs, as applicable.

» We tested the revenues arising from the trade date fair value estimates for selected structured transactions classified as Level
3 financia instruments. For certain of our selected transactions, we developed independent fair value estimates to test the
valuation inputs and assumptions used by the Firm and evaluated whether these methods were consistent with relevant Firm
valuation poalicies.

» We assessed the consistency by which management has applied significant and unobservable valuation assumptions used in
developing fair value estimates.

» We performed a retrospective assessment of management’s fair value estimates for certain of our selected Level 3 financial
instruments, for which there were events or transactions occurring after the valuation date. We did so by comparing
management’s estimates to the relevant evidence provided by such events or transactions, as applicable.

Intangible Assets—Valuation of Customer Relationship and Indefinite Lived Management Contract Intangible Assets for the
Eaton Vance Acquisition—Refer to Note 3 to the financia statements

Critical Audit Matter Description

On March 1, 2021, the Firm completed the acquisition of Eaton Vance for approximately $8.7 hillion. This business
combination was recognized using the acquisition method of accounting. Accordingly, the purchase price was allocated to the
assets acquired and liabilities assumed based on their fair values, including identified intangibles of approximately $4 hillion.
The intangibles included customer relationships of $1.5 billion and indefinite lived management contracts of $2.1 billion.
Management, with the assistance of a valuation specialist, estimated the fair value of the intangible assets by discounting the
forecasted future cash flows. The determination of fair value of the identified intangible assets involves significant estimates
and assumptions related to forecasted future cash flows including revenue growth rates and the selection of the discount rates.

We identified the valuation of customer relationship and indefinite lived management contract intangible assets as a critical
audit matter because the fair value determination requires management to make significant estimates and assumptions in
determining the forecasted future cash flows including revenue growth rates and the selection of the respective discount rates.
Performing audit procedures to evaluate the reasonableness of these estimates and assumptions required a high degree of
auditor judgment and an increased extent of effort, including the involvement of our valuation specialists.
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How the Critical Audit Matter Was Addressed in the Audit

Our audit procedures related to the valuation of customer relationship and indefinite lived management contract intangible

assets acquired as part of the Eaton Vance acquisition included the following, among others:

» We performed sensitivity analyses to evaluate the impact of changes in assumptions on the valuation of the customer
relationship and indefinite lived management contract intangible assets.

* We tested the operating effectiveness of internal controls over the valuation methodology used, the determination of
forecasted future cash flows, assumptions relating to revenue growth and the selection of the discount rates.

» We assessed the knowledge, skill, ability and objectivity of management’s valuation specialist and evaluated the work
performed.

* We evaluated the appropriateness of the valuation methodology used and the reasonableness of the forecasted future cash
flows for the customer relationship and indefinite lived management contract intangible assets, specifically the assumptions
relating to the revenue growth rates. Further, we evaluated whether the assumptions used were reasonable considering
external market and industry data as well as the past performance of Eaton Vance.

» We tested the source information underlying the determination of the revenue growth and discount rates and also tested the
mathematical accuracy of the calculations.

* We developed a range of independent estimates of discount rates for the customer relationship and indefinite lived
management contract intangible assets and compared those to the discount rates utilized by management.

/s Deloitte & Touche LLP
New York, New Y ork
February 24, 2022

We have served asthe Firm's auditor since 1997.
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